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SAN FRANCISCO CHRONICLE 

April 8, 1994 


Germoin Bulcke 
-Leoder of 
Longshore Union 

Germain Bulcke, a founding -
member and leader Qf the Interna- 
tional Longshoremeb's and Ware 
housemen's Union, Pied Wednes- 
day in Santa Rosa at age 91. 

Mr. Bulcke was born in Bel- 
ghn,and came to work on the San 
Francisco waterfront in the 1920s. 

In 1933, a movement began 
among longshoremen agairlst the 
"shape-up" system, 'under which 
dockers were required to apply for 
work each day. 

- Payoffs and discrimination 
' were rife, and the Only organiza- 
tion that claimed to represent the 
men, the socalled Blue B o ~ k  
union, was considered corrupt. 

A tumultuous West Coast mari- 
time strike began in May 1934, and 
culminated in the "Bloody Thurs-. 
day" street fighting of July 5,1934, 
in which police and strikers bat- 
tled along the Embarcadero, from 
Telegraph Mll to Rincon Hill. 

At the corner of Steuart and 
Mission streets, near the longshore 
strike headquarters, longshore- 
man Howard Sperry and cook 
Nick Counderakis-Bordoise were 

shot to death by police. 
m e n  the fatal shots were fir. 

ed, Mr. Bulcke, a union picket cap 
tain, was fixing a flat tire in a ga- 
rage that then stood at the spot. He 
recounted the incident many 
times in later years, in film and 
television documentary interviews 
as well as in an oral history he pro- 
duced under the awpica of the 
Elancroft at the University 
of California. 

In a 1986 interview with Chron- -
icle reporter Rick DelVecchio, Mr. 
Bulcke recalled that he carried an- 

aother man wounded in the shoot-, wife, Helen; his son, Ken, of Wind- 
ing to safety, then rt?twnedto cov- sor; daughter, Muriel, of SanJose;
er the b  ~ o s ~ ~~ on the street ~ and his stepson, Bruce Benner, of 
with roses. Grass Valley. 

ternational Workersp Order in the 
193941 "The Yanks h e  Not corn- 
ing" campaign against U-S. in- 
volvement in World War 11. 

He was president of the local 
council of the then-Congress of In- 
dustrial Organizations during a 
battle against the Taft-Hartley Act 
under President Hany Truman. -

In the 1960s, Mr. Bulcke served 
as a longshore labor arbitrator un- 
ti1 his retirement, after which he 
was active in the ILWU Pension--
ers' Association. 

w. Bulcke is swived by his 

After the 1934 conflict, which 
developed into a short general 
strike in San Francisco, Mr. Bulcke 
took a prominent role in water- 
front labor politics. With the reor- 
ganization of the longshoremen's 
union and foundatiollrcof ILWU in -
1937, he held a number of posts, 
rising to a vice presidency of the 
international. 

Mr. Bulcke was long a combat- 
ive partisan of the left and was of- 
ten involved in controversy during 
the West Coast waterfront faction- 
al wars of the 1940s and '50s. 

He was active in the Harry 
Bridges Defense Committee and in 
events protesting the Reichstag 
Fire Trial held in Germany under 
Adolf Hitler. He supported the In- 

A memorial service is pending. 
-Stephen ~ c m 





On behalf of all f u t u r e  u s e r s  of t h i s  o r a l  h i s t o r y ,  
t h e  Regional O r a l  His tory  Of f i ce  thanks those  persons  who made 
i ts  product ion poss ib le ,  

Labor h i s t o r i a n  Es to lv  Ward, a f t e r  'compl'eting o r a l  
h i s t o r i e s  of  Louis  Goldbla t t  and Henry Schmidt, went ahead t o  
i n t e r v i e w  Germain Bulcke, even though a t  t h a t  t ime funds f o r  
p u b l i c a t i o n  d id  not  e x i s t ,  

To complete t h e  t r i a d  by p rese rv ing  t h e  memoirs of 
t h e s e  t h r e e  key persons  i n  t h e  I n t e r n a t i o n a l  Longshoremen1 s 
and Warehousemenls Union, Ward and Bulcke spent  t h e  year  of 
1983-84 planning, researching ,  and in terv iewing,  

A s  i n  p rev ious  o r a l  h i s t o r i e s  done by E s t o l v  Ward, 
h i s  wife Angela, h e r s e l f  a l a b o r  a c t i v i s t  from t h e  e a r l y  C I O  . 
days, d i d  a l a r g e  sha re  of t h e  product ion work, f i r s t  tyanscr ib-  
i n g  t h e  i n t e r v i e w  t a p e s  i n t o  rough t y p e s c r i p t  and then typ ing  
t h e  f i n i s h e d  copy, 

Then t h e  Regional O r a l  His tory  Of f i ce  c a l l e d  upon t h e  
ILWU l o c a l  unions which had been helped by J e r r y  Bulcke i n  
h i s  v a r i o u s  r o l e s  a s  P res iden t  of Local 10(San Francisco  
Longshoremen) ; I n t e r n a t i o n a l  Vice-President; and ILWU-PMA 
a r b i t r a t o r  i n  Southern C a l i f o r n i a ,  Funding was forthcoming 
from t h e  unions and from i n d i v i d u a l  l a b o r  suppor te r s  l i s t e d  
below, 

We a l s o  wish t o  thank Sam Kagel, Coast a r b i t r a t o r ,  f o r  
t h e  i n t r o d u c t i o n  he wrote on behalf  of J e r r y  Bulcke, his long-
time co-worker i n  t h e  s e n s i t i v e  bus iness  of l a b o r  a r b i t r a t i o n ,  

Wil la  Baum 
Div i s ion  Head 
Regional O r a l  H i s to ry  Of f i ce  

Donors t o  t h e  Germain Bulcke O r a l  His tory  Pro jec t :  

ILWU I n t e r n a t i o n a l  Children and grandchi ldren  of 
ILWU Pensioners1 Clubs, Germain and Helen f!Rustytf Bulcke 
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INTRODUCTION 

J e r ry  Bulcke w a s  an ac t i ve  t r ade  Unionist who became an acceptable, 
competent Labor Arbi t ra tor .  J e r ry ' s  l abor  h i s t o r y  is, I ' m  su re ,  s e t  f o r t h  
i n  the  following pages. 

I n  order  t o  judge h i s  background i n  l abor  r e l a t i ons ,  i t  should be noted 
t h a t  he w a s  e lec ted  Pres ident  of the  In t e rna t i ona l  Longshoremen's and Ware- 
housemen's Union, Local 10,  i n  1938, 1942, 1943, 1945 and 1946; t h a t  he w a s  
e lec ted  t o  the  union's I n t e rna t i ona l  Executive Board i n  1945; t h a t  he was 
Pres ident  of the  San Francisco C I O  Council i n  1947; and t h a t  from 1947 u n t i l  
1960, he  served as  the second Vice Pres ident  of the  In t e rna t i ona l  ~ongshoremen's 
and Warehousemen's Union. From 1951 t o  1959, he w a s  the  ILWU's Local 10 
represen ta t ive  on the  Area Labor Relat ions Corumittee, and from 1952 t o  1960, 
he was a member of the  Coast Negotiating Committee. 

This s h o r t  resume of h i s  t r ade  union a c t i v i t i e s  is  noted i n  order t o  
understand h i s  work when he became an Arb i t r a t o r  under t he  terms of the  
In t e rna t i ona l  Longshoremen' s and Warehousemen's Union and t he  P a c i f i c  Coast 
Maritime Contract.  This background resu l ted  i n  Je r ry  not  only knowing the  
indust ry ,  bu t  a l s o  provided him with  the  opportunity t o  become acquainted 
wi th  the problems of Longshoremen, Clerks and the  Employers. It gave him an 
in t imate  view and understanding of ~ m p l o y e r / ~ n i o n  re la t ionsh ips  on the  P a c i f i c  
Coast i n  the  longshore indust ry ,  and an in t imate  view of the  Col lec t ive  
Bargaining Agreement covering t h a t  indust ry .  

This background bore f r u i t  f o r  the  Longshoremen, Clerks and Employers 
i n  the  indus t ry  when, i n  1960, he w a s  appointed t he  Southern Cal i fornia  
Arb i t ra to r  under the  terms of the  ILWU-PMACollective Bargaining Agreement. 
I n  order  t o  understand t he  importance of t h a t  posi t ion,  l e t  me give a b r i e f  
h i s t o ry  of the  a r b i t r a t i o n  procedure and process of the  P a c i f i c  Coast Longshore 
indust ry .  

I n  1948, a t  the  end of a Coastwide s t r i k e ,  the  Union and the  Employers 
determined t h a t  i n  order  t o  provide f o r  se t t lement  of d isputes  t h a t  occur on 
t he  job, the re  would be s e t  up a Coast Arb i t ra to r  covering i s sue s  involving 
the  e n t i r e  Coast and f o r  t h e  appointment of Area Arbitrators--one f o r  t he  
S t a t e  of Washington, one f o r  the  S t a t e  of Oregon, one f o r  the  San Francisco 
Bay a rea ,  and one f o r  Southern California.  These Arb i t ra to r s  were t o  be and 
a r e  ava i l ab le  24 hours a day, seven days a week f o r  the  se t t lement  of d isputes .  

From the  point  of view of the Union, the  immediate se t t lement  of d isputes  
i s  extremely important s i nce  many of them a r i s e  because of condit ions onboard 
sh ip  o r  dock, and a sh ip  has schedules which may no t  r e t a i n  i t  i n  po r t ;  there-
fo re ,  the  need f o r  an Arb i t ra to r  t o  view the  evidence t h a t  might be involved 



must be done while the  sh ip  is  i n  por t .  From t h e  po in t  of v i e w  of the  
Employers, d isputes  should be s e t t l e d  immediately. Ships should not  be he ld  
up while a r b i t r a t i o n  hearings a r e  going on, s i n c e  the re  i s  a need f o r  a f a s t  

/ 

turn-around of sh ips ,  and the  c o s t  of r e t a i n i n g  a s h i p  i n  p o r t  beyond i t s  
schedule i s  extremely expensive. 

It is wi th  these  p r i n c i p l e s  i n  mind t h a t  t h e  Union and PMA determined 
t o  set up what T r e f e r  t o  as " ins tant"  a r b i t r a t i o n .  To ca r ry  out  t h i s  design, 
an A r b i t r a t o r  was  appointed i n  each of t h e  areas noted above. 

I n  1948, i n  two of t h e  areas, persons with Union backgrounds were s e l e c t e d  
as the  Arb i t ra to r s .  I n  Southern Ca l i fo rn ia ,  t h e  f i r s t  Area A r b i t r a t o r  w a s  an 
a t to rney ,  not  connected with e i t h e r  the  Union o r  the  Employers. H e  was  an 
exce l l en t  ~ r b i t r a t o r  b u t  the  problem of h i s  a v a i l a b i l i t y  l e d  the  P a r t i e s  i n  
1960 t o  determine t h a t  they wanted t o  have someone who would be  a v a i l a b l e  f o r  
immediate hear ings  and decis ions  on cases t h a t  would a r i s e .  

By t h a t  t i m e ,  the  P a r t i e s  had agreed t o  appoint as A r b i t r a t o r s  i n  t h e  
f o u r  areas  men who were p r a c t i c a l ,  who came ou t  of t h e  indus t ry  and who knew 
t h e  indust ry ;  and t h a t  two of t h e  Area A r b i t r a t o r s  would be s e l e c t e d  from t h e  
Employer ranks, and two of t h e  Area A r b i t r a t o r s  from t h e  ranks of the  Long- 
shoremen. 

This is  t h e  only system of t h i s  kind,  of which I am aware, i n  t h e  United 
S t a t e s  i n  which t h e  Area A r b i t r a t o r s  come d i r e c t l y  out  of t h e  ranks of e i t h e r  
Management o r  the Union. Each Par ty  t o  t h e  Agreenlent r e ta ined  t h e  r i g h t  t o  
dismiss an A r b i t r a t o r  a t  any t i m e .  Since t h i s  system has  been i n  e f f e c t  
(1948), n e i t h e r  the  Union nor  the  Employers have ava i l ed  themselves of t h a t  
r i g h t .  I n  s h o r t ,  A r b i t r a t o r s  have served out  t h e i r  terms and have only been 
replaced when they decided t o  retire o r  have died.  

It w a s  wi th in  t h i s  a r b i t r a t i o n  mechanism t h a t  t h e r e  came t h e  need f o r  
an A r b i t r a t o r ,  ou t  of t h e  indus t ry ,  f o r  Southern Ca l i fo rn ia ;  and, J e r r y  Bulcke 
was agreed upon, by both the  Employers and the  Union, f o r  t h a t  p o s i t i o n  i n  
1960. When he  w a s  s o  appointed, J e r r y  resigned h i s  var ious  longshore pos i t ions .  

J e r r y  r e t i r e d  from h i s  p o s i t i o n  as Southern Ca l i fo rn ia  Area A r b i t r a t o r  

i n  1966 and, during h i s  tenure  as A r b i t r a t o r ,  he heard over 400 cases. 


I have been the  Coast A r b i t r a t o r  s i n c e  1948 and I am, of course, 

completely f a m i l i a r  wi th  the  Decisions t h a t  were rendered by Jerry .  H i s  

Decisions were succ inc t ,  d e a l t  wi th  t h e  i s s u e  involved, were based upon an 

understanding of the  Agreement between t h e  P a r t i e s ,  and c l e a r l y  took i n t o  

account t h e  "p rac t i ca l "  r e s p o n s i b i l i t i e s  of h i s  Decisions. J e r r y ,  as an 

A r b i t r a t o r ,  w a s  h ighly  regarded by the  Employers, j u s t  a s  he was h ighly  

regarded when he w a s  a Union representa t ive .  J e r r y ' s  monument is not  only 

h i s  work a s  a t r a d e  Unionist ,  bu t  a l s o  h i s  very success fu l  ca ree r  a s  an 

Arb i t ra to r .  As such, he  "ca l l ed  them as he saw them'! and t h a t ' s  a l l  anyone 

can ask of an Arb i t ra to r .  


Sam Ragel 

10 February 1984 

San Francis co , Cal i fornia  




INTERVI EN H I STORY 

I t  was a t ime t o  remember: t h e  San F.rancisco 
w a t e r f r o n t  of  t h e  T h i r t i e s  and F o r t i e s ;  c l a s s  war fa re  ou t  
o f  which grew one of  t h e  most v i v i d  and c o l o r f u l  o rgan iza-  
t i o n s  of  working people  America h a s  e v e r  seen,  The San 
F r a n c i s c o  longshoremen, 

VfLords o f  t h e  Docks,ff t h e y  were c a l l e d .  And 
t h e y  came t o  t h i n k  o f  themse lves  w i th  t h a t  glow, too ,  They
had earned  t h e  t i t l e  i n  b a t t l e ;  t h e y  were blooded, 

Out of  t h e  1934 Coastwise  l ongshore  s t r i k e  and 
i t s  dramat ic  c l imax i n  t h e  San Franc i sco  General  S t r i k e ,  
p l u s  o t h e r  s t r u g g l e s  t o  s u r v i v e  and c o n s o l i d a t e  t h e  g a i n s  
o f  t h e i r  new union,  a l e a r n i n g  l e a d e r s h i p  sur faced .  

From t h e  t o p  down, most o f  t h i s  l e a d e r s h i p  was 
foreign-born,  T h i s  w a s  q u i t e  n a t u r a l ,  f o r  i n  t h o s e  days  
(and  probably  t o  t h i s  day) most P a c i f i c  Coast  longshoremen 
had come from f a r  away t o  make t h e i r  l i v i n g  i n  t h e  Promised 
Land, A t  l e a s t  e i g h t y  p e r c e n t ,  men say,  

F i r s t  was t h e  A u s t r a l i a n ,  Harry  Bridges ,  who 
came e a r l y  t o  t h e  f o r e  because he  a l r e a d y  knew what must 
be done, Union-building, however, i s  n o t  a one-man job,
Vo lun tee r s  rushed  i n  t o  he lp ,  and from t h e i r  r a n k s  came 
t h e  l e a d e r s h i p  t h a t  saw t h e  I n t e r n a t i o n a l  Longshoremen' s 
and Warehousemen's Union through i t s  youth and adolescence  
i n t o  t h e  days  of  p u b l i c  accep tance ,  m a t u r i t y ,  and a r e a s -
onab le  way of  conduc t ing  t h e  neces sa ry  r e l a t i o n s h i p  wi th  
employers, 

Among t h e  foremost  of  t h e s e  v o l u n t e e r s  were two 
young men of  European o r i g i n ,  union-minded b u t  inexper -  
i enced ,  e a g e r  t o  l e a r n ,  They were Henry Schmidt, o f  German- 
Dutch pa ren tage ,  and Germain Bulcke, son o f  a p a i r  o f  
Be lg ian  r a d i c a l s ,  Both had come t o  America under s t r e s s  of 
one k i n d  o r  ano the r ,  and d u r i n g  t h e  e a r l y ,  d i f f i c u l t  y e a r s  
o f  t h e i r  American expe r i ence  t h e y  a l t e r n a t e d  i n  t h e  p r e s i -  
dency of  t h e  San F r a n c i s c o  Longshoremen, Loca l  10, ILWU, 



F i r s t  as a newspaper r e p o r t e r  and l a t e r  as a 
C I O  o f f i c i a l ,  i t  was my p r i v i l e g e  t o  s e e  t h e s e  men i n  
a c t i o n  and t o  know and work wi th  them, The y e a r s  have 
gone by and i t  i s  now t ime  t o  remember, So I have done o r  
he lped  t o  do t h e  o r a l  h i s t o r i e s  of s e v e r a l  ILQlU l e a d e r s ,  
i n c l u d i n g  Schmidt and, at l o n g  las t  bu t  by no means l e a s t ,  
J e r r y  Bul cke, 

With Bulcke, as wi th  most o f  t h e  o t h e r  l e a d e r s ,  
i t  was a l a b o r  of  l o v e  and hope, l a c e d  wi th  humor and 
t ragedy ,  w i th  s u c c e s s  most o f  t h e  time, And o u t  o f  i t  
came J e r r y  Bulcke, now i n  his e i g h t i e s ,  above a l l  e l s e  a 
union man and a family  man, He i s  a s t o r y - t e l l e r ,  And he  
h a s  a wife ,  Rusty,  who h e l p s  him t e l l  h i s  s t o r i e s ,  Says
s h e  knows every one of  them, I b e l i e v e  her ,  I a l s o  know 
t h a t  what he  t e l l s  i s  t r u e ,  It  could n o t  be  o therwise ,  He 
i s  n o t  an embroiderer  o r  f i c t i o n e e r ,  

The o r a l  h i s t o r y  i n t e r v i e w s  took  p l a c e  h a l f -  
and-half ,  some a t  t h e  Bulcke home i n  t h e  P o t r e r o  d i s t r i c t  
o f  San F ranc i sco ,  some i n  my Berkeley home, Although Rusty 
does  n o t  appear  as a speaker  i n  t h e  s c r i p t ,  she  was an 
impor t an t  ad junc t  t o  t h e  e f f o r t .  F o r  when she  began t o  
shake h e r  head at h e r  husband, I knew he  -had  f o r g o t t e n  o r  
m i s-remembered something, 

Apropos, Rusty t e l l s  t h i s  family  s to ry :  She, 
" Je r ry ,  how could  you g e t  a long  wi thout  me?'' "1' d- He, 
g e t  me- a n o t h e r  wornin,('- 

A s  we nea red  t h e  end o f  what Bulcke wished t o  
say, a s t r a n g e  mechanical  malfeasance i n t e r r u p t e d ,  The 
t,ape speeded up somehow, f o r  r e a s o n s  as y e t  unexplained,  
t o  t h e  p o i n t  where what he  s a i d  became i n c r e a s i n g l y  d i f f i ~  
c u l t  t o  unders tand,  R e s u l t ,  we had t o  re-do t h e  l as t  hour 
of h i s  t apes ,  

Rusty c o n g r a t u l a t e d  us ,  She s a i d  h i s  f i n a l  
f i n a l e  was much b e t t e r  t h a n  h i s  o r i g i n a l  f i n a l e ,  

So be it, 

Estobv Ethan Ward, 
9 February,  1984 I n t  erviewer-Edi t o r  
Berkeley,  C a l i f o r n i a  



I BEGINNINGS, BELGIUM A!! AMERICA 

( In te rv iew 1: 14  June, 1983)## 

Family Background 

Ward: 	 Th i s  i s  In te rv iew $2 with Germain Bulcke, former 
v i c e  p r e s i d e n t  of t h e  I n t e r n a t i o n a l  Longshoremen' s 
and Warehousemen' s Union and even more formerly a t  
v a r i o u s  t imes  p r e s i d e n t  of Longshore Local $20, 
t h e  pa ren t  l o c a l  of t h e  longshore i n d u s t r y  on t h e  
P a c i f i c  Coast and H a w a i i ,  Germain, I be l i eve  you 
a r e  b e t t e r  known a s  J e r r y ,  i s n 1t t h a t  so? 

Bulcke: 	 That'  s r i g h t  -
Ward: . 	 - and how do you s p e l l  J e r r y ?  With a G o r  with a 

J ?  

Bulcke: 	 I s p e l l  i t  with a J. 

Ward: 	 All r i g h t ;  I b e l i e v e  you have j u s t  passed your 
8 1 s t  b i r thday,  

Bulcke: 	 T h a t ' s  c o r r e c t  - on t h e  1 8 t h  of May I became 81. 

Ward: 	 A l l  r i g h t ,  J e r r y ,  l e t ' s  go back 81 y e a r s  and t e l l  
me where you were born, t h e  circumstances of t h e  
family,  t h e  k ind  of people your p a r e n t s  were, and 
where you grew up, 

Bulcke: 	 I w a s  born i n  a l i t t l e  v i l l a g e  c a l l e d  D U D Z E L E 
and i t  i s  n e a r  a l a r g e r  c i t y  known as Bruges i n  
French o r  B~uggei n  Flemish. 

##This symbol i n d i c a t e s  t h a t  a t a p e  o r  a segment 
of a t ape  has begun o r  ended. For  a guide t o  
t h e  t a p e s  see  page 222 .  



Ward: 	 Oh, yes. I ' v e  seen Bruges - i t  i s  a wonderful 
c i t y ,  very o ld ,  very medieval, l o t s  of c a s t l e s  
and canals ,  l o v e l y  f lowers  and t h i n g s  -

Bul cke: 	 T h a t ' s  co r rec t .  I t  a t t r a c t s  people from all over  
t h e  world, I t ' s  very i n t e r e s t i n g .  I went t o  
school t h e r e  . . . 

Ward: And you graduated under p e c u l i a r  circumstances? 

Bul cke: 	 Yes; dur ing  t h e  war y e a r s  when t h e  Germans were 
i n  c o n t r o l  of t h e  country most of t h e  schoo l s  
were closed,  and used as ba r racks  f o r  t h e  German 
s o l d i e r s ,  I was f o r t u n a t e  t h a t  I got s p e c i a l  
t u t o r i n g  from a teacher ,  so t h a t  I was a b l e  t o  
keep up with what would have been normal schooling.
During t h e  l as t  few months of t h e  w a r  I was a b l e  
t o  a t t e n d  t h e  co l l ege  i n  Bruges t h a t  was speci-
f i c a l l y  s e t  up t o  t each  c h i l d r e n  who had l o s t  o u t  
on most of t h e i r  school ing;  i n  o t h e r  words, i t  
provided more concent ra ted  teaching  than  would 
have been a v a i l a b l e  under normal circumstances. 

Ward: 	 L e t t s  make t h i s  c l e a r ;  t h e  country of  your b i r t h  
i s  Belgium? 

Bul cke: 	 Belgium - t h a t ' s  c o r r e c t  - t h e  town I mentioned 
i s  i n  West F landers  between Bruges and t h e  North 
Sea. 

Ward: 	 Bruges i s  n o t  too f a r  from t h e  sea,  i s  it? 

Bulcke: 	 No, i t ' s  probably 1 0  m i l e s  a t  t h e  most. 

Ward: 	 Your dad w a s  a t a i l o r ?  

Bulcke: 	 My dad was a t a i l o r ;  he w a s  born with something 
wrong wi th  his r i g h t  l e g  and he never  walked on 
two legs .  H i s  r i g h t  l e g  w a s  normal t o  t h e  knee 
and then i t  got  a l i t t l e  small  and crooked, So, 
he l e a r n e d  t o  w a l k  on cru tches ,  I n  those  days 
a person so a f f l i c t e d  p h y s i c a l l y  e i t h e r  became 
t a i l o r s  o r  shoemakers mainly because they  could 
work i n s i d e .  My dad s t a r t e d  t o  l e a r n  t h e  t a i l o r  
t r a d e  when he was 13 y e a r s  o ld ;  l i v e d  with a 
family - t h e  man was a t a i l o r .  When he was 1 6  
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y e a r s  o l d  he went t o  P a r i s  and worked t h e r e  f o r  
two and a h a l f  o r  t h r e e  y e a r s  i n  t h e  t a i l o r  t rade ,  
This where you l e a r n  t o  make ... 
Sewing machines? 


No - no - no - paper t h i n g s  . ., 

t h e  p a t t e r n s !  

Yes, t h a t ' s  where you l e a r n e d  t o  make p a t t e r n s ,  

I see, 

And f o r  all t h e  y e a r s  I remember, my dad only  
made four  o r  f i v e  p a t t e r n s ,  and those  were f o r  
t h e  s teady customers who d id  not  change, Other-
wise, he would merely t a k e  t h e  customers' measures 
and would draw them on t h e  c l o t h  - on t h e  coat  
o r  whatever; d i d  not  use  p a t t e r n s  a t  all, He was 
wel l  known wi th  a s teady t r ade ,  We genera l ly  had 
from t h r e e  t o  f i v e  men who worked f o r  dad i n  
t h e  t a i l o r  shop and l i v e d  wi th  us, 

Oh, your economic s i t u a t i o n  w a s  f a i r l y  good, 
then? 

I n  those  days, i t  w a s  good, yes, very good, My
mother had, all t o l d ,  t e n  ch i ld ren ,  O f  course, 
unfor tunate ly ,  only  t h r e e  of u s  survived, 

What w a s  t h e  cause of t h e  deaths? 

That I don't  know - most of them - all bu t  two 
had passed away be fo re  I was born ,  I have an 
o l d e r  s i s t e r ,  She ' s  87 and l i v e s  he re  i n  San 
Francisco,  My younger s i s t e r  passed away i n  t h e  
e a r l y  S i x t i e s  i n  Belgium, 

You're t h e  only  male surv ivor ,  

I ' m  t h e  only male su rv ivor  i n  t h e  family, 

What was t h e  p o l i t i c a l  thought your
i f  any? 



Bulcke: My dad was at  t h a t  t ime what was c a l l e d  a Democrat, 
which w a s  p r e t t y  much lef t -wing;  he w a s  very
a c t i v e  p o l i t i c a l l y ;  p a r t i c u l a r l y  a t  e l e c t i o n  time 
he would go o f f  and speak f o r  those  cand ida tes  
t h a t  he f e l t  were of  s i m i l a r  op in ion  t o  himself,  
He w a s  q u i t e  outspoken and a c t i v e  i n  t h e  p o l i t i c a l
f i e l d ,  

Ward: Was he ant i -Royal i s t?  

A W a r  Adventure 

Bulcke: Yes, very much so, I n  1914 t h e  f i r s t  World War 
broke o u t  and I had an odd experience,  My dad 
had agreed t h a t  I should go t o  what was c a l l e d  
a boarding school,  A t  t h a t  t ime I wanted t o  
become an e l e c t r i c i a n ,  so i n  t h a t  school t h e  r u l e s  
were t h a t  i t  was a boarding school and you had 
t o  be t h e r e  two weeks be fo re  school s t a r t e d ,  T h i s  
was i n  Liege  which i s  on t h e  border  of Germany
and which was at  t h a t  t ime a defended c i t y  -
they  had f o r t s  around it, T h i s  i s  where t h e  war 
broke ou t ,  by t h e  way - t h e  f i r s t  movement. Well, 
I a r r i v e d  t h e r e ,  

Ward: What was t h e  name of  t h a t  c i t y ?  

Bulcke: Liege - i t ' s  s p e l l e d  -
Ward: Oh! famous! 

Bulcke: Yes, famous, The school w a s  on t h e  o u t s k i r t s  and 
I a r r i v e d  t h e r e  as i n s t r u c t e d  two weeks be fo re  t h e  
term s t a r t e d ,  However, on August t h e  4 t h  t h e  
war broke ou t ;  most of  t h e  t e a c h e r s  were former 
s o l d i e r s  and were p u l l e d  i n t o  t h e  service.  The 
dean of t h e  school t o l d  u s  t o  go back home, Of 
course,  everyth ing  was a mix-up and I managed 
t o  g e t  on a t r a i n  t h a t  w a s  going t o  go back where 
I w a s  from, But when we got  o u t  of  town, probably
t h i r t y  o r  f o r t y  mi les ,  we were p u l l e d  t o  t h e  
s i d e  t o  al low m i l i t a r y  t r a i n s  t o  go through -
t roop  t r a i n s  - and t h e r e  we sat, 
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German t roop  t r a i n s ?  

No, no - no, these  were Belgian, The war had j u s t  
s t a r t e d  - re inforcements  rushing  t o  t h e  f r o n t ,  
So, we sat t h e r e  and t h e r e  was no food on t h e  
t r a i n  and we all got  q u i t e  hungry and , . . 
How o l d  were you then? 

I was twelve y e a r s  o l d  - a l i t t l e  p a s t  twelve, 
So, I n o t i c e d  a farm no t  too  f a r  away from t h e  
t r a c k s  and I asked one of t h e  t r a i n  men i f  i t  was 
all r i g h t  i f  I went t h e r e  t o  s e e  i f  I could f i n d  
something t o  e a t ,  And he s a i d ,  well ,  he d i d n ' t  
know how l o n g  t h e  t r a i n  would be t h e r e ;  might be 
another  day, Maybe i t  would be a good idea ,  So, 
I got  t o  t h e  farm and of course t h e  people had 
l e f t  and t h e  c a t t l e  were s t i l l  t h e r e  - t h e  chick- 
ens  and t h e  pigs ,  The house w a s  - t h e r e  j u s t  was 
no one the re ,  And I found q u i t e  a b i t  of food -
cheese and ham -
Any locked doors? 

No, t h e  doors  weren' t  locked and so I had myself 
something t o  e a t  and made up a p a r c e l  of  food, 
s t a r t e d  back and t h e  t r a i n  took o f f ,  There I 
was, s t randed,  So I walked t o  t h e  next  v i l l a g e ;  
t h e r e  again  most of t h e  people had l e f t ,  I found 
myself a b i c y c l e  ,took i t  and s t a r t e d  home, Two 
days l a t e r  I got  home, On t h e  way --
Any food i n  t h e  meantime? 

I go t  f e d  by people t h a t  were l e f t ;  t h e  f u r t h e r  
I went t h e  more people I found, There were all 
k i n d s  of  sca ry  s t o r i e s  about what t h e  Germans 
were doing, and so on, 

So, I got  home i n  good shape and then  t h e r e  
was a s h o r t  pe r iod  when i t  was very hard t o  f i n d  
out  anything; how t h e  war was progressing,  o r  
what. Where I l i v e d  i t  w a s  very c l o s e  t o  Holland 
and q u i t e  a few people l e f t  and went the re ,  Some 
even went t o  England, I remember t h e  Mayor of 
t h e  town - he went t o  Holland too, 



Ward: 	 But your p a r e n t s  were still t h e r e ?  

Bulcke: 	 My p a r e n t s  were still t h e r e ;  we stayed. A l o t  of  
people  stayed. So, about a week a f t e r  I got  home, 
I ' m  walking a c r o s s  t h e  l i t t l e  town square one 
morning and he re  came a s o l d i e r  on a motorcycle;
he had a s m a l l  machine gun between t h e  handles  and 
I looked a t  i t  and I cou ldn ' t  f i g u r e  him out.  I 
knew he wasn't Belgian and I had a p i c t u r e  i n  my 
mind t h a t  all German s o l d i e r s  wore spiked helmets,  
bu t  he d i d n ' t  have a spiked helmet on. He had a 
l e a t h e r  h a t  o r  cap o r  something. He stopped and 
c a l l e d  me over. He spoke p e r f e c t  French, and of  
course a t  t h a t  t ime I spoke French too. So, he 
asked me where t h e  Mayor was - t h e  Mayor's o f f i c e  -
and I po in ted  t o  i t  and I s a i d ,  "The Mayor i s n ' t  
here ;  he l e f t  f o r  Holland." So, he s a i d ,  "Where's 
t h e  Chief of  Police?' ' And I s a i d ,  "He' s down t h e  
s t r e e t  a ways," "Would you go with me and show 
me?" he said.  "So, okay," He pushed his motor 
b ike  and I walked next  t o  him and I was still 
wondering what he  was; I hadn ' t  recognized t h e  
uniform, 

Ward: 	 No symbols? 

Bulcke: 	 Well, no th ing  t o  i n d i c a t e ,  He spoke p e r f e c t  French 
bu t  I had a f e e l i n g  t h a t  he wasn' t  French, We go t  
t o  t h e  door and I ,knocked on t h e  door, Well, we 
only  had one policeman and he was t h e  whole p o l i c e  
department. 

He showed up i n  h i s  uniform which normally he 
d i d n ' t  wear and he recognized t h e  man as a German 
s o l d i e r ,  all r i g h t .  The policeman took h i s  s i d e  
gun o f f  and handed i t  t o  t h e  German, who sa id ,  
"Oh, no - you're  t h e  peace man here ;  you keep your 
weapon and keep going t h e  same way you u s u a l l y  do, 

And he s a i d ,  "Before long,  i n  an hour o r  two, 
we ' l l -have a few hundred German s o l d i e r s  here," 
And s u r e  enough about two hours  l a t e r  i n  marched 
a whole regiment - they  c a l l  them l f s o l d i e r s  of  t h e  
seaf f ;  we c a l l  them Marines, They went t o  t h e  
v a r i o u s  houses and asked how many people l i v e d  
t h e r e  and t h e y  assigned 2 c e r t a i n  number cf s o l d i e r s  



Bulcke: 	 t o  each house, I remember t h a t  we had a l a r g e
a t t i c  t h a t  was made o f f  i n t o  t h r e e  bedrooms where 
t h e  E n  who worked f o r  dad used t o  s leep ,  So, 
they  ass igned 1 6  German s o l d i e r s  t o  our  house, 
Nothing s t r ange  happened, I mean, they  were qu ie t ,
Immediately t h e r e  were o r d e r s  pu t  ou t  t h a t  you had 
t o  be o f f  t h e  s t r e e t  a t  8 o 'c lock a t  n igh t  and not  
be on t h e  s t r e e t  before  6:30 o r  7:OO - I f o r g e t
which, 

Ward: 	 No r e s i s t a n c e ?  

Bulcke: 	 Oh, no, t h e r e  w a s  no f i g h t i n g  t h e r e  -
Ward: 	 No violence? 

Behind The L i n e s  

Bulcke: 	 No - no violence,  So, this i s  how t h e  Germans took 
over. A l l  dur ing t h e  w a r  they  used t h i s  a rea ,  not  
only  i n  my home town but o t h e r s  nea r  i t ,  as a 
r e s t  a rea ,  The t r e n c h e s  were 1 8  t o  20 mi les  from 
us, You all know t h e  h i s t o r y  of Belgium, t h a t  
f o r  t h e  whole w a r  -

Ward: 	 Those t r e n c h e s  remained very s t a t i c ,  

Bulcke: 	 They would move back and f o r t h ,  back and f o r t h ,  
There w a s  no break-through u n t i l  c l o s e  t o  t h e  end 
of t h e  war, And \ t h a t '  s how we had t h e  s i t u a t i o n ,  
During those  y e a r s  ( t h i s  was mostly farming country)  
t h e  Germans took over;  t h e  farmers  had t o  d e c l a r e  
how many a c r e s  they  had i n  va r ious  produce, l i k e  
po ta toes ,  o r  whatever, 

Ward: 	 They commandeered food? 

Bulcke: 	 They commandeered food, 

Ward: 	 Did people g e t  enough t o  ea t?  

Bulcke: 	 No, we d i d n ' t  g e t  enough t o  eat, but  we were a b l e  
t o  manage i n  va r ious  ways. For  i n s t a n c e ,  t h e  
farmer would s e l l - y o u  a c a l f  cr a p i g  and he would 



Bulcke: r e p o r t  i t  s t o l e n ,  I t  was up t o  you t o  g e t  t h i s  
s t u f f  home, 

I f  t h e  Germans caught you sneaking f o o d s t u f f s  
home, you were deported t o  Germany; salt mines 
and s t u f f  l i k e  t h a t ,  Well, I remember one t h i n g  -
we had bought a l i t t l e  p ig ,  k i l l e d  on t h e  farm, 
and I brought i t  home i n  a baby buggy covered up
j u s t  l i k e  a l i t t l e  baby, 

Various t h i n g s  l i k e  t h a t ,  you know, we would 
g e t  by with, Also, t h e  German s o l d i e r s  s t a t i o n e d  
i n  our  house had t o  go on p a t r o l  a t  n i g h t  t o  p r o t e c t
t h e  p o t a t o  f i e l d s  from people s t e a l i n g ,  And t h e  
s o l d i e r s  always came home with two o r  t h r e e  sacks  
of  po ta toes ;  they  shared them with us, 

Ward: Oh, oh 

Bulcke: Oh, yeah, t h e  s o l d i e r s  - many - q u i t e  a few, which 
s u r p r i s e d  us,  were very much opposed t o  , t h a t  war, 
bu t  l i k e  any o t h e r  s o l d i e r ,  t hey  had t o  obey
o r d e r s  . . . 

Ward: Some of them were decent fe l lows?  

Bulcke: They were, they  were, We had no r e a l  bad i n c i d e n t s  
i n  my home town dur ing  t h a t  whole time, except  one, 
Our mailman- t h e r e  was some way t h a t  people were 
a b l e  t o  sneak m a i l  over  from Holland and our  m a i l -
man was h e l p f u l  enough t o  d i s t r i b u t e  t h a t  m a i l  and 
he go t  caught at  i t  and they deported him, He never  
d i d  come back, T h a t ' s  t h e  manner i n  which t h i n g s  
went on dur ing  t h e  w a r  years. 

Ward: I ..see, How many languages do you speak? 

Bulcke: Of course,  dur ing  t h e  w a r  y e a r s  I l e a r n e d  German 
which i s  no t  too  d i f f e r e n t  b a s i c a l l y  from Flemish 
o r  Hollands. Of course,  my dad had i n s i s t e d  t h a t  
we all spoke French a t  home, so I spoke French and 
Flemish, and then dur ing  t h e  war y e a r s  I l e a r n e d  
German, My home town i s  c l o s e  t o  t h e  s e a  coas t  
where dur ing  t h e  summer months we had a l o t  of 
Engl i sh  speaking people who came t h e r e  t o  t h e  
summer r e s o r t s ,  s o  I picked up a c e r t a i n  amount o f  
English, n o t  f l u e n t l y ,  bn t  1 could get, by w i t h  it, 



Ward: 	 Hmmm - well ,  then  you had t h r e e  o r  f o u r  languages? 

Bulcke: 	 Yes, wel l ,  t h r e e  of them d e f i n i t e l y ,  Of course,  
I r e a l l y  l e a r n e d  Engl ish  a f t e r  I came here, 

Mother1 s 	Tragic  Death 

Ward: 	 L e t t s  t a l k  about your mother f o r  a while - she 
must have been p r e t t y  busy, bear ing  t e n  chi ldren ,  

Bulcke: 	 Well, i t  happened t o  my mother during February,  
1915, We don't  t h i n k  i t  was a bomb. A l o t  of  
a i r c r a f t  came over,  

The Germans b u i l t  an assembly p l a c e  - t h e r e  was 
a canal  t h a t  goes t o  the -Nor th  Sea and t h e  Germans 
b u i l t  an assembly p l a n t  f o r  submarines on this 
canal  r i g h t  i n  o u r  home town, And t h i s  was bombed 
by t h e  A l l i e s  dur ing  t h e  w a r  years. They d i d  not  
have p r e c i s i o n  bombing i n  those  days and t h e  bombs 
never  hit i t ,  

They h i t  everyth ing  e l s e  around t h e r e  
so t h e r e  w a s  a l o t  of  a n t i - a i r c r a f t  going all t h e  
time, By February,  my dad and my s i s t e r s  became 
b l a s e  o r  something, A t  f i r s t ,  we all used t o  run 
down t o  t h e  basement when t h e  a n t i - a i r c r a f t  s t a r t e d ,  
and a f t e r  a whi le  we s o r t  of  fo rgo t  about i t ,  

Ward: 	 You f e l t  lucky, 

Bulcke: 	 I guess  so; anyway - my mother, she always r a n  down 
t o  t h e  basement, Th i s  p a r t i c u l a r  n igh t  t h e r e  was 
bombardment as usua l ;  you could s e t  your clock by 
i t ,  Al l  of  a sudden t h e r e  w a s  a b i g  c rash  and we 
r a n  down t o  t h e  basement; we t h i n k  i t  was an 
a n t i - a i r c r a f t  s h e l l  t h a t  exploded when i t  h i t  t h e  
house, Mother didnl t g e t  h i t  by t h e  shrapnel  but  
was h u r t  by t h e  concussion, Also, she was badly
bru i sed  and shook up, She passed away two weeks 
l a t e r ,  

Ward: 	 A t ragedy;  b u t  what kind o f  a person was she? 
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Your f a t h e r t s  p o l i t i c s ,  f o r  i n s t a n c e ,  d id  she go 
along with t h a t ?  

Oh, d e f i n i t e l y ,  Of course,  he was most ac t ive ,  
Mother went along, you might say, She d i d n t t  do 
any p u b l i c  speaking o r  anything l i k e  t h a t ,  My dad 
d id  t h a t ,  

Well, t h a t :  s t h e  way i t  was i n  those  days - t h e  
woman took c a r e  of t h e  house? 

That,  s r i g h t ;  she had h e r  hands f u l l ,  p a r t i c u l a r l y  
when i n  normal t imes  we had f o u r  o r  f i v e  guys t h a t  
worked f o r  dad and they  l i v e d  with us. She had t o  
do all t h e  cooking, We a l s o  had a ba r  and a couple
of b i l l i a r d  t a b l e s  so we had q u i t e  a busy p lace ,  

But now t h e  bhr - d i d  you s e l l  t o  customers there?  

Yeah, i t  w a s  a r e g u l a r  bar ;  we s o l d  beer,  wine and 
whiskey; whatever, c i g a r s  and c i g a r e t t e s ,  We had 
q u i t e  a c l i e n t e l e ;  t h e  ba r  genera l ly  was f a i r l y
busy on weekends and n igh t s ,  

Now, anything p a r t i c u l a r  around age 12,  13, 14 
t h a t  you want t o  t a l k  about? Let ,  s s e e  now; i n  
1914 when t h e  w a r  broke ou t  you were 12? 

I was twelve; as I explained, wel l  before  t h e  end 
of t h e  w a r ,  I went t o  this c o l l e g e  i n  Bruges, 

Yes, 

I f i n i s h e d  t h a t  s h o r t l y  a f t e r  t h e  w a r  w a s  over;  
t h i n g s  were g e t t i n g  back t o  normal, So i n  1918, 
when I became 1 6  y e a r s  o ld ,  Belgium passed a new 
l a w  making m i l i t a r y  s e r v i c e  mandatory f o r  all males, 
T h i s  had n o t  been i n  ex i s t ence  before,  My dad was 
convinced t h a t  a l though t h e  w a r  had ended, i t  was 
n o t  over, He s a i d  they  made a peace agreement 
because they  were j u s t  worn o u t  - d i d  n o t  have t h e  
money t o  go on, He d i d n ' t  t h i n k  t h e  peace agree- 
ment was a good one and he p r e d i c t e d  t h a t  another  
world w a r  would start i n  1932, 

J u s t  z. l i t t l e  b i t  p rev ious?  

9 



Bulcke: 	 Yeah, bu t  t h e  one t h i n g  he agreed wi th  me on - he 
d i d n ' t  want me t o  be a s o l d i e r  and I d i d n ' t  want 
t o  be a s o l d i e r ,  so  . . . 

Ward: 	 A t  what age would you have been conscr ip ted?  , 

Bulcke: 	 Eighteen -
Ward: 	 So, you had two y e a r s  t o  go? 

Bulcke: 	 Yeah, The system was t h a t  t hey  c a l l e d  you i n  f o r  
a medical  examination and i f  you were med ica l ly  
okay you were n o t  a l lowed t o  go o u t  o f  t h e  country ,  
You might be c a l l e d  up a t  n i n e t e e n  o r  whatever . ,, 

Ward: 	 Whatever t h e y  f e l t ?  

G e t t i n g  Out of  There 

Bulcke: 	 Yeah, I f o r t u n a t e l y  had r e l a t i v e s  i n  America; t h e y  
were t h e  two s o n s  of my mother ' s  s i s t e r  and t h e y  
were around Rochester ,  New York, 

Ward: 	 They were your  cous ins ,  then? 

Bulcke: 	 They were my c o u s i n s  and they  had emigrated,  I 
knew t h a t  be fo re  you could  g e t  a p a s s p o r t  you needed 
a l e t t e r  from someone i n  America t o  s t a t e  t h a t  you 
would n o t  become a  p u b l i c  charge,  so I s t a r t e d  t o  
g e t  my passpor t ,  It took t ime t o  do t h a t  and 
e v e n t u a l l y  I g o t  t h e  l e t t e r s  from my cous ins ,  

So, e v e n t u a l l y  I g o t  t h e  pas spor t ,  It was okayed 
by t h e  American Consul, all s e t ,  bu t  t h e  problem 
was t r a n s p o r t a t i o n ,  I n  t h o s e  days, t h e r e  were no 
a i r l i n e s  and you had t o  go by sh ip ,  Most o f  t h e  
s h i p s ,  of  course ,  had been des t royed  d u r i n g  t h e  w a r  
and t h e r e  w a s  n o t  t h e  normal shipment, I f o r t u n a t e l y  
had an u n c l e  who l i v e d  i n  Antwerp, which i s  t h e  
b i g  p o r t  i n  Belgium; he had a b a r  and r e s t a u r a n t  
and h o t e l  and most o f  his c l i e n t e l e  were mates and 
c a p t a i n s  of  sh ips .  He had been t h e r e  many y e a r s  
and was well e s t a b l i s h e d ,  s c  I got  i n  touch  with 



Bul cke: 

Ward: 

Bul cke: 

Ward: 

Bulcke: 

Ward: 

Bul cke: 

Ward: 

Bul cke: 

him and he managed t o  g e t  m e  a second c l a s s  t i c k e t  
on a sh ip ,  But t h e  s h i p  d i d n ' t  l e a v e  u n t i l  t h e  
l a t t e r  p a r t  of October, I t h i n k  i t  was, 

That would be 19--? 

I ' m  t a l k i n g  now about 1920, 

t h a t  means you were a l r eady  of  age? 

Oh, yeah, I w a s ,  I got  my passpor t  and everyth ing
before  I was e ighteen ,  but  I couldn ' t  g e t  t r ans -
p o r t a t i o n  before  October, 1920, The s e c r e t a r y  of 
our  township came t o  me one day and sa id ,  "Jer ry ,  
you b e t t e r  make yourse l f  sca rce  - I j u s t  got  your
n o t i c e  t o  go i n  f o r  m i l i t a r y  examination,^^ He 
knew I w a s  going t o  l e a v e  o r  t r y  t o  l eave ,  I 
c a l l e d  my uncle  i n  Antwerp and he sa id ,  "Come 
here." Which I d i d  . . , 
Could you c a l l  on t h e  telephone, then? 

Oh, yeah - we only  had one te lephone i n  town, but  
YOU could c a l l  out  

And everybody l i s t e n e d ?  

Everybody l i s t e n e d ,  So, i n  t h e  meantime a fe l low 
who was from a neighborhood town and had been i n  
America f o r  a number of y e a r s  ( a s  a m a t t e r  of f a c t ,  
he w a s  i n  t h e  s e r v i c e  dur ing  t h e  F i r s t  World W a r )  
came back on a v i s i t ,  met my s i s t e r  and i n  two 
weeks time they  got  married, That changed t h e  
p i c t u r e  q u i t e  a b i t , .  He had a r e t u r n  t i c k e t  from 
Antwerp t o  New York and through my uncle  I changed 
my t i c k e t  t o  s t e e r a g e  passage on t h e  same s h i p  as 
my s i s t e r  and brother-in-law, so t h a t  all t h r e e  
of  u s  came over  t o g e t h e r  i n  September, But while 
wai t ing,  I was s t a y i n g  with my unc le  and he sa id ,  
111'11b e t  t h e  p o l i c e  w i l l  come looking  f o r  you," 
I t  was no s e c r e t  t h a t  I had a passpor t  and had no t  
answered t h e  c a l l ,  The s e c r e t a r y  of my home town 
had repor ted  me missing, see,  so my uncle  arranged
f o r  me t o  g e t  on board s h i p  two days be fo re  i t  was 
l eav ing ,  I was aboard and when t h e  people s t a r t e d  
coming I s t o o d  next t o  t h e  gangplank watching them 



Bulcke: 	 come aboard, P r e t t y  soon here come two policemen 
and they  asked f o r  t h e  guy who was checking o f f  
people; of course,  he didnf  t know me, They gave 
my name and asked i f  I was aboard, He s a i d ,  "No 9 f' 

and they s a i d ,  "Well, wefl1.-be down here  and when 
he shows up, g ive  u s  t h e  s igna lo f '  Of course,  I 
was a l ready  aboard, A t  f o u r  o f  c lock - toot - toot  -
t h e  s h i p  went and t h a t  was i t ,  So, t h a t ' s  how 
I go t  over  here,  

F i r s t  Glimpse of America 

Ward: 	 How was Rochester? 

Bulcke: 	 I d i d n f t  'go t o  Rochester;  my brother-in-law l i v e d  
i n  D e t r o i t  and n a t u r a l l y  I went with them, There 
i t  w a s  1920 and t h e r e  was a l o t  of unemployment, 
The automobile f a c t o r i e s  were down, depression had 
s e t  i n ,  My brother-in-law took me around and 
showed me --

Ward: 	 J e r r y ,  you were saying  something about your brother-  
in-law i n  D e t r o i t  -

Bulcke: 	 Yes, he took me around and showed me where t h e  
va r ious  automobile f a c t o r i e s  were, He was a brick-
l a y e r  by t r a d e  and he a l s o  wasnf t, wel l ,  a t  t h a t  
t ime he wasnf t employed r e g u l a r l y ,  because t h i n g s  
were slow, I had no l u c k  at  t h e  f a c t o r i e s ;  they
were no t  h i r ing .  

So a man who was a t a i l o r  who had l e a r n e d  his 
t r a d e  from my dad l i v e d  i n  D e t r o i t ,  Natura l ly ,  
I looked him up t o  say h e l l o ,  He s a i d ,  "You know 
how t o  sew?fr And I did,  though n a t u r a l l y  I wasnf t  
an exper t  ye t ,  And he s a i d ,  f l I t l l  see  what I can 
do." He got  me a job with a p a n t s  maker; he 
made noth ing  but  pants ,  I got  $10 a week, and I 
was g lad  t o  g e t  it ,  

Ward: 	 Did you l i v e  on i t ?  



Bulcke: 	 Well, I was paying $8,50 board and room a t  my
s i s t e r '  S, 

Ward: 	 That gave you $1,50 t o  spend? 

Bulcke: 	 Yeah, and i t  c o s t  me t e n  c e n t s  a day f o r  c a r  f a r e ,  
so  I had 60 c e n t s  l e f t  at t h e  end of t h e  week, 
And I ' d  go t o  a t e n  cen t  show and t h e  r e s t  bought
one package of c i g a r e t s  and t h a t  was i t ,  

Well, anyway, a t  this t a i l o r  shop he was making
p a n t s  f o r  v a r i o u s  c l o t h i n g  s t o r e s  and I no t i ced  
t h a t  they  were no t  high grade pants ,  I could t e l l ;  
I l e a r n e d  t o  make p a n t s  a t  home; and we sh r ink  them 
and s t r e t c h  them - shape them - and they  were never 
shaped here,  So, a f t e r  I was t h e r e  a couple of 
months, I s a i d  t o  t h e  man, "Look, how come you 
don' t shape t h e  pants?" We d i d  t h a t  on all d r e s s  
pants ;  we d i d n l t  on work c lo thes ,  He sa id ,  "Oh, 
my god, I don' t know how t o  do tha t , t t  ('Do you?tt 
"Sure I do," 

He was g e t t i n g  a d o l l a r  a p a i r  f o r  t h e  p a n t s  we 
made; we made 40 p a i r  a day, We had a young l a d y  
t h e r e  doing t h e  hand sewing, t h i n g s  l i k e  t h a t ,  
And I d id  t h e  p ress ing ,  Anyway, he sa id ,  "Are you 
sure?1f And I sa id ,  "Of course,  I ' m  sure ,  I 
l e a r n e d  this, I know how,tt So, he came i n  with 
two p a i r  t h a t  he got  from a c l o t h i n g  s t o r e ;  he 
watched me doing them and s a i d ,  "Oh, my God, you
a r e  r u i n i n g  them,11 I sa id ,  "Oh, no," and su re  
enough, he took t h e  two p a i r  back and got  an under- 
s tanding  whereby he would g e t  all t h e s e  k i n d s  of 
pants ,  a t  $2, double t h e  money he got  before,  It 
meant a l o t  more work f o r  me, and a f t e r  about two 
weeks of t h a t  I s a i d  t o  h i m ,  ('Look, I want a ra i se , ( (  

We argued f o r  a while and he sa id ,  "How much 
you want?'( And I s a i d  "$25 d o l l a r s  a weekatt And 
he f i n a l l y  came up t o  616 o r  $18, I f o r g e t ,  and 
he wouldnr t go any higher ,  So, I sa id ,  !!Okay, 
1'11 give  you two weeks not ice ,  I f  i n  two weeks 
time, you don' t  r a i s e  my wages t o  $25, I qui t ,"
Well, he d i d n r t  be l i eve  it; t h e  las t  day, I sa id ,  
rlWell, t h a t '  s it,(' And he sa id ,  "1'11 r a i s e  your 
wages t o  $20,!! 1 s a i d ,  ' f T o ~l a t e ,  I quit," 



Bulcke: 	 I fo rgo t  t o  t e l l  you this, bu-t a t  home we a l s o  
had a barber  shop; my dad was a barber  . . . 

Ward: 	 A l l  over  t h e  p lace!  

Bulcke: 	 Yeah, we only opera ted  t h e  shop on Fr iday  a f t e r -  
noon and Saturday and my dad taught  me how t o  
shave and c u t  h a i r ,  A s  a m a t t e r  of f a c t ,  a l o t  
of t h e  o l d e r  men p r e f e r r e d  me t o  shave them because 
they  s a i d  I had a s o f t e r  touch than Dad did,  Most 
of t h e  t ime t h a t  Dad was c u t t i n g  somebodycs h a i r  
I would shave him, I f  he wasnct c u t t i n g  t h e  h a i r  
I would soap up and then Dad would shave h i m  and 
then  t h e  next  one, 

Anyway, I knew how t o  do t h a t  all r i g h t  but  I 
was sca red  of t h i s  ba rbe r  shop with t h e  hot  towels  
and t o n i c  and s t u f f ;  i t  scarbd t h e  p a n t s  o f f  of 
me, I d idnc t  dare  do it, So, this t a i l o r  f r i e n d  
of mine sa id ,  "Why don' t  you go t o  t h e  barber  
school? Youcll l e a r n  quickly the reof '  

Ward: 	 You mean, this i s  - -? 

Bulcke: 	 I n  D e t r o i t ,  yes, a f t e r  I q u i t  being a p a n t s  maker, 
p r e s s e r ,  I went t o  t h e  barber  school. The man 
t h a t  r a n  i t  happened t o  be Czechoslovakian; he 
spoke English,  of course, 

I t o l d  him t h a t  I don ' t  have t o  l e a r n  t o  shave 
o r  c u t  h a i r ;  I know how t o  do t h a t ,  but  this 
bus iness  of t h e  ho t  towels  and massages and all 
t h e  o t h e r  s t u f f  they  d i d  i n  a ba rbe r  shop, I d idnct  
know how, I wanted t o  l e a r n  t h a t ,  

He picked up a r a z o r  ( those  were t h e  days they  
had s t r a i g h t  r a z o r s )  and handed i t  t o  me and sa id ,  
"Can you t e s t  t h a t ?  See i f  i t ,s all r igh t , "  So, 
I t e s t e d  i t  t h e  way my dad had t augh t  me and I 
sa id ,  !'No, t h a t  r a z o r  i s  d u l l ;  i t  needs t o  be honed," 
He didnc t say  anything, l a i d  i t  a s i d e  and picked 
up another  one and gave i t  t o  me t o  tes t ,  I t o l d  
him, "That one i s  all r igh t , "  He gave me a  t h i r d  
one and I s a i d ,  "Well, i t ' s  sharp  but  i t ?s been 
honed too much on one s ide ,  Itcs crooked," 
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He s a i d ,  "Well, you su re  know your business ,  I ' l l  
make a dea l  wi th  you,1t He says,  1 ' 1  can show yon 
t h e  hot  towel and t h e  massage and t h e  t o n i c  t h i n g s  
i n  f i v e  minutes," He sa id ,  "1 need someone he re  t o  
he lp  me," 

So, he o f f e r e d  me t h e  job a t  $25 a week t o  be 
an i n s t r u c t o r ,  I accepted, of course,  and I was 
t h e r e  a couple of months o r  so. I n o t i c e d  a man 
who had been s i t t i n g  the re ,  ( A t  t h e  school they 
don't  charge anything; t h e  customers a r e  shaved 
f r e e , )  I had seen t h i s  man, f a i r l y  well-dressed, 
s i t t i n g  t h e r e  q u i t e  a while  even though t h e r e  
were a few empty c h a i r s ,  so I f i n a l l y  went over  t o  
h i m  and s a i d ,  "You're next,tl 

"No," he sa id ,  " I ' m  l ook ing  f o r  a good barber  
and I haven ' t  seen any h e r e  except you, t h e  way you 
went around and c o r r e c t e d  and took overvhen t h e  
guy almost r a n  ou t  of h a i r ,  o r  t h e  guy who w a s  
having t r o u b l e  shaving, How about coming t o  work 
f o r  me?" ( I n  those  days, i t  was 15 c e n t s  f o r  a 
shave and 25 c e n t s  f o r  a h a i r c u t , )  

That was p r e t t y  s teep ,  

Yeah, and so anyway they  p a i d  $25 a week and h a l f  
over  f i f t y ,  I n  o t h e r  words, you got  $25 whether 
you made i t  o r  no t  and i f  you g e t  more than  $50 
i n  a week, you would g e t  h a l f  of t h a t ,  That w a s  
t h e  way t h e  t h i n g  worked, 

I had t o  apply f o r  a l i c e n s e  which I had no 
t r o u b l e  g e t t i n g ;  I passed t h e  t e s t  and went t o  
work' f o r  him, A s  a ~ l l a t t e r  of f a c t ,  he had t h r e e  
shops, He didn' t do any work himself ;  he' d be 
around and have somebody i n  charge, S t a r t i n g  ou t ,  
t h e  shop I worked i n  had six c h a i r s  and I had t h e  
s i x t h  cha i r ,  I t  took me q u i t e  a while  t o  b u i l d  
up any t r a d e  because people genera l ly  picked t h e  
f i r s t  c h a i r ,  you know, Only t h e  l e f t  o v e r s  would 
g e t  t o  me -
You were way down t h e  l i n e ,  i n  back? 

Yeah, so  I never  made $50. Anyway, I even tua l ly  
dec ided  tha t  this was n o t  g e t t i n g  me anywhere, 



Bulcke: 	 go I decided t o  open my own shop,- I r e n t e d  a 
l i t t l e  p l a c e  i n  downtown D e t r o i t ,  made i t  a two 
c h a i r  shop and d i d  f a i r l y  wel l ;  i t  took me a 
l i t t l e  while  bu t  I t o l d  some of my former cus- 
tomers I w a s  going t o  open my own shop, so I had 
a c e r t a i n  following, 

Ward: 	 Those were t h e  days t h a t  a man d idn ' t  shave h i m -
s e l f  . 

Bulcke: Very few people did,  A l o t  of my customers were 
salesmen i n  t h e  s t o r e s  and they  had t o  be shaved 
every day, s t u f f  l i k e  t h a t ,  so i t  wasnf t  bad, 
I was t h e r e  about f o u r  months when t h e  b u i l d i n g  
w a s  sold,  A s  a m a t t e r  of f a c t  they  b u i l $  a high
r i s e  t h e r e ;  though t h e  new owners s a i d  they  would 
s e e  t o  i t  t h a t  I would have a shop i n  t h e  bui ld ing ,  
they  r a i s e d  t h e  r e n t  twice what i t  was, I could 
not  a f f o r d  t h a t ;  I couldnv t have made it, I n  t h e  
meantime my brother-in-law, even though be ing  a 
b r i c k l a y e r ,  had bought a l i t t l e  p l a c e  where they  
s o l d  n e a r  beer,  I t  was r i g h t  a c r o s s  from m e  
Freuhaf t  T r a i l e r  Company which was a very busy 
p lace ,  There were hundreds of workers t h e r e ,  
The p l a c e  d i d  p r e t t y  good business ,  so I opened 
up a shop i n  t h a t  bui ld ing ,  Of course, b e s i d e s  
n e a r  bee r  and home brew, we had whiskey, 

Ward: 	 Where d i d  you g e t  t h e  whiskey? 

Bulcke: 	 Oh, bought i t  from t h e  boo t l eggers  who smuggled i t  
i n  from Canada, r i g h t  a c r o s s  t h e  r i v e r ;  no problem 
about l i q u o r  t h e r e ,  o r  home brew, 

Well, so one day I had a customer who had a bad 
co ld  and s a i d ,  "Gee, what I need i s  a sho t  of 
whiskey t o  h e l p  me with t h e  cold,ft and l i k e  a 
s tupnagel  I s a i d ,  "Well, we happen t o  have some,tf 
And we kept  t h e  b o t t l e  of whiskey i n  my s i s t e r 1  s 
sewing machine; yon know t h e  head p u t s  down, and 
we had t h e  whiskey under t h a t ,  So he s a w  where I 

; got  i t  and I gave him t h e  sho t  of whiskey, He pa id  
f o r  i t  and s a i d ,  "Thank you, t h a t f s  good,t' 

Out he goes, and comes back two hours  l a t e r  with 
a warrant,  I was t h e  only one home; my s i s t e r  was 
a.way somewhere and my brother-in-law was o f f  working, 



Bulcke: 	 So, t h e  a r r e s t e d  me- took me down t o  t h e  j a i l  and 
I was tKe r e  overnight.  My brother-in-law got  me 
o u t  t h e  next  morning, I had t o  go before  t h e  judge 
and got  f i n e d  $200, but  my brother-in-law paid  f o r  
i t  and t h a t  was t h a t ,  

Ward: 	 Why d id  he pay f o r  i t ?  

Bulcke: 	 Well, i t  was h i s  business ,  I mean, I wasn't r e a l l y
s e l l i n g  t h e  s t u f f ,  I j u s t  had my l i t t l e  barbershop 
t h e r e ,  but  I took c a r e  of t h e  bus iness  dur ing  t h e  
day when t h e r e  wasn' t much going on, I got  t rapped 
i n  t h a t  one, but  i n  those  days i t  d idn ' t  mean much; 
you know, h e l l ,  people were . . . 

Ward: 	 Probably brought you more business ,  

Bulcke: 	 Well, t h a t  was my experience i n  D e t r o i t ,  Then my 
brother-in-law s o l d  t h e  p l a c e  when my s i s t e r  and 
he separa ted ,  

Working i n  t h e  Auto P l a n t s  

Bulcke: 	 One of my customers w a s  working i n  one of t h e  auto- 
mobile p l a n t s  where they  were h i r i n g  people, So, 
I t o l d  him I was o u t  of business ,  Ifwhy don' t you
come work f o r  us? I ' l l  g e t  you a job,tt So, I 
went t o  t h e  p l a n t  and he h i r e d  me and I worked i n  
t h e  s tock  room, It w a s  a body b u i l d i n g  p l a n t ;  they
made all k i n d s  of automobile bodies,  

Ward: 	 P a r t s ?  Handling p a r t s ?  

Bulcke: 	 Yeah, i n  t h e  s tock  room; whatever they needed, you
know, Then t h e  foreman of  t h e  stockroom t r a n s f e r r e d  
t o  a d i f f e r e n t  p a r t  of t h e  p l a n t ;  he l i k e d  me very 
much and he worked i n  what they  c a l l  ' !f inal  assem-
bly,!' There, when t h e  bodies  were a l l  f in i shed ,  
you put  i n  t h e  door l o c k s  and you cleaned o f f  t h e  
uphols tery ,  

I t r a n s f e r r e d  t o  h i s  department, and then I 
t r a n s f e r r e d  t o  ano the r  one which mzde more money. 
I n  t hose  days tbey p u t  t o p s  on t h e  c z r s ;  you had 



Bulcke: 	 t h e  l e a t h e r e t t e  s o r t  of top, It w a s  p i e ce  work; 
we got  $10 a c a r  but t h e r e  were s i x  of u s  i n  t h e  
gang, see  - one on each corner  and one on each 
s ide ,  Bang, bang, s p i t  t a c k s  - we had a mouth f u l l  
of t a c k s  with a tack  hammer, and of course, we 
were smart enough not  t o  make too  many because they 
would cu t  t h e  r a t e s ,  

We q u i t  when we made $11 a day each. I f  we d id  
not  average over  $10 a day, t h a t  was f i n e  and we 
d idn ' t  have t o  work our  tails o f f ,  Sure enough 
another  group was hi red ,  They were hungry, I guess;
they s t a r t e d  making $12, $13 a day and f i r s t  t h i n g  
you know i n s t e a d  of a d o l l a r  t h e  company cu t  t h e  
r a t e  t o  75 cents ,  So, I s a i d  t h e  h e l l  with this 
noise,  I t r a n s f e r r e d  back t o  f i n a l  assembly, which 
was not  p iece  work, 

I then heard about Ford paying $5 a day at p iece
work and you could make more, So, I h i r e d  out  at 
Ford and I was put  on one of t h e  f i r s t  assembly 
l i n e s ,  I was assembling m a a e t o  needles,  That w a s  
before  they  used b a t t e r i e s ,  

I was t h e r e  probably fou r  o r  f i v e  weeks when on 
a Sunday I went t o  a wedding and you know, a l o t  
of home brew, what have you; I had a h e l l  of a hang-
over  t h e  next  morning, on Monday, Also I had de- 
veloped a b i t  of a d iar rhea ,  I n  t h e  p l a n t  they had 
a men's room and they  had a guard who took your 
number when you went i n  ,,, 

Ward: 	 How long  you stayed i n  'there? 

Bulcke: 	 Yeah, and how of ten ,  Sho r t l y  a f t e r  I got  t o  work 
I had t o  go, and about an hour l a t e r  I had t o  go 
again, And t h e  guard sa id ,  "You were j u s t  here? 
What's t h e  mat te r  with you?t1 "Oh, I sa id ,  rfsome-
th ing  I a t e  d idn ' t  s e t  well  and i t ' s  given me t h e  
runs," "Why don't  you go see  t h e  nurse?" tfWell, 
i f  i t  keeps up, I w i l l , t t  

Sure enough, twenty minutes l a t e r  I had t o  go
again. So, he sa id ,  "Damn i t  a l l ,  d i d  you see  t h e  
nurse?" I sa id ,  '!She was out.^^ I hadnt t ,  but then 
1 thought  I n a d  b e t t e r  go see her. The mrse  asked 



Bulcke: 	 me what was wrong, I t o l d  her,  She t o l d  me what 
t o  take ;  they d i d n t t  have i t  t h e r e ,  but  by t h a t  
t ime I am over  i t  p r e t t y  much and I go back t o  my 
bench, There were men working on both s i d e s ;  i t  
was a l o n g  bench, and you had a packet  of t i c k e t s ,  
When you d i d  your p a r t  you p u t  your t i c k e t  on i t ,  
It was p i e c e  work, 

I w a s  k ind  of mad a t  what happened and I s a i d  
t o  no one i n  p a r t i c u l a r ,  "What this j o i n t  needs i s  
a union," The only unions i n  t h e  p l a n t s  i n  those  
days were t h e  Tool and Diemdcers - they were t h e  
only  ones organized, And I r e a l l y  d i d n t t  say i t  t o  
anyone i n  p a r t i c u l a r ,  I d i d n f t  r e a l l y  know t h e  
guys working; we were working too  f a s t  t r y i n g  t o  
make a d o l l a r ,  

So, about f i f t e e n  minutes l a t e r  one of t h e  high 
school boys they  use f o r  runners  came and sa id ,  
"They want t o  see  you i n  t h e  o f f i ce , f f  So, I go i n  
t h e  o f f i c e  and t h e r e  i s  my check a l l  made out ,  And 
I s a i d ,  "What f o r ?  Why? What happened?ff 

And t h e  guy, t h e  c l e r k  who gave me t h e  check, 
looked around and s a i d  q u i e t l y ,  ffYou were heard t o  
say ? t h i s  p lace  needs a un ion? ;  t h a t t s  poison, I 
agree  wi th  you, but  t h e r e t s  noth ing  I can do about 
it,  Good luck!" 

Ward: 	 Oh, ho! 

Marriage, Parenthood, and Moving 

Bulcke: And I mas out ;  I went t o  work, 
d i f f e r e n t  f a c t o r i e s ,  I t  wasnt 

oh, i n  a couple of 
d i f f i c u l t ,  A t  t h a t  

time, i f  you had any know-how a t  a l l  you could go 
t o  work i n  most automobile p l a n t s ,  and I went t o  
work i n  an automobile p l a n t ,  Then I got  married,  

Ward: And your wife?  s name was? 

Bul cke : Marie, Marie, 



Ward: 	 What k i n d  of  background d i d  she have? 

Bulcke: 	 Her f a t h e r  was Belg ian  and h e r  mother w a s  too ,  
bu t  h e r  mother came ove r  when she was a l i t t l e  
g i r l ,  . 

Ward: 	 I see ,  

Bulcke: 	 Her f a t h e r  r a i s e d  t h a t  famous Belg ian  endive  -
very expensive,  and i t  was even then,  He l e a r n e d  
how t o  r a i s e  i t  i n  t h e  o l d  country,  I guess, And 
t h e y  used  t o  t a k e  i t  t o  t h e  market and t o  c e r t a i n  
h o t e l s ;  I mean, he d i d  p r e t t y  wel l ,  

By t h e  t ime I met my wife ,  h e r  dad had passed  
away and they  had a n  80-acre farm, which t h e y  
l a t e r  sub-divided because t h e  dad was gone, 

Well, anyway, I go t  marr ied  wi th  h e r ;  h e r  mother 
had bought some p r o p e r t y  about  40 m i l e s  n o r t h  of  
D e t r o i t ,  a t  Anchorvi l le ,  I t  used t o  be a harbor  
f o r  lumber, b u t  t h e  lumber was all gone. 

There w a s  an o l d  gene ra l  s t o r e  t h e r e ,  and she 
bought t h e  p r o p e r t y  with  t h e  s t o r e  and every th ing ,  
She asked me t o t d c e  o v e r  t h e  s t o r e ,  Her husband 
( s h e  was marr ied  by t h a t  t ime)  w a s  a b u i l d e r  and 
he  b u i l t  a new b u i l d i n g  f o r  us, new s t o r e ,  more 
modern, o f  course ,  The p r o p e r t y  had a couple  of 
summer homes i n  t h e  back, one of  which t h e  mother- 
in- law used, I r a n  t h e  s t o r e  f o r  a couple  o f  years ,  

I n  a ne ighbor ing  town, n o t  very  f a r  away, an 
A&P opened up ( A t l a n t i c  and P a c i f i c )  and my b u s i n e s s  
s t a r t e d  t o  go down, Couldn ' t  compete, I n  those  
days  most people  d i d  t h e i r  own baking, p a r t i c u l a r -
l y  t h e  farmers;  f l o u r  w a s  a b i g  i t em,  I cou ldn ' t  
compete wi th  A&P on t h e  f l o u r ,  When they  had a 
s p e c i a l  s a l e ,  I went t h e r e  and bought 20 o r  25 
s a c k s  and s o l d  them at  t h e  same p r i c e ,  t r y i n g  t o  
h o l d  my customers,  But t h a t  d i d n ' t  work ou t ,  I 
could  s e e  i t  go down and I r e a l i z e d  t h a t  t h e  t h i n g  
was going t o  h e l l ,  



Bulcke: 	 But a' few months before,  a f r i e n d  of my brother-  
in-law, a l s o  a Belgian -

Ward: 	 You moved s o c i a l l y  i n  Belgian -
Bulcke: . 	 No, I d idn ' t ;  I s t ayed  away from them, bu t  my 

brother-in-law, my s i s t e r  - l o t s  of t imes  when 
I was t h s r e ,  t h e s e  people were t h e r e  . . , 

Ward: 	 Why d i d  you s t a y  away from them - t h e  Belgians? 

Bulcke: 	 Well, i n  D e t r o i t  p a r t i c u l a r l y ,  t h e r e  were about 
25,000 Belg ians  - t h e  s t o r e s  - they  t a l k e d  
Flemish all t h e  way; I wasn' t ashamed of  i t  but  
I wanted t h e  American way of doing th ings ,  

Ward:. 	 You wanted t o  become an American? 

Bulcke: 	 Right. So, t h i s  guy, I had met h i m  before ;  he 
had gone t o  San Francisco  and he was back on a 
v i s i t ,  so I s a i d  t o  h i m ,  "What do you do i n  San 
Francisco?" "Oh,(t he sa id ,  "1 work on ships," 

I thought he meant t h e  shipyards,  "What do 
you mean?" H e  sa id ,  "No, no, I l o a d  cargo and 
d ischarge  cargo," Something dawned i n  my mind, 
and I s a i d ,  !'If I came ou t  t h e r e ,  do you t h i n k  I 
could g e t  a job?tf He sa id ,  "1 t h i n k  SO,^ That 
s tuck  i n  my mind f o r  about f o u r  o r  f i v e  months 
before  I f i n a l l y  s o l d  t h e  s t o r e ,  One o t h e r  reason 
why I wanted t o  come t o  Ca l i fo rn ia ,  and p a r t i c u l a r -  
l y  San Francisco,  was t h a t  an aunt  of mine was a 
governess wi th  a r i c h  family before  t h e  f i r s t  World 
War and they  had t r a v e l e d  Ca l i fo rn ia .  She had 
come back with books f u l l  of d r i e d  f lowers;  j u s t  
wi ld  about C a l i f o r n i a ,  you know, She had l i v e d  
i n  Santa  Barbara and San Francisco,  

Ward: 	 You'd heard a l o t  about C a l i f o r n i a ?  

Bulcke: 	 Our daughter m s  about n ine  months old,  So, I s a i d  
t o  my wife,  "Look, you s t a y  with your mother, I ' m  
going t o  San Francisco  and f i n d  ou t  whether o r  n o t  
I can g e t  a job there.91 



Bulcke: 	 So, t h i s  f e l low l i v e d  i n  Daly Ci ty ;  I had h i s  
address  and went t o  see  him, asked h i m  what i t  
looked l i k e ,  could I g e t  a job? He was working 
a t  t h e  A d m i r a l  L ine  and sa id ,  "Well, I th ink  so; 
you come along with me,tf 

He' took- me down and showed me t h e  boss, Peter-
son, who was t h e  super in tendent  and t o l d  me, 

" T h a t f s  t h e  guy you ask," so I went up t o  M r .  

Peterson,  I s a i d ,  "What, s t h e  chance, you know, 

of c ~ m i n g  t o  work here?" He looked me up and 

down; I was all of  23 y e a r s  o ld ,  and he sa id ,  

!!Have you ever  done t h i s  k ind  of work before?!! 

I s a i d ,  "Yes," and he sa id ,  "Where?'! I s a i d ,  

'In De t ro i t , "  

Well, i n  D e t r o i t  they  a r e  all cargo sh ips ,  you 
see,  Of  course,  he knew t h a t ,  And he sa id ,  "Well, 
a t  l e a s t  you knew t h e  d i f f e r e n c e  between a sh ip
and a s t r e e t c a r ;  jo in  t h e  union and be here  a t  
8: 00 oklock i n  t h e  morning," And t h a t ,  s how I 
s t a r t e d  on t h e  A d m i r a l  Line, I went and joined 
t h e  Blue Book Union, Of course,  a t  t h a t  t ime . . 

Ward: 	 You had no opt ion? 

Bulcke: 	 No opt ion ,  I d i d n ' t  know anything about i t ,  but  
.I found ou t  l a t e r  on, And t h a t  i s  how I s t a r t e d  
longshor ing  and 1,ve s tayed he re  ever  s ince ,  

A Long Look Back 

Ward: 	 That,  s q u i t e  a s to ry ,  Bzfore we s t a r t e d  t a p i n g  
you s a i d  you had a s t o r y  t o  t e l l ,  something t h a t  
happened a f t e r  you were eighteen,  Have you i n -  
cluded t h a t  i n  what .you j u s t  t o l d  me now? 

Bulcke: 	 The t h i n g  I d i d n ' t  t e l l  you t h a t  j u s t  occurred 
t o  me; you know, I t o l d  you about my mother 
g e t t i n g  k i l l e d ,  I got  h u r t  too,  but  n o t  t h a t  
time, When I was 14  y e a r s  o ld ,  t h e  Germans 
ordered a l l  14-year o l d s  t o  work f o r  them -



Ward: 	 What kind of work? 

Bulcke: 	 Oh, we worked behind t h e  t renches ,  about t h e  second 
l i n e  of defense,  We r e p a i r e d  communication 
t renches ,  we discharged ammunition o u t  of box ca r s ,  
t h a t  k ind  of work, 

Ward: 	 I see. 

Bulcke: 	 And we b u i l t  our  own shanty,  a lean-to t h i n g
where we s l e p t .  We got  f ed  from t h e  f i e l d  k i t -  
chens l i k e  t h e  s o l d i e r s  d i d  and, of course,  t h e  
bombardment was every so o f t e n ,  you know, from 
t h e  o t h e r  s i d e ,  

Well, t h i s  p a r t i c u l a r  t ime t h e r e  were 48, 52 
young men my age and a l i t t l e  o l d e r  s l eep ing  i n  
t h i s  t h i n g  and a  s h e l l  h i t  t h e  end of i t ;  k i l l e d  
e i g h t  o r  n ine  of them and h u r t  q u i t e  a  number, I 
was lucky t o  be on t h e  o t h e r  end, 

Of course,  t h e  t h i n g  s t a r t e d  burning and t h e  
r e s t  of us,  we a l l  r a n  out ,  They were still s h e l l -
i n g ;  a s h e l l  dropped, I can ' t  t e l l  you how, but  
they  were dropping a l l  around and I ' m  running, 
you see,  and a shrapnel  p i e c e  h i t  me r i g h t  here  -
(showing l e f t  hand) 

Ward: 	 Oh, yes! 

Bul cke : 	Well, t h e  back of my hand was l a y i n g  r i g h t  over  
here,  ( t u r n e d  back toward t h e  wrist), I got  t o  
a f i r s t  a i d  s t a t i o n ,  bu t  they  were busy t a k i n g  
c a r e  of German s o l d i e r s  who had been h u r t ,  and 
they  l e t  me sit t h e r e  f o r  q u i t e  a  while, I f i n a l l y  
got. t o  t h e  f i r s t -  a i d  man; he was n o t  a doctor ,  
he was j u s t  a medic, He threw some powder on i t  
and I wrapped my hand and he s a i d ,  "The h o s p i t a l  
i s  a couple of mi les  back,^^ So, I stumbled down ,, 

Did you w a l k  t h e r e ?  

That'  s t h e  only way you could 

You were 	four teen?  

Ward: 

Bul cke: 

Ward: 



Bulcke: 	 I w a s  four teen;  about four teen  and a  h a l f ,  there-
abouts,  because i t  w a s  i n  September and I w a s  1 4  
i n  May, So, I got  t o  t h e  h o s p i t a l  and of course,  
t h e r e  were ambulances and German s o l d i e r s  l a y i n g  
o u t s i d e  on s t r e t c h e r s ,  Natura l ly  I w a s  a c i v i l i a n ,  
so i t  took q u i t e  a while before  I got  t o  see  a k 

doctor ,  He unwrapped i t ,  looked at  i t  and s a i d ,  
"1'11 have t o  c u t  your hand o f f o f f  I t  was all 
swollen and I s a i d  t o  him, ffYou a r e  n o t  c u t t i n g  my 
hand o f f e r '  ffWell,ff he sa id ,  "blood poisoning w i l l  
s e t  i n  and i t  w i l l  k i l l  you," I sa id ,  "Okay, but  
I am no t  going t o  have my hand c u t  o f f o f f  So, he 
pu t  some s t u f f  on i t ,  wrapped i t  up good and then  
I had t o  walk home from the re ,  but  f o r t u n a t e l y  3 
got  l i f t s ,  

Ward: 	 You got  a l i f t ?  

Bulcke: 	 Yeah, you know, German s o l d i e r s  were t h e  only ones 
d r i v i n g  around, They would see  me with t h i s  hand 
all wrapped up and I would hold i t  up and theyvd 
s top ,  so I got  home all r i g h t ,  And t h e  t h i n g  
healed;  t h e r e v s  some nerves  t h a t  were c u t  but i t  
never bothered me, 

Ward: 	 Yes, you have f u l l  con t ro l ,  

Bulcke: 	 F u l l  cont ro l ,  
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Those German O f f i c e r s  

Ward: 	 J e r r y ,  I b e l i e v e  you had a s t o r y  t o  t e l l  about an 
i n c i d e n t  i n  your f a t h e r c s  barber  shop, 

Bulcke: 	 Thatvs c o r r e c t ,  A t  home. we had a barber  shop 
which opera ted  normally on Fr iday  and Saturday, 
We a l s o  had a b a r  room where we s o l d  l i q u o r ,  
c i g a r s  and c i g a r e t t e s  and so f o r t h ,  and we had a 
couple of b i l l i a r d  t a b l e s ,  



Bulcke: 	 During t h e  w a r  when t h e  German Army was occupying 
o u r  a r e a  many of t h e  s o l d i e r s  would come t o  t h e  
ba rba r  shop t o  have t h e i r  h a i r  cu t  o r  g e t  shaved 
o r  whatever, One day t h e r e  were probably,  as I 
r e c a l l ,  e i g h t  o r  n i n e  German s o l d i e r s  awai t ing  
t h e i r  t u r n  t o  be taken  c a r e  of when i n  walked one 
of t h e i r  o f f i c e r s ,  He was a t y p i c a l  P russ i an  i n  
h i s  a c t i o n s ,  a young man who obviously had been 
through all t h e  m i l i t a r y  t r a i n i n g ,  Immediately, 
all t h e  s o l d i e r s  jumped up and s a l u t e d  h i m ,  and 
he  immediately went t o  t h e  cha i r ,  

Ward: 	 Ahead of  all t h o s e  who were wai t ing ,  huh? 

Bulcke: 	 Yes, he j u s t  i gnored  them - he looked a t  them - he  
d i d  r e t u r n  t h e  s a l u t e  as I remember, bu t  he went 
r i g h t  away t o  t h e  c h a i r ,  He d i d n t t  w a i t  f o r  any- 
one and sat down and he wanted a shave, Dad w a s  
going t o  shave him and he s a i d ,  !!If you c u t  me, 
1 1 1 1  k i l l  you,lf He had his sidearms on and at t h a t  
moment, t h e  way he t a l k e d ,  i t  sounded l i k e  he  meant 
i t ,  So Dad, says, t l I  w i l l  n o t  shave you under a 
t h r e a t  of t h a t  sor t , "  And I s a i d  t o  Dad -

Ward: 	 Oh, you were t h e r e ?  

Bulcke: 	 I was t h e r e ;  I w a s  working with my dad because I 
used t o  - I a l ready  knew how t o  shave - and so on -
and I s a i d  t o  my dad, lfWell, never  mind, dad, 1'11 
shave h i m , "  Dad d i d n t t  say anything,  so I s t a r t e d  
t o  p repa re  t h e  o f f i c e r ,  pu t  t h e  towel on him; we 
d i d n t t  have any fancy ba rbe r  c h a i r s  i n  t h o s e  days, 
There was a s l i g h t  t h i n g  which they  could r e s t  
t h e i r  heads  on while  t h e y  were be ing  shaved, but  
n o t  t h e  modern type  t h a t  we have now, 

Anyway, I went ahead and soaped h i m  up and 
shaved h i m  and a f t e r  i t  w a s  over ,  he sa id ,  tlHow 
come you dared  t o  shave me when I t o l d  your dad 
t h a t  i f  he cu t  me, I would k i l l  him?ff 

I s a i d  t o  him, " I f  I had c u t  you I would have 
s l a s h e d  your neck o f f  completely;  you were no t  
going t o  have a chance t o  k i l l  me.'' He looked at 
me and s a i d ,  1 ' 1  t h i n k  you meant it,ff I sa id ,  "1 
s u r e  did.(' And he s a i d ,  flWell, a good t h i n g  it 
dian?t happec," and o f f  he went. 



Bu1ck.e: 	 Those a r e  some of t h e  t h i n g s  t h a t  happened during 
those  days with t h e  o f f i c e r s ,  They were a l l  
q u i t e  a r rogan t  and how those  s o l d i e r s  took i t ,  I 
sometimes wond.ered a b u t ,  1 1 ve no t i ced  many t imes  
when they  came o a t  of t h e  t r enches  where they  had 
been f o r  a month o r  so o r  s i x  weeks, n a t u r a l l y
they  were t i r e d  and d i r t y ,  They would have t o  
l i n e  up e a r l y  i n  t h e  morning; many of t h e  o f f i c e r s  
somehow o r  o the r ,  were n o t  as tall as most of t h e  
so ld ie r s .  The o f f i c e r s  would bawl ou t  t h e  s o l d i e r s  
i f  t h e i r  helmet wasn't j u s t  r i g h t ,  i f  t h e r e  was ... 

anything o u t  of t h e  ord inary  o r  n o t  i n  o r d e r  with 
t h e  r u l e s  and so for th .  

A number of t imes  1 1ve seen o f f i c e r s  reach  up 
and s l a p  t h e  s o l d i e r  wi th  open hand on both s i d e s  
of t h e  face,  bawl them ou t  and c a l l  them a l l  k i n d s  
of names, and so f o r t h ,  Most of them were r e a l l y  
t y p i c a l ,  P russ ian - t r a ined  m i l i t a r i s t i c  i n  t h e i r  
approach, and a b s o l u t e l y  no r e g a r d  f o r  t h e  s o l d i e r s  
and t h e i r  problems, I t  was a time t h a t  r e a l l y  
gave u s  a chance t o  see  t h e  d i f f e r e n c e  between t h e  
average s o l d i e r  and t h e i r  o f f i c e r s ,  

Ward: 	 Okay, t h a t  i s  a very i n t e r e s t i n g  s t o r y  and a 
f r i g h t e n i n g  one, because I have had enough exper- 
i e n c e  t o  know t h a t  i n  almost any army i n  this 
world some of t h a t  s p i r i t  still p reva i l s .  

The P a r e n t a l  Prophecy 

Ward: 	 Now, you t o l d  u s  t h e  s t o r y  i n  t h e  previous  t ape  
about your f a t h e r ' s  prophecy about World War 11. 
He figured, as I r e c a l l ,  t h a t  i t  would occur  prob- 
ab ly  around 1932, seven y e a r s  before  i t  a c t u a l l y
d i d  occur, Could you g ive  me the. background of 
your f a the r1 s t h i n k i n g  on t h a t  subjec t2  : 

Bulcke: 	 Well, he came t o  t h e  conclusion t h a t  a l though t h e  
peace had been s igned both s i d e s  were p r e t t y  much 
a t  t h e  end of t h e i r  rope as f a r  as money and 
s u p p l i e s  were concerned, and t h a t  t h e  reason f o r  
which t h e  xar w a s  s t a r t e d  had n o t  been accomplished. 



Bulcke: 	 One reason  Germany sued f o r  peace l o n g  be fo re  any 
of t h e  A l l i e d  t r o o p s  e n t e r e d  Germany w a s  t h a t  t hey  
obvious ly  knew t h a t  i f  they  k e p t  f i g h t i n g  a l o t  
of t h e i r  i n d u s t r i a l  e s t ab l i shmen t  would have been 
destroyed,  and they d i d  n o t  want t h a t  t o  happen, 
That  was my dad ' s  op in ion  why t h e  Germans sued 
f o r  peace,  t o  p r o t e c t  t h e i r  i nves tmen t s  and t h e  
development they  had e s t a b l i s h e d  i n  many f a c t o r i e s  
and coa l  mines and so f o r t h ,  These had n o t  been 
touched dur ing  t h e  whole war because t h e  w a r  was 
fought  away from Germany i t s e l f ,  

Ward: 	 Did t h e  developments on Germany' s Eas te rn  (Russian)  
F ron t  have anyth ing  t o  do wi th  t h a t  su ing  f o r  
peace,  do you th ink?  

Bulcke: 	 It may have had a bea r ing  on i t ,  a l l  r i g h t ,  bu t  
p r i m a r i l y  my dad ' s  op in ion  was t h a t  Germany didn' t 
want t o  cont inue  and have t h i s  d e s t r u c t i o n  i n  t h e i r  
own l and ,  Also by t h a t  t ime t h e y  had l o s t  t h e i r  
c o l o n i e s  i n  Afr ica ,  They had l o s t  o u t  i n  China 
and were n a t u r a l l y  i n  a weakened p o s i t i o n ,  But 
as dad po in ted  o u t ,  t h e  b a s i s  f o r  which t h e  war 
was fought  was n o t  reached by e i t h e r  s i d e ,  

Ward: 	 Was t h e r e  any . r e v o l u t i o n a r y  t a l k  i n  sympathy wi th  
t h e  Bolshevik i  an;ong t h e  German s o l d i e r s ?  

Bulcke: 	 Not t h a t  I was aware o f ,  There may have been, b u t  
a t  t h a t  t ime t h e  s o l d i e r s  who were s t a t i o n e d  where 
I l i v e d  had been on t h e  Western F ron t  from t h e  
beginning,  They were s h i f t e d  around somewhat i n  
France,  and maybe some might have been s h i f t e d  a l l  
t h e  way around ( t o  t h e  e a s t e r n  f r o n t )  bu t  most of 
them would be i n  t h e  t r e n c h e s  f o r  s i x  weeks, f o m  
weeks, and then  they  would come back t o  what t h e y  
c a l l e d  t h e  r e s t  period.  Many of them were t h e  
same s o l d i e r s ,  and we s a w  them t ime and t ime again. 

Ward: 	 I see,  



The dissent in^ D r a f t e e s  

Bulcke: 	 A l i t t l e  i n c i d e n t ,  Two of t h e  s o l d i e r s  who were 
assigned t o  our  home we got  f a i r l y  wel l  acquaint-  
ed with, Both were from Alsace-Lorraine and 
they were no t  favorable  t o  what was going on, 
Of course,  they  c o u l d n f t  he lp  themselves, They 
had been d r a f t e d  i n t o  t h e  German army, and they 
were no t  l i k e d  by t h e  r e s t  of t h e  s o l d i e r s  i n  
t h e i r  company because they  were considered t o  be 
French, 

They t a l k e d  q u i t e  o f t e n ;  we met them a number 
of t imes;  they  asked,"Was t h e r e  any way t h a t  they  
could g e t  t o  ~ o l l a n d ? ~ '  t h a t  time Holland wasA t  
n e u t r a l ,  The Germans had b u i l t  an e l e c t r i f i e d  
fence on t h e  border between Belgium and Holland 
and t h e r e  were c e r t a i n  p l a c e s  where t h e  roads  
went through where t h e r e  were ga tes ,  Now a l o t  
of t h e  Belgian farmers  had l a n d  i n  Holland which 
they used, so t h e  Germans always l e t  t h e  farmers' 
go i n  and ou t  t o  b r ing  back t h e  produce - - -

Ward: 	 They needed i t ,  

Bul cke: 	 - which t h e  Germans would t ake  away from them, 

Anyway, my uncle  was a farmer who had l a n d  i n  
Holland which he used t o  work, and I go t  t h e  i d e a ,  
i n  t a l k i n g  t o  those  two s o l d i e r s ,  t h a t  t h e r e  might 
be a p o s s i b i l i t y  f o r  them t o  sneak a c r o s s  i n t o  
Holland with t h e  he lp  of my uncle,  

Ward: 	 That was t h e  way you got  across ,  wasn't i t ?  I n t o  
Holland? 

Bul cke : 	 No, I d o n f t  t h i n k  so, I t a l k e d  i t  over  with my 
uncle  and we arranged f o r  t h e  two t o  be covered 
up with a l o a d  of manure and they  were dr iven  i n t o  
Holland, Of course,  t h e  l a n d  t h a t  my uncle  was 
working was away from towns and they  got  away, 

Af te r  t h e  war was over,  I got  a l e t t e r  from 
one of them; h i s  f a t h e r  was a  banker, o r  i n  t h e  
banking business ,  i n  Pa r i s .  i n  t h e  l e t t e r  was 



Bulcke: 	 a s ta tement  by h i s  f a t h e r  s ay ing  he  would appre- 
c i a t e  i t  i f  I could  come t o  P a r i s  so  t h a t  he 
could  meet me and thank me f o r  what I had done 
which I did,  I spen t  about  t h r e e  weeks wi th  them 
and had a n i c e  vaca t ion ,  The son was home by t h e  
t ime  I g o t  t h e r e ,  bu t  he l e f t  and I f o r g e t  where 
he went; anyway, he went away , , , 

Ward: 	 That  was be fo re  you came t o  America? 

Bulcke: 	 Oh, yeah, t h a t  was w i t h i n  a  month a f t e r  t h e  war 
was over, 

Ward: 	 A German was a  banker i n  P a r i s ?  

Bulcke: 	 No - no; he was from Alsace Lor ra ine ,  He w a s  
a c t u a l l y  French, 

Ward: 	 1 see,  

Bulcke: 	 But he happened t o  be i n  Alsace-Lorraine when t h e  
w a r  broke o u t  and he was d r a f t e d  i n  t h e  German 
Army, Anyway, we had a n i c e  ge t - toge the r  and a f t e r  
t h a t  I d i d n ' t  h e a r  o r  s e e  from them anymore, We 
l e a r n e d  l a t e r  on t h a t  q u i t e  a few, Germans a s  we l l  
a s  Belg ians ,  go t  away ove r  t h e  bo rde r  and were i n -  
t e r n e d  f o r  t h e  war t ime i n  Holland, Of course ,  
when t h e  w a r  was over ,  I 'guess  t h e y  went home, 

The  Nazi Dream 

Ward: 	 Yes, now, I g o t  a d r i f t  i n  your  comments t h a t  
Nazism was n o t  t hen  known i n  Europe and H i t l e r  
had never  been heard  o f ,  

Bulcke: 	 I t  was n o t  - never  been hea rd  of ,  

Ward: 	 But t h e r e  was a dream i n  t h e  minds of  t h e  t o p  
Germans about  world conquest ,  wasn' t the re?  How 
d i d  t h a t  e x p r e s s  i t s e l f ?  

Bulcke: 	 T h a t ' s  r i g h t ,  When H i t l e r  became popu la r  and t h e r e  
w a s  a b i g  p u b l i c i t y  campaign o ~ ,t e l l i n g  everyone 
what t h e  Naz ls  would dc f o r  t n e  people,  n a t u r a l l y  
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t h e  people  a t  f i r s t  d i d  n o t  r e a l i z e  what might 
happen and t h e y  suppor ted  H i t l e r ,  f e e l i n g  t h a t  he  
was going  t o  do a l o t  o f  t h i n g s  f o r  Germany, 

Not u n t i l  he  was a c t u a l l y  i n  power d i d  t h e  
non-German people ,  Be lg ians ,  French,  B r i t i s h  and 
so  on, r e a l i z e  what this m a n  was up t o ,  They 
a l lowed him t o  rearm Germany c o n t r a r y  t o  t h e  
agreement t h a t  was reached  i n  t h e  peace agreement, 
and he  b u i l t  up t h e  m i l i t a r y  q u i t e  openly wi thout  
anyone doing any th ing  about  i t ,  

Yes, bu t  I g o t  t h e  i d e a  from you, J e r r y ,  t h a t  
Nazism r e a l l y  had some r o o t s  b e f o r e  t h a t  because 
of  t h i s  e a r l y  dream of  world conquest ,  How d i d  
t h a t  e x p r e s s  i t s e l f ?  

Well, as I say,  u n t i l  H i t l e r  g o t  i n t o  power you 
d i d n ' t  h e a r  much of  t h a t ,  

How do you know t h a t  t h e r e  w a s  t h a t  dream before ,  
then? 

Well, o u r  c o n t a c t s  w i t h  people  - w i t h  German 
people  when H i t l e r  s t a r t e d  t o  become more an4 more 
popula r ,  we s t a r t e d  t o  h e a r  about t h e  program 
t h a t  H i t l e r  w a s  pushing,  by some of t h e  Germans 
who came i n t o  Belgium, salesmen and people  on 
v a c a t i o n  - t h e  same k i n d  of  people '  who l a t e r  
exp res sed  themse lves  as be ing  happy t h a t  t h e  war 
w a s  over ,  These peop le  were a l r e a d y  impressed by 
t h e  program, you might say,  t h a t  H i t l e r  w a s  pro-
j e c t i n g ,  

But you d i d n ' t  hea r ,  i n  1920, any th ing  l i k e  t h a t ?  

No - bu t  I l e f t  i n  1920,  and up t o  t h e n  we hadn ' t  
hea rd  any th ing  a t  all, A s  a m a t t e r  o f  f a c t ,  t h e r e  
were some problems i n  Germany wi th  t h e i r  govern- 
ment - t h e y  had t h e  Weimar . . . 
Oh, yes ,  t h e  Weimar Republic,  

The Weimar Republ ic  and so  f o r t h ,  and t h e r e  were 
some s t r i k e s  I n  t h e  coa l  mines  and t h e  f a c t o r i e s  -
of course ,  t h a t  wzs one t h i n g  t h a t  E i t i e r  . . . 



Ward: How d i d  i t  come t o  your  a t t e n t i o n  b e f o r e  you came 
t o  t h i s  count ry  t h a t  i n  any way gave you t h a t  
impress ion  t h a t  t h e r e  was a p r e - H i t l e r  dream o r  
thought  of world conquest? 

Bulcke: Well, w e  always f e l t  - i t  was my dad 's  op in ion  -
t h a t  t h e  war had n o t  s e t t l e d  it, We were we l l  
aware of t h e  f a c t  t h a t  Germany would t r y  aga in  
t o  do what t hey  s t a r t e d  o u t  t o  do, and t h e  f a c t  
t h a t  i t  took t h e  form of  H i t l e r i s m  made no d i f -
fe rence ,  . I  mean i t  was accepted  by t h e  m a j o r i t y
of  t h e  Germans t h a t  t hey  had t h e  r i g h t  t o  go ahead 
and t r y  t o  conquer t h e  world, 

Ward: I n  o t h e r  words, you were n o t  p r i v y  t o  t h e  t h i n k i n g
of t h e  Bismarckians? 

Bulcke: No, I s u r e  wasn't ,  No 



I1 LONGSHORING I N  SAN FRANCISCO 

T a l k i n g  Union On The Docks 

Ward: 	 Now, g e t t i n g  back t o  where we l e f t  o f f  on Tape 1, 
You came t o  San F ranc i sco ,  you d i d  g e t  a job long- 
s h o r i n g  and you l e f t  t h e  wife ,  Marie, and your  
nine-month o l d  daughte r ;  what as h e r  name? 

Bul cke: 	 Murie l ,  

Ward: 	 You l e f t  Marie and t h e  l i t t l e  baby i n  D e t r o i t ,  
How l o n g  w a s  i t  b e f o r e  t h e y  came out?  

Bulcke: 	 About t h r e e  months, A f t e r  I g o t  e s t a b l i s h e d  i n  
San F ranc i sco ,  g o t  a job as a longshoreman, which 
i t  appeared i t  was p r e t t y  s t e a d y  employment, I 
immediate ly  s e n t  f o r  my wife ,  t o l d  h e r  t o  come w i t h  
t h e  baby, which she  d id ,  

Ward: 	 What p a r t  o f  town d i d  you s e t  up shop i n ?  

Bulcke: 	 I l i v e d  i n  Daly C i t y  - t h a t ' s  where my f r i e n d a  
l i v e d  who had t o l d  me about  t h e  p o s s i b i l i t y ,  I 
found a p l a c e  r i g h t  c l o s e  t o  him and we went t o  
work t o g e t h e r ,  And s o  I l i v e d  i n  Daly C i t y  f o r  
q u i t e  a while. 

Ward: 	 You p r a c t i c a l l y  had t o  have an automobi le  t hen ,  
d i d n ' t  you? 

Bulcke: 	 I didnft have one; I never  g o t  an  automobile u n t i l  
some y e a r s  l a t e r ,  

VJ'lard: Oh, r e d l y !  
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Well, a t  t h a t  t ime t h e  s t r e e t c a r  system wasnct 
too  bad. I would g e t  t h e  1 4 t h  S t r e e t  c a r  i n  Daly 
C i t y  and i t  would go r i g h t  down t o  t h e  F e r r y  
Building and I walked t o  P i e r  1 6  and 18 which 
were r i g h t  handy, 

How l o n g  would t h a t  s t r e e t  c a r  take?  

Oh, we allowed o u r s e l v e s  about 40 minutes  - i t  
wouldnct t a k e  t h a t  long,  but  t o  make s u r e  t o  be  
on t ime on t h e  job, we g e n e r a l l y  showed up on t h e  
job 15 t o  20 minutes  be fo re  i t  w a s  t ime t o  go t o  
work -
Well, with t h e  way t h e  t r a f f i c  i s  now -
Oh! n o t  now - no, no. 

You d idnc t  t a k e  t h e  j i t n e y ?  

No, I d idnc t ;  I donct t h i n k  they  were running i n  
those  days, Youcre t a l k i n g  about 1925, 1926. 

Al l  r i g h t ,  what c o n d i t i o n s  d i d  you f i n d  on t h e  
docks? 

Well, f i r s t  of  all a t  t h e  A d m i r a l  Line,  ( t h e  
P a c i f i c  Steamship Company) where I was employed 
they  had about 18 gangs numbered from one t o  
e igh teen  -
And a gang would be how m.any men? 

Bas ica l ly ,  they  were 1 6  men; and depending on t h e  
work, t h e  type  of cargo you handled, t h e r e  would 
be men added i f  needed, 

Yes, 

A t  f i r s t  I w a s  working on t h e  dock only,  i n  o t h e r  
words, p repa r ing  t h e  l o a d s  t o  be taken  i n t o  t h e  
sh ip ;  o r  t h e  r eve r se ,  when t h e  l o a d s  came ou t  of 
t h e  s h i p  t o  be s tacked  on t h e  dock. 

One t h i n g  t h a t  I came t o  d i s l i k e  a f t e r  I was 
t h e r e  awhile was t h e  system they  had which s t a r t e d  
v s i t h  p u t t i n g  on t h e  blackbcard t h e  t ime  t h e  gang 



Bulcke: 	 w a s  supposed t o  show up f o r  work t h e  next  day,
Many times,  t h e  gang I was i n  f i r s t  was gang nine,  
and t h e r e  would be t h e  number n ine  on t h e  board 
8:00 a, m, 

Wet d show up a t  8:00 a ,m,  and on t h e  blackboard 
i t  would say ~lsmokel~ bes ide  i t ,  meaning ~1standbyf1, 
L o t s  of t imes  you would s t a n d  by u n t i l  11:00, You 
d i d n t t  ge t  p a i d  f o r  t h e  t ime you s tood by, of 
course,  and then  a gang t h a t  was working would go 
t o  lunch and you would r e l i e v e  t h e  gang f o r  an 
hour, 

Then a t  12: 00 another  gang would go t o  lunch 
and you would r e l i e v e  t h a t  gang f o r  an hoyr, then  
vsmokefl aga in  u n t i l  maybe 5:00 ot clock, You would 
then  r e l i e v e  another  gang t h a t  probably was going
t o  work overtime, and some t imes  you would ge t  two 
more hours, 

I n  o t h e r  words, you were around all day and 
you got  four  hours  of work, I got  t o  t a l k  t o  some 
of t h e  old- t imers  who had been t h e r e  many years ,  
some who had belonged t o  t h e  union previous ly  when 
i t  was a union, and I complained about i t  t o  them, 
When I joined t h e  union, t h e  1925 union, I got  a 
l i t t l e  booklet  t h a t  was supposed t o  have t h e  work- 
i n g  cond i t ions  ou t l ined ,  and t h e r e  was very l i t t l e  
i n  it,  I couldnt t f i n d  anything about flsmokefl, 
so i n  t a l k i n g  t o  t h e s e  old- t imers  I sa id ,  "How l o n g  
h a s  t h a t  been going on?ll 

Itoh," they  sa id ,  'lever s i n c e  t h i s  company union -
t h a t t s  t h e  way i t  is," And one of t h e s e  old- 
t i m e r s  s a i d  t o  me, Ifwhy don!t you t ake  i t  up with 
t h e  union?l' So, a t  t h a t  t ime t h e  union had a 
p l a c e  on Clay S t r e e t  where l a t e r  on t h e .  ILWU was, 
and t h e  Marine Cooks and Stewards was on t h e  second 
f l o o r ,  I found out  what time they  met, once a 
month, and I went up t h e r e  t o  t h e  meeting, Outside 
of t h e  o f f i c e r s  and two bus iness  agen t s  t h e r e  were 
probably t h r e e  o r  four  people the re ,  

Ward: 	 A t  a meeting? 

Bulcke: 	 A t  a meeting: yes, Th i s  was t h e  Blue Book union 
meeting. Oh, they  went through t h e  r2gamarole 
cf yeading correspondence, n i n u t e ~  of t h e  last 



Bulcke: 	 meeting and then  t h e  chairman o r  t h e  p r e s i d e n t  
s a i d ,  I 1 I s  t h e r e  anyone he re  who h a s  any questions?tl  
So, I r a i s e d  my hand and s a i d ,  "Yes, I do have a 
question.ff "Yes, what i s  i t ? "  So, I expla ined  
about t h i s  ffsmokingfl, and t h e  b u s i n e s s  agent  go t  
up - he w a s  a b ig ,  husky man - he grabbed me by 
t h e  back of t h e  neck and t h e  s e a t  o f  my p a n t s  and 
s a i d ,  "You haven' t been he re  l o n g  enough t o  be 
dry behind your e a r s ,  and you ' re  going t o  t e l l  
u s  how t o  run  o u r  business?f l  And he shoved me 
down t h e  s t e p s ;  he  d i d n ' t  throw me bu t  he shoved 
me. 

A couple  of  days l a t e r ,  on t h e  job, one of  t h e  
o ld- t imers  who had suggested I go t o  t h e  m e t i n g  
s a i d  t o  me, tfWell, how d i d  you make out?'f I t o l d  
him what happened and he laughed; he thought  i t  
was a b i g  joke. Right  t hen  and t h e r e ,  I made up 
my mind t h a t  t h a t  union was n o t  a good union, and 
as t ime went on we e v e n t u a l l y  g o t  r i d  of it. I ' l l  
go i n t o  d e t a i l  on t h a t  l a t e r .  

Ways Of The Waterfront 

Ward: 	 You used t o  t e l l  a l o t  of y a r n s  of  t h e  docks. 
L o t s  of i n t e r e s t i n g  t h i n g s  must have happened down 
t h e r e  b e s i d e s  t h e  s t o r y  you just to ld .  

Bulcke: -	 One t h i n g  t h a t  w a s  p r e v a l e n t  i n  t h o s e  days  was, 
a l o t  of men i n  o r d e r  t o  keep t h e i r  job would buy 
d r i n k s  f o r  t h e  gang foreman, p a i n t  his house wi th  
p a i n t  t hey  'fsnuckfl away from t h e  docks. There w a s  
all k i n d s  of  f a v o r i t i s m  of t h a t  s o r t  going on. 
Also t h e  companies would s e e  t o  i t  t h a t  t h e  gang 
foremen had q u i t e  a b i t  o f  l a t i t u d e ;  i f  you g o t  
f i r e d  by a gang foreman you were g e n e r a l l y  p l aced  
on a b l a c k l i s t ,  The word went around through t h e  
company union t h a t  you were a t r o u b l e  maker. Very 
few guys with  t h a t  r e p u t a t i o n  could s t a y  on t h e  
w a t e r f r o n t ;  t hey  would d isappear ,  couldn' t g e t  any 
jobs, 

Because t h e y  had t h a t  r e p u t a t i o n .  
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Another t h i n g  t h a t  was going on a t  t h e  time, each 
company had c e r t a i n  days t h a t  - they  paid;  many
t imes  you c o u l d n f t  ge t  t o  t h e  pay o f f i c e  because 
you happened t o  be working somewhere e l s e ,  and so 
on, So t h e r e  w a s  a system developed, because a 
l o t  of t h e  guys were l i v i n g  from hand t o  mouth, 
of cashing i n  your check; as they  c a l l e d  it, t h e  
5 percent  deal,  That w a s  q u i t e  p reva len t  on t h e  
water f ront ,  

So, all those  t h i n g s  went on a s  l o n g  as t h e  
company union w a s  i n  con t ro l ,  Then, i n  1933 when 
s e c t i o n  7a  of t h e  Nat ional  . . . . 
The National  Labor Re la t ions  Act, 

That, of course,  gave u s  t h e  i d e a  of g e t t i n g  a 
union of our  own and a number of men - - - 
J e r r y ,  I t h i n k  you s a i d  t h e r e  were some rumbles 
i n  128 and 129; l e t f s  t a l k  about t h a t ,  

I n  128 and 129, as I remember i t ,  because of t h e  
speedup, F i r s t  of a l l ,  they  had cu t  our  wages, 
When I s t a r t e d  working on t h e  wa te r f ron t  we were 
g e t t i n g  90 c e n t s  an hour s t r a i g h t  t ime and a $1.10 
overtime; overtime w a s  no t  t ime and one-half, i t  
was simply twenty c e n t s  more, They c u t  our  wages 
t o  75 c e n t s  an hour, 

That w a s  when? 

Well, i t  w a s  129, I th ink ,  I t  might have been 
e a r l y  f30s, 

Did i t  have connection with t h e  crash? 

Yes, i t  did, The depression had s e t  i n  back Eas t  
much sooner than  i t  d id  on t h e  P a c i f i c  Coast, but  
sh ipping  went down because everyth ing  slowed down 
and t h e  companies decided t o  cu t  t h e  wages and 
t h e r e  wasnf t  anything we could do about it, an-
s t e a d  of g e t t i n g  90 c e n t s  an hour, we got  75 
c e n t s  an hour, 

Ant what w a s  t h e  over t ime? 



Bulcke: 	 And t h e  over t ime was about - i t  was$1 ,00 ,  Oh, i t  
was 95 c e n t s  I t h i n k  i t  was, as I r e c a l l  i t ,  75, 
85. That '  s r i g h t !  I t  was 75 -and go! That  made 
most of t h e  longshoremen d i s t u r b e d  and mad; t h a t ' s  
when we s t a r t e d  t o  t a l k  about having a d i f f e r e n t  
union,  

Ward: 	 Would you say  t h a t  t h e r e ' s  no th ing  l i k e  a wage c u t  
t o  make a man move? 

Bulcke: 	 Yes, i t  s u r e  d id ,  And a l s o  t h e  speed-up, t h e  
company s u p e r i n t e n d e n t s  and r e p r e s e n t a t i v e s  con-
s t a n t l y  h a r a s s i n g  t h e  men t o  work f a s t e r ,  . For  
i n s t a n c e :  I worked a t  t h e  Grace L i n e s  where they  
had f i v e  s t eady  gangs, and one gang was t h e  so-
c a l l e d  b l ack  gang, 

Ward: 	 That  was t h e  one b lack  gang on t h e  wa te r f ron t?  

Bulcke: 	 No, t h e r e  were two, I found o u t  t h a t  i n  t h e  
p r e v i o u s  s t r i k e  i n  1920, '31, they  had used  a l o t  
of  b l ack  people  t o  scab,  I n  t h o s e  days, of  course ,  
t h e r e  were no b l ack  people  working on t h e  water- 
f r o n t  except  under t h o s e  c i rcumstances ,  Anyway, by 
my t ime, one b l ack  gang w a s  a t  t h e  Luckenbach 
docks and t h e  o t h e r  b l ack  gang where I worked was 
a t  t h e  Grace docks, 

They were no l o n g e r  what you might c a l l  b l ack  
i n  t h e  sense  t h a t  we know them, They were a mix-
t u r e  of Ch i l sans ,  South American people,  A s  I 
remember i n  t h e  gang where I worked t h e r e  were 
on ly  t h r e e  Negroes, The winch d r i v e r  w a s  100  p e r  
c e n t  n a t i v e  I n d i a n  from t h e  Hoopa r e s e r v a t i o n ;  
he had s a i l e d  on steam schooners  . . . 

Bulcke: 	 He had worked on schooners  and l e a r n e d  t o  d r i v e  
winches and t h e n  was employed as a longshoreman,
Being Ind ian ,  he was n a t u r a l l y  p l aced  i n  t h e  so-
c a l l e d  Black g,ang, w i th  which we g o t  well-  
acquainted,  



Bul cke: 	 I might say t h a t  when we e v e n t u a l l y  organized  
ou r  p r e s e n t  union,  all of them joined,  a l though -
t h e y  were a  l i t t l e  s c a r y  a t  f i r s t ,  Some of them 
t o l d  me, ffWell, you whi te  guys a r e  going t o  have 
a good union, appa ren t ly ,  bu t  ou r  h i s t o r y  i s  
t h a t  we have neve r  been a b l e  t o  belong t o  a  union, 
You go on s t r i k e ,  you win t h e  s t r i k e  and then  you 
k i c k  u s  all out," 

I a s su red  him t h a t  t h i s  was n o t  t h a t  k i n d  of 
a union,  t h a t  t h e y  would be accepted  and they  
would be equal  as f a r  as any work o p p o r t u n i t i e s  
were concerned, And t h e y  all jo ined  t h e  union 
except  one, and he was n o t  from t h a t  gang - he 
was from t h e  gang a t  Luckenbach, He d i d  s t a y  i n  
du r ing  o u r  f i r s t  s t r i k e  and scabbed, of course,  
When t h e  s t r i k e  was over  he d i sappeared ,  bu t  with- 
i n  a very  s h o r t  t ime  a f t e r w a r d s  we had no dis-
c r i m i n a t i o n  a g a i n s t  anyone, even those  who scabbed; 
we had q u i t e  a few t h a t  jo ined  o u r  union, 

Ward: 	 I got  t h e  impress ion  t h a t  you s a i d  you worked i n  
t h e  b l ack  gang a t  one t ime  o r  another ,  Did you? 

Bul cke : 	 No - oh! L a t e r  on a f k e r  t h e  union was e s t a b l i s h e d ,  
t h e n  we had b lack  members i n  v a r i o u s  gangs bu t  n o t  
as a gang, We saw t o  i t  t h a t  t h e y  were n o t  con-
c e n t r a t e d  i n  one gang, 

T h i s  reminds m e  o f  ano the r  i n c i d e n t  when t h e  
employers s t a r t e d  t h e  d r i v e  t o  promote more 
product ion ,  I t  .used  t o  happen all t h e  t ime;  t h e y  
would go t o  t h e  h a t c h  where t h e  b l ack  gang worked 
and say,  lfYou b e t t e r  g e t  w i th  i t  - you1 r e  t e n  
t o n s  behind,tt Then t h e y  would c a l l  i n t o  ou r  gang 
o r  ano the r  gang and come t o  o u r  h a t c h  and say, 
"Hey, what1 s t h e  m a t t e r  w i th  you fe l lows?  You're 
t e n  t o n s  behind t h e  b l ack  gang down there ,"  Of 
course ,  we knew t h i s  and p a i d  no a t t e n t i o n  t o  i t ,  
T h i s  was one of t h e  harassment methods used  by 
t h e  employers, t r y i n g  t o  speed up t h e  work, 

Ward: 	 When you go t  through a  day ' s  work down t h e r e  you 
were p r e t t y  t i r e d  and I unders tand  you had some 
expe r i ences  on t h e  s t r e e t  c a r  r i d e  home, 



Bulcke: 	 Yes, t h a t  was one t h i n g  t h a t  was i n  a way r a t h e r  
p l e a s a n t ,  p a r t i c u l a r l y  when packing green hides,  
o r  shovel ing  bones - you would smell awful ly bad, 

Ward: 	 You s a i d  t h e r e  were maggots on t h e  bones, 

Bulcke: 	 The maggots, we used t o  say when we took t h e  
t a r p a u l i n  o f f  and r e  took t h e  ha tches  o f f ,  we 
used t o  say, tfWe don ' t  have t o  t a k e  t h e  beans 
ou t  because t h e  maggots w i l l  push t h e  beans r i g h t  
u p - you could see  them crawling a l l  over,  you
know, There were s h i p s  t h a t  came from Argentina 
i n  South America and t h e  bones were no t  very c l ean  
and n a t u r a l l y  a l o t  of meat l e f t  on them - t h e  
s t ench  w a s  something unbel ievable ,  

Ward: 	 What were t h e  bones used f o r ?  

Bul cke: 	 They were used f o r  f e r t i l i z e r  t o  some ex ten t ,  bu t  
mainly they  were processed and used i n  sugar  
f a c t o r i e s ,  

Ward: 	 Sugar f a c t o r i e s ?  

Bulcke: 	 Yeah, a f t e r  they were processed t h e  bones they_-  
made - - -	t h e r e  was a f a c t o r y  j u s t  o u t s i d e  of 
San Francisco  which w a s  c a l l e d  a bone f a c t o r y  
where they  would p rocess  t h e s e  bones i n t o  th ings ;  
they  would use  them f o r  r e f i n i n g  sugar. 

Ward: 	 I ' l l  be darned, 

Bulcke: 	 Yeah, I don' t  know t h e  p rocess  but  . . , 
Ward: 	 I c a n ' t  see  any connection between bones and 

sugar, 

Bulcke: 	 Yeah, I know it ,  The p l a n t  a l s o  would g ive  o f f  
an awful odor when you went on t h e  freeway; no 
freeway then,  now 101, 

Ward: 	 Then you'd g e t  on t h e  s t r e e t  car ,  

Bulcke: 	 I would g e t  on t h e  s t r e e t c a r  and I had been 
shovel ing  t h a t  s t u f f  o r  packing green h i d e s  o r  
whatever; naturally t h e  o d o r  was t e r r i b l e  and 



Bulcke: 	 w i t h i n  one block and a h a l f ,  I had t h e  whole end 
of t h e  s t r e e t  c a r  t o  myself.  . People would come 
i n ,  sit down, s n i f f  t h e  air and g e t  up and go 
i n  t h e  middle of  t h e  car ,  I had no t r o u b l e  
g e t t i n g  a s e a t ,  

Meeting Harry B r i d ~ e s  

Ward: 	 I g a t h e r  you met guys l i k e  Br idges  and so f o r t h  
around ( 2 8  - (29,  

Bulcke: 	 Yes, I met Br idges  - I canc t  p i n p o i n t  i t  - I t h i n k  
i t  was 1928, maybe ( 2 9  when I f i r s t  became ac-
quain ted  wi th  h i m ,  Because of h i s  heavy Aus t ra l -  
i a n  accent  he was known as The Limey, 

Ward: 	 Did they  c a l l  h i m  The Nose, then? 

Bulcke: 	 L a t e r  on, bu t  i n  t h o s e  days he was g e n e r a l l y  
known as The Limey) du r ing  lunch  hours .  o r  be fo re  
we went t o  work, he w a s  o f t e n  around, General ly ,  
we would be d i s c u s s i n g  t h e  problems t h a t  we had 
and what t o  do about them, so I go t  t o  know who 
Harry w a s  i n  t h o s e  days, 

Ward: 	 He worked i n  s t e e l  and you worked i n  gene ra l  
cargo? 

Bul cke: 	 Well, I worked s t e e l ,  too ,  you see,  He worked 
s t e a d i l y  on what they  c a l l e d  t h e  s t e e l  dock, bu t  
when they  needed a d d i t i o n a l  gangs, q u i t e  o f t e n  my 
gang boss  would g e t  a job t h e r e  and we would 
handle  s t e e l ,  They handled a g r e a t  dea l  of s t e e l  
when they  were b u i l d i n g  both br idges ,  I mean, all 
t h a t  s t e e l  w a s  shipped i n  from back Eas t  and we 
would have q u i t e  s t eady  work t h e r e  because of t h e  
amount of s t e e l  cargo coming i n ,  

Ward: 	 How d i d  Harry g e t  around on t h e  lunch  hour, wan-
d e r i n g  around from dock t o  dock and gang t o  gang? 

Bul cke: 	 No - no; t h e  movement of gangs, When t h e r e  w a s  
more than  one s h i p  i n  t h e r e  would be more gangs. 
Sometimes t h e r e  would be t h r e e  s h i p s  so,  you16 



Bulcke: 	 have maybe twenty gangs the re .  The conve r sa t ion  
would start and we would d i s c u s s  t h e s e  problems. 
Even tua l ly ,  of  course ,  a f t e r  we had t h e  c h a r t e r  
e s t a b l i s h e d  a n d .  t h e  r e a l  d r i v e  f o r  membership 
came on, t hen  i t  :was neces sa ry  t o  c a l l  a s t r i k e .  
Harry  was t h e  chairman of  t h e  s t r i k e  committee. 
He was n o t  t h e  p r e s i d e n t  of  t h e  l o c a l  a t  t h a t  
time. 

Ward: 	 I know. 

Bulcke: 	 He became t h a t  l a t e r .  

Ward: 	 A f t e r  Lee Holman g o t  exposed. 

Bulcke: 	 Holman and a l s o  a n o t h e r  f e l l o w  - h i s  name was 
Burg la r  ( B i l l )  Lewis, h i s  nickname. 

Ward: 	 Did t h a t  name have any union connect ion? 

Bulcke: 	 I unders tand  t h a t  came from t h e  f a c t  t h a t  t h i n g s  
used t o  s t i c k  t o  him q u i t e  a b i t  when he walked 
o f f  t h e  s h i p  a f t e r  working; t h a t  s o r t  o f  th ing.  

The Disappear ing  P i a n o s  

Ward: 	 He d i d n ' t  g e t  away wi th  t h e  grand p iano ,  though? 

Bul cke : 	 NO, no - n o t  him. 

Ward: 	 Do you t h i n k  t h a t  s t o r y  was t r u e ?  

Bul cke : 	 I know i t  was t rue .  I t o l d  you about  running  
a c r o s s  t h e  longshoreman who had one. Did I t e l l  
you t h a t  s to ry?  

Ward: 	 No. 
Bul cke: 	 Well many y e a r s  l a t e r  when I was p r e s i d e n t  of  

t h e  i o c a l  . . . o r  t o  back up. What happened was, 
a shipment of grand p i a n o s  came i n  t o  t h e  Lucken- 
bach dock from back aast,  going t o  Sherman Clay. 
I d o n t t  r e m e ~ b e rif I ever  d i d  know t h e  exac t  



Bulcke: 	 number, bu t  t h e r e  were q u i t e  a few of them, So, 
when t h e  day came t h a t  t h e y  had t o  t a k e  d e l i v e r y ,  
t h e r e  wasn ' t  a p iano  l e f t  on t h e  dock, 

So, t h e  son of Luckenbach came o u t  from New 
York and f i r e d  everybody--  all t h e  gangs t h a t  
worked - everybody bu t  two watchmen; one watch- 
man happened t o  be o f f  s i c k  a t  t h a t  t ime,  He go t  
r i d  of  all t h e  longshoremen, f i r e d  all t h e  gangs. 
Of course ,  he  had t o  h i r e  o t h e r s ,  Those were t h e  
days  t h a t  we had t h e  s t e a d y  gangs and b e f o r e  o u r  
union, 

Anyway, many y e a r s  l a t e r ,  d u r i n g  my term as 
p r e s i d e n t  of  t h e  l o c a l ,  I w a s  c a l l e d  one evening
by a longshoreman who I knew c a s u a l l y ;  I mean I 
knew who he  w a s ,  He l i v e d  on ly  a few b l o c k s  from 
where I was l i v i n g  and he was s i c k ,  He asked me 
could  I drop i n  and d i s c u s s  a m a t t e r  wi th  him and 
s e e  what we could  do, which I d id ,  We had a n i c e  
l i t t l e  d i s c u s s i o n  and I n o t i c e d  t h e r e  was a baby 
grand p iano  t h e r e ,  That  d i d n ' t  mean any th ipg  t o  
me; I mentioned t h a t  i t  w a s  a n i c e  piano,  

"Oh, yeah, my daughte r  p l a y s  it," he says,' 
Ifshe l i v e s  o n l y  two houses  from here ,  and If11 
c a l l  h e r  and have h e r  come ove r  and e n t e r t a i n  you 
f o r  a l i t t l e  b i t , "  She d id ;  she  p l ayed  t h e  p iano  
f o r  oh, maybe twenty minutes  o r  so  and l e f t ,  

So, a f t e r  a whi le  o u r  d i s c u s s i o n  w a s  o v e r  wi th ;  
he  was s a t i s f i e d  wi th  my in fo rma t ion ,  so  I g o t  up 
t o  go o u t  and s a i d ,  IIOh, by t h e  way, t e l l  your  
daugh te r  I a p p r e c i a t e d  h e r  coming o v e r  and p l a y i n g  
t h e  piano,I1 And. he  s a i d ,  "Oh, you may n o t  know 
this, b u t  t h i s  i s  one of Luckenbachls pianos," 
So, a t  l e a s t  one longshoreman g o t  one, t h a t  I know 
o f ,  

Ward: 	 Well, I must say,  J e r r y ,  t h a t  i s  oneupmanship on 
your  p a r t ,  I hea rd  i t  was o n l y  one piano,  

Bulcke: 	 No, no; i t  was a whole shipment, 

Ward: 	 A whole shipment! 



Bul cke: 	 Yeah! And I l o c a t e d  one of t h o s e  pianos,  many
y e a r s  l a t e r ,  It must have been i n  t h e  middle 
T h i r t i e s  somewheres, 

Ward: 	 Now, l e t r s  have one of t h e  funny s t o r i e s  you t e l l  
so  wel l ,  J e r r y ,  T h i s  was about a guy, as I re-
c a l l ,  who was very  g rega r ious ,  l i k e d  t o  run  around 
and t a l k  t o  everybody and he was c a l l e d  ttAsshole", 
Why was he c a l l e d  " A s ~ h o l e ' ~  7 

Bulcke: 	 The r eason  he was c a l l e d  ttAssholett was t h a t  when- 
e v e r  he was t a l k i n g  t o  anybody o r  about anything,  
every o t h e r  word was, "Oh, t h a t  asshole"  o r  this 
"assholett,  He go t  t o  be known as "assholett  be- 
cause of this h a b i t  o f  u s i n g  t h a t  word c o n s t a n t l y  
and under  any circumstance,  

Ward: ,He was s o r t  of half-bum and h a l f  e n t e r t a i n e r ,  
wasnc t he? 

Bulcke: 	 Yes, l i k e  many longshoremen he was a former sea-
man t h a t  s a i l e d  q u i t e  a number of  yea r s ,  knew a 
l o t  of people  on t h e  ships .  Whenever a s h i p  came 
i n  t h a t  he had s a i l e d  on o r  knew t h e  crew, you
wouldnrt  s e e  Asshole on t h e  job at  a l l ,  He would 
have a good t ime wi th  t h e  crew and when t h a t  s h i p
s a i l e d ,  he  would be back on t h e  job again,  He 
was q u i t e  an a l c o h o l i c ;  i n  o t h e r  words, he drank 
q u i t e  a b i t ,  We all knew him; he w a s  a good 
worker when he worked, That p a r t  was a l l  r i g h t ,  

Ward: 	 He was one of t h e  c h a r a c t e r s ?  

Bulcke: 	 Yes, one of t h e  r e a l  c h a r a c t e r s  down t h e r e ,  Anyway,
i t  t u r n e d  o u t  t h a t  f o r  some t ime we didnr t s e e  
him; everybody knew him p r e t t y  we l l  and i t  g o t  t o  
be q u i t e  a conver sa t iona l  p iece :  1 '1  wonder what 
happened t o  Asshole?tt Somebody observed t h a t  maybe 
they  would f i n d  him behind a warehouse some day, 

Ward: 	 Dead drunk? 

Bul cke: 	 Dead o r  dead drunk, One Saturday morning i t  was 
t h e  u s u a l  t h i n g  f o r  t h e  S a l v a t i o n  Army t o  show up 
at  t h e  co rne r  of  Mission and t h e  Embarcadero and 
a d d r e s s  t h e  people  and p l a y  t h e i r  music and ask 
f o r  aonat ions .  



Bul cke : 	 And t h i s  p a r t i c u l a r  morning I g o t  o f f  t h e  s t r e e t -
c a r  and went up t h e  Embarcadero toward Mission. 
I n o t i c e d  t h e r e  was a much l a r g e r  crowd s t a n d i n g  
around t h e  S a l v a t i o n  Army band t h a t  w a s  p l a y i n g  
and I wondered what was up. I n o t i c e d  t h a t  most 
of  them were longshoremen and normal ly  t hey  d i d n ' t  
s t a y  around t h e r e ,  s o  I s a i d  t o  one of t h e b n g -
shoremen I knew, ,'What's so  s p e c i a l  today? Such 
a crowd here." And he s a i d ,  "Well, l o o k  who's be-
h ind  t h e  b i g  drum." 

Sure  enough, all d r e s s e d  up i n  a S a l v a t i o n  
Army uniform, l o o k i n g  c l e a n  as could  be, h e a l t h y  
as cou ld  be,  was Asshole. They went through t h e i r  
performance and made t h e i r  speech and f i n a l l y  t hey  
c a l l e d  on Asshole t o  t heysay  ~ o m e t h i p g : ~ b e c a u s e  
r e a l i z e d  he was a w a t e r f r o n t  person  and he re  were 
w a t e r f r o n t  people.  So he goes  i n t o  h i s  speech, 
say ing ,  "Well, you f e l l o w s  know what a bum I was, 
I would d r i n k  up all my money, gamble and l a y  
around; now, l o o k  a t  me; I ' m  d r e s s e d  and c l e a n ,  I 
found Je sus , "  and on i n  t h a t  vein. Eventua l ly ,  
he  g e t s  t o  &e end of  t h i s  speech and says ,  "And 
a l l -J have t o  do i s  b e a t  t h i s  fuck ing  drum.11 

L a b o r ' s  L iqu id  Lunch 

Ward: 	 That '  s funny. - Now you' ve go t  a s t o r y  about  a 
midnight  lunch.  

Bulcke: Yes, t h e  Grace L i n e s  r a n  combination cargo and 
pas senge r  v e s s e l s  between New York and .San Franc isco .  
On t h e  a f t  end of  t h e  s h i p  t hey  had a s p e c i a l  
h a t c h  which was s m a l l e r  t han  a normal h a t c h  t h a t  
went down t o  a l o c k e r  which had been b u i l t  f o r  m a i l .  
However, t h i s  i s  where t hey  c . a r r i e d  t h e  l i q u o r ;  

. . t h e y  a lways brought i n  q u i t e  a b i t  of  l i q u o r  from 
t h e  E a s t  Cpast ,  New York. 

Ward: 	 They were p r e t t y  c a r e f u l  about  t h a t ?  

Bul cke : 	 The l o c k e r  had heavy s t e e l  doors  wi th  a cha in  and 
b i g  ~ a d l o c kon i t ,  The mate  would opec i t  up when 
we went down t h e r e  t o  b s c h a r g e  i t ;  we h a d  t o  have 



Bul cke: 	 s p e c i a l  g e a r  because i t  was a smal l  h a t c h  and 
t h e r e  were s p e c i a l  boa rds  made t o  f i t  t h e  narrow 
opening, So, t h e r e  w a s  no l i g h t  down t h e r e ,  We 
had what t h e y  c a l l e d  a c l u s t e r  l i g h t  t h a t  you 
plugged i n  -

Ward: 	 What l i g h t ?  

Bul cke: 	 C l u s t e r ,  yeah, t h a t  you p l u g  i n ,  We would p i l e  
t h e  dunnage - t h e  boards  which a r e  i n  between t h e  
c a s e s  - on one s i d e  and they  had a watchman down 
t h e r e  t o  s e e  t h a t  we d i d n ' t  g e t  away wi th  any 
l i q u o r ;  b u t  i n  moving t h e  dunnage t h e r e  were 
a lways two o r  t h r e e  c a s e s  of  l i q u o r  somehow o r  
o t h e r  g o t  moved w i t h  i t ,  

Ward: 	 You had broken t h e  case?  

Bul cke : 	 No, no, t h e  whole c a s e  was hidden i n  t h e  dunnage, 
I was s teward  o f  t h e  gang and I g o t  t o  know t h e  
mate p r e t t y  we l l  and he would always complain t o  
me, how come t h e  h a t c h  had n o t  'been opened s i n c e  
t h e y  l e f t  New York and they  stil l  were s h o r t  

' two  o r  t h r e e  cases ,  I would t e l l  him, ffLook, you 
s topped  o f f  i n  Los Angeles, d idnt  t you?" ffYes, b u t  
we d i d n ' t  open t h a t  ha t cho f f  lfWel1, d o n t t  b o t h e r  
me wi th  your  probleman 

What happened - and t h e y  should  have known -
t h e  h a t c h  ahead o f  t h a t  l i t t l e  m a i l  l o c k e r  was 
always l o a d e d  i n  Los Angeles w i t h  f resh :  f r u i t  and 
i t  had an air c o n d i t i o n i n g  system, A m a n  had t o  
go down wi th  t h e  crew through a manhole t h a t  went 
th rough  t h i s  l i t t l e  l o c k e r  and through a n o t h e r  
opening i n  o r d e r  t o  s e r v i c e  t h i s  air c o n d i t i o n e r ,  
We neve r  p u t  any cargo on t h a t  end o f  t h e  h a t c h  
because t h a t  was saved f o r  Los  Angeles t o  p u t  i n  
f r e s h  oranges ,  f r u i t  and s t u f f  l i k e  t h a t ,  

So, anyway, t h i s  p a r t i c u l a r  t ime,  we had g o t t e n  
h o l d  of a c a s e  of Ron Rico Rum, as I remember, a 
c a s e  of Queen's Banquet Sco tch  and some o t h e r  
s t u f f ;  t h e r e  were t h r e e  cases ,  Oh, by t h e  way, 
t h e  n e x t  n i g h t  - we worked n i g h t s  t hen  - one of  
o u r  men would go down through t h e  manhole and 
b r i n g  up t h e  l i q u o r .  



Bul cke : 	 Anyway, t h i s  p a r t i c u l a r  time t h e r e  w a s  a t r a n s f e r  
s h i p  - a McCormack came alongside t o  p ick  up some 
cargo t h a t  we had discharged; t h e r e  were kegs  of 
beer  t o  be loaded on t h a t  McCormack sh ip ,  and 
als o  we were load ing  C a l i f o r n i a  brandy, which 
came i n  50 g a l l o n  b a r r e l s ,  

So, t h e  gang on t h e  dock s e n t  i n  a couple of 
l i t t l e  metal  c o n t a i n e r s  of beer;  they he ld  about 
t e n  ga l lons ,  I guess, You've seen them, Also, 
of course,  we tapped one of t h e  b a r r e l s  of brandy, 
So, here  we had an a r r a y  of brandy, scotch,  
whiskey, beer  and -

Ward: 	 Rum ! 

Bul cke: 	 - and rum, The r u l e  w a s  you took away two l o a d s  
between d r i n k s  and then h2d a drink,  t o  see  t h a t  
we d i d n ' t  g e t  drunk, 

Well, one of our  members got  an i d e a  and he 
went up t o  t h e  f i r s t  c l a s s  stewards'  department
and s a i d ,  "How viould you guys l i k e  some brandy?" 
Would they! So, we f i l l e d  every k e t t l e  they  had 
i n  t h e  k i t c h e n  with brandy, I n  t u r n  they gave 
u s  p l a t t e r s  f u l l  of fancy cold cuts, mostly f o r  
f i r s t  c l a s s  passengers,  It w a s  n i g h t  time and 
nobody pa id  a t t e n t i o n ,  you know, 

Two o r  our  guys i n  t h e  gang borrowed white  
j a c k e t s  and c h e f ' s  h a t s  and we b u i l t  s o r t  of a 
t a b l e  out  of cases  of canned goods, covered i t  
w i t h  wrapping paper and we s e t  up a n i c e  lunch 
counter  t h e r e ,  with all t h e s e  cold  c u t s  and all 
t h e s e  dr inks ,  Two guys weren' t  working a t  all; 
they  were being bar tenders ,  My god, they  s e n t  
p l e n t y  of s t u f f  down the re ,  

Ward: 	 No cav ia r?  

Bul cke: 	 No caviar ,  Of course,  t h e  r e s t  of t h e  gangs t h a t  
worked t h a t  s h i p  knew about t h i s ,  and two by two 
t h e  men would come down, Came midnight lunch 
t ime and we d i d n ' t  go t o  lunch; we had all t h e  
lunch we wanted, 



Bulcke: 

. 

Ward: 

Bul cke : 

About two o 'c lock  i n  t h e  morning - t h e r e  was a 
l o n g  l a d d e r  from t h e  t o p  deck c l e a r  down t o  t h e  
lower hold  - all of a sudden my p a r t n e r  says,
"Look, who's coming down t h e  ladder ,"  I t  was 
A r t  Holdstein,  t h e  ch ie f  super in tendent  of t h e  
Grace Lines ,  

I n  all t h e  y e a r s  t h a t  I worked t h e r e  I never 
saw A r t  go on a sh ip ,  bu t  f o r  some reason  he re  he 
came down t h e  l a d d e r  backward, Somebody s a i d ,  
"What t h e  h e l l  you going t o  do?" And someone 
e l s e  s a i d ,  "What t h e  heck can you?" You couldn ' t  
s e e  t h i s  from t h e  dock; we were underneath,  on 
t h e  ass end, and from t h e  top  deck you couldn ' t  
s e e  our  banquet set-up, No way we could h ide  i t ,  
you know, 

So, A r t  came down,he tu rned  around and he s a w  
our  l i t t l e  pa r ty ,  He s a i d ,  "Son of a b i t c h ,  I ' v e  
never  seen anyth ing  l i k e  t h i s  i n  my l i f e , ( t  I 
knew him p r e t t y  wel l ,  and I sa id ,  f l A r t ,  you never  
can t e l l ;  have one on t h e  house,(1 I f igu red ,  wel l ,  
we might as wel l  b l u f f  i t  out ,  

He s a i d ,  "Well, you know, I t h i n k  I w i l l , f f  So 
he s tepped up t o  t h e  bar ,  I knew he l i k e d  scotch,  
so I s a i d  t o  t h e  bar tender ,  '(Give him a double 
scotch,((  He dumped i t  down, looked around and 
s a i d ,  "I'll have another  one, 11 

So we poured another  one; he chased t h a t  down, 
walked up t o  t h e  l a d d e r  and sa id ,  ('If any of  you 
sons-of-bi tches  sayb you saw me down here,  you're 
a bunch of liars, Good night,( '  And up t h e  l a d d e r  
he went, 

But some y e a r s  l a t e r ,  when I was p r e s i d e n t ,
t h e r e  was some beef on t h e  Grace Lines ,  I don ' t  
remember t h e  d e t a i l s ,  So, I went down t o  t h e  dock 
and s e t t l e d  t h e  darn th ing ,  
t o g e t h e r  - - - We were walking o u t  

T h i s  was t h e  same guy? 
/
Oh yeah, Holstein.  We were walking down and we 

to nis o f f i c egot at t h e  head of the dock. He 
said, llOh, J e r r y ,  come ic an?. have a cirirk.f1 



Bulcke: 	 I s a i d ,  "Sure, A r t , "  - he reaches  back i n t o  his 
desk and b r i n g s  o u t  a b o t t l e  of  Queenls Banquet 
scotch.  I looked a t  i t  and I s a i d ,  ffDid you g e t  
i t  o u t  of t h e  same case?" And he sa id ,  "Damn you, 
you haven? t f o r g o t t e n  t h a t ,  have you?" I s a i d ,  
it~o.11 So, we both  laughed. 

Ward: 	 He must have been q u i t e  except ional .  

Bulcke: 	 He was. Held been a mate, I th ink ,  a t  one t ime; 
anyway, he had s a i l e d ,  and then  had been with t h e  
Grace L i n e s  f o r  years ,  

When we f i r s t  s t a r t e d  o rgan iz ing  our  union. and 
we wore our  union bu t ton  an a s s i s t a n t  t o  him t o l d  
u s  one day, "Look, I d o n f t  want you guys t o  wear 
any union but tonet t  So we all s t ayed  ou t ;  t h e  guy 
with t h e  w h i s t l e  blew, and we d i d n l t  go i n ,  We 
decided t o  h e l l  with t h i s ,  

A r t  came o u t  and s a i d ,  I'Whatls t h e  trouble?tt 
And we t o l d  him, so-and-so t o l d  u s  we c o u l d n t t  
work h e r e  with our  union b u t t o n s  on, "Oh, he 
don, t know from nothing,  go on t o  workert He wasnr t 
a bad guy, 

On The S e r i o u s  S i d e  

Ward: 	 Good guy, Here comes a long FDR, t h e  Nat ional  
Labor R e l a t i o n s  Act and i t s  famous Sec t ion  ?(a)  
and n a t u r a l l y ,  you guys on t h e  wa te r f ron t  r e a d  
about i t  and t a l k e d  about it, 

Bulcke: 	 Correc t ,  . '  

Ward: 	 Then what? 

Bul cke: 	 Well, under t h e  Sec t ion  ?(A) i t  s a i d  t h a t  workers 
could o rgan ize  unions  of t h e i r  own choosing, T h i s  
immediately opened t h e  eyes  of a number of ou r  
guys. And they  met and decided t o  apply f o r  a 
c h a r t e r  from t h e  ILA, which i s  t h e  Longshore union 
s t i l l  ir, e x i s t e n c e  i n  the Gulf and t h e  E a s t  C o a s t  



Bul cke: 	 and had been previous ly  t h e  union on t h e  West 
coas t ,  A s  a mat t e r  of  f a c t ,  one p o r t  maintained 
t h e i r  connection, and t h a t  was Tacoma, Washington, 
They always were i n  t h e  ILA even i n  t h e  t ime t h a t  
we were a company union, L a t e r  an ILWU c h a r t e r  
was granted  t o  Tacoma, 

Ward: 	 And you were Local 38-79 again,  

Bul cke : 	 Yeah, t h a t f s r i g h t ,  38-79 was t h e  number: 38 
was t h e  West Coast d i s t r i c t  and 79 was t h e  l o c a l  
number, A s  soon as t h a t  was known, t h r e e  o r  four  
guys, I am n o t  su re  anymore, went around s ign ing  
up longshoremen t o  jo in  t h e  ILA, 

Ward: 	 There was no b i g  rush  a t  f i r s t ,  was t h e r e ?  

Bulcke: 	 Well, t h e r e  were q u i t e  a few who signed up i n  a 
hurry, Then i t  seemed t o  k ind  of slow down, but  
t h e  o r g a n i z e r s  were cons tan t ly  a t  work, They
would meet guys, g e t  t h e r e  dur ing  t h e  lunch hour 
when t h e  guys were ou t s ide ,  o r  before  we went t o  
work i n  t h e  morning, and asked them t o  jo in  t h e  
union; charged f i f t y  c e n t s  t o  join,  A s  soon as 
I knew t h a t  t h e  c h a r t e r  w a s  g ranted  I s igned up 
i n  t h e  union, but  I d i d n ' t  g e t  i n i t i a t e d  r i g h t  
away, Although I was signed up, I was not  tech-
n i c a l l y  a member of t h e  union u n t i l  I was i n i t i a t e d  
and rece ived  my book, A s  I remember, i t  took may- 
be almost a couple of months before  I could g e t  t o  
a meeting and g e t  i n i t i a t e d ,  

Ward: 	 You were working a l o t  n i g h t s ,  i s n f t  t h a t  t h e  
reason? 

Bulcke: 	 I worked a l o t  of n i g h t s ,  so when they had t h e  
unio'n meeting 'I couldnf t g e t  the re ,  Anyway, my
book shows t h a t  I was i n i t i a t e d  even before  
Bridges, I t  d o e s n f t  prove anything, The gangs 
I was working with, some of them had s igned up, 
One of them p a r t i c u l a r l y  who signed up was by t h e  
name of B i l l  Marlow, The reason I mention h i m ,  
he was t h e  man who designed and f i g u r e d  ou t  our  
p lug  board system.,- t h e  system by which t h e  men 
a r e  d i spa tched .  Each man h a s  s r e g i s t e r e d  number 
and he i s  @ven z m e t d  p l u g  wi th  a number on i t ,  



Bul cke: You p u t  i t  i n  t h e  ca tegory  you work i n  i n  a board 
t h a t  h a s  ho le s ;  t h e  d i s p a t c h e r  c a l l s  your  number 
as he goes  down t h e  board p u l l i n g  p lugs ,  

Ward: That system came a f t e r  t h e  shape-up, 

Bul cke: Oh, yes ,  t h i s  w a s  a f t e r  t h e  shape-up and a f t e r  
we went back t o  work, bu t  b e f o r e  we won t h e  
s t r i k e ,  We went on s t r i k e  on May t h e  9 t h  and . . . 

Ward: Bloody Thursday occur red  on J u l y  5th.  

Bul cke: On J u l y  31st, we went back t o  work under t h e  o l d  
cond i t ions ,  bu t  by t h a t  t ime  we had c o n t r o l  of  t h e  
wa te r f ron t ,  Oh, one of  t h e  f i r s t  t h i n g s  w e  
adopted was no more p rospec t ing ,  as we c a l l e d  i t  -
guys running  around from dock t o  dock; we r e q u i r e d
they  go t o  t h e  union h a l l ,  and t h a t ,  s where we 
e s t a b l i s h e d  t h e  p l u g  board, 

Ward: Before  all t h i s  happened, a f t e r  you go t  t h e  
c h a r t e r  and you were o r g a n i z i n g  and so f o r t h ,  
t h e r e  was an i n c i d e n t  a t  Matson, w a s n f t  t h e r e ?  
That  broke t h e  dam and everybody came r u s h i n g  - - ? 

Bul cke: Yes; one of t h e  f i r s t  t h i n g s  we d i d  was e s t a b l d s h  
gang s tewards ,  and t h e  Matson i n c i d e n t  w a s  where 
one of  o u r  gang s tewards  go t  f i r e d  f o r  i n s i s t i n g  
on c e r t a i n  s a f e t y  cond i t ions ,  The whole bunch 
walked o u t  and we won t h a t ;  t hey  had t o  p u t  o u r  
s teward back t o  work again,  That  was one of t h e  
f i r s t  t e s t s  o f  t h e  union s t r e n g t h  a g a i n s t  t h e  
bosses. 

Ward: A t  t hp t  t ime  t h e  NLRB Board i n  San F ranc i sco  was 
nei? ad f r i l l  o f  young a t t o r n e y s  who were all 
f i r e d  up, so  you g o t  a good d e c i s i o n  and a quick
dec i s ion ,  compared t o  now? 

Bul cke : That ,  s r i g h t .  

Ward: J u s t  t o  make s u r e ,  t h e  f i r s t  t h i n g  you d i d  on t h e  
docks as a new union was t o  e s t a b l i s h  t h e  s teward 
system, and you were one of t h e  f i r s t  s tewards? 



Bulcke: 	 That t  s r i g h t ;  I was one of  t h e  f i r s t  s tewards  
and I was e l e c t e d  by t h e  gang i t s e l f ,  

( I n t e r v i e w  	3: 1 4  J u l y ,  1983) 

Family L i f e  

Ward: 	 J e r r y ,  l e t ' s  go i n t o  your p e r s o n a l  l i f e  a  l i t t l e  
more now, A t  t h i s  t ime you were g e t t i n g  soFe 
p l a c e  on t h e  docks; you were a l r e a d y  a s teward 
i n  t h e  r eborn  union and t h i n g s  were k i n d  of  i n -  
t e r e s t i n g ,  bu t  what was going on at  home? L e t t s  
go back a moment, You marr ied  a  neighbor  of your  
f ami ly  i n  Holland, didnt  t you? 

Bulcke: 	 No, I met my wife  i n  D e t r o i t ,  Her g r a n d f a t h e r  
and grandmother had come ove r  from Belgium, and 
one of  t h e  daugh te r s  w a s  t h e  mother of  my wife,  
My wife  was born i n  D e t r o i t  and we got  mar r i ed  
i n  1923, My mo.ther-in-law had bought some 
p r o p e r t y  on Lake St ,  C l a i r  - - -

Ward: 	 Oh, you had a s t o r e  t h a t  you ran,? 

Bulcke: 	 I dec ided  t o  g e t  o u t  o f  t h a t  b u s i n e s s  and s o l d  
i t ,  

Ward: 	 L e t '  s p i c k  up from t h e r e  a b u t  t h e  a r r i v a l  of 
your fami ly  i n  San F ranc i sco  -

Bulcke: 	 I s t a r t e d  t o  work on t h e  w a t e r f r o n t  i n  A p r i l  o f  
1925 and s t a y e d  on t h e  wa te r f ron t ,  A t  f i r s t  I 
l i v e d  i n  Daly Ci ty;  l a t e r  on I l i v e d  i n  d i f f e r e n t  
p l a c e s  i n  t h e  Ci ty ,  Many y e a r s  l a t e r  Marie and I 
were divorced,  a l though I k e p t  c l o s e  c o n t a c t  w i th  
my former w i f e  and my daughter,  She i s  now 59 
y e a r s  o ld ,  

Ward: 	 What's h e r  name? 

buicke: 	 Iier name i s  Muriel  and she mar r i ed  a man from 



Bul cke: 	 Connec t icu t  and moved t o  Connec t icu t  f o r  s e v e r a l  
yea r s ,  When h e r  husband r e t i r e d  t h e y  moved t o  
Arizona t o  a p l a c e  c a l l e d  Payson about  90 m i l e s  
n o r t h e a s t  o f  Phoenix, I v i s i t e d  h e r  on my l as t  
b i r t h d a y ,  my 81st, We were t o g e t h e r  t h e r e  f o r  
about t e n  days; we keep i n  c l o s e  c o n t a c t ,  

I was mar r i ed  a g a i n  t o  a woman from t h e  s t a t e  
o f  Washington by t h e  name of  Hi lda ,  She had been 
marr ied  b e f o r e  and had a daughter ,  A f t e r  w e  had 
been mar r i ed  a few y e a r s  H i l d a  became q u i t e  ill 
and pas sed  away, So, I k e p t  c l o s e  c o n t a c t  wi th  
t h e  daughte r  who i s  a l s o  mar r i ed  and had two 
daughters ,  

Ward: 	 You were t h e  s t e p f a t h e r ?  

Bulcke: 	 I w a s  t h e  s t e p f a t h e r ,  I s e e  one o f  t h e  daugh te r s  
q u i t e  o f t e n  who i s  now mar r i ed  t o o  and h a s  two 
c h i l d r e n  and l i v e s  i n  San Franc isco ,  The o t h e r  
daughte r  i s  mar r i ed  bu t  she  moved t o  Oregon, so  
we s e e  h e r  on ly  o c c a s i o n a l l y ,  I f o r g o t  t o  mention 
t h a t  a f t e r  my own daughte r  was s i x t e e n  y e a r s  o ld ,  
I became t h e  f a t h e r  o f  a son  by t h e  name of  Ken- 
ne th ,  

Ward: 	 Oh, yes ,  I remember, 

Bul cke: 	 I n  o t h e r  words, I had two c h i l d r e n  w i t h  my f i r s t  
wife ,  Kenneth i s  marr ied ,  

Ward: 	 Then he1 s somewhere i n  t h e  e a r l y  f o r t i e s .  

Bulcke: 	 He was born i n  1940 so  h e c s  43, H e  mar r i ed  and 
had a son who i s  now 20, I b e l i e v e ,  Kenneth was 
d ivo rced  and h a s  mar r i eh  a g a i n  and h a s  t h r e e  
more c h i l d r e n  so  h e  h a s  f o u r  a l l  t o l d ,  He l i v e s  
i n  a p l a c e  c a l l e d  Windsor, n e a r  Santa  Rosa, He 
i s  i n  t h e  automobi le  r e p a i r  bus ines s ;  t h a t  i s  t h e  
f ami ly  we have a t  t h e  p r e s e n t  t ime,  

L a t e r  on, I mar r i ed  my p r e s e n t  w i f e  b e t t e r  
known as ffRustylf ,  though h e r  name i s  Helen, She 
had been mar r i ed  b e f o r e  and h a s  one son by t h e  
name of Eruce who i s  a t e a c h e r  and l i v e s  i n  A l a -
meda. He was marrie?. an2 cEvorced and had a 



Bul cke: 	 daughter whom I j u s t  in t roduced you to ;  she i s  
our  grand-daughter, Bruce has  remarried, but  
no f u r t h e r  chi ldren ,  

Ward: 	 You're a man of family as well  as p a r t s ,  How do 
you keep them all s t r a i g h t ?  

Bul cke : 	 Well, sometimes i t  g e t s  confusing but I must say 
t h a t  we keep c lose  contac t  with one another  and 
we g e t  a long very n ice ly ,  

Left ism I n  The Family 

Ward: 	 Your p o l i t i c s ,  I ga ther ,  were somewhat t o  t h e  
l e f t  from childhood on up, How do all these  
ch i l d r en  and grandchildren and s t epch i ld ren  look 
a t  you N i t i c a l l y ?  

Bulcke: 	 Well, I can say t h a t  they  t h ink  I ' m  genera l ly
c o r r e c t  i n  my p o s i t i o n s  p o l i t i c a l l y ,  I must say 
t h a t  my own son i s  no t  - po l i t i c a l l y  a c t i v e  but  my 
stepson,  Bruce, i s  very p o l i t i c a l l y  a c t i v e  and 
p r e t t y  much agrees  with t h e  p o s i t i o n s  t h a t  I take;  
we understand one another  very well, My daughter 
i s  not  p o l i t i c a l l y  a c t i ve ,  n e i t h e r  i s  her  husband, 
so well  . . ., 

Ward: 	 They put  up with you? 

Bul cke: 	 They l i s t e n  t o  me and genera l ly  we reach agree- 
ment, but  they a r e  no t  as p o l i t i c a l l y  a c t i v e  as 
I am, But we ge t  a long p r e t t y  well  t h a t  way, 

Ward: 	 Well, t h a t  sounds r a t h e r  normal - with some you 
j u s t  agree  t o  ge t  along, and then  you win a few, 
Anything e l s e  you want t o  t e l l  about your family 
l i f e 3  

Bul cke : 	 No, I don' t  th ink  t h e r e  i s  much more except t h a t  
t h e r e  was, as i s  well-known, a b i g  demonstration 
a t  t h e  Lawrence Livermore Laboratory, Over a 
thousand men and women were a r r e s t e d  f o r  demon- 
s t r a t i n g ,  and one o f  them that a r r e s t e d  is my 



Bul cke: 	 wife,  Rusty, She j u s t  spent  t e n  days i n  ja i l  
a long wi th  many o t h e r s ;  t h e r e  were some 480 
women t h a t  were a r r e s t e d  and t h e y  spent  t e n  days
and some more than  t h a t ,  i n  t h e  Santa  Rita ja i l ,  

It was a demonstration t h a t  h a s  been w r i t t e n  
up i n  t h e  pape r s  q u i t e  a b i t ,  A l l  t h a t  watched 
i t  f e e l  t h a t  t h e  demonstrators  d i d  a tremendous 
t h i n g  and r e a l l y  brought t o  p u b l i c  a t t e n t i o n  what 
i s  going on the re ,  

The purpose of t h e  demonstration i s  sometimes 
misunderstood, They were demonstrat ing no t  t o  
c l o s e  t h e  l a b  but  t o  have t h e  l a b  brought back -
converted - t o  what i t  was o r i g i n a l l y  e s t a b l i s h e d  
fo r ,  A s  a m a t t e r  of f a c t ,  I saw i n  t h e  paper  
t h e  o t h e r  day, o r  I heard i t  on t h e  TV o r  r ad io ,  
t h a t  M r s .  Lawrence, widow of  Dr .  E rnes t  0, 
Lawrence, i s  now asking  t h a t  h e r  husband's name 
be removed from t h a t  l a b o r a t o r y  because i t  was 
n o t  his i n t e n t i o n  t h a t  t h e  l a b  should be used 
f o r  t h e  purpose of developing atomic weapons, as 
they  a r e  now doing, 

Ward: 	 Do you f e e l  t h a t  t h e  demonstration i n  which Rusty 
took a p a r t  may have prompted Ernes t  Lawrence's 
widow t o  t a k e  such a s tand? 

Bulcke: 	 I t h i n k  so; a t  l e a s t  I l i k e  t o  b e l i e v e  t h a t  i t  i s  
t r u e ,  

Ward: 	 I would too,  Because what she d i d  was r e a l l y
q u i t e  dramatic;  t h e  whole t h i n g  was r e a l l y  some-
th ing ,  

Bul cke: 	 There were t h r e e  more wives of r e t i r e d  long- 
shoremen, p l u s  s e v e r a l  r e t i r e d  longshoremen them- 
s e l v e s  who a l s o  p a r t i c i p a t e d  i n  this demonstration 
and were a r r e s t e d ,  And t h e  ILWU Pensioners ,  Club 
t o  which I belong j u s t  had a meeting yes terday  
where t h i s  whole t h i n g  w a s  d iscussed,  The f e e l i n g  
of t h e  members was t h a t  i t  was a tremendous t h i n g  
t o  have this demonstration and they  were c e r t a i n l y  
proud of t h e  f a c t  t h a t  some of  t h e i r  members had 
p a r t i c i p a t e d  and had spent  time i n  Santa  Rita, 



Ward: 	 Wonderful! Is t h a t  about all you wish t o  say on 
personal  mat ters2  

Bul cke : 	 I t h i n k  t h a t  covers  i t  p r e t t y  well,  

Clashes Within t h e  ILWU 

Ward: 	 Now, l e t l s  go back t o  t h e  ILWU, Here you a r e  
e s t a b l i s h i n g  a new union, and t h e r e  must have been 
c o n f l i c t s  and idealogcies; can you desc r ibe  them? 

Bulcke: 	 Well, a f t e r  our  union was e s t a b l i s h e d  we had been 
a b l e  t o  g e t  an agreement through t h e  a r b i t r a t i o n  
procedure where we p r a c t i c a l l y  got  all of t h e  
demands f o r  which we went on s t r i k e ;  i t  n a t u r a l l y  
took some t ime before  t h i n g s  r an  smoothly, We had 
a l o t  of problems with t h e  employers who were s t i l l  
a t tempt ing  t o  t a k e  away some of t h e  cond i t ions  we 
had been a b l e  t o  e s t a b l i s h  - - -

Ward: 	 To..put it; mildly? 

Bul cke : 	 Yes. Well, I ' l l  say t h e r e  were a l o t  of  - I wonft  
say  disagreements,  bu t  a l o t  of debates  as t.o what 
way would be t h e  best . .  

Ward: 	 Weren't t h e r e  some who thought i n  t h e  way of old-
l i n e  AFL unionism? 

Bul cke: 	 Yes, and a f t e r  all we were cha r t e red  by t h e  ILA 
and they  a r e  an o ld - l ine  union, One major prob- 
lem was t h a t  t h e  sea - fa r ing  unions  had n o t  
r ece ived  as good cond i t ions  as we had dur ing  t h e  
134 s t r i k e ,  

Ward: 	 T h a t ' s  why t h e  '36 s t r i k e  took p lace?  

Bulcke: 	 T h a t ' s  t h e  reason t h e  '36 s t r i k e  took p lace ,  and 
i t  was p r i m a r i l y  t h e  sea-far ing unions t h a t  were 
heading i t  up. Now p r i o r  t o  t h e  1934 s t r i k e  t h e  
p r e s i d e n t  of t h e  ILA - - -

Wzr6.: 	 Joe  Ryan? 



Bul cke: 	 Joe  Ryan, he came ou t  t o  San Francisco and made 
a back-door agreement w i t h  t h e  employers, I n  
1936 when t h a t  s t r i k e  was over,  t h e  seamen were 
success fu l  i n  c o r r e c t i n g  a l o t  of t h e  t h i n g s  
t h a t  were wrong and got  a p r e t t y  decent agree- 
ment, Then we he ld  our  b i e n n i a l  convention i n  
S e a t t l e ,  Washington, That was i n  1937 a f t e r  t h e  
'36 s t r i k e  was s e t t l e d .  During t h a t  convention 
we decided t h a t  t h e  ILA l e a d e r s h i p  and i t s  
a c t i o n s  were n o t  t h e  k ind  of p o l i c i e s  we l i k e d  
t o  fol low and t h e  convention voted t o  d i s a f f i -
l i a t e  from t h e  ILA; we became independent, 

Ward: 	 L e t ' s  d i s c u s s  t h e  i n t r i c a c i e s  of t h a t  vote;  i t  
was no t  unanimous, was it? 

Bulcke: 	 Well, t h e  vote  i n  t h e  convention, as I r e c a l l ,  
was not  unanimous, 

Ward: 	 But i t  was p r e t t y  good, wasn' t it? 

Bulcke: 	 Oh, yes, I don' t  r e c a l l  t h e  exact  amount, but  
i t  was an overwhelming vote. I know t h a t  t h r e e  
of t h e  l o c a l s  i n  t h e  Northwest - Tacoma, P o r t  
Los Angeles, and some o t h e r  s m a l l  l o c a l  - - -

Ward: 	 Evere t t ?  

Bulcke: 	 No, no t  Evere t t .  

Ward: 	 Anacortes? 

Bulcke: 	 Anacortes, yes, And a l s o  a l o c a l  i n  Alaska voted 
t o  s t a y  ILA, so they  d i d  not  any longer  belong 
i n  our  organiza t ion ,  Many y e a r s  l a t e r ,  except
f o r  t h e  Alaska l o c a l ,  they  all came i n t o  t h e  
ILWU* 

Ward: 	 What happened? The Alaska l o c a l  didn' t come 
i n ?  

Bulcke: 	 I c a n ' t  remember, but  we were independent f o r  
a l i t t l e  while; but John L, Lewis s t a r t e d  t h e  
C I O  and we decided t h a t  w a s  wher'e we belonged 
and we joined t h e  C I O ,  



Ward: John L. Lewis s t a r t e d  what was known as t h e  
Committee f o r  I n d u s t r i a l  Organ iza t ion  i n  '35, 
bu t  i t  d i d n ' t  become a formal o r g a n i z a t i o n  -
a Congress o f  I n d u s t r i a l  Organiza t ion ,  u n t i l
'380 

Bulcke: T h a t ' s  r i g h t ,  

Ward: 	 So, i n  '37 when you d i s a f f i l i a t e d ,  t h e r e  was 
a h i a t u s  t h e r e ,  

Bulcke: 	 Righ t ,  f o r  a l i t t l e  whi le ,  bu t  it w a s  s h o r t l y  
a f t e r w a r d s  t h a t  we a p p l i e d  f o r  a c h a r t e r ,  and 
jo ined  t h e  C I O ,  T h a t ' s  r i g h t ,  

Ward: 	 Now, i n  all t h e  goings-on, t h e  disenchantment 
o f  t h e  longshoremen w i t h  t h e  ILA and all t h o s e  
t h i n g s ,  t h e y  d i d  n o t  j u s t  occu r  p l e a s a n t l y  o r  
e a s i l y ;  t h e r e  must have been a l o t  of  d i scus-
s i o n  and argument go ing  on, 

Which i d e o l o g i e s  o f  t h e  r i g h t  and t h e  l e f t  
p l ayed  a p a r t ?  I unders tand  t h a t  F r e d  West had 
something t o  do wi th  t h e  break-away from t h e  
company un ions ,  way back i n  t h e  beginning,  and he 
had some odd ideo logy;  and t h e r e  were o t h e r  
t h i n g s  of t h a t  n a t u r e  - t h e  Communists and 
Holman and '1Burglar Bil l ' !  and all t h a t ,  How 
d i d  t h e s e  d i f f e r e n c e s  e x p r e s s  themselves?  

Bulcke: Well, a f t e r  we jo ined  t h e  C I O  a movement s t a r t e d, 

h e r e  i n  San F r a n c i s c o  among t h e  longshoremen, 
Holman, who had been thrown o u t  as p r e s i d e n t  o f  
t h e  l o c a l  e a r l i e r ,  and a few o t h e r  d i s s i d e n t s  
s t a r t e d  a new ILA l o c a l ,  They took ove r  t h e  o l d  
113 S t u a r t  S t r e e t  p l a c e  which had been ou r  head- 
q u a r t e r s  f o r  y e a r s ;  t h a t '  s where t h e y  e s t a b l i s h -  
ed themselves ,  

Of cou r se  i n  o u r  membership meet ings  t h e r e  
would be heavy and h o t  d e b a t e s  go ing  on as t o  
t h e  m e r i t s  o f  o u r  p r e s e n t  a f f i l i a t i o n  and t h e  
a f f i l i a t i o n  w i t h  t h e  ILA. N a t u r a l l y ,  t h e r e  
w a s  q u i t e  a b i t  o f  r e d - b a i t i n g  going on. I n  
o t h e r  words, t h e  Communists were accused of 
hav ing  manoeuvred all this and t h e r e  would be 
many deba tes ,  



Bulcke: 	 Some of ou r  members were q u i t e  outspoken i n  
saying,  f lyes , f f  t h e y  belonged t o  t h e  Communist 
P a r t y ,  bu t  t h a t  d i d n ' t  have anyth ing  t o  do wi th  
t h e  program o r  t h e  p o l i c i e s  of o u r  union, 
General ly ,  t h e y  were wel l -accepted;  t h e s e  men 
would be q u i t e  outspoken as t o  t h e i r  suppor t  f o r  
t h e  p r e s e n t  o rgan iza t ion ,  t h a t  is', t h e  C I O  
o rgan iza t ion ,  However, o u r  meet ings  were q u i t e
rambunct ious  many t imes,  

Ward: 	 Rambunctious? 

Bulcke: 	 Well, once o r  tw ice  I t v e  seen  guys g e t  i n t o  
f i s t i c u f f s  a f t e r  t h e  meeting,  bu t  never  du r ing
t h e  meeting, I t  took some t ime,  bu t  e v e n t u a l l y  
t h e  Holman o r g a n i z a t i o n  d i e d  on t h e  vine,  you 
might say. They were neve r  a b l e  t o  convince 
any number of o u r  members t h a t  t h e i r  program w a s  
a b e t t e r  one, N a t u r a l l y  t h e  l o c a l  and coast-  
wise  l o c a l s  main ta ined  u n i t y  and s t u c k  together ' ,  

Then came t h e  trial of Bro the r  Br idges  which 
was we l l  p u b l i c i z e d ;  of course ,  he e v e n t u a l l y  
won out ,  

I n  1937 Local  1 0  decided t h a t  a l though up t o  
t h a t  t ime  we had had a p r e s i d e n t ,  a non-paid 
v i ce -p res iden t ,  two b u s i n e s s  agents ,  s e c r e t a r y -
t r e a s u r e r  and secre ta ry ,  i t  was necessa ry  t o  
have a f u l l - t i m e  v i c e p r e s i d e n t ,  The v ice-  
p r e s i d e n t  up t o  t h a t  t ime  would o n l y  s e r v e  i f  
t h e  p r e s i d e n t  w a s  absen t  as chairman of t h e  
meet ing o r  something of  t h a t  s o r t ,  

Well, I had been q u i t e  a c t i v e  i n  e s t a b l i s h -  
i n g  o u r  s tewards t  counc i l ;  I w a s  a member of  
t h e  execu t ive  board and w a s  wel l -acquainted wi th  
t h e  f u n c t i o n s  of t h e  o rgan iza t ion , ,  so  when t h e  
e l e c t i o n  was announced I was one of  t h e  candi- 
d a t e s  f o r  t h e  o f f i c e  of  v i ce -p res iden t  of Loca l  
10, A t  t h a t  t ime  Henry Schmidt was p r e s i d e n t ,  
He had been e l e c t e d  p r e s i d e n t  when Harry became 
C I O  Regional D i r e c t o r  of t h e  P a c i f i c  Coast,  

Ward: 	 He w a s  p r e s i d e n t  of  t h e  I n t e r n a t i o n a l ,  wasnt t  
h  e? 
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Harry was a l s o  p r e s i d e n t  of t h e  ILWU, 

And so somebody e l s e  had t o  be p r e s i d e n t  of t h e  
l o c a l ?  

Right,  And Henry Schmidt was e l e c t e d  as pre-
s iden t ,  That same year ,  l a t e r  on, I was e l e c t e d  
as v ice-pres ident  under Henry, Now, t h e r e f s  a 
r u l e  i n  our l o c a l  and i t  i s  stil l  i n  e f f e c t  - - 
The two year  r u l e ?  

Youfre  e l e c t e d  f o r  one yea r  and you can s t and  
f o r  e l e c t i o n  t h e  second year,  The t h i r d  year  
you go back t o  work on t h e  docks, When Henryfs  
second yea r  w a s  up I was e l e c t e d  p r e s i d e n t  of 
t h e  l o c a l ,  So, I was i n  one yea r  as vice-
p r e s i d e n t  and one y e a r  as p res iden t ,  We changed 
t h e  e l e c t i o n  d a t e s  so t h a t  new o f f i c e r s  took 
o f f i c e  a t  t h e  end of t h e  year,  We used t o ,  a t  
f i r s t  go i n t o  o f f i c e  i n  September, but during 
my term as v ice-pres ident  we changed i t  so you 
assumed o f f i c e  a t  t h e  first of t h e  year,  From 
then  on we went from January t o  January, Well, 
I served one yea r  as v i c e  p r e s i d e n t  and one year  
as p res iden t ,  

S h o r t l y  a f te rward  I was reques ted  and r a n  f o r  
t h e  p o s i t i o n  of s e c r e t a r y - t r e a s u r e r  of t h e  San 
Francisco  C I O  Council, I agreed t h a t  I would 
se rve  f o r  only  one year ,  because I f e l t  my p l a c e  
was on t h e  water f ront ,  no t  up-town, So, I d i d  
s t a y  a l i t t l e  l o n g e r  than  one yea r  i n  o r d e r  t o  
accommodate my successor ,  who was an o f f i c e r  
of t h e  Radio Opera tors  union and h i s  o f f i c e  was 
i n  New York, 

What happened t o  Herman Stuyvelaar? 

I followed Herman Stuyvelaar ,  

Oh, t h a t ' s  it ,  

Yeah, Herman Stuyvelaar  w a s  t h e  first s e c r e t a r y ;
he w a s  a member of t h e  ILWU Ship Cle rks  and I 
followed him i n  o f f i c e ,  



Ward: 	 And you were succeeded by Mervyn Rathborne? 

Bulcke: 	 Mervyn Rathborne from t h e  Radio Opera to r s  took 
over  t h a t  o f f i c e ,  I came back t o  t h e  water- 
f r o n t  and worked, 

A man who w a s  e l e c t e d  v i ce -p res iden t  of  
Local  10 on ly  served,  as my r e c o l l e c t i o n  goes, 
about two months; t h e n  he became q u i t e  ill, 
H e  was q u i t e  e l d e r l y ,  I can?t f o r  t h e  moment 
t h i n k  of h i s  name, bu t  he  c a l l e d  me up, H e  was 
i n  S t ,  Luke?s h o s p i t a l  and he c a l l e d  me up, 
wanted t o  s e e  me, 

I went t o  v i s i t  h i m  and he  s a i d ,  "The doc to r  
t o l d  me I cannot do t h i s  job; t o o  s t r e n u o u s  f o r  
meal1 He spoke of  t h e  man-that  w a s  p r e s i d e n t  of 
Local  10 a t  t h a t  t ime and had been p r e s i d e n t  
du r ing  t h e  1934  s t r i k e ,  What t h e  h e l l  w a s  his 
name? Joseph Johnson! 

He was fol lowed i n  o f f i c e  by Bridges ,  Any-
way, he was e l e c t e d  as p r e s i d e n t  again. The 
o t h e r  man i n  t h e  h o s p i t a l  was v ice-pres ident ,
He s a i d ,  "Bro ther  Johnson cannot do t h i s  job very 
we l l  and i t  would p l e a s e  m e  very  much i f  you 
would r u n  f o r  v i ce -p res iden t ,  Ill1 f e e l  much 
b e t t e r  i f  I know t h a t  you a r e  i n  t h e r e  g i v i n g  
him a handoff 

So I d i d  r u n  f o r  v i ce -p res iden t ,  and I was 
e l e c t e d  and worked t o g e t h e r  w i th  Bro the r  Johnson, 
He was n o t  up t o  t h e  s i t u a t i o n ,  When his term 
was n e a r l y  up I t o l d  him I i n t e n d e d  t o  r u n  f o r  
p r e s i d e n t ,  

I s a i d  t o  him a t  t h e  time, "Of course ,  you
have every  r i g h t  t o  run  (because he had ano the r  
y e a r  t o  go) b u t  I t h i n k  i t  would look  b e t t e r  i f  
you j u s t  d i d  n o t  run,  r a t h e r  t h a n  g e t  defea ted ,  
I am q u i t e  s u r e  t h a t  t h e  membership w i l l  suppor t
my p o s i t i o n  t o  become p res iden t , ? '  

I was e l e c t e d  p r e s i d e n t  b u t  because t h i s  w a s  
f o r  on ly  p a r t  of  a y e a r  I w a s  r e - e l e c t e d  f o r  two 
more yea r s ;  i n  o t h e r  words, t h e  fo l lowing  y e a r  
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and t h e  year  a f t e r  t h a t ,  That b r i n g s  u s  up t o  
t h e  t ime t h a t  t h e  w a r  broke out ,  I was i n  
o f f i c e  a t  t h e  t ime of P e a r l  Harbor, 

There w a s  a pe r iod  t h e r e  when you and Henry 
Schmidt more o r  l e s s  a l t e r n a t e d  as pres ident .  

Yeah, a f t e r m y ,  a f t e r  - m e , *  

Your f i r s t  shot  a t  it, 

Yeah, Henry followed me back i n  and served two 
years ,  I ' m  l o s i n g  t r a c k  of t h e  - - -
But didnt t you succeed ~ e n r ~  again a f t e r  t h a t  
two years?  

Yeah, he followed me i n ;  yeah, I followed h i m  
i n ,  That'  s r i g h t  we were around twice - - -
Something l i k e  a yo-yo! 

Yeah, i t  was e i t h e r  Schmidt o r  Bulcke who was 
i n  tihere as p res iden t ,  Anyway, during t h e  w a r  
y e a r s  Henry served on a s p e c i a l  committee t o  do 
wi th  sh ipping  and s t u f f ,  which I even tua l ly  
served on too, Then i n  1946 I w a s  e l e c t e d  
p r e s i d e n t  again,  and i n  1947 I became a candi-
d a t e  f o r  I n t e r n a t i o n a l  vice-president ,  I w a s  
e l e c t e d  and served u n t i l  1960 - 13 years ,  

I11 SERVING THE INTERNATIONAL 

Get t ing  E lec ted  

J e r r y ,  you were t e l l i n g  about t h e  t ime you were 
e l e c t e d  I n t e r n a t i o n a l  v ice-pres ident ,  You had 
oppos i t ion ,  I understand, 

T h a t ' s  r i g h t ,  What happened was this, The 
procedure f o r  e l e c t i n g  I n t e r n a t i o n a l  o f f i c e r s  
i s  t h a t  t h e  nominations are made i n  t h e  



Bulcke: 	 convent ion,  and e v e n t u a l l y  by a v o t e  o f  t h e  
d e l e g a t e s  t h e  c a n d i d a t e s  f o r  each o f f i c e  a r e  
narrowed down t o  two, The main o p p o s i t i o n  I 
had was by a f e l l o w  by t h e  name of  Cole Jackman, 
He was a member o f  t h e  Coast Committee which 
s p e c i a l i z e s  i n  l ongshore  problems, enforcement 
o f  t h e  c o n t r a c t ,  and so  f o r t h ,  We have o t h e r  
c o n t r a c t s  cover ing  warehouse m a t t e r s ,  and so  
on, Henry Schmidt and Cole Jackman were t h e  
Coast  Committee at  t h a t  t ime,  U n t i l  two weeks 
b e f o r e  t h e  convent ion Cole Jackman and I were 
f r i e n d s  -

Ward: 	 You were bo th  more o r  l e s s  l e f t w i n g e r s ?  

Bul cke: 	 Yes, we were bo th  cons ide red  p r o g r e s s i v e s ,  He 
was from P o r t l a n d ,  Oregon, a very  capab le  per-  
son, 

Cole  came t o  me about  two weeks b e f o r e  t h e  
convent ion and he s a i d ,  " J e r r y ,  I hope you don ' t  
f e e l  bad; I t m  a l s o  going t o  be a cand ida t e  f o r  
vice-president.11 I s a i d ,  "Cole, t h a t ?s your
r i g h t ,  b u t  what made you change your  mind? A 
week ago you were t e l l i n g  me how you were going 
t o  suppor t  me?fl 

"Well,ll he  says, " a c t u a l l y  P r e s i d e n t  Br idges  
h a s  convinced me t h a t  I should be a candidate ,"  
I s a i d ,  "Well, t h a t t s  s t r a n g e ,  b u t  I guess  he  
h a s  t h e  r i g h t  t o  e x p r e s s  h i s  opinion,"  

So, I went and t a l k e d  wi th  Harry and I s a i d  
t o  him, 1 ' 1  don?t q u i t e  unders tand  why you a r e  
opposed t o  me be ing  a cand ida t e  f o r  I n t e r n a t i o n -  
al vice-pres ident ."  A t  t h a t  t ime,  I was p r e s i -
den t  o f  Loca l  10, 

Harry s a i d ,  "Well, J e r r y ,  you a r e  do ing  such 
a good job  i n  Loca l  10, I w a n t  you t o  stay
t h e r e o f (  And I s a i d ,  "Harry, you were p r e s i d e n t  
o f  Local  10, why d idn f  t you s t a y  there?"  So, 
we b o t h  laughed  and I l e f t  i t  at t h a t ,  

Well, i n  t h e  convent ion  t h e r e  were f o u r  
nominees, as my memory goes, b u t  i t  was narrowed 
down t o  two. 



Ward:. You and Jackman? 

Bul cke : Me and Jackman, And t h e  b i g  d e l e g a t i o n  t h a t  
had a l o t  of v o t e s  was from H a w a i i  and i n  t h e  
p r e l i m i n a r i e s  t h e y  voted  i n  f avor  of Jackman, 
and some o t h e r s  d i d  too ,  f o r  t h a t  matter, 

I t  d i s t u r b e d  me a l i t t l e  b i t  because t h e  
H a w a i i  d e l e g a t i o n  always v o t e s  i n  a block;  t h e y
have a l i t t l e  caucus and they  decide;  i t t s  a 
block v o t e  and t h e r e  a r e  a l o t  of vo tes ,  A t  
t h a t  time, I t h i n k ,  t hey  had somewhere around 
28,000 members, 

Ward: That was what year? 

Bulcke: That  was 1947. I had r e p r e s e n t e d  t h e  Hawaiian 
I s l a n d s  on t h e  I n t e r n a t i o n a l  Execut ive  Board, 
of which I had been a member f o r  s e v e r a l  years ,  

. Although I had never  been t o  H e w a i i ,  I had been 
i n  a l o t  o f  communications wi th  them and t h e i r  
problems, s o  they  knew me p r e t t y  wel l ,  

What happened was t h a t  a d e l e g a t e  from H a w a i i ,  
from Hilo ,  came t o  me; I knew him p r e t t y  wel l  
because we had corresponded,  He s a i d ,  " Je r ry ,
don*t worry; when we g e t  t o  Honolulu, we're 
going t o  have ano the r  caucus3' 

When t h e  r e s u l t s  came i n ,  wel l ,  H a w a i i  had 
voted  p r a c t i c a l l y  unanimously f o r  me. I w a s  
e l e c t e d  by an overwhelming v o t e  t o  t h e  o f f i c e  
of I n t e r n a t i o n a l  Vice-president ,  

Ward: Was i t  only  t h e  first t ime t h a t  you had opposi- 
t i o n ?  

Bulcke: A f t e r  t h a t  i n  t h e  seven fo l lowing  convent ions ,  
I t h i n k  only  once was t h e r e  o p p o s i t i o n  du r ing  
t h e  t h i r t e e n  y e a r s  t h a t  I served,  



Becoming An A r b i t r a t o r  

Bul cke : 	 I n  1960, we had been having some d i f f i c u l t i e s  
w i th  o u r  l o c a l  i n  San Pedro, Local  13, We had 
e s t a b l i s h e d  a r b i t r a t o r s  by t h a t  t ime  on t h e  
coas t ,  There were f o u r  a r b i t r a t o r s ,  one f o r  
Southern C a l i f o r n i a ,  one f o r  Northern C a l i f o r n i a ,  
one f o r  t h e .  Oregon a r e a  and one f o r *  t h e  S e a t t l e  
a rea .  And Sam Kagel was appoin ted  and s t i l l  i s  
t h e  coast-wide a r b i t r a t o r ,  The procedure  i s  t h a t  
an a r b i t r a t o r  on a l o c a l  l e v e l  makes a d e c i s i o n  
f o r  o r  a g a i n s t  t h e  union,  Tha t  d e c i s i o n  must be 
l i v e d  up t o  by bo th  p a r t i e s  bu t  i s  s u b j e c t  t o  
appea l ,  The appea l  goes  t o  a j o i n t  committee 
of  employers and t h e  Coast Committee on t h e  
un ion  s i d e ,  

Ward: 	 Tha t  p rocedure  I have from Henry Schmidt, 

Bul cke: 	 Yes, bu t  what happened i n  San Pedro was t h a t  
t h e  a r b i t r a t o r  was an a t t o r n e y  and he was on a 
r e t a i n e r ,  He was n o t  a v a i l a b l e  f u l l  t ime,  and 
t h e r e  were many problems i n  San Pedro, 

I remember Harry and I d i s c u s s i n g  t h e  need 
f o r  a f u l l - t i m e  a r b i t r a t o r ,  because many t i m e s  when 
t h e  a r b i t r a t o r  w a s  needed he was i n  cou r t ,  H i s  
main b u s i n e s s  w a s  be ing  an  a t t o r n e y ;  he made 
good d e c i s i o n s  as f a r  as t h e  union and t h e  em-
p l o y e r s  were concerned,  bu t  many t i m e s  -

Ward: 	 He was n o t  a v a i l a b l e ?  

Bulcke: 	 He w a s  n o t  a v a i l a b l e ,  The ha rbo r  of  San Pedro 
i s  p a r t  .of  L o s  ,Angeles, and t h e  Harbor Commis- 
s i o n  i s  appo in t ed  by t h e  c i t y  o f  Los  Angeles, 

Well, t h e  Board of S u p e r v i s o r s  w a s  adv i sed  t h a t  
some of t h e  s teamship companies ( t h e  Japanese  
L i n e  was one and I f o r g e t  t h e  o t h e r s )  were 
t h r e a t e n i n g  t o  n o t  come i n t o  San Pedro any more 
bu t  would go t o  Long Beach, Long Beach i s  an  
independent  ha rbo r  i n  compet i t ion  wi th  Los  
Angel es. These s h i p p i n g  l i n e s  t h r e a t e n e d  t o  
p u l l  o u t  because of  t h e  many work s toppages  



Bulcke: 	 which were occu r r ing ,  de l ay ing  t h e i r  sh ips .  So 
t h e  s i t u a t i o n  w a s  q u i t e  s e r i o u s ,  because t h e  
Board of S u p e r v i s o r s  i n t e n d e d  t o  p a s s  an or- 
dinance making all w a t e r f r o n t  employees c i v i l  
s e r v i c e ,  which would have meant d e s t r u c t i o n  of 
t h e  union,  o r  a t  l e a s t  weakening t h e  p o s i t i o n  
of t h e  union tremendously, Paul  S t ,  Sure ,  t h e  
p r e s i d e n t  of t h e  P a c i f i c  Marit ime Assoc ia t ion ,  
and Harry Br idges  appeared b e f o r e  t h e  Board of 
S u p e r v i s o r s  and promised them t h a t  t h e  union 
would p u t  i n  a f u l l  t ime  a r b i t r a t o r  t h a t  knew 
t h e  c o n t r a c t  and knew t h e  work and would be 
a v a i l a b l e  24 hours  a day, 7 days  a week, so  
t h a t  any d i s p u t e  would be handled q'uickly wi th  
as l i t t l e  de l ay  as p o s s i b l e ,  

Ward: 	 That was one of t h e  o c c a s i o n s  where St. Sure  
was d e f i n i t e l y  h e l p f u l  t o  t h e  ILWU, 

Bul cke: 	 D e f i n i t e l y ,  He a l s o  could  s e e  many problems 
t h a t  would develop i f  this t h i n g  went i n t o  
e f f e c t  about  having C i v i l  S e r v i c e  at  San Pedro, 
i n s t e a d  of t h e  w a y  i t  was, 

Anyway, Br idges  and S t ,  Sure  were a b l e  t o  
convince t h e  Board t o  de l ay  a c t i o n  on t h i s  
proposed ord inance  f o r  n i n e t y  days. Harry c a l l e d  
me ( I  s t i l l  remember) on a Wednesday from down 
South and t o l d  me of t h i s  development, I 
mentioned t o  Harry, tfYou remember n o t  so  l o n g  
ago we were t a l k i n g  about t h e  need of a f u l l  
t ime a r b i t r a t o r , "  And he s a i d ,  "Yes, Paul  S t ,  
Su re  and I have agreed  t h a t  we would a p p r e c i a t e  
i t  i f  you would t a k e  t h e  pos i t i on , "  I t  was a 
Wednesday n i g h t ,  around 8: 00 01 c lock,  

Ward: 	 That would mean you would have t o  r e s i g n  as 
I n t e r n a t i o n a l  Vice-President? 

Bulcke: 	 Oh, yes ,  yes ,  and I s a i d  "How much t ime do I 
have t o  cons ide r  t h i s ? "  Harry s a i d ,  "1'11 be 
i n  t h e  o f f i c e  F r i d a y  morning, Keep i t  t o  your- 
s e l f  and i f  you don ' t  want t o  o r  c a n t t ,  no harm 
done; b u t  I want your answer; we can1 t delay.11 



Bulcke: 	 Well, I came home and d iscussed  i t  with Rusty, 
and she sa id ,  I1You do what you t h i n k  i s  right.11 
Well, I thought i t  over;  I f e l t  t h a t  I could do 
t h e  job because of t h e  many y e a r s  I had been an 
o f f i c e r  of t h e  union, I had a t tended every 
convention, I was genera l ly  a member of t h e  
n e g o t i a t i n g  committee, I knew t h e  con t rac t ,  I 
knew t h e  work and I f e l t  I could do t h e  job, 

When Harry came i n  on Fr iday  morning, I 
agreed t o  t a k e  t h e  p o s i t i o n ,  so t h e r e  was a 
s l i g h t  delay because we were i n  nego t i a t ions ;  
and S t ,  Sure  agreed, We had what we c a l l  f i s h -
bowl n e g o t i a t i o n s  where t h e  membership sat i n ,  
p l u s  t h e  employers, I w a s  reques ted  t o  s t a y  
and a c t  as chairman of t h a t  p a r t i c u l a r  fishbowl 
n e g o t i a t i o n ,  which I did,  

Ward: 	 So you couldnt t be both  t h e  fishbowl chairman - ? 

Bulcke: 	 No, and as soon as t h a t  was over with I proceed-
ed down t o  San Pedro and s t a r t e d  my new job. I t  
was r a t h e r  amusing, as I look back; t h e  f i r s t  
f o u r  o r  f i v e  o r  maybe s i x  weeks, when I made a 
dec i s ion  a g a i n s t  t h e  union, I would g e t  s t a t i c  
back: 1 1 1  wonder how much t h a t  son-of-a b i t c h  
got  f o r  t h a t  one,l1 I f  I r u l e d  aga ins t  t h e  
employers, t h e  s t a t i c  would come back: "What 
do you expect? He1 s a member of t h e  union,ll 
Buk, t h e  s t a t i c  d i d n ' t  l a s t  very long,  because 
my knowledge of t h e  job was such t h a t  t h e  men 
soon recognized t h a t  I knew what I w a s  t a l k i n g  
about, and they  went along. 

Ward: 	 You e s t a b l i s h e d  confidence? 

Bulcke: 	 Oh, yeah, The men r e a l i z e d  t h a t  q u i t e  quickly  
because I used t o  say t o  t h e  employer represen- 
t a t i v e s ,  "You see,  t h e  weakness you people have 
i s  t h a t  you never worked as a longshoreman, 
You read  t h e  con t rac t ,  you read  t h e  language, 
bu t  you cant t s p e l l  out  everything," I s a i d ,  
IfYou have t o  know t h e  work,fl I had a good 
r e l a t i o n s h i p  t h e  whole t ime I w a s  t he re ,  

Well, I made 712 d e c i s i o n s  i n  t h e  s i x  y e a r s  
I was t h e r e  and I had 13 cases  appealed, Of 
t h e  13, e i g h t  were by t h e  union and f i v e  by 
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Bulcke: 

t h e  employers and they  went t o  t h e  appeal 
procedure, I t h i n k  f i v e  o r  s i x  ended up before  
Sam Kagel, but I never l o s t  a dec is ion;  they  
were all sus ta ined ,  

A l l  t h i r t e e n ?  

A l l  t h i r t e e n ,  yes, One i n c i d e n t  w a s  a l i t t l e  
amusing, i n  a way, I was c a l l e d  out  one n i g h t  -
I was a v a i l a b l e  day and n i g h t  - on a so-cal led 
s a f e t y  beef,  I t  w a s  i n  t h e  lower hold of t h e  
ship,  They were working t h e  lower hold, which 
i s  t h e  lowest  p a r t  of t h e  vessel .  and t h e r e  was 
cargo stowed on t h e  next  deck, r i g h t  up t o  t h e  
edge of t h e  hatch,  Normally they  had dunnage -
p i e c e s  of board - pu t  a c r o s s  t o  keep i t  from 
f a l l i n g  down, Well, t h e r e  were no boards t h e r e  
and t h e  men s tood by on t h e  grounds t h a t  i t  w a s  
unsafe,  

Well, I took one look a t  i t  and r e a l i z e d  
what happened, I knew darn well  t h a t  t h e  s h i p  
d i d  n o t  come i n  without t h e  dunnage being the re ,  
The cargo would have dropped down, So I knew 
t h a t  they  had manoeuvered so they  could s t and  
on t h e  s a f e t y  r u l e ,  I f  t h e  a r b i t r a t o r  r u l e d  
t h a t  t h e  men were r i g h t  they would ge t  pa id  f o r  
t h e  t ime they  s tood by, 

So, by t h e  time t h e  bus iness  agent came o u t  
and argued with t h e  employer r e p r e s e n t a t i v e ,  then  
got  on t h e  phone and c a l l e d  me t h e r e  was 
about an hour and a h a l f  t h a t  they  had .stood by, 
I took one look a t  i t  and s a i d  t o  t h e  longshore- 
men, llYou know, t h e  c o n t r a c t  provides  t h a t  when 
cond i t ions  a r e  unsafe,  t h e  f i r s t  t h i n g  you have 
t o  do i s  t o  make them sa fe ,  You guys d i d  not  
do t h a t ,  you s tood by. You should have g o t t e n  
some dunnage and made i t  safe ,  

" I ' m  so r ry ;  ge t  t h e  dunnage, make i t  sa fe ,  go 
back t o  work, but  you 're  no t  going t o  g e t  pa id  
f o r  s t and ing  by because you were wrongell Then 
when I got  t o  t h e  bus iness  agent ,  ( I  knew him 
wel l )  I s a i d ,  "Pete,  what i n  t h e  world made 
you c a l l  me out  on a bum beef l i k e  this?l l  Why 



Bul cke: 	 didnc t you t e l l  t h e  guys what t o  do?" "Well, 
he says ,  f l J e r r y ,  I ' m  running  f o r  r e e l e c t i o n  
and i f  I had done t h a t ,  I w o u l d n ~ t  have 
any of t h e  votes , f f  

I says ,  "Pete ,  i n  my exper ience  t h e  men have 
much more a p p r e c i a t i o n  when you t e l l  them t h a t  
t h e y c r e  wrong than  t o  go a long  wi th  a t r i c k  
l i k e  t h i s , f f  flYeah, he  says ,  "1 guess  youcre  
r i g h t ,l f  

I walked o f f  t h e  s h i p ;  i t  was around mid- 
n i g h t  and I was walking toward t h e  head of t h e  
dock where my c a r  was when a young f e l l o w  who 
had been working on t h e  dock a g a i n s t  t h a t  ha t ch  
came o u t  and s a i d ,  "Are you t h e  a rb i t r a to r J? l l  
I s a i d ,  "Yes, I am; i f  you w a n t  t o  a rgue  t h e  
d e c i s i ~ n ~ t h e  Theb u s i n e s s  agent  i s  r i g h t  t h e r e ,  
t h i n g  i s  resolved,"  

He had heard  what t h e  d e c i s i o n  w a s ,  you see,  
flVJell, what a h e l l  'of  an a r b i t r a t o r  you a re ,  
What do you know about  l ongshore  work? I s p i t  
on you,11 He s p i t  bu t  he  d i d n c t  h i t  me, I 
ignored  i t  and s t a r t e d  walking on, H i s  p a r t n e r  
came ou t  - an o l d e r  m a n  - who used t o  be my 
p a r t n e r  i n  San F ranc i sco  and knew me f o r  years ,  

So, very  p o l i t e l y ,  he  s a i d ,  "Mr .  A r b i t r a t o r ,  
may I ask you a question?ll  And I s a i d ,  llWell, 
you j u s t  heard  what I t o l d  your young p a r t n e r ;  
I don1t d i s c u s s  my d e c i s i o n s  a f t e r  t h e y  a r e  
reso lved ,  l1 

"No, no," he  s a i d ,  "1 heard  what my p a r t n e r  
s a i d ,  I j u s t  wanted t o  ask,  what y e a r  d i d  you 
s tar t  working as a longshoreman?" He knew, I 
s a i d ,  "Well, i n  1925," And then  he t u r n e d  t o  
h i s  young p a r t n e r  and s a i d , .  '1You see ,  he  w a s  
doing t h i s  work when you were a gleam i n  your 
popcs  eye, I worked wi th  him, and h e c s  an 
expe r t  longshoreman," The young man looked  a t  
me, llYou a r e  a longshoreman! I l m  s o r r y ,  sir," 
and s t u c k  h i s  hand o u t  and apologized,  I saw 
t h e  young man a number of t i m e s  a f t e rwards ,  and 
I always f e l t  i t  was an amusing l i t t l e  i n c i d e n t ,  
I f e l t  as an a r b i t r a t o r  I was a b l e  t o  r e s o l v e  



Bul cke: 	 t h e  problems s a t i s f a c t o r i l y  wi th in  t h e  frame- 
work of t h e  agreement, There were no more 
t h r e a t s  of  sh ipping  being p u l l e d  out  of  t h e  
harbor  and every th ing  j u s t  went a long smoothly, 
So t h o s e  were my y e a r s  of  experience as an 
a r k t r a t o r .  

Ward: 	 Did you enjoy being an a r b i t r a t o r ?  

Bul cke: 	 I d i d  and I didnl t - I ' l l  t e l l  you what t h e  
b i g g e s t  drawback was, which h a s  now been 
co r rec ted ,  A s  I s t a t e d ,  I w a s  a v a i l a b l e  twenty 
f o u r  hours  a day and seven days a week, Rusty 
was working, 

Ward: 	 Well, you couldnf ' t  t a k e  a vaca t ion?  

Bulcke: 	 Well, yes ,  we d i d  ge t  a month, s vaca t ion  every 
year. But t h e  r e s t  of  t h e  t ime you were n a i l e d  
down, So, what would happen w a s  t h i s :  on a 
Saturday a f t e r n ~ o n ,  Saturday n i g h t  and Sunday, 
from t h e  emplpyerfs  s i d e  t h e r e  w a s  some guy i n  
charge t h a t  d i d n l t  know from nothing;  and on t h e  
union s ide ,  one b u s i n e s s  agent,  No m a t t e r  what 
t h e  beef was, those  guys wouldnf t  agree  t o  any- 
th ing ,  The e a s i e s t  way o u t  w a s  t o  c a l l  t h e  
a r b i t r a t o r .  

Many t imes  we would be i n v i t e d  ou t  t o  d inner  
t o  some f r i e n d s ,  I would phone i n  t o  t h e  
b u s i n e s s  agent ,  s o f f i c e  o r  t o  t h e  employerf s 
o f f i c e ,  whatever occur red  t o  me, saying, " I f  
necessary,  If11be at such and such a number," 

Nine t imes  ou t  of  t en ,  when weld g e t  t h e r e  t h e  
l a d y  of t h e  house would come o u t  and say, 
" Je r ry ,  t h e r e f  s a c a l l  f o r  you - Long Beach," o r  
whatever i t  was, 

You know, t h i s  r e a l l y  bothered me, i t  got  t o  
be so r e g u l a r ,  One t ime i t  went seventeen days .-. 
t h a t  they  d i d n f t  c a l l  me, Rusty s a i d ,  "1 b e t  
they  f i r e d  you and d idn ' t  t e l l  you," I mean, 
even tua l ly  i t  became a l i t t l e  t o o  much t h a t  you 
had no way of doing anyth ing  - - - -

Ward: 	 On your own? 



Bul cke: 	 On your own, Sure, I had a month' s vaca t ion ,  
but  a f t e r  e leven months of t h a t  k i n d  of  t h i n g  . , 
A s  t ime went on this got  worse and worse, 
F i n a l l y ,  when they  s igned  up t h e  new c o n t r a c t  
I informed both  s i d e s ,  "Thank you very much, 
but  I w i l l  no t  continue,lt So, they  gave me a 
n i c e  luncheon be fo re  I l e f t  - t h e  employers 
and t h e  union, both, They r e a l l y  f e l t  t h a t  I 
had done a good job, and I am very p leased  
about t h a t ,  

When I go t  back t o  San Francisco ,  t h e  Coast 
Committee asked me would I a c t  as a r e l i e f  
a r b i t r a t o r  he re  f o r  t h i s  a r e a  and I sa id ,  1'1 

w a s  doing f i n e  i n  San Pedro and i f  I wanted 
t o  be a n - a r b i t r a t o r  I would have s t ayed  t h e r e ,  
thank you," 

Ward: 	 Something about a t r i p  t o  Japan? 

A Tangle With Mayor Yorty 

Bul cke : 	 Yes, what happened was, Sam Yorty was mayor of 
Los Angeles, Well, t h e  Board of Superv i so r s  - -

Ward: 	 You and Sam Yorty had t ang led  before?  

Bul cke: 	 Yeah, The Board of  Superv i so r s  and t h e  Chamber 
of  Commerce decided t h a t  i n  o r d e r  t o  improve 
t h e  sh ipping  from t h e  F a r  Eas t ,  i t  would be a 
good i d e a  i f  a committee would v i s i t  t h e  
P h i l i p p i n e s ,  Japan, t h e  F a r  Eas t ,  you know, 

One of t h e  members of t h e  Harbor C~mmission 
of San Pedro came t o  s e e  m e  and aske& i f  I 
would be w i l l i n g  t o  be a p a r t  of  t h a t  committee 
because I had t h e  knowledge of t h e  harbors ,  
movement of t h e  cargo, and b lah ,  b lah ,  b l ah  t o  
do wi th  t h e  con t rac t ,  

I s a i d  I would be happy t o  do t h a t  provided 
I got  t h e  consent of my two bosses ,  t h e  ILWU 
and t h e  Waterfront  Employers, I f  t hey  would 
agree  t h a t  I could go, I ' d  be happy t o  accommodate 
therri. 
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"Oh," he sa id ,  " t h a t  should be no problem," 
Maybe a week o r  t e n  days went by - I don t t  
r e c a l l  e x a c t l y  - when he c a l l e d  me again and 
asked me t o  have lunch wi th  not  only  him, but  
t h e  whole Harbor Commission, We had lunch i n  
San Pedro i n  a r e s t a u r a n t ,  and he s a i d ,  "1 
d o n t t  know how t o  t e l l  you t h i s ,  but  i n  o rde r  
f o r  this commission t o  go, i t  needed t h e  ap- 
proval  of t h e  mayor of Los Angeles, Sam Yorty, 
He approved of everybody, but  when he came t o  
your name he sa id ,  'Oh, no - not  him,' He wont t 
l e t  you go; as a m a t t e r  of f a c t  he? s going t o  
t a k e  your place," And he did, 

So, I w a s  unable t o  make t h a t  t r i p ,  but  t h e  -
r e s u l t  was t h e  people i n  Los Angeles and t h e  
Harbor r e a l l y  r a i s e d  t h e  dickens with Yorty 
af terwards,  He had no bus iness  going along 
with t h a t  commission, and when they  found 
o u t  - - - -
He was t a k i n g  a f r e e  r i d e ?  He d i d n t t  know 
anything? 

Yeah, on a s u b j e c t  about which he didnt t know 
anything, There was a l o t  of adverse p u b l i c i t y ,  
s t o r i e s  i n  t h e  papers,  af terwards,  Well, this 
i s  how Sam Yorty cheated me o u t  of a t r i p  t h a t  
I probably would have enjoyed, 

Did you ever  go t o  Japan? 

Never went t o  Japan, 

You spent  s e v e r a l  months i n  Hawaii? 

Well, when Jack H a l l  was on trial, Harry asked 
me t o  s t a y  over. I was t h e r e  from September 
u n t i l  Apr i l ,  Then a t  t h e  ho l idays  when t h e r e  
were no cour t  ses s ions ,  I came back and picked 
up Rusty and Bruce, and we s t ayed  t h e r e  u n t i l  
t h e  Jack  H a l l  t r i a l  was over  -



A May Day Ce leb ra t ion  

Ward: 	 I h e a r  you went as a d e l e g a t e  from something 
o r  o t h e r  t o  Eas t  Germany, What was t h a t  all 
about? 

Bulcke: 	 I t  was a May Day c e l e b r a t i o n  i n  E a s t  Germany, 
i n  Eas t  Ber l in ,  I t  was c a l l e d  by t h e  Trade 
Union Fede ra t ion  of  Eas t  Germany, similar t o  
what we say  o f  t h e  C I O  o r  $he AFL here .  I t  
r e p r e s e n t s  a l l  t h e  unions  i n  E a s t  Germany, 
and i t  had i n v i t e d  d e l e g a t e s  from every count ry  
i n  t h e  world t h a t  had t r a d e  unions, There were 
69 c o u n t r i e s  represented ,  Dick Lynden, from 
Local  6 - he h a s  s i n c e  passed  away - and I were 
s e n t  by t h e  I n t e r n a t i o n a l  t o  a t t e n d  t h a t  con-
f  erence,  

Ward: 	 You had German of  course ,  b u t  Dick, d i d  he? 

Bulcke: 	 No - no, A f t e r  I was t h e r e  a week o r  t e n  days 
my German came back, I always unders tand i t ,  
b u t  i t  go t  so t h a t  I could converse, Dick 
Lynden s a i d ,  "East  Germans - West Germans, 
t h e y ' r e  a l l  Germans; they  w i l l  on ly  show u s  
what they  want u s  t o  see," 

T h i s  was h i s  a t t i t u d e ,  They had an i n t e r -
p r e t e r  f o r  every group, so t h e  i n t e r p r e t e r  
a s s igned  t o  u s  was a man who had been i n  t h e  
export-import  b u s i n e s s  wi th  England, and l i v e d  
i n  England f o r  a number of  yea r s ,  He spoke 
b e a u t i f u l  B r i t i s h  Engl ish,  and he was with  u s  
all t h e  time, 

Ward: 	 J u s t  t h e  two of you? 

Bulcke: 	 You see,  Dick and I were t h e  only  Americans 
t h e r e ,  There were 69 c o u n t r i e s  r e p r e s e n t e d  -
A u s t r a l i a ,  everybody, i n c l u d i n g  u s  r e p r e s e n t i n g  
t h e  so-ca l led  American t r a d e  union movement, 
Every day they  would hang up n o t i c e s  t o  show 
where t h e y  would t a k e  people,  

Ward: 	 Oh, t o u r s ?  



Bulcke: 	 T h a t ' s  r i g h t .  Dick s a i d ,  ' 'Sure*, and I s a i d  
"NO, Dick, you don1 t want t o  go on a t o u r ,  
They w i l l  t a k e  u s  wherever we want t o  go, 
Can ' t  you s e e  t h a t  h e r e  a r e  people  from 69 
c o u n t r i e s ,  how would t h e y  know how t o  go around 
and l o o k  a t  anyth ing ;  t hey  have t o  have d i r e c -  
t i o n s .  1' 

Anyway, I s a i d  t o  t h e  i n t e r p r e t e r ,  Hans, 
t h a t  day, " I f  i t ' s  a l l  r i g h t ,  we don ' t  want t o  
go on t h e  t o u r  t odaya l f  He s a i d ,  Ifoh, s u r e ,  
what do you want t o  do?" I s a i d ,  We l l ,  can' t 
we j u s t  d r i v e  around and s e e  what weld like?!'  

So, he  g e t s  t h e  c h a u f f e u r  and t h e  c a r  and 
we g e t  i n  and d r i v e  around a ways and we saw a 
s m a l l  manufac tur ing  p l a n t .  I s a i d ,  "Can we go
i n  t h e r e ? f f  

He says ,  lfSuretl and we d r i v e  up t o  t h e  g a t e ,  
and t h e  d i r e c t o r  came o u t ,  a l l  d r e s s e d  up, 
b u s i n e s s  m a n ,  n e c k t i e ,  Hans i n t r o d u c e d  u s  and 
t h e  d i r e c t o r  s a i d ,  111'11be most happy t o  show 
you a r ~ u n d , ~  

I s a i d ,  "Hans, you a r e  d r e s s e d  l i k e  a busi-
n e s s  man, you a r e  too," Of course ,  I was 
wear ing a n e c k t i e ,  too.  

I s a i d  t o  t h e  d i r e c t o r ,  !!If you don ' t  mind, 
w i th  a l l  due r e s p e c t ,  I would l i k e  t o  walk around, 
j u s t  t a l k  t o  some workers  so  t h e y  won't f e e l  t h e  
b o s s  i s  l o o k i n g  down t h e i r  neck,11 And, o f  
course ,  I ' m  speak ing  i n  Eng l i sh  a l l  t h i s  t ime;  
t h e  d i r e c t o r  spoke good Eng l i sh  too ,  But Hans 
s a i d ,  " J e r r y ,  t h e s e  workers  don ' t  speak English,ll  
1 ' 1  know,11 I s a i d ,  ''1 speak Germaneu He l i k e  
t o  f e l l  over. 

Anyway w e  went i n t o  t h e  p l a n t  and saw a guy
who wasnf t too  busy, f o o l i n g  around wi th  some 
machine, I i n t r o d u c e d  myself  and Dick, s ay ing  
w e  were a couple  of  d e l e g a t e s  t o  t h e  Trade 
Union F e d e r a t i o n  convent ion May Day c e l e b r a t i o n  
and t h a t  we ' re  from t h e  Longshoremen, we ' re  
from San F ranc i sco ,  work on t h e  w a t e r f r o n t ;  we 
s t a r t e d  t a l k i n g .  The guy w a s  very  coope ra t ive ;  



Bulcke: 

Ward: 

Bulcke: 

Ward: 

Bulcke: 

f i r s t  t h i n g  you know, I had about  1 2  guys
s t a n d i n g  around me, I n  ou r  d i s c u s s i o n  t h e  guy 
s a i d ,  "1 suppose you have an automobile?ff He 
l i v e d  t h r e e  b l o c k s  from t h e  p l a n t  i n  a new 
apar tment  house, and he had a motorcycle  and 
two k i d s ,  I s a i d ,  "Well, as a m a t t e r  o f  f a c t ,  
I have two automobiles,"  The change i n  t h e i r  
express ion!  "What does  t h i s  mean, he1 s a 
worker; he1 s go t  two automobiles?" They were 
on a w a i t i n g  l ist ,  see ;  t h e y  were manufac tur ing  
au tomobi les  and hoped t o  g e t  an automobilk 
sometime, 

I s a i d ,  "Well, d o n f t  misunderstand,  What do 
you need an automobile for???  "Oh, i t  would be 
n i c e  t o  d r i v e  on a weekend wi th  t h e  w i f e  and 
k ids , "  I s a i d ,  "Yes, t h a t 1 s f o r  p l e a s u r e ,  bu t  
where I a m  I need an  automobi le  f o r  my work, 
My wife  works and she  couldnf  t do h e r  work 
wi thout  an automobile,  There  i t  i s  a n e c e s s i t y ,  
n o t  a l u x u r y  l i k e  i t  i s  here ,??  

They saw i t  and t h e y  agreed,  and we exchanged 
a l o t  o f  t a l k  about  a l o t  o f  t h i n g s ,  Even tua l ly  
this guy i n v i t e d  Dick and me and we had d inne r  
a t  his house. I t  was q u i t e  an exper ience ,  

Is t h e r e  any th ing  e l s e ?  
\ 

Well, we enjoyed t h e  conference  very  much, 
There1 s a n o t h e r  i n c i d e n t  I want t o  t a l k  about ,  
bu t  I d o n f t  t h i n k  w e  have t ime,  

Why d o n l t  you t r y  i t  and see? 

Well, t h e r e  w a s  a Japanese  de lega t ion-and  t h e r e  
were t h r e e  of  them, They were supposed t o  be 
from t h e  Railway Union i n  Japan,  The system was 
t h a t  when a new d e l e g a t i o n  a r r i v e d  o u r  h o s t s  
would t a k e  them down t o  t h e  d i n i n g  room and - - -
## ( I n t e r v i e w  4: 18 J u l y ,  1983) 



Ward: 	 J e r r y ,  you were t a l k i n g  about t h e  German Trade 
Union Federa t ion  Conference i n  East  Ber l in ,  
What yea r  was i t ?  

Bulcke: 	 1960; 

Ward: 	 1960, and you were going t o  t e l l  u s  about t h e  
Japanese de legat ion ,  

Hiroshima All  Over Again 

Bul cke : 	 Yes, a s  I s t a t e d ,  a de lega t ion  of Japanese 
a r r i v e d  a t  t h e  conference and t h e  p r a c t i c e  was 
t h a t  when a new de lega t ion  a r r i v e d ,  they  would 
be taken around i n  t h e  d in ing  room and i n t r o -  
duced t o  all of t h e  va r ious  de legates ,  I t  was 
t h e  system of having a f l a g  des igna t ing  t h e  
country you were from on each t a b l e  and when 
they  came t o  us, two of t h e  d e l e g a t e s  were very 
f r i e n d l y  and seemed pleased t o  meet us,  but  t h e  
t h i r d  de legate ,  a s  he looked at me, I could 
f e e l  t h a t  he could have k i l l e d  me, r e a l l y  
s t a r i n g  at me i n  a very p e c u l i a r  way. 

They went on from t h e r e  and i t  bothered me, 
so l a t e r  t h a t  day on a s i g h t s e e i n g  t r i p  on a 
s m a l l  p l e a s u r e  boat ,  I no t i ced  t h e  Japanese 
s i t t i n g  a ways behind u s  on t h e  oppos i te  s i d e  
with t h e i r  i n t e r p r e t e r ,  He was a p ro fessor  of 
O r i e n t a l  languages and was a b l e  t o  speak Japan- 
ese. 

So, I went over  and t a l k e d  with t h e  i n t e r -  
p r e t e r  f i r s t ,  and explained t o  him t h a t  I f e l t  
t h e r e  was something not  r i g h t  t h e  way t h i s  
one m a n  had ac ted  and looked a t  me, The 
i n t e r p r e t e r  t a l k e d  t o  them i n  Japanese f o r  a 
few minutes and then explained t h a t  t h i s  m a n  
was n o t  r e a l l y  a de lega te  from any organiza- 
t i o n ;  he was a v ic t im of Hiroshima and they  
had brought h i m  a long f o r  s p e c i a l  t r ea tmen t s  
t h a t  he expected t o  g e t  i n  Eas t  Germany. So, 
through t h e  i n t e r p r e t e r  I expl-kined t h a t  as 



Bulcke: 	 f a r  a s  o u r  own o r g a n i z a t i o n  i s  concerned, t h e  
ILWU had n o t  been i n  f avor  of what happened 
a t  Hiroshima and we f e l t  i t  was a very bad 
th ing ,  A f t e r  t h e s e  explana t ions ,  t h e  Japanese 
man became f r i e n d l y ,  and through t h e  i n t e r p r e t e r  
he expla ined  t h a t  t h e  moment he  saw anyth ing  
American he would immediately g e t  mad, r e a l i s i n g  
t h a t  at  Hiroshima he had l o s t  h i s  family,  his 
c h i l d r e n ;  he was a r e a l  victim. 

A f t e r  t h a t  whenever we went anywhere, and 
p a r t i c u l a r l y  i f  we d i d n ' t  go wi th  t h e  conducted 
t o u r s ,  t h e  Japanese would always ask i f  t hey
could go a long  wi th  us,  so f o r  a number of  days 
they  would be wi th  us ,  Through t h e  i n t e r p r e t e r s  
we would have a n i c e  conversa t ion  and t a l k  
about t h e  c o n d i t i o n s  we worked under and they  
worked under and so on. That ended up by having 
a r e a l  f r i e n d l y  f e e l i n g  .amongst all of us, 

I thought  t h a t  was q u i t e  a t h i n g ,  because a 
r e l a t i v e  of my wife  who was i n  t h e  s e r v i c e  
went down i n  t h e  B a t t l e  of t h e  Coral  Sea and 
was p icked  up by t h e  Japanese,  He was a p r i -
soner  f o r  t h e  r e s t  of t h e  w a r ,  and w a s  imprisoned
a t  t h e  o t h e r  p l a c e  where they  dropped t h e  bomb, 
Nagasaki, He e v e n t u a l l y  came back bu t  he wasn' t  
f e e l i n g  t o o  wel l ,  and we were q u i t e  s u r e  t h a t  i t  
must have been t h e  e f f e c t  of t h e  bomb, He 
passed  away a few y e a r s  l a t e r ,  

I t o l d  t h e  Japanese about i t  and they  under- 
s tood  t h a t  I was wel l  aware of what had happen- 
ed i n  Hiroshima and Nagasaki, So t h a t  was t h e  
s i t u a t i o n  t h e r e ,  

Ward: 	 Now, J e r r y ,  you went t o  t h e  American Consulate  
i n  B e r l i n  f o r  some reason. What was t h a t ?  

Bul cke : 	 Yes, Dick and I decided t h a t  a l though we had a 
l is t  of t r a d e  unions  both i n  Eas t  Germany and 
West Germany, i t  might be worth while  t o  go 
see  t h e  American Consul who had his o f f i c e  i n  
West Ber l in ,  A t  t h a t  t ime t h e r e  was no problem - -

Ward: 	 No wal l?  



Bulcke: 	 No w a l l ,  You got  on t h e  subway and went, The 
only  t h i n g  t h a t  happened i s  when you came back 
on t h e  subway, i f  you had any p a r c e l s  o r  
packages, t h e  customs guard would look  a t  them, 

Ward: 	 What do you mean when you came back? 

Bul cke: 	 When you came back from West B e r l i n  t o  E a s t  
Ber l in ;  t h e  subways were run  by Eas t  Ber l in ,  
We decided i t  might be a good i d e a  t o  go and 
s e e  t h e  Consul, t e l l  why we were t h e r e  and ask 
f o r  a l is t  of  West German t r a d e  unions, We 
had a l is t ,  of course,  bu t  we wanted to..make 
an excuse f o r  a s o r t  of cour tesy  c a l l ,  

When we got  t h e r e  t h e  Consul was n o t  i n .  
However, he  had a person who spoke f o r  him who 
w a s  obviously German but  spoke s u f f i c i e n t  
Engl ish,  He t o l d  u s  he had spent  t h r e e  y e a r s  
i n  t h e  United S t a t e s ,  We expla ined  o u r  mission 
and he s a i d  t h a t  wouldnft  be d i f f i c u l t  bu t  i t  
would t a k e  him a couple of  days t o  g e t  t h e  l is t  
toge the r ,  I s a i d  t h a t  was f i n e  and I apprec ia t ed  
his help,  

He s a i d ,  "Now, where a r e  you staying?tl So, 
I gave h i m  t h e  address  i n  East B e r l i n  and 
suggested t h a t  he could phone us. "Oh, no," 
he s a i d ,  "dont t  you know t h a t  t h e  Communists 
have c u t  o f f  all t h e  teleph,one connect ions 
between E a s t  and West Berlin?tf  

I sa id ,  1fThatIs news t o  me, T h i s  morning 
at t h e  h o t e l  I c a l l e d  t h e  a i r p o r t  i n  West 
B e r l i n  t o  make arrangements f o r  Gur f u r t h e r  
f l i g h t s  i n  Western Europe and we had no 
d i f f i c u l t y ,  Also I have used t h e  phone a 
number of  t imes  t o  people I know t h a t  l i v e  i n  
West Ber l in ,  and when d id  they  cu t  t h e s e  l i n e s  
of  f?ff  

He s a i d ,  "Oh, i t 1  s been t h a t  way f o r  q u i t e  
a l o n g  time!ft I r e a l i z e d  he was caught up 
with,  so I s a i d ,  "Well, t h a t 1  s s t r ange ;  when 
I g e t  back t o  t h e  United S t a t e s  I I m  c e r t a i n l y
going t o  l e t  people  know t h e  t rea tment  I 



Bulcke: 	 r e c e i v e d  h e r e  i n  t h e  American Consulate,  I 
know f o r  a f a c t  t h a t  t h e  l i n e s  a r e  open,fl I 
p o i n t e d  t o  t h e  phone and s a i d ,  " J u s t  t o  
s a t i s f y  me, and you too ,  why donf t you phone 
t h e  number t h a t  I g ive  you a t  t h e  ho te l ? f f  He 
r e f u s e d  t o  do so,  so  I s a i d ,  ffWell ,  If11make 
s u r e  t h i s  i s  known when I g e t  back," And we 
walked out ,  (So, when I came back I d i d  c a l l  
a number of S e n a t o r s  and Congressmen I knew 
and t o l d  them of  t h i s  t r ea tmen t , )  

Then we went from t h e r e  t o  t h e  a i r p o r t  t o  
make arrangements  f o r  o u r  a d d i t i o n a l  f l i g h t s  
i n  West Germany wi th  Pan Am where I had con-
nec t ions ,  I n  e x p l a i n i n g  where we wanted t o  
go and t r y i n g  t o  f i g u r e  o u t  t h e  t iming  and so 
f o r t h ,  one of t h e  l a s t  t h i n g s  t h e  c l e r k  asked 
me was, f fWha t f s  your  address ,  where a r e  you 
s taying?" I gave h i m  t h e  name of t h e  h o t e l  i n  
Eas t  B e r l i n  and h e  marked i t  down and s a i d  t h a t  
he would s e e  t o  i t  t h a t  o u r  t i c k e t s  were s e n t  
ove r  - no problem, 

Well, behind me was a  man and wife  and an 
e l even  y e a r  o l d  boy who had overheard  t h i s  
conversa t ion ,  A s  I s tepped  back he  s a i d ,  
"Pardon me, I couldnft h e l p  b u t  overhear  your 
conversa t ion ,  You mean you a r e  s t a y i n g  i n  Eas t  
Ber l in?"  I s a i d ,  "Yes, I am," He s a i d ,  "We 
were warned n o t  t o  go ove r  t h e r e ,  t h a t  t h e r e  
would be all k i n d s  of t r o u b l e ,  b u t  I was anxious  
t o  go ove r  t h e r e  and s e e  what i t  i s  l i k e , "  

I s a i d ,  "There a r e  no problems and i f  you 
want t o come wi th  me, If11be l e a v i n g  i n  a  
few minutes  and If11 w a i t  u n t i l  you g e t  through, 
and h e l p  make your arrangements,  1 1 1 1  t a k e  you 
along,  

He s a i d ,  !!Can I s t a y  a t  t h e  h o t e l  t h a t  you're 
a t?"  I s a i d ,  "No, u n f o r t u n a t e l y  you c a n f t ,  
because i t f s a h o t e l  t h a t  i s  o p e r a t e d  and owned 
by t h e  t r a d e  union movement, t h e  Cornfederation, 
However, t h e r e  i s  a  h o t e l  r i g h t  around t h e  
c o r n e r  where I f m  s u r e  you can be accommodated," 



Bul cke: 	 He looked  a t  his wife  and s a i d ,  IIWell, what do 
you t h i n k ,  honey?" And she s a i d ,  tlLett s go,tl 
And so they  came along with  Dick and me on t l ie 
subway and I took them over  t o  t h e  h o t e l ,  
About t h r e e  days l a t e r  he came over  t o  t h e  h o t e l  
where I w a s  s t a y i n g  and thanked me very much, 
He was on h i s  way back and he s a i d ,  "When I g e t  
back t o  C inc inna t i ,  ( t h a t 1s where he w a s  from) 
I t m  c e r t a i n l y  going t o  make t h a t  newsworthy," 
So, this i s  ano the r  example of  t h e  s t u f f  t h a t  
went on a t  t h a t  t ime and t h e  misinformation 
t h a t  was g iven  t o  people,  

Ward: 	 That! s i n t e r e s t i n g  t o  me, because Lou Goldb la t t  
had a similar exper ience  i n  Moscow at t h e  
American Embassy a y e a r  e a r l i e r ,  i n  159, 

Bulcke: 	 Oh, yeah! 

Ward: 	 The i n c i d e n t  was a  l i t t l e  d i f f e r e n t ,  b u t  t h e  
i d e a  was t h e  same, 

Bulcke: 	 Well, ano the r  t h i n g  I no t i ced ,  t h e r e  i s  a 
b e a u t i f u l  war memorial i n  Eas t  Ber l in ,  I t ' s  
well-known and i t  a t t r a c t s  thousands of  people, 
We went t h e r e  a  couple  of t imes  and t h e r e  I s a w  
about  s i x  b i g  United S t a t e s  Army busses;  o f  
course ,  h e r e  were American s o l d i e r s ,  They 
d i d n t t  have any arms with them, but  t h e y  were 
i n  uniform and they  were brought ove r  t o  take a 
l o o k  a t  t h i s  n i c e  memorial, So, obviously,  
t h e r e  w a s  no d i f f i c u l t y  g e t t i n g  t h e r e ,  

I must say  t h a t  a y e a r  l a t e r ,  f o r  my vaca t ion ,  
I took my wife  back t o  E a s t  Ber l in ,  I wanted 
h e r  t o  s e e  what I had seen, We had no d i f f i -
c u l t y  g e t t i n g  t h e r e ,  I wrote t o  t h e  Trade Union 
F e d e r a t i o n  and they  t o l d  me a l l  t hey  needed t o  
know was t h e  in fo rma t ion  on my p a s s ~ o r t .  They 
met u s  at t h e  a i r p o r t  i n  E a s t  B e r l i n ,  and t h e y  
had a b i g  bouquet of r o s e s  f o r  my wife, The 
p r e s i d e n t  of t h e  t r a d e  union f e d e r a t i o n  was 
t h e r e  and some o t h e r s ,  



Bulcke: 	 They took u s  up t o  h i s  o f f i c e  where we had a 
n i c e  luncheon and wine t o  dr ink,  And t h e n  
t h e y  a s s igned  u s  t o  t h e  same h o t e l  I s ta  ed 
i n  before ,  I wanted t o  v i s i t  an acquain Iance 
of mine t h a t  l i v e d  about oh, 40 m i l e s  I t h i n k  
i t  was, from E a s t  Ber l in ,  

I asked, '!How do I g e t  t h e r e ?  Do I t a k e  a 
bus, a ra i lway,  o r  how do I g e t  there?!' They 
s a i d ,  !'When do you want t o  go?'! And I s a i d ,  
!'Well, tomorrow,'! I had t h a t  i n  mind, They
s a i d ,  "Don1 t worry, w e f l l  t a k e  you there , f '  
So, t hey  a s s igned  a ca r ,  a chauffeur ,  an i n -  
t e r p r e t e r  and took u s  where we wanted t o  go, 

There they  s a i d ,  "How l o n g  a r e  you going t o  
be here? D o n f t  be i n  any hurry,!' f'Oh,fl I s a i d ,  
l f w e f l l  be h e r e  about t h r e e  hours,!! And they  
s a i d ,  1'Wefll be back,!!and. t hey  disappeared;  
about  t h r e e  hours  l a t e r  t h e r e  they  were and they 
took u s  back, 

Not on ly  t h a t ,  t h e y  drove u s  from t h e  
Czechoslovakian border  t o  t h e  B a l t i c  - up and 
down - and took u s  t o  every p l a c e  of i n t e r e s t  
t o  see,  And wouldnf t  a l low me t o  spend a 
n i c k e l ,  When we went t o  r e s t a u r a n t s ,  t h e y  took 
c a r e  of  i t ,  

When we f i n a l l y  decided t h a t  we were going 
t o  l e a v e  I had made no r e t u r n  arrangements wi th  
t h e  a i r l i n e s ,  I wanted t o  go t o  Belgium where 
I had a younger s i s t e r  who was still  a l i v e ,  
and v i s i t  her ,  I asked them t o  make t h e  con-
n e c t i o n s ,  and i t  i s  a good t h i n g  I unders tood 
German because t h e y  were about t o  pay f o r  my 
t i c k e t ,  which I d idnft a l low them t o  do, They
j u s t  c o u l d n f t  do enough, They have a monthly
magazine - t h e  Fede ra t ion  does, and I have been 
r e c e i v i n g  t h i s  magazine ever  s ince ,  

Ward: 	 I t h i n k  I saw i t  on your t a b l e ,  

Bulcke: 	 Yes, yes ;  i t  h a s  in fo rma t ion  about what goes 
on i n  t h e  t r a d e  unions  i n  E a s t  Germany, and 
o t h e r  news too  of i n t e r e s t ,  I always look  
forward t o  s e e i n g  it. So, t h o s e  a r e  what I 
c a l l  my E a s t  German v i s i t s ,  
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Doesnf t sound h o r r i b l e  a t  all, 

No, they  were very enjoyable t r i p s  and t h e  
people couldnf t j u s t  do enough f o r  us, 

You c o u l d n f t  r e t u r n  t h e  compliment by i n v i t i n g  
them over  here? 

I did,  I t o l d  them I hoped t h a t  cond i t ions  
were such t h a t  they  could make t h e  t r i p  t o  
t h e  United S t a t e s ;  they  would be most welcome, 
Of course,  they  never d i d  make it. 

You couldnft speak f o r  t h e  White House? 

No, of course not ,  

I know t h a t  i n  my w i f e ' s  family t h e r e  i s  one 
cousin i n  I t a l y  who would have very much l i k e d  
t o  come t o  t h i s  country ( h e ' s  dead now) but  he 
c o u l d n f t  because he was a known Communist. 

Well, j u s t  a few y e a r s  ago we had t h e  ILWU 
bi-annual convention i n  S e a t t l e ,  and t h e r e  
were t h r e e  o r  four  Russian newspaper represen-  
t a t i v e s  who were i n  Vancouver, Canada, attempt-
i n g  t o  come t o  our  convention, They had been 
i n v i t e d ,  but  they  were no t  allowed t o  c r o s s  t h e  
border,  

Some y e a r s  ago my wife  went t o  Kenya t o  
v i s i t  a f r i e n d  of h e r s  t h a t  was i n  t h e  Peace 
Corps. T h i s  l a d y  had asked h e r  t o  come 
because she was going t o  have h e r  vaca t ion  and 
she wanted my wife  t o  jo in  her ,  which she did. 

Vhereabouts i n  Kenya? 

She was teaching  school i n  a p l a c e  about 40 
m i l e s  from Nairobi. Anyway, while  they  were 
i n  Mombasa doing some shopping my wife  no t i ced  
a s i g n  on t h e  bu i ld ing  t h a t  showed t h i s  was 
t h e  headquar ters  of t h e  longshoremen so she 
s a i d  t o h e r  f r i e n d ,  " L e t f s  go i n  t h e r e  and 
in t roduce  ourselves.  If11 t e l l  them t h a t  my 
husband i s  a longshoreman i n  San Francisco," 



Bul cke: 	 So they  met with t h e  man who was i n  charge of 
t h e  p o r t  and he was very f r i e n d l y ,  Then he 
s a i d  t h a t  he had j u s t  rece ived  a l e t t e r  from 
George Meany c r i t i s i n g  him f o r  a l lowing a 
de lega t ion  from t h e  ILWU t o  v i s i t  t h e  Kenya 
a r e a  and t h e  P a r t ,  Meany was very c r i t i c a l  
because t h e  Kenyans had been k i n d  enough t o  
al low this de lega t ion  t o  v i s i t  t h e i r  country 
and examine t h e  condi t ions,  When he t o l d  my 
wife  t h a t  she wrote t o  me immediately; I 
happened t o  be a t  t h e  convention i n  S e a t t l e  
and I was a b l e  t o  read  t h a t  i n t o  t h e  record  - -

Ward: 	 Oh, I see,  while she was stil l  i n  - - -
Bulcke: 	 While she w a s  st i l l  i n  Kenya, and so our  ILWU 

convention records  t h e  f a c t  t h a t  t h e  head of 
t h e  AFL-CIO had c r i t i s i z e d  t h i s  man i n  charge 
of t h e  p o r t  of Mombasa f o r  a l lowing a delega-
t i o n  of t h e  ILWU t o  come the re ,  

By t h e  way, two of our  members t h a t  had 
been i n  Mombasa and Kenya were a l s o  d e l e g a t e s  
t o  t h a t  p a r t i c u l a r  convention, They immediately 
supported my motion t o  t h e  e f f e c t  t h a t  we 
should contac t  Meany and t e l l  him t o  keep h i s  
nose out of our  business ,  

You see,  i n  t h e  ILWU we have f o r  y e a r s  
s e n t  de lega t ions  of workers all over  t h e  world, 
t o  d i f f e r e n t  c o u n t r i e s  t o  compare condi t ions ;  
t h i s  happened t o  be one of those,  Tha t ' s  t h e  
t ime when t h e  Russian newspaper men were i n  
Vancouver, B,C,, t r y i n g  t o  come t o  our  conven-
t ion .  

We of course p r o t e s t e d  t o  t h e  S t a t e  Depart- 
ment and t h e  Department of Labor and we under-
s t and  t h a t  s h o r t l y  a f t e r  t h a t ,  t h e  system of 
having &any okaying t h e  v i s i t i n g  people from 
o t h e r  c o u n t r i e s  w a s  taken away from him, 



Communist Members 

Bulcke: 	 I n  t h e  ILWU, p a r t i c u l a r l y  i n  Loca l '  10 ,  t h e r e  
were, I wouldnr t say  many, bu t  t h e r e  were s i x  
members o f  o u r  un ion  who openly  made i t  c l e a r  
t h a t  t h e y  were members of  t h e  Communist p a r t y ,  

Ward: 	 Yes, Archie  Brown - - -
Bulcke: 	 Archie  Brown, f o r  one; Bebe Jones ,  and some 

o t h e r s  t h a t  have pas sed  away, Whenever i n  o u r  
meet ings  a member would g e t  up and t r y  t o  
blame t h e  Communist p a r t y  f o r  something t h a t  
wasnr t going  r i g h t ,  g e n e r a l l y  one o f  t h o s e  
f e l l o w s  would g e t  up and e x p l a i n  t h a t  he w a s  a 
member o f  t h e  Communist p a r t y  and t h a t  was n o t  
t h e  p o l i c y  of t h e  Communist p a r t y ,  which was 
n o t  i n  any way i n t e r f e r i n g  i n  t h e  i n t e r n a l  
a f f a i r s  of  o u r  l o c a l  o r  o u r  I n t e r n a t i o n a l ,  

We had t h i s  happen o f t e n ,  I mean n o t  t o o  
o f t e n ,  Whenever t h e  s i t u a t i o n  a r o s e ,  t h e r e  
would a lways be one o f  more o f  t h o s e  members 
who openly and f r a n k l y  admi t t ed  membership i n  
t h e  Communist p a r t y ,  A s  a r u l e  i t  would t u r n  
o u t  all r i g h t  and caused no i n t e r n a l  f r i c t i o n  
o r  problems w i t h i n  t h e  union,  

Ward: 	 Did any th ing  about  p a r a l l e l i s m  come up? If 
Local .  10 adopted a r e s o l u t i o n  i n  r e g a r d  t o  
oh, say,  Spain ,  and t h e  Communist p a r t y  had a 
somewhat similar s t a n d  on i t ,  would q u e s t i o n s  
l i k e  t h a t  a r i s e ?  

Bulcke: 	 Well,  such t h i n g s  d i d ,  b u t  g e n e r a l l y ,  as  I 
r e c a l l ,  t h e y  caused no d i f f i c u l t y  i n  t h e  union 
a t  all, The f a c t  t h a t  t h e  Communist p a r t y  
adopted a r e s o l u t i o n  d e a l i n g  wi th  Japan,  o r  
whatever,  and we adopted a s i m i l a r  r e s o l u t i o n  
d i d  n o t  mean i t  w a s  done because of o r  i n  
s p i t e  of t h e  Communists. We f e l t  t h a t  whenever 
t h e  Communist p a r t y  r e s o l u t i o n  d o v e t a i l e d  wi th  
o u r  p o s i t i o n  i t  was good; i t  neve r  caused any 
g r e a t  amount of  problems w i t h i n  t h e  union. 



Bulcke: 	 I remember when I was I n t e r n a t i o n a l  vice-  
p r e s i d e n t  t h a t  - n o t  t o o  o f t e n  - l e a d e r s  of  
t h e  Communist @ a r t y  would come i n  and d i s c u s s  
t r a d e  union a c t i v i t i e s ,  

Ward: 	 I was going t o  ask  about  t h a t ;  such d i s c u s s i o n s  
were f r i e n d l y ,  I guess? 

Bulcke: 	 Oh, yes ,  t h e y  would ask permiss ion  t o  come and 
t a l k  about  t h i n g s  t h a t  a f f e c t e d  t h e  t r a d e  union 
movement, and ask what o u r  p o s i t i o n  was and 
what we were going b d o  about it. They would 
s t a t e  t h e i r  p o s i t i o n ,  and many t i m e s  i t  was 
s i m i l a r  t o  ours ,  I f  n o t ,  we so  s t a t e d ,  They 
had t h e  r i g h t  t o  adopt  whatever p o s i t i o n  t h e y  
wanted, bu t  t h a t  would n o t  n e c e s s a r i l y  be t h e  
k i n d  of p o s i t i o n  we would t a k e  o r  had taken.  
Our r e l a t i o n s h i p  was always very f r i e n d l y ,  

Ward: 	 Was your  r e l a t i o n s h i p  wi th  them similar t o  t h a t  
o f  r e p r e s e n t a t i v e s  of o t h e r  p o l i t i c a l  p a r t i e s ,  
l i k e  t h e  Democratic p a r t y ,  f o r  i n s t a n c e 3  

Bulcke: 	 Well, yes,  I mean t h a t  n a t u r a l l y  occu r red  more 
o f t e n  du r ing  e l e c t i o n  times. We would, ,as a 
l o c a l  un ion  and a s  an i n t e r n a t i o n a l  union,  t a k e  
p o s i t i o n s  suppor t ing  people  f o r  c e r t a i n  o f f i c e s ,  
I t  was q u i t e  p o s s i b l e ,  ( I  can1 t t h i n k  of any 
such s i t u a t i o n  of fhand)  t h a t  t h e  Communist 
p a r t y  would suppor t  c e r t a i n  c a n d i d a t e s  t h a t  we 
supported;  i t  may have j u s t  happened t h a t  way, 

Ward: 	 I n c i d e n t a l l y ,  you1.ve met wi th  l e a d i n g  Democrats 
and you have met w i th  l e a d i n g  Communists, Did 
you e v e r  meet wi th  l e a d i n g  Republicans? 

Bulcke: 	 Leading Republ icans  . . . ? 

Ward: 	 I f  you d id ,  i t  a p p a r e n t l y  didnc t make much - - -
Bulcke: 	 I f  I d i d  i t  d i d n ' t  make much of an impress ion,  

I c m  n o t  s u r e  . . . 
Ward: 	 A l l  r i g h t .  I n  your r e l a t i o n s h i p  wi th  t h e  

employers, d i d  any d i f f i c u l t i e s  a r i s e  over  
q u e s t i o n s  o f  p o l i t i c s ,  l e f t -w ing  p o l i t i c s ?  
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No, n o t  t h a t  I can r e c a l l ,  We never  had any 
problems i n  t h a t  way, I n  o u r  r e l a t i o n s h i p  
wi th  t h e  employers, presumably most of them 
might have been Republicans,  

Probably were. 

No, we neve r  had any problem wi th  t h a t  p a r t i -  
c u l a r  phase of it, 

Nobody s a i d ,  f t I l m  a shipowner; I won't d e a l  
wi th  any Communists?" 

No - no, A s  a m a t t e r  o f  f a c t ,  one o f  ou r  
members by t h e  name of  Archie  Brown g o t  i n t o  
some d i f f i c u l t y  and t h e  employers wanted him 
discharged,  

Yes, t h a t ' s  a good p o i n t ,  He was on one of  
your  committees i n  Local  10, I b e l i e v e ,  

Yes, he was e l e c t e d  t o  t h e  execu t ive  board, 
Because he was a Communist, cha rges  were f i l e d  
a g a i n s t  h i m  by t h e  government and i t  went to t h e  
Supreme Court,  I t  was thrown o u t  and he  
main ta ined  h i s  membership and h i s  p o s i t i o n  on 
t h e  e x e c u t i v e  board, 

But I ' m  t h i n k i n g  of  an i n c i d e n t  d e a l i n g  wi th  
t h e  m i l i t a r y ,  and . . ... 
Deal ing  wi th  t h e  m i l i t a r y ?  

I n  t h e  e a r l y  p a r t  of  t h e  war t h e r e  was a r u l i n g
t h a t  longshoremen should n o t  t a l k  about  what 
t hey  were load ing ,  so  we had t h e  s ta tement ,  
"Zip Your Liptt; don ' t  t a l k  about what you a r e  
load ing ,  where i t  i s  going,  and what have you, 

T h i s  was r e l i g i o u s l y  fol lowed by o u r  members, 
so  one n i g h t  I was c a l l e d  up a t  home by a 
s teward o u t  o f  a gang; t h e y  were l o a d i n g  a 
s h i p  at t h e  Army docks i n  San Franc isco ,  He 
asked me t o  come down, 



Bulcke: 	 He sa id ,  " I 1 m  aware of t h e  r u l e  and I can1t 
t a l k  about what I w a n t  t o  t e l l  you but  I 
want you t o  come and see it." I knew t h e  man 
and I knew he w a s  a s i n c e r e  steward, so I went 
down t h e  Army docks. I knew t h e  ha tch  he w a s  
working at,  and herel  s what happened. When I 
go t  t o l h e  sh ip ,  t h e  steward met me and asked me 
t o  come on down and he would show me what he 
wanted me t o  see. , I n  those  e a r l y  days of t h e  
war, each of t h e  m i l i t a r y  branches, Air Corps 
o r  Army, Marines, whatever, each had what they  
c a l l e d  a load ing  o f f i c e r ,  who w a s  i n  charge of 
cargo designed f o r  t h a t  p a r t i c u l a r  group. 

What had happened w a s  t h i s :  they  had loaded 
a i r p l a n e s  with t h e  wings detached; they  were 
boxed. They had pu t  t h e  p lanes  i n  t h e  lower 
hold  a t  t h e  bottom of t h e  ha tch  and then  they  
had put  dunnage, which i s  lumber, on top  of t h e  
planes.  Then they  had loaded s m a l l  t a n k s  on 
top  of t h i s .  So, t h e  steward had complained t o  
t h e  load ing  o f f i c e r ,  who s a i d  he had noth ing  
t o  do with t h e  a i r p l a n e  p a r t s  and he was only  
i n t e r e s t e d  i n  g e t t i n g  his s t u f f  i n  - - - 

Ward: 	 Which were t h e  tanks? 

Bulcke: 	 Which were t h e  tanks,  all heavy s t u f f  t h a t  
normally should have been on t h e  bottom. 

Ward: 	 The t a n k s  should have been on t h e  bottom? 

Bulcke: 	 Cer ta in ly .  Well, I got t h e  General i n  charge 
of t h e  p o r t  ou t  of bed at 1:30 i n  t h e  morning. 
I t  took me some time t o  g e t  him, but  I go t  him 
and I t o l d  him what w a s  going on. I wanted 
him t o  see  i t  and s t o p  i t ,  c o r r e c t  t h e  s i t u a -  
t ion ,  

Be grumbled but  agreed t o  come along, but  
by t h e  t ime we got  t o  t h e  dock t h e  sh ip  had 
p u l l e d  out  and w a s  going t o  t h e  Army base i n  
Oakland, So we went over t o  Oakland and waited 
f o r  t h e  s h i p  t o  g e t  i n  and su re  enough even i n  
t h a t  s h o r t  d i s t a n c e  t h e  t a n k s  were on t h e  
bottom and t h e  p lanes  were all destroyed o r  
badly damaged. 



Bulcke: 	 Of course ,  t h e  General  p leaded  wi th  me - p l e a s e ,  
p l e a s e ,  donr t  e v e r  mention t h i s ,  I d i d n ' t  
mention i t ,  a t  t h a t  t ime, b u t  t h i s  was t h e  
s i t u a t i o n  i n  t h e  e a r l y  p a r t  of t h e  w a r ,  I ima-
g i n e  i t  a l s o  happened i n  o t h e r  p l a c e s ,  

C e r t a i n l y  i t  was a shame t o  have t h i s  k i n d  of 
s i t u a t i o n  develop, The members of  t h e  gang, 
some o f  them had sons  i n  t h e  s e r v i c e  and t h e y  
r e a l i z e d  t h a t  t h e  d e s t r u c t i o n  o f  t h a t  s t u f f  w a s  
going t o  h u r t  u s  more t h a n  i t  would t h e  o t h e r  
s i d e ,  

We a l s o  had a s i t u a t i o n  a t  t h e  Matson docks 
one t ime, I was p u t  on a committee which had a 
r e p r e s e n t a t i v e  o f  t h e  government, t h e  employers, 
arid myself r e p r e s e n t i n g  t h e  union,  t o  t r y  t o  
u t i l i z e  manpower more e f f i c i e n t l y ,  A t  t h a t  
t ime  t h e  employers were g e t t i n g  1 0  p e r  cen t  
above t h e  p a y r o l l ,  So, t h e  l a r g e r  t h e  p a y r o l l  
t h e  more t h e y  made, They were was t ing  manpower 
many t i m e s  over,  

Ward: 	 These were t h e  s t evedor ing  companies? 

Bulcke: 	 Yes, t h e  s t e v e d o r i n g  companies and t h e  sh ipp ing  
companies, Many t i m e s  they  had men s t a n d i n g  by 
f o r  hour s  on end wi th  no work, That didn' t 
make any d i f f e r e n c e ,  you know; t h e  employers 
were g e t t i n g  t h e i r  t e n  p e r  cen t ,  So, we were 
t r y i n g  t o  work o u t  means t o  u t i l i z e  t h e  work 
f o r c e  more e f f i c i e n t l y ,  

One o f  t h e  Matson l i n e r s  came back from i t s  
r e g u l a r  t r i p  t o  A u s t r a l i a  and t h e  m i l i t a r y  were 
very anxious  t o  g e t  t h a t  s h i p  d i scharged  because 
they  wanted t o  t a k e  t r o o p s  , , , , 

Ward: 	 They wanted a quick turn-around? 

A Quick Turn-Around 

Bulcke: 	 A quick turn-around because t h e y  were t a k i n g  
t r o o p s  o v e r  t o  t h e  Phkl ipp ines .  We had a con-
f e r e n c e  ~lriltht h e  m i l i t a r y  and t h e  l+atson Company 



Bulcke: 	 r e p r e s e n t a t i v e s  and t r i e d  t o  f i g u r e  ou t  how 
f a s t  we could g e t  t h e  s h i p  unloaded, A s  I 
r e c a l l  i t ,  t h e  Matson Company maintained t h a t  
u s i n g  a l l  p o s s i b l e  manpower i t  would t a k e  135 
hours  t o  d i scha rge  t h e  v e s s e l ,  t o  be ready t o  
be tu rned  over,  I ques t ioned  t h a t  and I s t a t e d  
t h a t  i f  I was allowed t o  choose t h e  gangs and 
t h e  superv is ion ,  we could do i t  i n  much l e s s  
t ime than  t h a t ,  

Bulcke: 	 I w a s  s u r e  t h a t  I could g e t  t h e  s h i p  unloaded 
i n  l e s s  than  100  hours,  

Ward: 	 You c u t  o u t  35 hours,  

Bulcke: 	 And immediately t h e  Matson Company ob jec ted ,  
say ing  t h a t  a f t e r  a l l  they  were t h e  experienced 
people  and they  knew what t h e  s h i p  w a s  l i k e ,  
t h e  cargo was l i k e  and what have you, They
cou ldn ' t  s e e  how i t  could be done i n  l e s s  t h a n  
130  hours,  

The m i l i t a r y  r e p r e s e n t a t i v e  immediately t o l d  
t h e  Matson Company t h a t  I w a s  t o  be g iven  a 
f r e e  hand t o  do what I wanted, even i f  i t  only  
saved f i v e  hours. 

The r e s u l t  was t h a t  I picked c e r t a i n  gangs 
and c e r t a i n  supe rv i s ion  t h a t  I knew, t o l d  them 
of  t h e  s i t u a t i o n  where they  r e a l l y  had t o  pu t  
o u t  as b e s t  a s  t h e y  could t o  g e t  t h e  s h i p  
discharged,  

We g o t  t h e  s h i p  t u r n e d  around i n  90 hours,  
Na tu ra l ly ,  t h a t  d i d n ' t  make Matson very happy, 
bu t  t h e  m i l i t a r y  was q u i t e  s a t i s f i e d ,  

Ward: 	 You could speak t o  t h e  General a f t e r  t h a t ?  

Bulcke: 	 Oh, yeah. L a t e r  on we had another  s i t u a t i o n  
t h a t  occur red  over  a t  t h e  Army docks over  i n  
Oakland, A s  I s t a t e d  be fo re  I was on a commit-
t e e  t h a t  went around t o  u t i l i z e  t h e  manpower t o  



Bulcke: 	 t h e  b e s t  of our  a b i l i t y ,  So, I n o t i c e d  a 
t anker  l a y i n g  t h e r e  and t h e  gangs were not  
working, I went over  and t a l k e d  t o  one of t h e  
s tewards of t h e  gang and I s a i d ,  - !!What?s going
on?" He s a i d ,  "1 don' t  know, T h i s  i s  t h e  
second n i g h t  t h a t  we sat he re  and we havenl t  
done a t a c k  of work, We're supposed t o  l o a d  
a i r p l a n e s  on top  of t h e  tanker," 

I sa id ,  !!Well, where a r e  t h e  a i rp lanes?"  
He sa id ,  "1 donct know, but  i f  you look f u r t h e r  
down on some barges,  you could see  some air-
p lanes,!! 

So, I went i n t o  t h e  d i s p a t c h e r  o f f i c e ,  and 
I knew t h e  man at  t h e  desk the re ,  I s a i d ,  
!!What's going on? There were f i v e  gangs of men 
s t and ing  by all n i g h t  l as t  n i g h t  and probably 
all day yesterday," And he s a i d ,  !!Yes," And 
I s a i d ,  !!They're supposed t o  be l o a d i n g  air-
p l a n e s  - what ' s happened?" 

He s a i d ,  "1 don' t  know, I don ' t  t h i n k  t h e  
p l a n e s  a r e  he re  yet,!! And I s a i d ,  "Well, 
t h e r e  a r e  some p l a n e s  down t h e r e  on some barges,  
Have you checked them out?" And he s a i d ,  "1 
work n i g h t s ,  I d idnct  know,l! 

So, he l o o k s  over;  t h e r e ?s a l i t t l e  s p i n d l e  
on h i s  desk, and way on t h e  bottom t h e r e  was a 
number s ix ,  He says,  "Oh, my god, yes,  they
a r e  t h e  planes,!! So, we got  them t o  move t h e  
ba rges  over. 

Th i s  i s  an example of a waste of manpower 
and de lay  i n  g e t t i n g  t h e  necessary  equipment 
wherever i t  was going, They go t  them t o  l o a d  
t h e  planes,  of course,  We had similar s i t u a -
t i o n s  o f f  and on which I c a n ' t  off-hand r e c a l l ,  

Ward: 	 I g e t  t h e  impression, J e r r y ,  t h a t  t h e  examples 
you have j u s t  given of waste and mismanagement 
were more f requent  dur ing  t h e  e a r l y  p a r t  of 
t h e  w a r  than l a t e r ,  



Bul cke: 

Ward: 

Bul cke: 
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Bulcke: 

Ward: 

Bulcke: 

Ward: 

Bul cke: 

Ward: 

Bulcke : 

Well, yes ,  though t h e  one I j u s t  mentioned o f  
t h e  p l a n e s  was when t h e  war w a s  on a coup&e 
o f  y e a r s ;  t h e  f i r s t  one about t h e  a i r p l a n e  
damage was e a r l y  i n  t h e  war, T h i s  by now w a s  
s imply mismanagement; someone didnt  t t e l l  
someone where t h e  p l a n e s  were and t h e y  had a t  
l e a s t  wasted 24 hours ,  w i th  men s t a n d i n g  by 
and g e t t i n g  p a i d  b u t  no produc t ion ,  

Did t h e y  u s e  t h e n  t h e  World War I expres s ion  
llsnaful? - " s i t u a t i o n  normal, all f o u l e d  up?" 

I t h i n k  t h e y  d i d  - yeah, Of course ,  i t f s  
unde r s t andab le  t h a t  t h i n g s  d idnf  t always work 
o u t ,  But t h i s  w a s  an o u t s t a n d i n g  example and 
we t r i e d  t o  t h e  b e s t  of  o u r  a b i l i t y  t o  u t i l i z e  
t h e  manpower o f  t h e  f e l l ows ,  

Were t h e  longshoremen all h e r o e s  i n  t h e  war, 
all v i r t u o u s  and hardworking o r  d i d  you have 
problems w i t n  t h e  men? 

We had no problems w i t h  t h e  men, because t h e  
m a j o r i t y  of  them - I say,  many of  them - had 
s o n s  i n  t h e  s e r v i c e ,  Many of them, i f  anybody 
s t a r t e d  t o  s l a c k  o f f ,  t h e s e  guys would g e t  
a f t e r  them and say ,  "Look, e i t h e r  p u t  up o r  g e t  
o f f  t h e  ship." And t h e y  r e a l l y  produced; t hey  
worked ve ry  hard,  

The average  longshoreman i n  t h o s e  days  w a s  
working 60 hour s  a week - 10 h o u r s  a day, 
s i x  days  a week? 

Right  - r i g h t ,  They g o t  one day o f f  every two 
weeks, 

Oh, boy, t h e y  worked s i x  and h a l f  days? 

Right  - r i g h t ,  They worked s i x  and h a l f  days  -
yes ,  one day o f f  every  two weeks, 

I remember guys  s ay ing  t h e y  h a r d l y  knew what 
t o  do w i t h  t h e  money, bu t  t h e y  s u r e  would l i k e  
a day o f f ,  

R igh t ,  



I V  LABORS 	 I N  OTHER FIELDS 

Running A C e n t r a l  Labor Body 

Ward: 	 Going back t o  t h e  days  of t h e  S q  F ranc i sco  
C I O  Council ,  you were asked t o  s t e p  i n  and f i l l  
a  need the re .  Execut ive  S e c r e t a r y ,  I t h i n k  i t  
w a s ,  i n  1940, wasnt t i t ?  

Bul cke: 	 Yes. The t h e n  s e c r e t a r y ,  Herman S tuyve laa r ,  
was n o t  q u i t e  capable  o'f running  t h e  counc i l  
t h e  way i t  r e a l l y  should be. The l e a d e r s h i p  
of  t h e  ILWU, Harry and o t h e r s ,  asked me t o  run 
f o r  t h e  job as s e c r e t a r y - Q r e a s u r e r  o f  t h e  C I O  
Council.  I agreed  I would run  and, i f  e l e c t e d ,  
I wanted them t o  unders tand  t h a t  I d i d  n o t  
want t o  s t a y  more t h a n  one year. I f e l t  t h a t  
my p o s i t i o n  was on t h e  w a t e r f r o n t ,  and n o t  
uptown. I wanted t o  s t a y  c l o s e r  . to t h e  ILWU. 

Ward: 	 You had t o  go around and s e r v i c e  o t h e r  unions ,  
d i d n r t  you? You had some expe r i ences  du r ing  
t h a t  year ,  d i d n r t  you? You d i d n r t  s e r v i c e  t h e  
ILWU SO much as . . . . 

Bul cke : 	 Oh, no - no. A s  s e c r e t a r y - t r e a s u r e r  o f '  t h e  
C I O  Council i t  was my job t o  keep i n  c l o s e  
c o n t a c t  w i th  all t h e  a f f i l i a t e d  l o c a l s  t o  t h e  
Council. Many t i m e s  I would appear  a t  t h e i r  
p a r t i c u l a r  meet ings  t o  exp la in  t h e  p o s i t i o n  
of t h e  Council  o r  t h e  need f o r  suppor t  f o r  
c e r t a i n  p o s i t i o n s  t h a t  t h e  Council  had adopted. 
We r e a l l y  were a b l e  t o ' g e t  t h e  Council  t o  
f u n c t i o n  i n  a much b e t t e r  way. 

Ward: 	 Did you sit i n  on any of t h e  n e g o t i a t i o n s  of  
t h e  o t h e r  unions? 



Bul cke: 
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Ward: 

Bul cke: 

Ward: 

I s a t  i n  on a  number of them; I would si t  i n  
wi th  t h e i r  n e g o t i a t i n g  committees i n  at tempt- 
i n g  t o  r each  s a t i s f a c t o r y  agreements between 
t h e  p a r t i e s .  T h i s  was p a r t  o f  t h e  duty o f  
t h e  s e c r e t a r y  of t h e  Council,  

You added a  l i t t l e  weight t o  t h e  union s ide?  

Exac t ly ,  The f a c t  t h a t  I r e p r e s e n t e d  a l a r g e  
union t h a t  was wel l  e s t a b l i s h e d  had some 
weight i n  t h o s e  nego t i a t ions .  A s  I r e c a l l ,  
g e n e r a l l y  we were a b l e  t o  conclude t h e  nego- 
t i a t i o n s  i n  a s a t i s f a c t o r y  manner f o r  t h e  
l o c a l s  involved.  

Was t h a t  e x ~ e r i e n c e  i n  t h e  C I O  Council l e s s  o r  
more i n t e r e & t i n g  t h a n  your exper ience  a s  an 
o f f i c e r  of  t h e  ILWU? 

Well, i t  was d i f f e r e n t  because i n  s i t t i n g  i n  
on n e g o t i a t i o n s  wi th  v a r i o u s  l o c a l s  whose 
members d i d  d i f f e r e n t  k i n d s  of work gave me 
an oppor tun i ty  t o  become acquain ted  wi th  t h e i r  
a c t i v i t i e s ,  t h e i r  k i n d  of  work and t h e i r  prob- 
lems. Ac tua l ly  i t  was an educa t ion  t o  me t o  
f i n d  o u t  j u s t  what t h e  problems were i n  o t h e r  
l o c a l s  and how t o  r e s o l v e  them, 

You met a d i f f e r e n t  bunch of employers, too? 

Oh, d e f i n i t e l y  d i f f e r e n t  t h a n  t h e  w a t e r f r o n t  
employers; many of  them q u i t e  d i f f i c u l t  t o  
dea l  with. But i t  w a s  an e n r i c h i n g  exper ience  
and I look  back a t  i t  sometimes and f e e l  i t  w a s  
q u i t e  educa t iona l ,  I ' m  s a t i s f i e d  t h a t  we were 
s u c c e s s f u l  i n  most i n s t a n c e s  where we had 
problems i n  n e g o t i a t i o n s .  

Did i t  make you f e e l  t h a t  p o l i t i c s  d i d  go p a s t  
t h e  wa te r f ron t?  

Oh, d e f i n i t e l y ,  d e f i n i t e l y .  

You go t  t o  t h i n k i n g  of  Sacramento and way 
p l a c e s ,  



Bulcke: 	 Right ,  r i g h t ,  

Exper iences  i n  Washington. D, C, 

Ward: 	 Now, you spen t  13 y e a r s  as I n t e r n a t i o n a l  Vice- 
P r e s i d e n t ,  and t h a t  meant you had t o  run  around 
q u i t e  a b i t ,  I unders tand  t h a t  you had t o  go 
back t o  Washington once i n  a  whi le  on l e g i s -  
l a t i v e  m a t t e r s ,  

Bul cke: 	 T h a t I s  r i g h t ,  During my term a s  I n t e r n a t i o n a l  
Vice-President  i t  became necessa ry  many t i m e s  
t h a t  one o r  more of  o u r  o f f i c e r s ,  myself
inc luded ,  were r e q u i r e d  t o  go t o  Washington, 
D, C,  We would appear  b e f o r e  l e g i s l a t i v e  
committees o r  d e a l  wi th  S e n a t o r s  o r  Congress- 
men r e g a r d i n g  l e g i s l a t i o n  pending t h a t  we e i t h e r  
opposed o r  supported,  It was necessa ry  t o  go
t o  Washington q u i t e  o f t e n ,  

Ward: 	 There w a s  something c a l l e d  t h e  Longshore Harbor 
Act? 

Bulcke: 	 Yes, and i t  i s  still  i n  e f f e c t ,  I t I s  been 
amended many t i m e s  and whenever any h e a r i n g s  
were h e l d  e i t h e r  t o  change o r  add t o  t h a t  law, 
n a t u r a l l y  r e p r e s e n t a t i o n  from t h e  ILWU was 
impor tan t ,  

An amusing i n c i d e n t  comes t o  mind, One 
t ime we had a committee of o u r  I n t e r n a t i o n a l  
e x e c u t i v e  board i n  Washington t o  v i s i t  w i th  
t h e  v a r i o u s  congressmen and s e n a t o r s  from o t h e r  
s t a t e s ;  and wh i l e  t h e r e  we had an o p p o r t u n i t y  
t o  meet w i th  Madame (Frances)  Pe rk ins ,  who was 
t h e n  S e c r e t a r y  of Labor, 

Well, one of ou r  members, whi le  s i t t i n g  i n  
' t h e  w a i t i n g  room of Madame P e r k i n s  o f f i c e ,  
n o t i c e d  on t h e  w a l l '  an engraved p laque  wi th  h e r  
name on it, He managed t o  t a k e  i t  o f f  t h e  w a l l  
and took i t  a long  home, So, from t h e n  on, he 
would m a i l  i t  t o  someone e l s e  who had been 



Bulcke: 	 t h e r e ,  myself i nc luded ,  I would m a i l  i t  on t o  
ano the r  member, and this t h i n g  went around and 
around f o r  about  a y e a r  and a h a l f ,  

I had i t  twice ,  bu t  e v e n t u a l l y  someone must 
have kep t  i t ,  b u t  we had a  l i t t l e  fun sending  
Madame P e r k i n s  around, as we c a l l e d  i t ,  t o  
remind u s  of ou r  v i s i t  w i th  h e r  i n  Washington, 
D, C, 

Ward: 	 When was t h a t ?  Oh, du r ing  t h e  war? 

Bul cke: 	 Yes, when t r a n s p o r t a t i o n  w a s  very  d i f f i c u l t ,  
One t ime I went t o  Washington, n o t  i n  connec-
t i o n  wi th  t h e  union bu t  as a  member o f  t h e  
S t a t e  F i s h  and Game Commission, 

That  was e a r l y  i n  t h e  w a r .  The f a rmers  i n  
t h e  Sacramento Val ley,  p a r t i c u l a r l y  t h e  r i c e  
growers, were q u i t e  d i s t u r b e d  by t h e  f a c t  t h a t  
t hey  couldnc t g e t  any shot-gun s h e l l s  which 
t h e y  needed t o  keep t h e  ducks away from t h e i r  
f i e l d s ,  

They appealed t o  t h e  S t a t e  F i s h  and Game 
Commission, expla ined  t h e i r  problem and asked 
u s  what we could do t o  h e l p  them g e t  t h i s  
ammunition, The F i s h  and Game Commission agceed 
t h a t  t h i s  was a problem t h a t  should be  t aken  
c a r e  of  and t h e y  asked me t o  go t o  Washington 
and meet w i th  Madame P e r k i n s  -- no, no, i t  
wasnt t Pe rk ins ,  

Ward: 	 S e c r e t a r y  of  War? 

Bul cke: 	 No - no, t h e  o l d  boy - what was h i s  name? 

Ward: 	 Harold I ckes ,  S e c r e t a r y  of t h e  I n t e r i o r ?  

Bulcke: 	 Oh, yes! I went by p l a n e  and i n  C i n c i n n a t i  
I w a s  bumped by a  m i l i t a r y  o f f i c e r ,  A t  t h a t  
time, you know, t h e y  were f l y i n g  s m a l l  p l a n e s  
t h a t  took fo reve r ,  s topped a t  every c ros s roads ,  
so  I go t  s t u c k  i n  Cinc inna t i .  



Bul cke: 	 I had t o  make arrangements t o  g e t  t r a i n  t r ans -  
p o r t a t i o n  t o  Washington, D, C, ,  which I managed
t o  do, My s u i t c a s e  w a s  st i l l  on t h e  plane,  
but I managed t o  g e t  t o  Washington, D, C, and 
by t h e  time I got  t h e r e  I had about h a l f  an 
hour f o r  my appointment with Ickes,  I grabbed 
a cab from t h e  depot and went t o  his o f f i c e ,  

I wasn't dressed  a t  all - I mean I had on 
a p a i r  of o l d  s l a c k s  and d i d n l t  have a chance 
even t o  c l ean  up o r  shave o r  anything, 

I d i d n l t  t h i n k  I looked t o o  good, but I got
t h e r e  on time, When my name was c a l l e d  I 
s t a r t e d  t o  expla in  t o  o l d  I c k e s  t h e  reason I 
looked t h e  way I d i d  and what had happened t o  
me, He sa id ,  "VJell, never mind all t h a t ;  l e t 1 s 
g e t  down t o  businessd\  

I explained t h e  s i t u a t i o n  and was a b l e  t o  g e t  
h i s  a s s i s t a n c e ;  so we got  t h e  necessary ammuni- 
t i o n  f o r  our  farmers  i n  t h e  Sacramento Valley. 
My s u i t c a s e  even tua l ly  d i d  a r r i v e  about two 
days l a t e r ,  It  was k ind  of a h a r r i e d  exper- 
i e n c e ;  a t  t h a t  t ime i t  was t h e  r u l e  t h a t  t h e  
m i l i t a r y  needed p r i o r  t r a n s p o r t a t i o n ,  Although 
I had a good r a t i n g ,  i t  wasn't high enough t o  
keep t h a t  guy from t a k i n g  my place ,  

Ward: 	 F i s h  and Game Commission, eh? I n  t h e  f i r s t  
p l a c e  you were supposed t o  go on t h e  Harbor 
Commission, werenl t you? 

A P o l i t i c a l  S i t u a t i o n  

Bulcke: 	 Now t h a t  you mention t h e  F i s h  and Game Commis- 
s ion ,  I want t o  exp la in  how I got  t o  be a 
member, 

Ward: 	 Al l  r i g h t ,  

Bulcke: 	 O r i g i n a l l y ,  when Governor Olson w a s  running 
f o r  e l e c t i o n ,  our  l o c a l  and myself were i n  h i s  
support. I w a s  au thor ized  and i n s t r u c t e d  by my 



Bulcke: 	 l o c a l  t o  t r a v e l  around Northern C a l i f o r n i a  t o  
t a l k  t o  workers wherever p o s s i b l e  t o  g e t  v o t e s  
f o r  Olson. We were s u c c e s s f u l ,  of  course ,  i n  
having him e l e c t e d .  

Right  a f t e r  t h e  e l e c t i o n  was ove r  wi th ,  t h e  
Governor s a i d  t o  me t h a t  he a p p r e c i a t e d  t h e  
work I had done and he very much wanted me i n  
h i s  admin i s t r a t ion .  I t o l d  t h e  Governor t h a t  
I had n o t  suppor ted  him wi th  t h e  i d e a  of ge t -  
t i n g  a job; I had a job and I wanted t o  s t a y
where I was. I d i d  say,  however, t h e r e  w a s  one 
p o s i t i o n  t h a t  d i d  n o t  pay a s a l a r y  where I 
thought  I could  be p a r t  of  t h e  a d m i n i s t r a t i o n  
and s t i l l  s e r v e  my own people;  t h a t  would be  
as a member of t h e  S t a t e  Harbor Commission. 

Ward: 	 Which t h e n  c o n t r o l l e d  t h e  harbor  of San 
Franc isco .  

Bul cke : 	 Well, wi thout  g e t t i n g  i n t o  a l o t  of d e t a i l ,  
when t h a t  came o u t  i n  t h e  newspapers t h e r e  
were h e a d l i n e s  saying,  i n  e f f e c t ;  "You might as 
wel l  appo in t  Bridges!" I was Bridges '  r i g h t
hand m a n ,  and t h e  Assoc ia ted  Farmers, t h e  Water- 
f r o n t  Employers - all of t h a t  group, everybody 
w a s  up i n  arms. I wrote  t h e  Governor and 
c a l l e d  him and I t o l d  him t o  withdraw my name, 
t h a t  i t  w a s  n o t  worth t h e  f i g h t .  He w a s  j u s t
e l e c t e d ,  b a r e l y  i n  o f f i c e :  

I s a i d ,  IfThey a r e  going t o  make c a p i t a l  o u t  
o f  t h a t ,  and i t ' s  n o t  worth t h a t  much. Fo rge t
i tOtfBut t h e  Governor was q u i t e  s tubborn,  he  
s a i d ,  '?I chose you, and you agreed,  and I ! m  
going t o  s t a y  wi th  YOU.^^ 

The r e s u l t  was t h a t  when t h e  conf i rmat ion  
h e a r i n g  was h e l d  on ly  one o u t  o f  t h e  t h r e e  
v o t e s  w a s  i n  my favor ,  and I d i d n t t  g e t  appointed 
t o  t h e  Harbor Commission. 

Some months a f t e rwards ,  I w a s  i n  my o f f i c e  
one day and my s e c r e t a r y  s a i d ,  "The Governor i s  
h e r e  t o  s e e  you.t1 And I s a i d ,  ffWho?tf And she  
s a i d ,  tlGovernor Olson - he! s r i g h t  here.'! Our 
o f f i c e  was on t h e  second f l o o r ,  1 4 2  Drum S t r e e t .  



Bulcke: 	 So, I sa id ,  "Tel l  h i m  t o  sit down, I ' m  busy.^^ 
I d i d n ' t  have anyone i n  my o f f i c e .  I waited 
about f i v e  minutes, and then  buzzed and t o l d  
h e r  t o  send t h e  Governor i n .  He came i n  and 
s a i d ,  "You know, I ' m  st i l l  mad a t  what 
happened t o  you on t h e  Harbor Commission. But 
I have a p o s i t i o n  I t h i n k  you can se rve  i n  and 
you won't have t h a t  problem." 

Ward: 	 Confirmation? 

The F i s h  and Game Commission 

Bulcke: I t  didnft r e q u i r e .  confirmation. So, I s a i d ,  
"What i s  tha t?"  He s a i d ,  !!The S t a t e  F i s h  and 

Game Commi~sion.~' And I s a i d ,  !'Governor, I ' m  
a s p o r t s  fisherman and I don' t  know too  much 
about what goes onmtl  And he s a i d ,  -1fWel1, you 
can learn ."  

T h i s  w a s  a Wednesday af ternoon,  and I sa id ,  
1IWel1, how much time do I have t o  agree o r  
r e j e c t  i t ? f l  He sa id ,  ' T I  have t o  know by Fr iday  
morning. f' 

We have fishermen organized i n  our  union, 
so I c a l l e d  Fishermen's l o c a l s .  They were 
e l a t e d  and sa id ,  !!For t h e  f i r s t  t ime i n  t h e  
h i s t o r y  of C a l i f o r n i a  t h e r e  w i l l  be a l a b o r  
vote  on t h e  F i s h  and Game Commission. P l e a s e  
accept.t1 Which I did. 

Well, all h e l l  broke loose .  Immediately,
t h e  an t i - l abor  f o r c e s  i n  Sacramento in t roduced 
a b i l l  making t h e  F i s h  and Game Commission 
members s u b j e c t  t o  confirmation by t h e  S t a t e  
Senat e. 

Of course,  by t h e  t ime t h e  L e g i s l a t u r e  
adopted t h i s  I had a l r eady  served a yea r  and 
a h a l f .  The Governor s a i d  he was going t o  
rename every one of us,  and he a l s o  provided 
f o r  c e r t a i n  y e a r s  of s e r v i c e  f o r  each member. 



Bulcke: 	 When t h e  new confirmation hea r ing  opened, an 
o l d e r  Senator  - he used t o  p u b l i s h  a paper  i n  
San Rafae l  - came i n t o  t h e  hea r ing  room. He 
was wel l  known and had been i n  t h e  Senate  f o r  
years .  And he w a s  p r a c t i c a l l y  b l ind ;  had t o  
be l e d  around by someone. 

So, t h e  meeting was j u s t  about t o  begin and 
he s a i d  t o  t h e  chairman of  t h e  group, 9 1 1  don ' t  
want t o  i n t e r f e r e  i n  your bus iness ,  bu t  I 
thought  1'd l i k e  t o  l e t  you know t h a t  I have 
i n  t h e  p a s t  voted a g a i n s t  t h e  confirmation of 
M r .  Bulcke f o r  t h e  Harbor Commission, 

" ' ~ u tI have been fol lowing his work i n  F i s h  
and Game and he i s  doing e x c e l l e n t  work. I 
hope you g ive  him decent cons idera t ion ,"  o r  
something t o  t h a t  e f f e c t ,  He thanked them and 
walked out.  The chairman of t h e  committee s a i d ,  
lfWell, anyone e lse?"  No one e l s e  s a i d  anything 
so  they  confirmed us. Then t h e  Governor sa id ,  
"1 wi l l  not  s e t  your terms. You'l l  draw your 
name ou t  of a hat.!! And I drew a four-year 
term. 

So, t h e  upshot of i t  was t h a t  about t h r e e  o r  
f o u r  months be fo re  my term exp i red  i n  1944, we 
had a meeting of  t h e  F i s h  and Game Commission 
i n  Sacramento. A no te  was s e n t  i n  t o  me t h a t  
t h e  new Governor - Warren - -

Ward: 	 E a r l  Warren? 

Bulcke: 	 E a r l  Warren wanted t o  s e e  me when t h e  meeting 
was over. When i t  was I went t o  h i s  o f f i c e  and 
he was s i t t i n g  a t  h i s  desk and he had about s i x  
o r  seven l e t t e r s  i n  envelopes l a y i n g  on h i s  desk. 

He s a i d ,  "Mr.  Bulcke, t h e  reason  I asked you 
t o  come i n  i s  t h a t  I have h e r e  a c e r t a i n  number 
of l e t t e r s  recommending t h a t  I re-appoint you."
He d i d n ' t  t e l l  me who t h e  l e t t e r s  were from. 
assume they  were from canner i e s  o r  from people  
i n  t h e  bus iness  - he d i d n ' t  show me t h e  l e t t e r s .  

I 



Bul cke: 	 But he s a i d ,  "You're a p r a c t i c a l  man, M r .  
Bulcke. I ' m  a Republican, your r e  a Democrat, 
and I ' m  ob l iged  t o  appoint  a Republican t o  
your p o s i t i o n  when your term expires ."  I sa id ,  
TtIunderstand you, Governor, and I thank you 
very much.ll And I walked out.  T h a t ' s  t h e  
only t ime I ever  t a l k e d  t o  h i m ,  and he appointed 
someone e l se .  

The F i s h  and Game Commission had decided 
t h a t  i n  o r d e r  t o  func t ion  proper ly ,  i t  had 
d iv ided  t h e  S t a t e  t o  have a Commissioner t o  be 
s o r t  of t h e  head man of some p a r t i c u l a r  a r e a  
of work. For  i n s t a n c e ,  I w a s  t o  t a k e  ca re  of 
all t h e  commercial f i s h i n g ,  both i n l a n d  and 
out  i n  t h e  ocean. Anything dea l ing  with t h a t  
was r e f e r r e d  t o  me and I would make whatever 
arrangements o r  recommendations I thought
appropr ia t e ;  then  t h e  ma t t e r  would be submit ted 
t o  t h e  whole commission. 

Others  had o t h e r  a reas ;  some had i n l a n d  
game hunting, and so fo r th .  Anything t h a t  
happened on t h e  coas t  o r  i n  t h e  canner ie s  at 
Monterey and San Diego and Po in t  Richmond came 
t o  me f i r s t .  So, I had t o  t r a v e l  around in -  
s p e c t i n g  t h e s e  p laces ,  see ing  what goes on and 
making recommendations t o  t h e  whole Commission. 
G e n e r d l y  t h e  recommendations of t h e  p a r t i c u l a r  
commissioner would be adopted by t h e  whole 
commission. It was a way of working, and i t  
gave me a chance t o  t r a v e l  all around Ca l i fo rn ia .  
I v i s i t e d  every f i s h  hatchery.  . . 

Ward: 	 You had t o  dea l  with t h e  Fishermenls  Union? 

Bul cke : 	 Yes, of course I d e a l t  with t h e  Fishermen's 
Union and i t s  problems. I was t h e  only  l a b o r  
voice  on t h e  Commission, and i t  was good
experience.  

I had an amusing experience.  I was de te r -  
mined t o  make s u r e  t h a t  I knew e x a c t l y  how 
everyth ing  worked. Now they  do i t  by a i r p l a n e ,
bu t  i n  those  days they  used t o  pack i n  l i t t l e  
f i s h  from t h e  h a t c h e r i e s  t o  p l a n t  them i n  t h e  
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va r ious  s t reams and l a k e s  i n  t h e  S i e r r a s ;  we 
used mules and we would r i d e  horseback. 

That was f o r  s p o r t  f i sh ing?  

Yes, t h a t  was f o r  s p o r t  f i sh ing .  I wanted t o  
see  how t h i s  worked, so I asked t o  go along 
with what they  c a l l  a mule t r a i n .  

T h i s  was run by rangers ,  weren' t  they? 

No, members of t h e  F i s h  and Game, employees. 

Wardens? 

They were a t t ached  t o  t h e  h a t c h e r i e s  - t h e y ' r e  
wardens. Anyway, on t h e s e  t r i p s  they  had t o  
s t o p  every so o f t e n  and r e f r e s h  t h e  water as we 
went up. We were q u i t e  a ways up and we ran 
i n t o  an awful thunderstorm which can occur  i n  
t h e  summer time, and springt ime too. 

The 'warden i n  charge came t o  me: ''Mr. 
Commissioner, I ' m  sor ry ,  but  i t  l o o k s  as though 
this i s  going t o  be a was tefu l  t r i p ;  we're 
going t o  l o s e  all our  fish.? '  And I sa id ,  "How 
come? We changed t h e  water." He sa id ,  "1 
know, but  t h e s e  a r e  Golden t r o u t  and Golden 
t r o u t  only  e x i s t  i n  c e r t a i n  l a k e s ,  you see." 
(Only a t  o r  above t h e  10,000 f e e t  l e v e l ) .  I 
had caught Golden t r o u t  so I knew what they  
were. He sa id ,  "The f i s h  w i l l  no t  surv ive  and 
we cannot g e t  t o  t h e  l a k e s  t h a t  we were supposed 
t o  go into."  

Because of t h e  thunder storm? 

Yes, you couldn ' t  go up any f u r t h e r  a t  t h e  
time; i t  was stil l  ra in ing .  There was a l a k e  
n e a r  u s  - Sardine  Lake, t h a t '  s t h e  name of it. 

I sa id ,  "Look, why should we l e t  all those  
l i t t l e  f i s h  d ie?  Let '  s p u t  them i n  Sardine  
Lake." He s a i d ,  "They a r e  no t  supposed t o  be 
p l a n t e d  there.!! I sa id ,  "Well, a r e  you going 
t o  waste all t h a t  fish?!' He s a i d ,  "Those a r e  
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my i n s t r u c t i o n s . "  I s a i d ,  "Look, I ' m  t h e  
Commissioner - pu t  them i n  Sardine  Lakeen So 
we did,  and I s a i d ,  " I f  t h e r e ' s  any problem, 
you r e f e r  i t  t o  me. I ' l l  t a k e  respons ib i l i ty . ' (  

Nothing happened f o r  a couple of years ,  I 

d i d n ' t  hea r  anything. 

Then, a l l  of a sudden, i n  t h e  l o c a l  papers  
t h e r e  was excitement;  they  had caught Golden 
t r o u t  i n  Sardine  Lake, How d i d  they  g e t  the re?  
Well, some s t o r i e s  were t o  t h e  e f f e c t  t h a t  
maybe some s e a g u l l  had gobbled up a l i t t l e  
Golden t r o u t  and dropped i t ,  There were j u s t  
a l l  k i n d s  of s % o r i e s  on how Sardine  Lake got 
Golden t r o u t ,  but  nobody ever  knew t h e  t r u t h .  
I don1t know whatever happened. I suppose they  
must have reproduced, and t h e r e p s  still Golden 
t r o u t  i n  Sardine  Lake, 

How does i t  f e e l  t o  e x e r t  r a w  power l i k e  t h a t ?  
You e v i d e n t l y  knew a Golden t r o u t  from a Golden 
t r o u t ;  you must have been a fisherman. 

I w a s .  I had been f i s h i n g  up t h e r e ,  p a r t i c u l a r l y  
a t  t h e  t ime I was wi th  t h e  F i s h  and Game Commis- 
s ion ,  It gave me an oppor tuni ty  t o  f i s h  i n  
v a r i o u s  l a k e s  you would not  ge t  t o ,  you know. 

What d i d  you use, b a i t  o r  f l y ?  

Mostly b a i t ;  I wasn't very good as a f l y  f i sh -  
erman. Up t h e r e  t h e  f i s h i n g  was easy; t h e r e ' s  
never  too  many people. You1 r e  up 9,000 t o  
10,000 f e e t .  

Yes, t h e  f i s h  were no t  soph i s t i ca ted .  

No. Anyway, having had t h a t  exper ience ,  I 
l i k e d  t h e  S i e r r a s  and thought of  doing some 
camping up there .  During t h a t  t ime I met my 
p r e s e n t  wife  and she had joined t h e  S i e r r a  
Club. They have annual o u t i n g s  up i n  t h e  high 
S i e r r a s  and she had made arrangements t o  go with 
h e r  son on such an out ing.  

V!hereabout s? Mark1 e v i l l e ?  



Bul cke: 	 No, no; we s t a r t e d  o u t  f u r t h e r  South,  I c a n ' t  
remember e x a c t l y  where. There was no way t h a t  
I could  j o i n  and go because t h e y  had a c e r t a i n  
quota  of  peop le  and i t  was f u l l .  The o n l y  way 
I could  go was i f  I was t h e  husband. 

So I had t o  marry h e r  i n  o r d e r  t o  go on t h e  
S i e r r a  Club t r i p ,  which I did. The t h r e e  of  
u s ,  Rusty,  myself and h e r  son, Bruce, went 
a long  wi th  t h e  club.  On o u r  f i r s t  day we start-
ed a t  two o ' c l o c k  i n  t h e  morning i n  o r d e r  t o  
g e t  up h igh  enough whi le  i t  was cool.  

We came t o  t h e  s p o t  where we were go ing  t o  
camp. They b r i n g  all your  s t u f f  on muleback 
and you don ' t  c a r r y  any th ing  b u t  your  lunch.  
F ine .  I p i cked  o u t  a n i c e  s p o t  and Bruce had 
brought  a long  a l i t t l e  f i s h i n g  r o d  and he s a i d ,  
" I ' m  go ing  t o  s e e  i f  t h e r e  a r e  any f i s h  i n  t h i s  
stream." 

I t  w a s  j u s t  a l i t t l e  stream; you could  s t e p  
a c r o s s  it.  Well,  I didn'  t want t o  d i scou rage  
him and I s a i d ,  "Sure, go ahead." And all of  
a sudden, he  h o l l e r e d ,  tfBoy, I g o t t a  f ish!" 
And he had about a twelve  i n c h  t r o u t .  You oughta  
have seen  t h e  scramble  then.  Everybody dropped 
eve ry th ing ,  g o t  t h e i r  f i s h i n g  g e a r  o u t  and t h e y  
j u s t  l i n e d  t h e  stream. I remember c l e a n i n g  
Bruce ' s  f i s h  and making a l i t t l e  f i r e .  I r o a s t -
ed t h e  f i s h  ove r  t h e  f i r e  and we a t e  i t  t h a t  
n i g h t .  So, t h a t  was a good beg inn ing  on t h e  
t r i p .  

Ward: 	 How o l d  w a s  Bruce then? 

Bulcke: 	 He w a s  an e a r l y  teen-ager  and e v i d e n t l y  knew 
something about  f i s h i n g .  On t h a t  t r i p  Bruce, 
i n  c r o s s i n g  a s t ream on a l o g ,  f e l l  i n  and g o t  
all wet. We stopped.  There  were about  200 
peop le  i n  t h e  group b u t  we were n o t  all t o g e t h e r ;  
we s t a y e d  behind and made a f i r e  t o  k i n d  o f  d ry  
him ou t .  E v e n t u a l l y  a man came a long  on horse- 
back and p icked  Bruce up and took him on t o  t h e  
camp. By t h a t  t ime i t  had g o t  dark and we could 
n o t  t e l l  where t h e  trail was. 



Bul cke : Rusty and I stumbled a long  and we f i n a l l y  saw 
a f i r e .  We went t h e r e  and i t  was p r i v a t e
people  t h a t  had t h e i r  own campground. They
t o l d  u s  where o u r  camp was and we jumped a c r o s s  
r o c k s  i n  a creek. We looked a t  i t  l a t e r  i n  
daytime and we would never  have made t h e  a t -
tempt. It was a r u s h i n g  s t ream and i t  r e a l l y  
was dangerous, bu t  w e  made it .  When we go t  t o  
t h e  camp, Bruce was a l l  set. ,They had s e t  up 
o u r  p l a c e  f o r  us,  k e p t  food w a r m  f o r  u s  and 
r e a l l y  took good c a r e  of us. I t  was q u i t e  an 
e x c i t i n g  t r i p .  

Ward: And then  you joined t h e  S i e r r a  Club? 

Bul cke: And t h e n  I joined t h e  S i e r r a  Club. 



V THE FAMILY AND THE FBI 

( In te rv iew 	5 ;  28th Ju ly ,  1983) # 

Small BOY Meets Bad Moment 

Ward: 	 J e r r y ,  you gree ted  me a t  t h e  door with t h e  news 
t h a t  your s i x t h  great-grandchi ld i s  on t h e  way. 
You have q u i t e  a brood, I be l ieve .  

Bulcke: 	 Yes, t h a t  w i l l  make 9 grandchi ldren and 6 great-
grandchildren. It1s a n i c e  family. But p r e t t y  
mixed up, as I t o l d  you before.  My step-son, 
Bruce, came t o  l i v e  with u s  when Rusty and I got  
married,  and a y e a r  l a t e r  my own son, Ken, who 
had been l i v i n g  with h i s  mother, a l s o  came t o  
l i v e  with us. 

I t  was a l i v e l y  scene when t h e  two boys were 
adolescents ,  Ken had never shared  his dad and 
Bruce had never shared h i s  mother, and i t  caused 
q u i t e  a pe r iod  of adjustment. Now they  a r e  
f r i e n d s ;  t h e i r  ages  a r e  43 and 44. Bruce i s  a 
t eacher  and Ken i s  a f i n e  mechanic and he keeps 
our  c a r s  i n  good shape and has  a l s o  given u s  
f o u r  f i n e  grandsons. Bruce' s daughter,  Shannon, 
who i s  now 20, i s  l i v i n g  with u s  f o r  t h e  summer, 
i s  a g r e a t  p leasure  f o r  us. 

Ward: 	 Let  me see. I have only four  g r e a t  grandchi ldren 
and e i g h t  grandchildren. So, you a r e  a l i t t l e  
ahead of me the re .  

Bulcke: 	 Maybe 1 had an e a r l i e r  start. 

Ward: 	 Now, you were going t o  t e l l  me a s t o r y  about one 
o f  t h e  k i d s .  



Bul ck e: 	 Well, s h o r t l y  a f t e r  Ken moved i n  he came home 
one day from school.  There were two men w a i t -
i n g  a t  t h e  door; t h e r e  was nobody home. Of 
course ,  Ken a t  t h a t  age had no knowledge of 
what was going on i n  t h e  p o l i t i c a l  f i e l d .  

Ward: 	 You say  he wasn' t  aware, Why was t h a t ?  

Bulcke: 	 Well, he had been wi th  u s  only  a very s h o r t  
p e r i o d  of time. 

Ward: 	 H i s  p r e v i o u s  home - p o l i t i c s  did111t e x i s t ?  

Bulcke: 	 No, he had l i v e d  wi th  h i s  mother and he had no 
such c o n t a c t s ,  so  he was unaware of  any o f  t h e  
a c t i v i t i e s  t h a t  were going on as f a r  as t h e  
union o r  t h e  p o l i t i c a l  f i e l d  were concerned. 

So, when he s t a r t e d  up t h e  s t e p s ,  t h e s e  two 
-men asked him was t h i s  where he l i v e d .  And he 
s a i d ,  "Yes." Then they  asked him i f  t h e r e  
were many t i m e s  when t h e r e  were meet ings a t  ou r  
house and he s a i d ,  ttNot t h a t  he knew of.tt ,They 
asked h i m  a few more q u e s t i o n s  a long  t h a t  l i n e  
and he answered, "1 don ' t  know." F i n a l l y ,  t hey  
s a i d ,  ttWhat's your  name?It And he s a i d ,  "1 don ' t  
know, " 

They walked away. When he t o l d  me t h e  s t o r y  
I r e a l i z e d  t h a t  t hey  were two FBI agents ,  I 
could t e l l  by t h e  manner i n  which they  asked t h e  
ques t ions ;  he, o f  course ,  didn'  t r e a l i z e  t h a t  
t h e y  were FBI. He j u s t  d i d n ' t  unders tand what 
t h e s e  men wanted. I t  was r a t h e r  an amusing 
exper ience  f o r  him and me both. 

Ward: 	 Did you t e l l  him what t h e  s c o r e  was then? 

Bulcke: 	 I t o l d  h i m  t h a t  I was very much invo lved  i n  
p o l i t i c s .  He knew, of course ,  t h a t  I was an 
o f f i c e r  of t h e  union. I exp1aine.d t h a t  t h e  FBI 
g e n e r a l l y  t r i e d  t o  f i n d  o u t  eve ry th ing  t h a t  went 
on and n a t u r a l l y  they  thought  they  had an ad-
vantage i n  a sk ing  him what he might have known 
about meetings. 
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But he  was hones t ;  t h e r e  were no meet ings  a t  
o u r  house. A l l  o f  t h e  a c t i v i t i e s  I p a r t i c i -
p a t e d  i n  were i n  p u b l i c  meet ings ,  p o l i t i c a l  
mee t ings  and union meetings. N a t u r a l l y ,  he  
was n o t  aware of  them. 

How o l d  was he a t  t h a t  t ime? 

T h i r t e e n ,  fou r t een ,  somewhere i n  t he re .  

How do you and Ken g e t  a long  now? 

Oh, we a lways go t  a long  very  wel l .  The problem, 
i f  any, was t h a t  he  had never  sha red  h i s  dad 
wi th  a n o t h e r  k i d  and Bruce was i n  t h e  same boa t ,  
he  had neve r  sha red  anyone wi th  h i s  mother. So, 
t h e y  g o t  a long  all r i g h t ,  b u t  t h e y  d i d n ' t  g e t  
t o o  f r i e n d l y  f o r  q u i t e  a l i t t l e  while. L a t e r  
on t h e y  became f a s t  f r i e n d s ,  and a r e  today. 

They a r e  j u s t  a y e a r  a p a r t  i n  age, a r e n ' t  they? 

Bruce i s  j u s t  about  a y e a r  o l d e r  t h a n  Ken. 

A l l  About The F i r s t  Daughter 

Now, t e l l  me a l i t t l e  b i t  about Muriel .  

Well ,  Murie l  was marr ied  -
S h e ' s  i n  Arizona, now, i s n c t she? 

She ' s  i n  Arizona - she  was mar r i ed  t o  a Tom 
McMann; t h e y  s t a r t e d  go ing  t o g e t h e r  when t h e y  
were i n  h igh  school.  Tom went i n t o  t h e  s e r -
v i c e  and w a s  gone f o r  t h e  r e s t  of t h e  w a r  . . . 
World War I I ?  

Yes, World War 11; a f t e r  he  r e t u r n e d ,  t h e y  
g o t  married.  They never  had any s h i l d r e n  of 
t h e i r  own, b u t  t h e y  adopted two c h i l d r e n ,  a 
g i r l  and a boy l a t e r  on, P a t t y  and Terry .  
Theyare bo th  grown up and mar r i ed  - P a t t y  h a s  



Bulcke: 	 two c h i l d r e n ;  T e r r y  was mar r i ed  las t  y e a r  and 
so  f a r  no ch i ld ren .  They seem t o  be ve ry  
h a p p i l y  married.  

Muriel  and h e r  husband divorced.  A f t e r  h e r  
d ivo rce  she  g o t  marr ied  aga in ,  b u t  t h a t  didn' t 
work o u t  t o o  we l l  and she  was d ivorced  again.  
I n  t h e  meantime, my son Ken met i n  San F ranc i sco  
a g i r l  from Connecticut .  She was on a t o u r  and 
h e  met h e r  a t  a dance place.  They k e p t  up 
correspondence,  and e v e n t u a l l y  J a n  - t h a t  was 
h e r  name - came o u t  and t h e y  g o t  married.  She 
s t a y e d  h e r e  f o r  some t ime bu t  she  was obv ious ly
somewhat homesick; e v e n t u a l l y ,  t h e y  decided t o  
move back t o  Connecticut .  

Some t ime l a t e r ,  Muriel ,  who was s i n g l e  
aga in ,  c a l l e d  me and s a i d  she  w a s  going-to go
v i s i t  hex b r o t h e r  i n  Connecticut .  Muriel  d i d  
go, and she  was due back on a Monday. She 
c a l l e d  me on a Wednesday and I s a i d  t o  he r ,  
ffHow come? You were supposed t o  be back Monday.ff 

rfWeL1, she  s a i d ,  flI had such a good t ime, and 
p a r t i c u l a r l y  wi th  Jim." And I s a i d ,  "Oh!" 

It t u r n e d  o u t  t o  be  Jan's f a t h e r ;  his wife  
had pas sed  away a couple  of  y e a r s  be fo re ,  and 
he  was a widower. And I s a i d ,  "What's all 
t h i s  about Jim??! And she  s a i d ,  "Well, dad, we 
g e t  a long  marvelously  and h e ' s  coming o u t  l a t e r  
on t h i s  y e a r  and  we're going t o  g e t  married.ft 

Sure  enough, some t ime l a t e r ,  he came o u t  
and t h e y  g o t  marr ied  i n  o u r  house. When you 
c o n s i d e r  she  mar r i ed  t h e  f a t h e r  of  h e r  b ro ther !  s 
wife ,  i t  i s  q u i t e  a complicated family.  Anyway,
t h e y  seemed t o  have h i t  i t  o f f  p r e t t y  well .  
When h e r  husband r e t i r e d  t h e y  came o u t  and 
looked around C a l i f o r n i a ,  and a l s o  i n  Arizona, 
f o r  a p l a c e  t o  l i v e .  They ended up i n  a p l a c e  
c a l l e d  Payson, Arizona, which i s  about  90 m i l e s  
n o r t h e a s t  o f  Phoenix. 

They have a ve ry  n i c e  home and t h e y  both  l i k e  
t o  p l a y  g o l f  and t h e y  a r e  i n  walking d i s t a n c e  



Bulcke: 	 of a gol f  course, which caused them t o  r e t i r e  
i n  t h a t  p a r t i c u l a r  spot.  They have been t h e r e  
now s e v e r a l  y e a r s  and seem t o  be doing very 
n ice ly .  

Ward: 	 L e t t s  see,  Muriel would be about 60 now, 
p r e t t y  c lose?  

Bulcke: 	 She ' s  59; born i n  1924. 

Ward: 	 How do you g e t  a long with t h e s e  ch i ld ren ,  s tep-
ch i ld ren ,  grandchi ldren  and great-grandchi ldren? 

Bul cke : 	 Oh, wonderful, wonderful; they a r e  n i c e  k ids .  

Ward: 	 How do t h e y  c a l l  you, grandpa? Great grandpa? 

Bulcke: 	 They c a l l  me grandpa o r  g r e a t  grandpa. That 
reminds me when Muriel was marr ied t o  Tom and 
they  adopted two ch i ld ren ,  t h e  o l d e r  one, P a t t y  
was j u s t  l e a r n i n g  t o  t a l k .  My daughter s a i d ,  
"This i s  grandpa.1' And P a t t y  came up wi th  " P O ~ P O ~ ~ ~  
and I ' v e  been Popfop e v e r  s i n c e  to both of h e r  
ch i ldren .  

Ward: 	 J e r r y ,  t h a t  g i v e s  t o  t h e  world your family 
t r e e ,  which h a s  many branches. 



V ON STRIKE! 

Pre lude  t o  Bloody Thursday 
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Now, g e t t i n g  back t o  unionism i n  t h e  e a r l y  
days - I found ou t  t h a t  you were on Rincon H i l l  
on Bloody Thursday. How about t h a t ?  

No, i t  wasnt t Bloody Thursday; i t  was two days 
be fo re  on J u l y  3rd. 

1934. The employers had made arrangements, o r  
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so they  claimed, t o  open t h e  p o r t ,  and they  
had h i r e d  a group of  non-union t e a m s t e r s  t o  
d r i v e  t h e  t rucks .  We ga thered  i n  f r o n t  of P i e r  
38 - McCormack docks - and t h e r e  were probably 
a couple of  thousand of ou r  p i c k e t s  t h e r e ;  
longshoremen, seamen, a l l  union members t h a t  were 
on s t r i k e .  

They knew t h a t  t h i s  was going t o  come up? 

Yes, i t  was p u b l i c i z e d  i n  t h e  papers.  Of course,  
t h e  p o l i c e  were o u t  i n  force.  When t h e  f i r s t  
t r u c k  l e f t  t h e  dock going towards Thi rd  S t r e e t  
t o  a warehouse where they  could depos i t  t h e  
s t u f f  they  were g e t t i n g  ou t ,  t h e  p o l i c e  i m -
media te ly  s t a r t e d  f i r i n g  a t  t h e  p i c k e t s ,  
p a r t i c u l a r l y  wi th  t e a r  gas. 

Anything e l s e  worse than  t e a r  gas? 

Oh, yes;  they  f i r e d  b u l l e t s .  So f a r  as I re-
member, no one w a s  hit by b u l l e t s .  



Ward: 	 Any buckshot? Real b u l l e t s ?  

Bulcke: 	 Oh, yes ,  r e a l  b u l l e t s  and buckshot both,  as 
f a r  as I know. I d i d n ' t  s e e  anyone g e t t i n g  
h i t ,  bu t  I myself w a s  h i t ;  we were going up 
t o  t h e  t o p  of Rincon H i l l ,  where t h e  beginning  
of t h e  b r i d g e  w a s  be ing  i n s t a l l e d .  I was 
running  up t h e  h i l l  as b e s t  I knew how when I 
go t  h i t  on t h e  i n s i d e  of  my r i g h t  l e g  by one 
of  t h e  t e a r  g a s  s h e l l s .  

These t h i n g s  would explode as they  landed.  
F o r t u n a t e l y  I had my g loves  on, because we had 
been g e t t i n g  ready t o  throw some r o c k s  a t  t h e  
cops. I p icked  up t h e  s h e l l  b e f o r e  i t  exploded
and threw i t  back a t  t h e  cops. It exploded
among them. Of course ,  we were backed up a g a i n s t  
t h e  h i l l .  

We t r i e d  aga in  and again,  and t h r e e  t i m e s  
they  drove u s  back up t h e  h i l l .  Eventua l ly  we 
had t o  s c a t t e r  because t h e r e  was no way t o  do 
anyth ing  e l s e .  So, my p a r t n e r  and I went on 
down towards  Th i rd  S t r e e t  where t h e  t r u c k s  
t h a t  had been used t o  b r i n g  t h e  s t u f f  o u t  were 
coming, and we jumped on one of  t h e  t r u c k s ;  i t  
was a f l a t b a c k  and i t  had sacks  of r i c e  on it. 
The d r i v e r  was be ing  h e l d  up by some of  o u r  
p i c k e t s ;  t h e y  threw r o c k s  at t h e  windshie ld  
t r y i n g  t o  s t o p  t h e  t ruck .  A s  t h e  t r u c k s  were 
moving very slowly,  my p a r t n e r  and I jumped on 
t h e  back end of t h i s  t r u c k  and s t a r t e d  throwing -
t h e  r i c e  o f f  on t o  t h e  s t r e e t .  

J u s t  a t  t h a t  moment, o f  course ,  t h e r e  was 
q u i t e  a b i t  of  confusion because t h e  union 
t eams te r s ,  a l though t h e y  were n o t  on s t r i k e ,  
were o u t  i n  f o r c e  a s s i s t i n g  us. They s topped 
t h e  d r i v e r s  from coming through and t h e y  dumped 
a couple  of  t rucks .  

So, i n  t h e  meantime my p a r t n e r  and I were 
f l i p p i n g  t h e  r i c e  o f f  t h e  t ruck .  A l i t t l e  
coupe s topped r i g h t  nex t  t o  t h e  t r u c k  wi th  a  
couple  of  e l d e r l y  l a d i e s  and they  were all 
confused. I very c a r e f u l l y  l a i d  a sack of  150  
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pound r i c e  r i g h t  on t o p  of t h e  l i t t l e  coupe 
and I guess  they  had a p l e a s a n t  s u r p r i s e  when 
they  got  home. They had 150 pounds of r i c e !  

On t o p  of t h e  coupe? 

On t o p  of t h e  coupe. The d r i v e r  of t h a t  
p a r t i c u l a r  t r u c k  f i n a l l y  got  ou t  and r a n  away. 

That was a non-union guy? 

That was a non-union guy, By t h a t  t ime t h e  
p o l i c e  came along and they  moved t h e  t ruck ;  
I don ' t  know i f  they  took i t  t o  t h e  warehouse 
o r  whatever, because my p a r t n e r  and I went t o  
t h e  Thi rd  S t r e e t  Railway Depot t o  g e t  away 
from t h e  t e a r  gas  which was all around the re ,  

We went i n t o  t h e  depot i t s e l f  and came out  
i n  f ron t .  There w a s  a policeman on duty wiping 
h i s  eyes  because t h e r e  was a l o t  of t e a r  gas. 
He could ha rd ly  see,  I guess, and he s a i d ,  
"Don't go t h a t  way; t h e r e ' s  a l o t  of  problems 
there.,' 

We sa id ,  "We're p i c k e t s ,  we got  to,,, so we 
passed r i g h t  by h i m  and went on down t o  where 
t h e  a c t i o n  was. I t  was q u i t e  e x c i t i n g ;  q u i t e  
a few of our  guys, though no t  s e r i o u s l y  in -  
jured, were a f f e c t e d  by t h e  t e a r  gas. 

There have been d i f f e r e n t  s t o r i e s  about how 
many men were s e r i o u s l y  i n j u r e d  t h a t  day. I 
have heard as high as 400. 

Well, I have no accura te  f i g u r e ;  t h e r e  were 
q u i t e  a number of them in ju red .  Most of them 
were bothered by t h e  t e a r  gas  and t h e r e  were 
some t h a t  had buckshot, but  I never  d id  know 
e x a c t l y  how many. There were rumors t o  t h e  
e f f e c t  t h a t  between 300 and 400 got  h u r t ;  
probably t rue .  It w a s  hard t o  t e l l  because 
some were longshore,  some were seamen, s a i l o r s ;  
and a l s o  t h e r e  were a few members of t h e  
Teamsters involved. 

Oh, you were very f r i e n d l y  a t  t h a t  time. 



Bul cke: 	 Oh, t h e  rank and f i l e  o f  t h e  Teamsters  were 
f u l l  f o r c e  behind us ,  

Ward: 	 Well, t h e y  worked wi th  you every  day. 

Bulcke: 	 T h a t ' s  r i g h t .  Sure. 

Ward: 	 I heard  t e l l  t h a t  some p l a c e s  l i k e  t h e  Communist 
h e a d q u a r t e r s  on Haight  S t r e e t  were thrown open 
t o  i n j u r e d  guys. Qui te  a few of  them were 
t r e a t e d  a t  p l a c e s  l i k e  t h a t ,  r a t h e r  t h a n  going 
t o  t h e  h o s p i t a l .  

Bulcke: 	 That '  s what I understand.  

Ward: 	 NOW, t a l k i n g  about  t h e  scene a couple of  days  
l a t e r  which w a s  very  v i o l e n t  and two men were 
k i l l e d .  

Bul cke : 	 Right. 

The D i f f e r e n c e  Between '34 and '36 

Ward: 	 On Bloody Thursday. 

I t  d  l i k e  you t o  comment, i f  p o s s i b l e ,  on 
t h e  d i f f e r e n c e  between '34 and '36 s t r i k e s .  
I n  t h e  l a t t e r  s t r i k e  t h e r e  was no s t r i k e -
b reak ing  a t tempt  and no v io l ence ;  i s n ' t  t h a t  
so? 

Bulcke: 	 T h a t ' s  c o r r e c t .  You see ,  i n  t h e  1934 s t r i k e  
t h e  employers had h i r e d  scabs;  t h e y  had them 
housed on a s h i p  at  P i e r  32 ,  Matson Line,  and 
a l s o  at  P i e r  37, t h e  Grace Line. While we knew 
t h a t  t h e y  were n o t  doing a g r e a t  d e a l  o f  work, 
a t  l e a s t  w i th  t h e  number of s c a b s  they  had, i t  
was an a t tempt  by t h e  employers t o  show t h a t  
t h e y  could  keep t h e  cargo moving. A c e r t a i n  
amount of  work was g e t t i n g  done by t h e s e  
people ,  

Ward: - . 	 I s n ' t  i t  ax iomat ic  t h a t  l a b o r  v i o l e n c e  i s  
almost always provoked by t h e  employers? 



Bul cke: 	 T h a t ' s  co r rec t .  Natura l ly ,  whenever we had 
any informat ion  t h a t  any of t h e  scabs  were 
coming ou t ,  we would n a t u r a l l y  t r y  t o  i n t e r -  
cept  them. I f  we were f o r t u n a t e  enough t o  do 
so, we t r i e d  t o  t a k e  t h e i r  money away from 
them. 

Ward: 	 You d i d n ' t  t a k e  too  much t ime arguing with 
them? 

Bul cke : 	 We didn' t argue with them. 

Ward: 	 But you knew they  were p r e t t y  tough customers 
o r  they  wouldn't have taken t h a t  k ind  of a 
job? 

Bulcke: 	 T h a t ' s  r i g h t .  We had one i n c i d e n t  t h a t  comes 
t o  mind. I happened t o  be at t h e  union h a l l ,  
o r  i n  f r o n t  of i t ,  r a t h e r ,  when a well-dressed 
gentleman came up. Of course we had one of  
our  members at t h e  door t o  see  t h a t  no one who 
didn'  t belong w a s  allowed i n  there .  Th i s  
gentleman w a s  t a l k i n g  t o  t h e  guard, and as I 
came up I heard t h e  conversation. The gent le-  
man s a i d  t h a t  his son w a s  a member of t h e  
f o o t b a l l  team from Berkeley -

Ward: 	 U. C. Berkeley? 

Bulcke: 	 U. C. Berkeley. The f a t h e r  s a i d ,  1'1 under-
s t and  t h a t  my son h a s  volunteered  t o  work as 
a s t r i k e b r e a k e r  and h e ' s  at P i e r  37; I want 
him out  of there.!! So, I s a i d  t o  t h e  guard, 
"1'11 go up with him and see  what we can do.!! 

We went u p s t a i r s  t o  our  h a l l  and t a l k e d  t o  
t h e  o f f i c e r s  who were there.  They suggested 
t h a t  I go along with this man and see  t o  i t  
t h a t  he was a b l e  t o  ge t  i n t o  P i e r  37 t o  ge t  
h i s  son but. 

O f  course,  I couldn ' t  go i n t o  P i e r  37, but 
I went with him. We took a-cab and I s t ayed  on 
t h e  p i c k e t l i n e  s ide .  He went i n  and a s h o r t  
t ime l a t e r  he came ou t  with h i s  son. We got  
back i n  t h e  cab and he had i t  dr iven  back t o  
t h e  union h s l l .  
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And then  he took h i s  son by t h e  e a r  and took 
him up t h e  s t e p s  and made h i m  apologize  t o  
t h o s e  of  t h e  o f f i c e r s  and members who were i n  
t h e  h a l l .  And he made a donat ion t o  o u r  soup
k i t c h e n  - I d o n f t  remember t h e  amount - and 
a s su red  u s  t h a t  he  had n o t  s e n t  his son t o  t h e  
u n i v e r s i t y  t o  become a s t r i k e b r e a k e r .  So 
f a t h e r  and son l e f t ,  and we g o t  q u i t e  a bang
o u t  of t h a t .  

Well, J e r r y ,  what d i d  t h e  son do, d i sappea r  o r  
go back on t h e .  wa te r f ron t?  

Well, I guess  h i s  son went back t o  school ;  a t  
t h a t  t ime i t  was summertime and t h e r e  were no 
c l a s ses .  

H e  w a s n f t  t h e  on ly  f o o t b a l l  p l a y e r  t h a t  - - -? 
No, most of t h e  f o o t b a l l  team were working as 
s t r i k e  b reake r s ;  t h e  man i n  charge s a i d  t h i s  
would be a good chance f o r  them t o  develop
t h e i r  muscles. Na tu ra l ly ,  w e  didnf t ag ree  
wi th  t h a t .  

I see. Again, could you make some comparisons 
between what you j u s t  t o l d  u s  and t h e  136 
s t r i k e  on t h e  ques t ion  of v io lence?  

Well, i n  t h e  134 s t r i k e ,  as I have been de- 
s c r i b i n g ,  t h e r e  was q u i t e  a b i t  of i t ,  b u t  
i n  t h e  '36, '37 s t r i k e  t h e r e  w a s  none at  all 
because t h e  employers d i d  n o t  h i r e  any s t r i k e -  
breakers .  We had our  p i c k e t  l i n e s  up but  i t  
was p r e t t y  q u i e t ;  we never  had any d i f f i c u l t i e s  
t h e  whole t ime t h a t  we were on t h e  p i c k e t  
l i n e s .  

Cop t roub le?  

No cop t r o u b l e ;  yes,  we were t o l d  t o  s t a y  on 
t h e  o p p o s i t e  s i d e  of t h e  Embarcadero from t h e  
docks, which we had done i n  t h e  '34 s t r i k e ,  
b u t  t h e r e  w a s  no t r o b b l e  wi th  t h e  p o l i c e  a t  
all .  We s t a y e d  away from t h e  dock s i d e  and d i d  
o u r  p i c k e t  duty. No sh ipping  w a s  a t tempted,  



Bulcke: 	 so r e a l l y  t h e r e  w a s  no occasion t o  have any 
conf ron ta t ion  of any kind. 

Ward: 	 The i n i t i . a t i v e  f o r  v io lence  l a y  with t h e  
employers? 

Bulcke: 	 That 1 s r i g h t .  

Ward: 	 That i s  u s u a l l y  t h e  case  when t h e r e  i s  a dis-
pu te  between t h e  employers and unions which 
comes t o  a s t r i k e .  I f  t h e  employer does not  
s tar t  something, noth ing  happens. 

Bul cke : 	 T h a t ' s  co r rec t .  I f  they  -don' t at tempt  t o  
break t h e  s t r i k e  by t h e  use  of scabs,  t h e r e  
i s  no reason why t h e r e  should be any d i f f i -  
c u l t i e s .  

Whenever they  do use  s t r i k e  breakers ,  i n -
v a r i a b l y  v io lence  b reaks  out. Na tu ra l ly  t h e  
men ou t  on s t r i k e  w a n t  t o  p r o t e c t  t h e i r  jobs 
and they  want t h e  people who do t h e  s t r i k e -  
breaking t o  g e t  ou t  of there .  I f  they  have 
any con tac t  a t  all i t  evolves i n t o  a mess and 
people g e t  hur t .  

Other Kinds of Trouble 

Ward: 	 I wonder, i n  t h e  workaday world of t h e  water- 
f r o n t ,  a s i d e  from s t r i k e  s i t u a t i o n s ,  i s  oc-
c a s i o n a l  v io lence  a mat t e r  o.f course o r  i s  i t  
very r a r e ?  

Bulcke: 	 Oh, i t ' s  very r a r e ;  once i n  a while t h e r e  can 
be disagreements among t h e  men. 

Ward: 	 Personal  s t u f f ?  

Bulcke: 	 Personal ,  mostly. Occasional ly they  might 
have a b i t  of f i s t i c u f f s .  It was no t  something
t h a t  w a s  very common, I mean, i t  happened now 
and then. They were personal  th ings ,  not  
anyth ing  ser ious .  
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Well, t h a t  happens no more t h a n  i n  any o t h e r  
occupation. 

Exactly. Working toge the r ,  t h e  men g e t  ac-
quain ted  p r e t t y  well. Natura l ly ,  working i n  
gangs you have t o  be cooperat ive,  so  sometimes, 
i f  a guy doesnt t do h i s  sha re  t h e r e  might be 
some arguments and a l i t t l e  pushing around o r  
something. Real ly ,  i t  was not  anything very 
d i s tu rb ing .  

I n  o t h e r  words, you seem t o  be saying  t h a t  t o  
p i n  t h e  badge of v io lence  on longshoremen i s  
no t  j u s t i f i e d ?  

No, no t  a t  all, A s  I say, s u r e  they  w i l l  
defend t h e i r  jobs, They a r e  n o t  people  who go 
ou t  j u s t  t o  cause d i f f i c u l t i e s  o r  make t rouble .  

No more t h a n  a teamster  o r  - - - -.3 

No d i f f e r e n c e  from any worker who works i n  a 
p lant .  

A l l  r i g h t ,  Now another  t h i n g  t h a t  i s  t a l k e d  
about a l o t  and which i s  t h e  s u b j e c t  o f  many 
good s t o r i e s ,  some of which you have t o l d  us) 
i s  t h e  pecu la t ion ,  th i eve ry ,  whatever you c a l l  
i t ,  j u s t  l i f t i n g  t h i n g s  o f f  t h e  dock; t h e  
s t o r y  of t h e  grand pianos,  We laugh,  but  i s  
t h a t  s o r t  of t h i n g  j u s t i f i e d  -- t h i eve ry?  

Well, p r i o r  t o  t h e  s t r i k e ,  c o n d i t i o n s  on t h e  
wa te r f ron t  had got  t e n  very bad; speed-up, 
employers c u t t i n g  wages. Many t imes  they  d i d  
n o t  have as many men as they  should have on 
t h e  job, which made i t  very d i f f i c u l t  f o r  t h e  
f e l l o w s  who were on t h e  job, The work had 
slowed down so much because t h e  depress ion  had 
s e t  i n ,  

So, i t  became more p reva len t  f o r  t h e  long- 
shoremen t o  h e l p  themselves  t o  whatever they  
could g e t  o f f  t h e  docks i n  t h e  form of  canned 
goods, b u t t e r  - t h i n g s  t h a t  they  could g e t  a t ,  
I remember one i n c i d e n t  where t h e  gang was 
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d ischarging  shoes; m,ost of them had a new p a i r  
of shoes on when they  went o f f  t h e  job; t h i n g s
l i k e  t h a t .  More and more of t h a t  was develop-
i n g  because of  t h e  cond i t ions  and t h e  anger. 

And a l s o  poverty? 

That1 s r i g h t ;  many of them worked only a few 
days; many of them were marr ied  and had f a m i l i e s  
and they  found t h a t  they  needed t o  do t h i s  i n  
o r d e r  t o  g e t  by. So, t h e r e  was t h i s  amount of 
p i l f e r i n g  going on. Na tu ra l ly  t h e  employers 
took whatever s t e p s  they  deemed necessary,  bu t  
i t  was p r e t t y  d i f f i c u l t  t o  ca tch  every guy 
t h a t  maybe got  away with a few cans of canned 
goods o r  whatever he could h ide  and g e t  o f f  
t h e  dock with. 

That was be fo re  t h e  s t r i k e ,  you say? 

That was be fo re  t h e  s t r i k e .  I ' m  no t  saying
t h a t  all of t h i s  was el iminated,  but  i t  was 
e l imina ted  q u i t e  a b i t .  We were g e t t i n g  b e t t e r  
wages, we had b e t t e r  condi t ions ,  and t h e r e  was 
n o t  t h e  f e e l i n g  t h a t  we had t o  s t e a l  t h i n g s  i n  
o r d e r  t o  make out.  The p i l f e r i n g  t h a t  occurred 
p r i o r  t o  t h e  s t r i k e  p r e t t y  much disappeared 
a f t e r  we went back t o  work and t h e  se t t l ement  
was made. 

It became more of a joke than  - - - -,9 
It did,  because we had won what we went ou t  
f o r  and t h e  need f o r  s t e a l i n g  p r e t t y  much 
disappeared. We were more i n t e r e s t e d  i n  mak- 
i n g  t h e  work sa fe ,  t o  see  t o  i t  t h a t  s a f e t y  
r u l e s  were enforced. 

J e r r y ,  you were count ing up t h e  g a i n s  t h a t  had 
been made and t h e  important  t h i n g s  t h a t  were 
i n  longshoremenfs  minds a t  t h e  t ime of v i c t o r y
and a f t e r .  

S a f e t y  r u l e s  were being enfarced  by t h e  union 
members. 



Ward: 	 Speed-up was e l imina ted?  

Bulcke: 	 Speed-up w a s  e l imina ted ,  t h e  o v e r s i z e  l o a d s  
were c u t  down. I n  o t h e r  words, t h e  work was 
s a f e  and more en joyable  and t h e  f a v o r i t i s m  was 
done away with,  Some t ime l a t e r  t h e  union 
decided t h a t  t h e r e  be no more p r e f e r r e d  gangs. 

P r i o r  t o  t h e  s t r i k e ,  every company had 
p r e f e r r e d  gangs; t hey  were p r e t t y  s teady.  
Theyworked f o r  a c e r t a i n  company whenever t h a t  
company had a s h i p  i n ,  and be ing  a p r e f e r r e d  
gang they  g e n e r a l l y  go t  t h e  b e s t  jobs; t h a t  
i s  n o t  n e c e s s a r i l y  t h e  e a s i e s t ,  bu t  more hours  
t h a n  any of  t h e  e x t r a  gangs t h a t  were hired.  

That went on f o r  some t ime a f t e r  t h e  s t r i k e ,  
bu t  t h e  men e v e n t u a l l y  decided t h a t  t h i s  pre-  
f e r e n c e  was n o t  a good t h i n g  f o r  t h e  union. 
So, t h e  membership voted t o  do away wi th  t h e  
p r e f e r r e d  gangs. 

I n  o t h e r  words, t h e  company could no l o n g e r  
say which gang works where. I n s t e a d  of  t h a t  
t hey  had t o  c a l l  t h e  h i r i n g  h a l l  and t a k e  
whatever gangs were a v a i l a b l e ,  Of course,  t h e  
d i s p a t c h e r s  were aware of  t h e  k i n d  of work 
t h a t  had t o  be done and they  would send o u t  t h e  
gangs t h a t  were acquain ted  wi th  t h a t  t ype  of 
work. 

They never  would send o u t  t o  a s t e e l  ship-
ment a gang, f o r  example, t h a t  had never  handled 
s t e e l .  They would n o t  send j u s t  any gang t o  
t h a t  p a r t i c u l a r  job because i t  w a s  dangerous and 
you had t o  know how. So, gangs wi th  t h e  know- 
l e d g e  of  t h a t  p a r t i c u l a r  work, a l though no 
l o n g e r  p r e f e r r e d ,  would be s e n t  ou t ;  t h e  same 
way as t h e  men who handled suga r  up i n  Crocket t ,  
o r  shoveled bones, o r  whatever t h e  commodity 
was. 

There were gangs t h a t  worked t h a t  be fo re  a s  
s t eady  gangs, t hey  would be  d ispa tched  bu t  t h e  
company no l o n g e r  could p i c k  o u t  t h e  gangs, 
The men took t h e i r  t u r n  and men wi th  knowledge 
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were s e n t  t o  t h e  jobs. Of course,  we were 
wel l  aware t h a t  i t  was dangerous t o  send men 
o r  gangs t o  jobs of which they  had no know- 
l edge  and would r e s u l t  i n  many of our  members 
g e t t i n g  h u r t ,  We were very c a r e f u l  t o  see  t o  
i t  t h a t  t r a i n e d  men were d ispa tched t o  t h e  
proper  jobs. 

Ill1 never  f o r g e t  t h e  f i r s t  t ime I went down 
t h e  l a d d e r  i n t o  t h e  hold  of a s h i p  with a 
bunch of  papers  i n  one hand. I had on ly  one 
hand t o  hold  on. Oh, boy! 

We used t o  d ischarge  a l o t  of  newsprint ,  b i g
r o l l s .  Nowadays they do i t  mechanically with 
an arrangement whereby they  p ick  up f o u r  r o l l s  
a t  one t ime, bu t  i n  t h o s e  days you had t o  
handle each r o l l  s epa ra te ly ,  You had t o  knock 
i t  over  and be  c a r e f u l  you d i d n l t  damage i t  
and then  pu t  i t  i n  a s l ing .  Then, one at  a 
time, t h e  r o l l s  would be taken o u t  of t h e  hold. 
I t  was very dangerous work, A s  I say, they
don ' t  work t h a t  way any more, 

Then t h i n g s  smoothed ou t ,  bu t  again dur ing  w a r -
t ime came a s i t u a t i o n  which you d iscussed  
s l i g h t l y  t h e  o t h e r  day; how t h e  guys f e l t  t h a t  
t h e  shipowners and s t evedor ing  companies were 
t a k i n g  advantage of t h e  s i t u a t i o n  t o  employ 
men who were not  needed, On t h e  cos t -p lus  
b a s i s ,  t hey  were j u s t  r a k i n g  i n  t h e  money and 
t o  h e l l  with e f f i c i e n c y ?  

Right. During t h e  war y e a r s  t h e r e  w a s  es tab-
l i s h e d  a Maritime I n d u s t r y  Board which Henry 
Schmidt and Cole Jackman were on. L a t e r  on; I 
w a s  added t o  t h a t  board. 

W i l l  you t a l k  a l i t t l e  b i t  about t h a t ?  How 
d id  you g e t  i n t o  t h a t  end of it? 

The purpose of t h a t  was t o  s e e  t h a t  product ion  
was maintained and t h a t  t h e r e  would be no 
waste of manpower. 

The t h i n g  is, what went on i n  t h e  a t t i t u d e  of 
t h e  men? They saw t h e  employers almost l i t e r -  
a l l y  s t e a l i n g  governmect money. 



Bulcke: 	 Many of t h e  men were upset  about t h i s  because, 
while they r e a l i z e d  they were being pa id ,  they  
a l s o  recognized t h a t  t h e r e  was a  l o t  of l a b o r  
l o s t  i n  supplying t h e  armed f o r c e s  with t h e  
t h i n g s  they needed. I f  50 men could do t h e  
job, t h e r e  was no po in t  i n  having 100. The 
unnecessary men could have been working on 
another  s h i p  t h a t  was load ing  m i l i t a r y  cargo, 
and t h i s  would have speeded up t h e  movement of 
t h e  vesse l s .  

The employers d i d n ' t  care.  I t h i n k  I have 
a l ready mentioned some i n s t a n c e s  where many 
men stood by f o r  a day a t  a time, so t h e  work 
of t h e  I n d u s t r y  Board was t o  s e e  t o  i t  t h a t  
t h e  men were u t i l i z e d  properly.  

Ward: 	 Did any of t h e  workers come and t i p  you o f f ?  

Bul cke: 	 Yes, q u i t e  o f t e n  gang stewards,  o r  even a gang 
foreman, would c a l l  i n  and advise  u s  t h a t  they  
were s t and ing  by with no work. They knew t h a t  
t h e r e  were o t h e r  s h i p s  t h a t  needed men and they  
were not  be ing  loaded as e f f i c i e n t l y  a s  they 
should have been. 

We would check i t  out  and e i t h e r  switch t h e  
gangs over  t o  where they  were needed o r  see  t o  
i t  t h a t  t h e  cargo was made ava i l ab le .  Many 
t imes  i t  was bookkeeping, o r  l a c k  of proper  
bookkeeping, t h a t  kep t  cargo t i e d  up on t h e  
docks al though t h e  sh ip  was t h e r e  and should 
have been loaded. 

Ward: 	 Did t h i s  greedy, i r r e s p o n s i b l e  a t t i t u d e  on t h e  
p a r t  of t h e  employers express  i t s e l f  i n  t h e  
workers' a t t i t u d e  t o  any ex ten t?  

Bulcke: 	 To t h i s  degree, t h a t  t h e  men r e a l i z e d  t h a t  t h e  
employers were making a l o t  of money. The men 
ob jec ted  s t r o n g l y  t o  having t o  s t and  by al-
though knowing t h a t  o t h e r  cargo o r  o t h e r  s h i p s  
were being delayed f o r  t h e  l a c k  of manpower. 

Ward: 	 Well, I got  t h e  impression t h a t  t h i n g s  changed 
dur ing  t h e  war because of t h i s  employer i r r e s -  
p o n s i b i l i t y .  
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Right. 

And I got  t h e  impression t h a t  i f  a b o t t l e  of 
whiskey o r  a grand piano asked f o r  i t ,  they ' 

took it. 

- .  

The ~ l a m o u k  Went Away 

Now, l e t ' s  d i s c u s s  t h e  glamour of ' t h e  long- 
shore  i n d u s t r y ,  of be ing  a longshoreman, t h a t  
used t o  e x i s t .  What was i t  l i k e  and where d i d  
i t  go? 

Well, a t  t h e  p resen t  time I can say  t h a t  t h e  
glamour t h a t  used t o  be t h e r e  i s  no longer
prevalent .  , 

But f i r s t  l e t ' s  g e t  what i t  used t o  be. 

I t  used t o  be t h a t  men were q u i t e  proud of 
working as a longshoreman. I t  had c e r t a i n  
advantages;  t h a t  is, they  worked very hard, 
bu t  t h e r e  were t imes  when they  d i d n ' t  have t o  
work. I n  o t h e r  words, i f  they d i d  no t  f e e l  
l i k e  working they  wo.uld s t a y  home o r  do some-
t h i n g  e l s e .  

A guy wanted t o  go t o  t h e  horse  r a c e s  - - -? 

Re went t o  t h e  horse  r a c e s  o r  whatever. He 
j u s t  took t h e  day o f f ;  of course he would 
inform h i s  gang foreman t h a t  he wasn't ava i l -
ab le ,  and t h e r e  were always o t h e r  men t o  t a k e  
h i s  place.  

There w a s  t h e  f e e l i n g  of no t  being i n  danger 
of l o s i n g  your job. There was a freedom of 
movement, and t h a t  w a s  p a r t  of t h e  glamour of 
be ing  a b l e  t o  work when you wanted t o  and no t  
work i f  you d i d n ' t  f e e l  l i k e  i t ,  without 
endangering your p o s i t i o n  as a longshoreman. 

Was t h a t  freedom a v a i l a b l e  t o  longshoremen only  
on t h e  P a c i f i c  Coast, o r  was i t  nationwide? 
Or worldwide? 



Bul cke : 	 Well, I o n l y  know t h e  P a c i f i c  Coast  we l l  enough 
t o  s ay  t h a t  i t  e l d s t e d  here.  Whether o r  n o t  
i t  e x i s t e d  on t h e  Gulf o r  i n  t h e  E a s t  I have 
no p e r s o n a l  knowledge. I doubt i t  was t h a t  
way i n  t h o s e  p o r t s .  

Ward: 	 Qu i t e  a s i d e  from t h i s  freedom, what about  this 
b u s i n e s s  o f  meet ing s t r a n g e r s  from all p a r t s  
of  t h e  world? Did t h a t  c u t  any i c e ?  

Bul cke: 	 Not t o o  much. P r i o r  t o  t h e  1934 s t r i k e  t h e r e  
was n o t  t h e  f e e l i n g  t h a t  we had c o n t r o l .  There  
was a g r e a t  d e a l  o f  f a v o r i t i s m  i n  t h o s e  days. 
C e r t a i n  peop le  had arrangements  w i th  t h e i r  gang 
foremen o r  t h e i r  walking b o s s e s  o r  t h e  company, 
and t h e y  worked p r e t t y  r e g u l a r ,  whi le  o t h e r s  
didn'  t. 

They were known as star gangs, and u n l e s s  
you happened t o  be f o r t u n a t e  enough t o  be i n  
a star gang your  chances  o f  s t e a d y  work weren' t  
very  good. You might work a week and t h e n  n o t  
be a b l e t o  g e t  a n o t h e r  job f o r  a week. 

One longshoreman, I remember, used  t o  ex-
p r e s s  h imse l f  when he  had a good week, by say- 
i n g ,  lt\Vell, t h e  f e l l o w s  were f a r t i n t  i n  s i l k  
t h i s  week," meaning he had done a good job. 
Then t h e  fo l lowing  week he  would say,  I'Well, 
we're back on beans  again.fl  A s  I say,  t h i s  
was p a r t  o f  t h e  t h i n g s  t h a t  we d i d  away wi th  
d u r i n g  t h e  s t r i k e .  

I n t e r n a t i o n a l  Chi t -cha t  

Ward: 	 Well, on t h e  q u e s t i o n  of  i n t e r n a t i o n a l  i n t e r -  
mingl ing;  suppose a s h i p  comes i n  s a y  from 
some p o r t  i n  France  and you have a guy i n  t h e  
gang who knows a l i t t l e  French. Does he  hob- 
nob wi th  --- ? 

Bulcke: 	 Oh, yeah, t h a t  happened cons t an t ly .  We had 
peop le  t h a t  cou ld  speak l anguages  and were 
from t h o s e  c o u n t r i e s .  T myself  spoke French 



Bulcke: 	 and German and always made con tac t  wi th  t h e  
crew of  s h i p s  from t h o s e  coun t r i e s .  We dis-
cussed t h e  c o n d i t i o n s  t h a t  t h e y  worked under 
and t h o s e  we worked under, and q u i t e  o f t e n  we 
managed, a f t e r  work, t o  t a k e  them t o  a b a r  and 
have a few beers.  We always t r i e d  t o  g e t  
f r i e n d l y  and t h e  crews would r each  o u t  t o  us,  
too. They would t r y  t o  g e t  acquainted,  
p a r t i c u l a r l y  when we were l o a d i n g  d r i e d  f r u i t .  
For  i n s t a n c e ,  we knew t h a t  on t h e  B r i t i s h  s h i p s  
t h e  c o n d i t i o n s  were n o t  t o o  good f o r  t h e  crew. 

We g e n e r a l l y  were a b l e  t o  s e e  t o  i t  t h a t  a 
few c a s e s  of  d r i e d  f r u i t ,  o r  whatever, would 
end up i n  t h e  c rew's  q u a r t e r s ,  which they  would 
t a k e  home. Many s h i p s  made r e g u l a r  t r i p s  aga in  
and again. Qui te  o f t e n ,  a f t e r  we go t  acquain ted  
wi th  t h e  crew, t h e y  would come ove r  t o  t h e  
h a t c h e s  t o  s e e  what we were load ing ;  i f  i t  w a s  
something they  were i n t e r e s t e d  i n ,  t h e y  general-  
l y  managed t o  g e t  a l i t t l e  b i t  o f  it. 

Ward: 	 That may you g o t  some f e e l  o f  wa te r f ron t  con-
d i t i o n s  p r e t t y  much around t h e  world, didn'  t 
you? 

Bul cke: 	 T h a t ' s  r i g h t .  We d iscussed ,  o r  t h e y  would t e l l  
us ,  t h e  c o n d i t i o n s  o f  t h e i r  home town o r  t h e  
p o r t s  t h e y  s topped in .  We became wel l  aware 
o f  what went on. 

Ward: 	 P a r t  of  t h i s  glamour was t h e  i n t e r n a t i o n a l  
c o n t a c t s  you had; a l s o ,  I t h i n k ,  even under 
t h e  company union t h e r e  was a  w i l l i n g n e s s  t o  
r i s e  t o  m i l i t a n c e  - - -

Bul cke: 	 T h a t ' s  r i g h t .  Even be fo re  t h e  ' 3 4  s t r i k e  we 
had t h a t  t y p e  o f  c o n t a c t  and t r i e d  t o  f i n d  
o u t  what went on. They i n  t u r n  would f i n d  o u t  
how we handled th ings .  There was always a 
good f e e l i n g  between t h e  working longshoremen 
and t h e  crew members. 

Ward: 	 What percentage  of t h e  guys i n  Local  10 ,  would 
you say, were born i n  o t h e r  coun t r i e s?  
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Well, I donr t  have an exac t  percentage,  but  
I wouldnr t be s u r p r i s e d  i f  i t  r a n  around 80 
p e r  cent. 

That t e l l s  a l o t .  

Many had been seamen and got  o f f  s h i p  and 
s tayed  ashore. I remember i n  a gang I was i n  
we go t  t o  t a l k i n g  about where you were from; 
t h e r e  were 1 6  men i n  t h e  gang and on ly  one 
man was born i n  t h e  United S t a t e s ,  and he was 
of Norwegian descent.  A l l  t h e  r e s t  of  t h e  
gang came from d i f f e r e n t  count r ies .  

The language mixture  must have been f a s c i n a t -  
ing.  

One t h i n g  t h a t  happened, which I would say was 
r a t h e r  though t fu l  - never  d i d  you hea r  two 
longshoremen who were, l e t  u s  say, Swedish o r  
whatever, t a l k  t o  one another  i n  t h a t  language, 
because t h e  f e e l i n g  would be t h a t  when they  
were t a l k i n g  i n  t h e i r  own language, they  would 
be saying  something t h a t  they  d i d n r t  want t h e  
o t h e r s  t o  know. There was no r u l e  on i t ,  b u t  
i t  w a s  e s t a b l i s h e d  p r a c t i c e  t h a t  you never  t a l k  
anyth ing  bu t  Engl ish;  even those  t h a t  could 
no t  speak much English. 

Even i f ,  when they  got  home, t h e y  t a l k e d  t o  
t h e i r  wives i n  t h e  n a t i v e  language? 

Yes, they would never  t a l k  i n  t h e i r  own 
language. 

It w a s  p a r t  of t h e  camaraderie on t h e  job? 

Sure. A l l  of u s  picked up c e r t a i n  words of 
o t h e r  languages,  bu t  t h e y  were used g e n e r a l l y  
f o r  fun. They would do t h e  b e s t  they  could 
t o  speak t o  one another  i n  Engl ish;  t h a t  w a s  
wel l  understood without  be ing  s a i d  so. 

T h a t ' s  i n t e r e s t i n g .  A l l  r i g h t ,  so t h e r e  was 
a glamour t o  t h e  longshore  i p d u s t r y  f o r  a l o n g  
t ime back, but  what about now? 



Bul cke: 	 Well, o f  course  i t  h a s  been y e a r s  s i n c e  I 
worked - a s  a longshoreman, bu t  I unders tand  i t  
i s n t  t q u i t e  t h a t  way today, a l though t h e  men 

" a r e  wel l  o rganized  and recognize  t h a t  t h e  
union . . . . 

Ward: 	 They have a f e e l i n g  o f  power? 

Bulcke: -	 They d e f i n i t e l y  do, bu t  t h e  glamourous p a r t  
of i t  t h a t  used t o  e x i s t  somehow o r  o t h e r  
h a s  disappeared.  

Ward: 	 They cant t t a k e  a day o f f  whenever they  want. 



V I I  THE PAY GUARANTEE PLAN 

A P e c u l i a r  Wrinkle 

Bulcke: 	 No; wel l ,  t h a t ' s  one thing. They can but  when 
they  do they l o s e  wages. Of course,  i n  t h e  
l a s t  few y e a r s  work has  been n o t  t o o  good. 
For tuna te ly ,  i n  our  c o n t r a c t  we have wha t ' t hey  
c a l l  a "pay guarantee.(' 

Ward: 	 Is t h a t  a good t h i n g  o r  a bad th ing?  

Bulcke: 	 I t  i s  a good t h i n g  because i t  became p a r t  of 
t h e  agreement t o  al low t h e  employers t o  in-  
t roduce  l a b o r  saving  devices. I n  r e t u r n  f o r  
t h a t ,  we demanded and t h e  employers agreed t o  
a guarantee of a c e r t a i n  amount of wages. The 
men have t o  be a v a i l a b l e ,  of course;  they  have 
t o  s i g n  i n  a t  t h e  h i r i n g  h a l l .  

Ward: 	 They have t o  be t h e r e  so many days a week? 

Bulcke: 	 Well, i n  o rde r  t o  be covered by t h e  pay guar- 
a n t e e  a man has  t o  s i g n  i n  and show t h a t  he 
i s  ava i l ab le .  I f  he doesnt t  g e t  a job he g e t s  
t h e  pay guarantee. 

A t  t h e  p resen t  t ime we a r e  having q u i t e  a 
problem with that. It1s being taken t o  court .  
What happened was t h i s  - when t h e  pay guar- 
a n t e e  was agreed t o  by t h e  union and t h e  
employers, t h e  employers made a dea l  with 
I n t e r n a l  Revenue t h a t  those  pay guarantee 
monies wou$d not  be counted as earnings.  
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The r e s u l t  i s  t h a t  a  man who, i n  t h e  p a r t i c u l -  
ar l i n e  of  l ongshor ing  he does, fails t o  g e t  
much work and i s  on PGP q u i t e  a b i t ,  f i n d s  a t  
h i s  r e t i r e m e n t  age t h a t  h i s  e a r n i n g s  do n o t  
i n c l u d e  t h e  PGP, s o  h i s  S o c i a l  S e c u r i t y  check 
i s  way down. 

NOW, t h e  PGP pay gua ran tee  i s  what? 

Well, t h e  gua ran tee  i s  36 hours. 

NO, no - what does  PGP mean? What does  i t  
s t a n d  fo r?  

Pay Guarantee - I know i t  bu t  I c a n t t  t h i n k  o f  
it. 

Pay Guarantee Plan? 

A l l  r i g h t ;  and so i t  c u t  i n t o  t h e i r  S o c i a l  
S e c u r i t y  payments? 

Right ,  I n  o t h e r  words, what happens i s  very  
simple,  A s  I say,  a man, because n o t  much 
o f  t h e  t y p e  of work he  does  i s  a v a i l a b l e ,  i s  
i d l e  more t h a n  he  works, He i s  drawing h i s  
PGP, b u t  when i t  comes t o  t h e  t ime  he  r e t i r e s ,  
h i s  e a r n i n g s  i n  t h e  S o c i a l  S e c u r i t y  set-up a r e  
way down. 

One man I know, p r e s i d e n t  o f  t h e  p e n s i o n e r s  
c lub,  i s  on ly  g e t t i n g  $110 a  month i n  S o c i a l  
S e c u r i t y  where he should be g e t t i n g  ove r  $300. 
There  a r e  a number o f  u s  l i k e  t h a t .  Anyway, 
one o f  t h e  longshoremen i s  t a k i n g  h i s  ca se  t o  
c o u r t  and i t  i s  q u i t e  involved.  I don?t know 
all t h e  l e g a l  d e t a i l s ,  bu t  i t  appea r s  t h a t  t h e  
case  w i l l  be coming up i n  t h e  F a l l  and wet11 
g e t  a j u d i c i a l  r u l i n g  on it. N a t u r a l l y ,  t h e  
p o s i t i o n  of  t h e  longshoremen i s  very  p l a i n ,  
When t h e y  made t h e  agreement w i th  u s  t h e  
employers a l s o  q u i e t l y  had reached an agreement 
w i th  t h e  IRS without  t e l l i n g  t h e  union. 

No? 
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No. So i t  took  q u i t e  some t ime  b e f o r e  t h e  
Longshoremen became aware o f  t h a t .  

Why shou ld  t h e  employers  g i v e  a damn about  
t h a t ?  

I d o n l t  know why, b u t  anyway i t  n a t u r a l l y
a d v e r s e l y  a f f e c t e d  t h e  income o f  a r e t i r e d  
member. 

It a d v e r s e l y  a f f e c t s  t h e  income of  t h e  working 
member too.  

I t  H u r t s  The R e t i r e d  Man 

T h a t l s  what I mean. The men, when t h e y  r eached  
r e t i r e m e n t  age,  f i g u r e d  on t h e i r  
S o c i a l  S e c u r i t y  and t h e i r  pens ion  and h e r e  t h e y  
f i n d  o u t  t h a t  i n s t e a d  o f  g e t t i n g  say,  $350 o r  
whatever i t  may be,  t h e y  a r e  g e t t i n g  o n l y  $110 -
$120 S o c i a l  S e c u r i t y .  So, t h i s  i s  b e i n g  
l i t i g a t e d ,  and we hope t h a t  i t  w i l l  be  c o r r e c t -  
ed. 

Well ,  t h e  freedom t o  t a k e  a day o f f  whenever 
you f e e l  l i k e  i t  h a s  diminished.  

Well,  i t  has ,  because  o f  t h e  PGP. I f  a man i s  
n o t  a v a i l a b l e  he  cant t c la im PGP. A t  t h e  
p r e s e n t  time work i s  such t h a t  v e r y  few peop le  
t a k e  a day o f f ;  t h e y  don1 t g e t  enough income 
and have t o  depend on PGP t o  g e t  back what 
t h e y  l o s e  i n  working hours. 

I s n '  t i t  t r u e  t h a t  you have t o  be a v a i l a b l e  
t h r e e  days  a week t o  g e t  PGP? 

No, no; you have t o  be  a v a i l a b l e  eve ry  day. 

Where does  t h e  t h r e e  days  a week come i n ?  

I don1 t know; my unde r s t and ing  i s  t h a t  i t 1  s 
on a weekly b a s i s ,  and you have t o  be  a v a i l a b l e  



Bul cke: 	 every day of t h a t  week - otherwise you don1 t 
qual i fy .  I f  you don1 t qua l i fy ,  you don1 t g e t  
PGP. 

Ward: 	 A l l  r i g h t ,  h e r e l s  a guy who wants t o  s t a y  on 
PGP and r e p o r t s  t o  t h e  h a l l  every morning and 
he q u a l i f i e s  f o r  PGP. A t  what time of day 
does he know t h a t  he i s  not  going t o  be s e n t  
out?  

Bu l cke: 	 I be l i eve  t h a t  by 10: 00 01 c lock i n  t h e  morning, 
h e l s  f r ee ,  Most of t h e  jobs start at 7:00 -
8:00 01 clock. When t h e  h i r i n g  h a l l  h a s  f i l l e d  
all t h e  o rde r s ,  then  a m a n  i s  f r e e  t o  go home. 
Of course,  he h a s  t o  s ign  i n  t h e  next  day 
again. The record  h a s  t o  show t h a t  he w a s  
p h y s i c a l l y  prese-nt, 

Ward: 	 I have heard i t  s a i d  t h a t  PGP makes longshore- 
menls work i n  some ways worse than warehouse 
work, because t h e r e  a r e  f i v e  days you have t o  
be there .  

Bulcke: 	 T h a t t s  t r u e ,  because with t h e  set-up of t h e  
PGP a m a n  has  t o  be t h e r e  i n  o r d e r  t o  make 
enough t o  g e t  by. 



V I I I  ADVENTURES I N  ALASKA 

Longshoremen vs. S a i l o r s  

Ward: 	 Okay, J e r r y ,  Now i t  seems t h a t  among your 
o t h e r  adventures  you spent  some time i n  Alaska. 
How d id  t h a t  start o f f ?  

Bul cke : 	 Well, I w a s  e l e c t e d  I n t e r n a t i o n a l  Vice-president 
i n  1947 and I was i n  o f f i c e  probably a week when 
Pres iden t  Bridges s a i d  t o  me, I1You a r e  aware of 
t h e  f a c t  t h a t  t h e  longshoremen i n  Alaska a r e  
out  on s t r i k e ? "  

Nard: 	 Was t h a t  t h e  Juneau Spruce s t r i k e ?  

Bulcke: 	 No. I knew they  were on s t r i k e  i n  Alaska but 
I d i d n ' t  have too much d e t a i l ,  

Ward: 	 It was new then? 

Bul cke: 	 Well, i t  had been on f o r  about a  month, I w a s  
-	 p r e s i d e n t  of Local 1 0  when t h e  s t r i k e  began and 

I had my hands f u l l ,  

Harry says  t o  me, "Go up t o  Alaska and so lve  
t h e  problem, S e t t l e  t h e  s t r i k e  i f  you can,If 
I had never been t o  Alaska, so I found out  how 
t o  ge t  t h e r e  and I a r r i v e d  f i r s t  i n  Ketchikan. 
I t a l k e d  with t h e  members of t h e  union and 
found ou t  t h a t  t h e  problem was t h a t  t h e  S a i l -  
ors' '  Union of t h e  P a c i f i c  members had f o r  y e a r s  
worked one hatch on t h e  s h i p s  t h a t  went t o  
Alaska - - - 

Ward: Oh, they  were small sh ips?  



Bulcke: 	 Well, no, they  were b i g  ships.  

Ward: 	 I thought they  had schooners - - - 
Bulcke: 	 No - no; Alaska steamship companies had regu- 

l a r ,  normal s i z e  v e s s e l s  l i k e  anywhere e l se ,  

Ward: 	 I see, 

Bulcke: 	 What happened was t h a t  i n  t h e  p a s t  t h e  s a i l o r s  
would work one hatch;  they  had t h e  choice of 
t h e  hatch,  

Ward: 	 They had a choice! 

Bulcke: 	 Well, yes,  t h e  s a i l o r s  could p ick  one ha tch  
t h a t  they  worked, They were allowed t o  work 
i n  p l a c e s  where no longshoremen were a v a i l a b l e ,  
s m a l l  p o r t s  where of  n e c e s s i t y  t h e  crew had t o  
work t h e  cargo, Th i s  was well  e s t a b l i s h e d  - no 
argument about t h a t ,  

Well, by t h a t  t ime t h e  SUP and t h e  ILWU 
weren't  s ee ing  eye t o  eye and t h e  employers 
s t a r t e d  t o  work t h e  s a i l o r s  on one hatch;  
when t h e  s a i l o r s  got  througb,wi th  t h a t  ha tch  
they would d ischarge  t h e  longshoremen who were 
working another  ha tch  and they  would cont inue 
working with s a i l o r s ,  Th i s  r e s u l t e d ,  of course,  
i n  longshoremen l o s i n g  ou t  on work, and t h a t  
even tua l ly  became a s t r i k e  i s s u e ,  

The longshoremen i n  all t h e  p o r t s  i n  Alaska 
went ou t  on s t r i k e  and they  had been on s t r i k e  
f o r  about a month when I got the re ,  I s t a r t e d  
i n  Ketchikan, f lew from t h e r e  t o  Juneau, dis-
cussed t h e  ma t t e r  t h e r e  with t h e  longshoremen; 
then  I f lew t o  Seward t o  d i s c u s s  t h e  ma t t e r  
t h e r e  with t h e  union, 

While I was i n  Seward, I got  a c a l l  from 
t h e  p r e s i d e n t  of t h e  Ketchikan l o c a l  s t a t i n g  
t h a t  t h e  businessmen i n  Ketchikan had decided 
t o  see  t o  i t  t h a t  s h i p s  got  discharged, They 
would g e t  men t o  work t h e  s h i p s  and would not  
pay any a t t e n t i o n  t o  t h e  p i c k e t  l i n e s  t h a t  t h e  
longshoremen had es tab l i shed ,  



Bul cke: 	 The mayor o f  t h e  c i t y  of  Ketchikan was n o t  t o o  
happy about  t h a t  development and he had a r ranged  
f o r  what t hey  c a l l e d  "a town h a l l  meeting," 
The p r e s i d e n t  of o u r  l o c a l  s a i d ,  "Look, I ' m  n o t  
a b l e  t o  handle  t h a t  k i n d  of  t h i n g ;  can you g e t  
back here?" So, I took t h e  nex t  p l ane  back 
and a r r i v e d  i n  Ketchikan and l i s t e n e d  t o  t h e  
s i t u a t i o n ,  

I t o l d  o u r  men I would a t t e n d  t h i s  town \ 

h a l l  meeting, which was be ing  h e l d  i n  t h e  c i t y  
h a l l ;  I would t a k e  c a r e  of t h e  m a t t e r ,  bu t  n o t  
t o  announce beforehand who w a s  t o  speak f o r  
t h e  Longshore Union, I wanted i t  n o t  t o  be 
known p u b l i c l y  t h a t  I w a s  t h e r e ,  

Ward: 	 Beforehand? 

Bulcke: 	 Beforehand, r i g h t ,  so t h e  meet ing s t a r t e d  o u t  
and t h e r e  were about e i g h t  o r  t e n  employer 
r e p r e s e n t a t i v e s ,  T h e i r  l i n e  was t h a t  t h e  
d i f f i c u l t y  between t h e  two un ions  was t h e  
f a u l t  of  t h e  ILWU because t h e y  were be ing  f ed  
Moscow gold, The r e d - b a i t i n g  went on r i g h t  
through t h e  p iece ,  

The mayor of  t h e  town was t h e  chairman of  
t h e  meet ing and c a l l e d  upon t h e  ILWU t o  say
i t s  say, A t  t h a t  p o i n t  t h e  p r e s i d e n t  o f  t h e  
l o c a l  spoke up, s ay ing  t h e y  j u s t  happened t o  
have t h e  Vice-President  of  t h e  I n t e r n a t i o n a l  
h e r e  and t o l d  them my name; I was c a l l e d  upon 
t o  speak, 

I exp la ined  t h e  s i t u a t i o n  and p o i n t e d  o u t  
t h a t  t h e  o l d  r e d - b a i t i n g  was something we had 
f o r g o t t e n  about. I d i d n ' t  t h i n k  i t  belonged 
i n  n e g o t i a t i o n s  between t h e  employers and t h e  
unions ,  

I p o i n t e d  o u t  t h a t  du r ing  t h e  war, p a r t i -
c u l a r l y  i n  Local  10 ,  we had s e n t  $5 a month t o  
each of  o u r  members who were i n  t h e  s e r v i c e ,  
I wouldn' t be s u r p r i s e d  i f  t h e  employers didn '  t 
c a r e  t h a t  much f o r  t h e i r  employees who were i n  
t h e  s e r v i c e ,  One o f  t h e  employers' represen-
t a t i v e s  a t  t h i s  meet ing w a s  p a r t i c u l a r l y  



Bulcke: 	 d i s t u r b e d  because he w a s  p u b l i s h i n g  a magazine,
"The Alaska Sportsman!' and t h e  s t r i k e  meant t h e  
paper  f o r  h i s  p r i n t i n g  was n o t  a v a i l a b l e ,  

He was p a r t i c u l a r l y  'v ic ious and he s a i d ,  
i n  a k ind  of  f a l s e t t o  voice,  !'Mr. Bulcke, 
you ' r e  s m a r t , "  And I s a i d ,  "Thank yon, M r .  
Thompson; I wish I could r e t u r n  t h e  compliment,ft 
I t  brought t h e  house down, The upshot of  it 
was t h a t  noth ing  was r e a l l y  accomplished t h a t  
n ight .  

A t  two o1clock i n  t h e  morning t h e  phone rang  
i n  my h o t e l  room and i t ' s  a bus iness  man, 

Ward: 	 The same b u s i n e s s  man? 

Bulcke: 	 No, n o t  t h e  same one, bu t  one of t h e  o t h e r  
b u s i n e s s  men, He s a i d  t h a t  t h e i r  committee 
had d iscussed  t h e  s t r i k e  and r e a l i z e d  t h a t  t h e  
only  way t o  r e s o l v e  i t  was through proper  
n e g o t i a t i o n s ,  Would I be a v a i l a b l e ?  

A t  l e a s t  p a r t  of  t h e  businessmen d i d  no t  
agree  wi th  t h e  a t tempt  t o  open t h e  p o r t  and 
they  wanted t o  have n e g o t i a t i o n s  s t a r t e d  t o  
r e s o l v e  t h e  problem, And so I met wi th  them 
t h e  nex t  morning, The s h i p s  were t i e d  up -
nobody w a s  working them, 

I t  took two days t o  g e t  t h e  n e g o t i a t i o n s  
under way because t h e r e  were t h r e e  steamship 
companies involved  and t h e i r  main spokesman 
w a s  an a t t o r n e y  from S e a t t l e ,  

Ward: 	 And they  had t o  g e t  him up? 

Bulcke: 	 So, i t  took two days a f t e r  t h i s  p u b l i c  meeting 
be fo re  we s t a r t e d  t h e  nego t i a t ions ,  I had met 
wi th  t h e  committee of  t h e  union, of course,  
and we had drawn up seven demands, I t  w a s  on 
t h e  second f l o o r  of  t h e  c i t y  h a l l  t h a t  t h e  
meeting w a s  held,  and two r e p r e s e n t a t i v e s  from 
t h e  Department of Labor sat in .  

( ~ n t e r v i e w6: 2 August, 1983) # 



Meeting t h e  Governor 

Bulcke: 	 The meet ing g o t  under  way, and i t  was open t o  
t h e  p u b l i c  upon r e q u e s t  o f  t h e  mayor, which 
I d i d n ' t  o b j e c t  t o ,  A s  a matter of  f a c t ,  I 
was p l e a s e d  t h a t  we could ho ld  n e g o t i a t i o n s  
where t h e  p u b l i c  could  h e a r  and s e e  what went 
on. 

Ward:,. 	 Fishbowl? 

Bulcke: 	 Yes, i n  a fishbowl,  

Ward: 	 And you were used t o  t h a t  t ype  o f  t h ing?  

Bulcke: 	 Very much so, I p r e s e n t e d  t o  t h e  employers 
o u r  demands t o  r e s o l v e  t h e  s t r i k e ,  I had may- 
be r e a d  a couple  of  s e n t e n c e s  when t h e  a t t o r n e y  
who r e p r e s e n t e d  t h e  employers grabbed h i s  
p a p e r s  and s t a r t e d  f o l d i n g  them t o g e t h e r ,  He 
s a i d ,  "Well, i f  t h a t ' s  what you ' re  going t o  
p r e s e n t  u s  wi th  I might as we l l  go back t o  
S e a t t l e .  

I c a l l e d  f o r  a r e c e s s ,  d i scussed  i t  wi th  o u r  
r e p r e s e n t a t i v e s  from t h e  l o c a l ,  We went back 
i n  s e s s i o n  and t h e  same t h i n g  happened again,  
where he would g a t h e r  h i s  p a p e r s  t o g e t h e r  and 
s t a r t  p u t t i n g  them i n t o  h i s  b r i e f c a s e  saying,  
1 1 1  might as we l l  go back t o  S e a t t l e , f l  

He d i d  t h i s  t h r e e  o r  f o u r  t i m e s  and I was 
g e t t i n g  p r e t t y  t i r e d  of  t h a t  s o  at a n o t h e r  
r e c e s s  I t a l k e d  t o  t h e  two r e p r e s e n t a t i v e s  from 
t h e  Department of Labor who were s i t t i n g  i n  
and t o l d  them n o t  t o  g e t  e x c i t e d  i f  I d i d  
any th ing  o u t  o f  t h e  ord inary .  I was going  t o  
t r y  t o  s t o p  t h i s  a t t o r n e y  from f o l d i n g  up h i s  
p a p e r s  and t h r e a t e n i n g  t o  walk out,  

So t h e  nex t  time he d i d  t h a t  I reached  
a c r o s s  t h e  t a b l e  - he w a s  s i t t i n g  r i g h t  i n  
f r o n t  of  me on t h e  o t h e r  s ide .  I grabbed h i m  
by t h e  n e c k t i e  and p u l l e d  h i m  halfway a c r o s s  
t h e  t a b l e  and I s a i d ,  1fYes, you want t o  go back 



Bul cke : 	 t o  S e a t t l e ?  1'11 start you on your way from 
t h e  second f l o o r  r i g h t  through t h e  windowoff 
And of course  one of  t h e  Department o f  Labor 
r e p r e s e n t a t i v e s  jumped up and grabbed me and 
I shoved him o f f  and s a i d ,  ffLook, youcre no t  
doing any good h e r e  anyway, so donct i n t e r f e r e  
i n  my business," and I s o r t  of pushed him down 
i n t o  t h e  chair ,  

O f  course ,  t h i s  caused a l i t t l e  exci tement ;  
I sat back and a f t e r  a moment o r  so ,  one o f  
t h e  employers - n o t  t h e  a t t o r n e y  - s a i d ,  IfLett s 
g e t  under way," o r  someth ing ' to  t h a t  e f f e c t ,  

I s t a r t e d  r e a d i n g  o u r  demands aga in  and 
s u r e  enough, t h e  a t t o r n e y  grabbed h i s  pape r s  
and s t a r t e d  t o  shove them i n t o  his b r i e f  case. 

A person go t  up i n  t h e  crowd, There were 
probably f i f t y  o r  s i x t y  people  t h e r e ,  A per-
son got  up and s a i d  t o  t h e  a t t o r n e y ,  ffWell,  I 
don?t unders tand  your  a c t i o n s ,  T h e  l e a s t  you 
can do i s  t o  l i s t e n ,  o r  read ,  what i s  o f f e r e d  
t o  you." 

The a t t o r n e y  s a i d ,  I f I t c s  come t o  a p r e t t y
p a s s  when t h e  Governor of  t h e  T e r r i t o r y  of  
Alaska would i n t e r f e r e  i n  l a b o r  nego t i a t ions , "  

I hadnct r e a l i z e d  t h a t  t h e  person  who s tood  
up was t h e  Governor, And I s a i d ,  "Mr. Governor, 
I a p p r e c i a t e  your e f f o r t s ,  bu t  I r e p r e s e n t  t h e  
ILWU; w i l l  you p l e a s e  sit down,ff And he did,  

A f t e r  t h a t  w e  n e g o t i a t e d  q u i t e  n i c e l y  and 
t h e  a t t o r n e y  d i d n c t  renew t h i s  b u s i n e s s  of 
" I f m  going back t o  S e a t t l e , f f  The upshot  of  i t  
w a s  t h a t  we were a b l e  t o  r e s o l v e  t h e  problems 
and go t  a s igned  agreement l a t e r  t h a t  day, The 
s ta tement  by t h e  Governor was very  much i n  my 
mind, and when t h e  meeting was over  with,  I 
went up t o  t h e  Governor and thanked him, I 
d i d n c t  have t o  i n t r o d u c e  myself - he  knew who 
I was, 



Bulcke: 	 From then  on whenever I w a s  i n  Alaska, p a r t i -
c u l a r l y  i n  Juneau where t h e  Governor ' s  o f f i c e  
was, I would always s t o p  by and have a cha t  
w i t h  him. He was very much i n t e r e s t e d  i n  
l a b o r  a f f a i r s  and wanted t h i n g s  t o  be worked 
o u t  p roper ly .  

Some y e a r s  l a t e r  I happened t o  be i n  Seward -
I had been t h e r e  many t imes.  T h i s  w a s  a f t e r  
t h e  Governor w a s  o u t  o f  o f f i c e ;  he was working 
very  ha rd  t r y i n g  t o  g e t  s t a t ehood  f o r  Alaska. 
I always s t a y  a t  t h e  same h o t e l  i n  Seward and 
t h i s  p a r t i c u l a r  evening t h e  h o t e l  owner s a i d  
t o  me, IIWould you c a r e  t o  go a long  wi th  me 
t o n i g h t ?  We're hav ing  a s p e c i a l  d i n n e r  a t  t h e  
E l k s  Club f o r  t h e  Governor," ( t h e y  stil l  
c a l l e d  him Governor) where he w a s  t o  r e p o r t  on 
h i s  p r o g r e s s  i n  t r y i n g  t o  g e t  s t a t ehood  f o r  
Alaska. 

"1'11 b e  happy t o , "  I sa id .  I d i d n ' t  men-
t i o n  t h a t  I knew t h e  Governor p e r s o n a l l y ,  s o  
when we walked i n t o  t h e  p l ace ,  s t a n d i n g  a t  t h e  
b a r  w i th  a d r ink  i n  h i s  hand w a s  Governor 
E r n e s t  Greuning. 

Ward: 	 Was t h i s  Governor Greuning? 

Bul cke: 	 Yes - t h a t  was h i s  name. The h o t e l  man s a i d ,  
Ifcome a long  wi th  me, 1'11 i n t r o d u c e  you t o  t h e  
Governor.ll I walked up wi th  'him and t h e  
Governor s a i d ,  f lHello,  J e r r y  - i t ' s  n i c e  t o  s e e  
you; what a r e  you do ing  here?" I exp la ined  t o  
him t h a t  I w a s  on one o f  my r o u t i n e  v i s i t s  
where I would check ou t  t h i n g s  wi th  ou r  people ,  
r e s o l v e  any problems, and so  f o r t h .  

So he s a i d ,  "Okay, have a d r i n k  on rne.'l, Then 
we went i n  t o  t h e  d inne r ,  and a f t e r  we were 
all s e a t e d  t h e  Governor go t  up and spoke t o  t h e  
ga the r ing :  "Before I make my r e p o r t  I want t o  
t e l l  you something t h a t  h a s  amused me f o r  many 
years .  I ' m  happy t o  s e e  J e r r y  Bulcke h e r e  from 
t h e  ILWU and I have t o  t e l l  you a l i t t l e  s t o r y  
t h a t  happened i n  Ketchikan." He r e p e a t e d  t h e  
s t o r y  of  t h o s e  n e g o t i a t i o n s  i n  Ketchikan,  



Bulcke: 	 s a y i n g  o f  me, "He's t h e  on ly  man who e v e r  
t o l d  me t o  s h u t  up and sit down, and I did.tt 
That  b rought  t h e  house down. 

And I saw Governor Greuning l a t e r  on when 
he  was t h e  s e n a t o r  r e p r e s e n t i n g  Alaska. 

Ward: 	 He was i n  t h e  U. S. Sena te ,  wasn' t he? 

Bulcke: 	 Yeah, he  was a sena to r .  Many y e a r s  l a t e r  I 
met him i n  San Rafae l  where he  was p r e s e n t  
t o  h e l p  i n  t h e  r e e l e c t i o n  o f  someone; I c a n ' t  
t h i n k  of h i s  name now. S h o r t l y  a f t e rwards ,  
Gruening pas sed  away. That  was t h e  l a s t  t ime 
I saw him. 

FOR 


Bulcke: 	 I had some o t h e r  e x p e r i e n c e s  i n  Alaska t h a t  
were a l i t t l e  d i f f e r e n t .  By t h e  way, I went 
t o  Alaska, depending on t h e  c i rcumstances ,  
f o u r  o r  f i v e  t i m e s  a year.  There  were prob- 
lems,  g e n e r a l l y  because I had n e g o t i a t e d  t h e  
c o n t r a c t s  and knew what i t  was all about ;  when 
t h i n g s  g o t  t o o  tough I was t h e  person  who took  
c a r e  of  them. So f o r  13 y e a r s  I went f o u r  o r  
f i v e  t i m e s  a y e a r  t o  Alaska. 

Well,  one t ime  I was i n  s o u t h e a s t e r n  Alaska, 
i n  Ketchikan,  We a l s o  had o t h e r  l o c a l s  i n  t h e  
a r e a  - Sitka,  Pe t e r sbu rg ,  a number of s m a l l e r  
l o c a l s .  I had gone from Ketchikan t o  P e t e r s -  
burg  t o  n e g o t i a t e  a c o n t r a c t  f o r  t h e  l o c a l  
t h e r e .  The men were longshoremen, and a l s o  
worked i n  t h e  f i s h  p r o c e s s i n g  p l a n t .  We were 
a b l e  t o  n e g o t i a t e  t h e  c o n t r a c t  s a t i s f a c t o r i l y .  

There  was o n l y  one h o t e l  i n  t h a t  town, s m a l l ,  
which I s t a y e d  at. The p laneon  which I had t o  
t r a v e l  was equipped wi th  wheels  and f l o a t s .  I t  
f l o a t s  because i t ' s  all wa te r  around t h e r e ;  no 
p l a c e  t o  l a n d ,  a l though  t h e y  do u s e  wheels  
wherever t h e r e  i s  a l a n d i n g  f i e l d .  I checked 



Bulcke: 	 o u t  of t h e  h o t e l  and went down t o  t h e  f l o a t ,  
t i e d  t o  a b i g  barge,  and t h e  man t h e r e  s a i d ,  
" I ' m  s o r r y ,  M r .  Bulcke, bu t  t h e  f o g  h a s  g o t  
t h e  b e s t  o f  us ,  Ketchikan i s  c l o s e d  i n ,  
Juneau i s  c l o s e d  in .  There a r e  no commercial 
p l a n e s  a b l e  t o  f ly."  

I s a i d ,  "Well, I guess  t h e  on ly  t h i n g  I can 
do i s  go back t o ' t h e  h o t e l  and w a i t  u n t i l  to -  
morrow," The nex t  morning I showed up aga in  
and i t ' s  t h e  same s t o r y  - c losed  up, 

But t h i s  a v i a t o r  o p e r a t e d  a s m a l l  p r i v a t e
a i r l i n e ;  he had two p l a n e s  t h a t  he used t o  
t a k e  o u t  v i s i t o r s ,  f ishermen, whatever, and 
he  could  f l y  any t ime he f e l t  l i k e  it,  He was 
n o t  r e s t r i c t e d  because he was n o t  a commercial 
a i r l i n e ,  i n  t h e  s t r i c t  sense. He says ,  "1 
know you want t o  go t o  S i t k a  and one of  my men 
i s  f l y i n g  t h e r e  t o  p i c k  up someone, He's  
l e a v i n g  i n  about  t e n  minutes  and i f  you want 
t o  go wi th  him, you can, I ' l l  j u s t  t a k e  t h a t  
p a r t  of  your  t i c k e t ;  I ' l l  g e t  pa id ,  so  no 
problem," I t  was a small p lane  t h a t  s e a t e d  
t h r e e  peop le  - one nex t  t o  t h e  p i l o t  and two 
i n  t h e  back. So I was t h e  o n l y  passenger ,  He 
p u t  my s u i t c a s e  i n  t h e  back o f  t h e  p l ane  i n  t h e  
t r u n k  compartment, And i t  was a ve ry  heavy 
fog;  he took o f f  and we broke through i t ,  I 
t h i n k  a t  a b u t  250 f e e t ,  

We hadn ' t  been gone ve ry  l o n g  when all of  
a sudden i t  looked  l i k e  somebody had thrown a 
bucket  of  o i l  on t h e  windshield ,  He immediately 
s h u t  t h e  motor o f f  and s a i d  t o  me, "Is your 
s e a t  b e l t  t igh t? ' !  " I f  I t i g h t e n  i t  any more 
t h e  buckle  w i l l  come o u t  i n  my back," I sa id .  

I t  was an e e r i e  sound - no motor, bu t  you 
could  h e a r  t h e  wind w h i s t l e  underneath t h e  
wings, He s a i d ,  "Well, we're f o r t u n a t e ;  t h e r e  
a r e  two l a k e s  down here," I looked  down and 
saw a h o l e  i n  t h e  f o g  about t h e  s i z e  of  a 
doughnut; I could  s e e  water,  



Bulcke: 	 He c i r c l e d  around and wound up h i s  aerial  
which w a s  l i k e  on a f i s h i n g  r e e l  suspended be- 
nea th  t h e  plane. He c a l l e d  o u t ,  "May Day,'. 
May Day," and gave h i s  approximate p o s i t i o n ,  
Down w e  went, c i r c l i n g ,  c i r c l i n g ,  and we h i t  
t h e  water, k i n d  of  on an angle  so t h a t  ou r  
f l o a t s  went back and f o r t h ,  We went up t o  t h e  
end of  t h e  l a k e ,  which w a s  n o t  very b ig ,  and 
h i t  t h e  g rave l ;  as soon as we go t  on t h e  
ground, he jumped ou t  and I jumped out ,  

He went t o  t h e  back of  t h e  p lane  where my 
s u i t c a s e  was; he reached i n  and handed me a 
30-30 r i f l e  and s a i d ,  !!Can you shoot?tt  And I 
s a i d ,  "Yes, I can shoot," I thought  he was 
t r y i n g  t o  calm me down o r  something and I sa id ,  
"Whatt s t h e  b i g  idea?" 

He s a i d ,  " J u s t  a minute,t! And a c r o s s  t h e  
l a k e ,  probably about s i x t y  y a r d s  away, was a 
b i g  t r e e ;  t h e r e  were b i g  t r e e s  t h e r e ,  Juneau 
Spruce, about t h e  s i z e  of ou r  redwoods, And 
a l imb had broken o f f  and t h e r e  was a b r i g h t  
spo t  on t h e  t runk,  He sa id ,  !?See i f  you can' 

h i t  that ."  So, I l e v e l l e d  o f f  t h e  r i f l e ,  
aimed and h i t  it. ttFine,!! he  sa id ,  

"Now, what 's  t h e  i d e a ,  may I ask?" I sa id ,  
He s a i d ,  " A t  t h i s  t ime of t h e  y e a r  t h e  gr izz-  
l i e s  have t h e i r  cubs and they  a r e  very dan- 
gerous, I f  you s e e  one, don! t h e s i t a t e ,  shoot," 

So, he went and worked on t h e  p lane ,  opened 
t h e  hood and said, '  t!Now, h e r e t s  t h e  problem -
t h e  o i l  l i n e  had become disconnected,1! 

He went up t o  a t ree  and cu t  a wide shaped 
p i e c e  of  wood which he jammed i n t o  t h e  open- 
i n g ;  then  with a wire  he t i e d  i t  a c r o s s  so t h a t  
t h e  o i l  couldnt t l e a k  out ,  He had a g a l l o n  of  
o i l  i n  t h e  back of t h e  plane;  he poured t h a t  
i n ,  He s a i d ,  !'Okay, we're a l l  set,!' and we 
shoved.  t h e  p lane  o f f  i n t o  t h e  water i n  o rde r  
t o  t u r n  i t  around, then  p u l l e d  i t  back u n t i l  
t h e  tail was a c t u a l l y  between two t r e e s ,  



Ward: 	 Youtre f a c i n g  t h e  f r o n t  o f  t h e  l a k e ?  

Bul cke: 	 Yeah, r i g h t .  We p u l l e d  i t  as f a r  back as we 
could  go on to  t h e  g r a v e l  and a f t e r  we g o t  i n  
he  s a i d  t o  me, !!Unfortunately, we? r e  on t h e  
s m a l l e r  l a k e ,  n o t  t h e  b i g g e r  one, bu t  wet11 
make i t  all r ight ."  So, he l e t  t h e  motor r u n  
f o r  a b i t  and then  he r e a l l y  opened i t  up. We 
r a n  th rough  t h e  g r a v e l  i n t o  t h e  wa te r  and took 
o f f .  The bottom o f  t h e  f l o a t s  touched t h e  
t o p s  of t h e  t r e e s  as we went up and c l e a r e d  
t h e  lake .  Then he l e t  go of h i s  a e r i a l  and 
s a i d  i t  w a s  okay and we were go ing  back. 

We went back t o  P e t e r s b u r g  and l a n d e d  okay. 
H e  went i n t o  t h e  workshop, found t h e  p r o p e r  
p a r t ,  connected t h e  o i l  l i n e ,  p u t  some o i l  i n  
and s a i d ,  "Well, a r e  you ready  t o  go t o  Sitka?!! 
I s a i d ,  "With you, I t 1 1  f l y  any place.!! 

So, I go t  back i n  and a l t hough  i t  was s t i l l  
foggy we took  o f f  and l anded  okay i n  S i t k a ,  

That  w a s  an expe r i ence  t h a t  I c e r t a i n l y  
m i l l  n eve r  f o r g e t ;  I w a s  g l a d  t h a t  i t  came o u t  
a l l  r i g h t .  But ano the r  t ime  when I w a s  i n  
Seward, I wanted t o  s t o p  o f f  i n  Cordova, 
a n o t h e r  p l a c e  where we had one of  o u r  l o c a l s .  

Ward: 	 Cordova? 

Bulcke: 	 Yeah, Cordova. The p l a n e  t h a t  s topped i n  
Cordova s t a r t e d  from Anchorage, so I went t o  
Anchorage and made arrangements  w i th  t h e  air-
l i n e  f o r  me t o  s t o p  o f f  a t  Cordova, 

They g e n e r a l l y  l e f t  a t  6:00 a.m. from t h e  
a i r p o r t  i n  Anchorage, That  morning a t  q u a r t e r  
t o  f i v e  t h e y  c a l l e d  a t  my h o t e l  s t a t i n g  t h a t  
Cordova w a s  socked i n  - could  n o t  l a n d  t h e r e  -
which was n o t h i n g  new. 

I n  t h o s e  days  t h e y  d i d n t t  have t h e  equipment 
t hey  have nowadays t o  l a n d  i n  any k i n d  o f  
weather. ! ! A l l  r igh t :  I s a i d ,  " t h e r e ? s n o t h i n g
I can do about  it.!' The /nex t  day they  c a l l e d  



Bulcke: 	 me a g a i n  and s a i d  t h e y  would be a b l e  t o  l a n d  
i n  Cordova, There w a s  ano the r  passenger  
aboard who a l s o  wanted t o  g e t  o f f  i n  Cordova, 
When we g o t  over  Cordova, i t  w a s  socked i n ,  
and so  we f l ew  around; Yakatat was socked i n ,  
Ketchikan was socked i n ,  Juneau was socked i n ,  
and we f i n a l l y  l anded  i n  Whitehorse i n  B r i t i s h  
t e r r i t o r y ,  

Ward: 	 I n  Canada? 

Bul cke: 	 Yes, i n  Canada, They p u t  u s  up i n  a h o t e l  and 
t h e  c a p t a i n  s a i d ,  "Don't be  i n  a hu r ry  i n  t h e  
morning, because we a r e  n o t  l e a v i n g  u n t i l  
10:OO o ~ c l o c k . f (  That  w a s  f i n e  wi th  me, We 
g o t  t o  Juneau - i t  was b e a u t i f u l  weather,  
t h e  p l a ~ l a n d e d ,  People  go t  o f f ,  g o t  on and 
we went down t o  Ketchikan; t h e  same t h i n g ,  
n i c e , .  c l e a r  weather. 

We took  o f f  from Ketchikan towards  Anchorage 
and we g e t  ove r  Cordova and i t ' s  socked i n  
aga in ,  so  we l anded  back i n  Anchorage, Of 
course ,  once you a r e  on t h e  p l a n e  you a r e  t h e  
gues t  o f  t h e  a i r l i n e s ,  and t h e y  had t o  p u t  me 
up i n  a h o t e l ,  So, I wai ted  ano the r  day -
Cordova was still socked in .  

So, t h e  day a f t e r  t h a t  I dec ided  t h i s  w i l l  
n o t  do. I got  on t h e  phone t o  ou r  people  i n  
Cordova and he lped  them o u t  as b e s t  I could  
on t h e  problems t h e y  had, e x p l a i n i n g  t h a t  I 
could  j u s t  n o t  g e t  t h e r e ,  I g o t  back on t h e  
p l ane  and f lew t o  Ketchikan,  t r a n s f e r r e d  t o  
t h e  p l a n e  f o r  S e a t t l e ,  and from t h e r e  back t o  
San Franc isco ,  It had been one of  t h e  ex- 
p e r i e n c e s  I d i d  n o t  p a r t i c u l a r l y  enjoy, I 
donct  mind f l y i n g  a c r o s s  Alaska,  bu t  t h r e e  
t i m e s  i s  j u s t  t o o  much, 



Meeting A Moose 

Bulcke: 	 A r a t h e r  amusing i n c i d e n t ;  a t  one t ime  I took 
one o f  o u r  s t a f f ,  a woman who handled o u r  
w e l f a r e  programs i n  o u r  o f f i c e ,  t o  Alaska. 

Ward: 	 Who was t h a t ?  

Bulcke: 	 It was Ann Waybur. I had Ann come a long  wi th  
me because she  had more expe r i ence  and know- 
l e d g e  o f  t h e  d e t a i l s  i n  t h e  we l f a re  programs, 
t h e  d e n t a l  program and a l l  o t h e r  medical  pro- 
grams. 

She cou ld  e x p l a i n  i n  d e t a i l  j u s t  what i t  
meant, and t h i s  was n e c e s s a r y  because we had 
j u s t  been a b l e  t o  g e t  t h e  members i n  Alaska 
covered wi th  a w e l f a r e  program similar t o  o u r s  
elsewhere.  While I knew i t  I d i d  n o t  have t h e  
knowledge s h e  had o f  t h e  d e t a i l s ,  s o  s h e  came 
a long  wi th  me. 

We were i n  Seward, and one of t h e  Seward 
members mentioned t h a t  we have moose i n  t h a t  
p a r t  o f  Alaska. A s  a m a t t e r  o f  f a c t  t h e y  a r e  
hunted eve ry  y e a r  d u r i n g  t h e  h u n t i n g  season. 

So, whi le  we had a break  he  o f f e r e d  t o  d r i v e  
u s  around and t r y  t o  show Ann Waybur a moose 
o u t  i n  t h e  wi lds ,  A s  we were d r i v i n g  o u t  o f  
Seward we saw a c a r  s topped a t  t h e  s i d e  o f  t h e  
road  and people  s t a n d i n g  wi th  cameras, so su re ,  
i t  must be  a moose t h e r e ,  We drove up t o  t h e  
o t h e r  p a r t  o f  t h e  r o a d  and, s u r e  enough, about  
75 f e e t  from t h e  highway t h e r e  was s t a n d i n g  a 
b e a u t i f u l  b u l l  moose. 

Ann, o f  course ,  wanted t o  t a k e  a p i c t u r e  of  
t h a t  moose and t h e  man s a i d ,  flBe c a r e f u l  -
t hey  a r e  unpred ic tab le . f l  He went back t o  t h e  
c a r  and g o t  o u t  h i s  r i f l e ,  which he c a r r i e d  
a l l  t h e  time. 

I n  t h e  meantime Ann had walked up f a c i n g  
t h e  moose and t h e  moose s t a r t e d  moving, bu t  
slowly. Re came right a c r o s s  t h e  .highway and 



Bulcke: 	 went down t h e  o t h e r  s i d e ,  Didnc t  b o t h e r  h e r  
a t  a l l ,  b u t  she  g o t  some good sho t s ,  The man 
was k i d d i n g  h e r ,  ttWhat were you t r y i n g  t o  do -
goose t h e  moose?ll 

A f t e r  we g o t  back t o  t h e  o f f i c e  I t o l d  this 
s t o r y ,  and of  course  everybody was t e a s i n g  h e r  
about  t r y i n g  t o  goose a moose, We o f t e n  
laughed  about  i t ,  

One t ime  when I was i n  Seward, r i g h t  n e x t  
t o  o u r  d i s p a t c h  h a l l  t h e r e  was a h o t e l  where 
t h e  workers  s t a y e d  gene ra l ly .  It a l s o  had a 
b a r ,  so  I was i n  t h e  bar hav ing  a b e e r  when -
p r i o r  t o  go ing  i n  t h e  d i s p a t c h  h a l l  - one o f  
t h e  guys s a i d ,  "We have a v i s i t o r  from your  
l o c a l  - Local  10." 

Some of  o u r  members used  t o  go t o  Alaska 
t o  f i s h ;  t h e y  would work t h e  f i s h i n g  and gen- 
e r a l l y  came back, bu t  sometimes t h e y  would 
s t a y  around and work a whi le  as a longshoreman,
T h i s  f e l l o w  d id ,  The s e c r e t a r y  o f  Loca l  10 
knew I w a s  go ing  t o  Alaska and had mentioned 
t h e  f a c t  t h a t  t h i s  man w a s  i n  Seward and was 
behind i n  h i s  dues  t o  o u r  l o c a l ,  ( I  donct  
remember t h e  amount). It occu r red  t o  me when 
he  saw me, He was g l a d  t o  s e e  me, and we shook 
hands, He wasnct aware of  t h e  f a c t  t h a t  I was 
t h e r e  f o r  d i s c u s s i o n  wi th  t h e  l o c a l  o f f i c i a l s  
and s t u f f ,  

Ward: 	 He thought  you had chased him up - - - ? 

Bul cke: 	 And he s a i d ,  "What a r e  you do ing  here?tt I s a i d ,  
tIWell, you know, you owe dues  t o  t h e  l oca l , t l  
And he  s a i d ,  llYou mean you came all t h e  way t o  
Seward t o  c o l l e c t  t h e s e  dues?" I s a i d ,  "Yes, 
t h i n g s  a r e  k i n d a  tough - you b e t t e r  pay up," 
More i n  t e a s i n g  t h a n  any th ing  e l s e ;  I didnc t 
mean i t  s e r i o u s l y ,  

So, he  s a i d  t o  t h e  b a r t e n d e r ,  11How much money 
have I g o t  here?t1 There  was t h e  h a b i t  o f  hav ing  
t h e  workers  who l i v e d  i n  t h e  h o t e l  l e a v e  t h e i r  
money w i t h  t h e  ba r t ende r ,  And t h e  b a r t e n d e r  



Bulcke: 	 t o l d  him how much he had.. I don ' t  r e c a l l  t h e  
amount bu t  he i n s i s t e d  t h a t  t h e  ba r t ende r  pay 
me t h e  money he owed. 

I accepted i t  and wrote ou t  a temporary re-  
c e i p t , - a n d  of course  when I came back t o  San 
F ranc i sco  I tu rned  i t  over  t o  t h e  s e c r e t a r y  of  
t h e  l o c a l  here. Some y e a r s  l a t e r  when I saw 
him here ,  he had found o u t  t h a t  I wasn't i n  
Alaska f o r  t h a t  purpose, bu t  he go t  a b i g  k i c k  
o u t  of  i t ,  bragging t o  everybody t h a t  t h e  vice-  
p r e s i d e n t  of  t h e  I n t e r n a t i o n a l  came all t h e  way 
t o  Seward, Alaska, t o  c o l l e c t  h i s  dues. We all 
g o t  a b i g  bang o u t  of i t ,  

Ward: 	 Well, t h e  p l ane  . f a re  t o  Seward from San F ranc i sco  
would have been more t h a n  - - - -

Bulcke: 	 I t  probably w a s  - he owed about s i x  months dues; 
i t  wasnc t t h a t  tremendous an amount, 

Ward: 	 Well, a s i d e  from amusing t h i n g s ,  do you have 
any comment on more s e r i o u s  problems i n  Alaska? 
I unders tand  t h a t  t h e y  have a l o t  o f  problems, 
some o f  which were obvious even then,  

A Big S tep  Forward 

Bul cke : ' 	 Yes. You see,  one of  t h e  b i g g e s t  problems i n  
Alaska i s  t h e  d i s t a n c e s  between t h e  l o c a l s ,  I 
d i d  recommend t h a t  t hey  should a t tempt  t o  b u i l d  
an o r g a n i z a t i o n  so  t h a t  they  would have c l o s e r  
r e l a t i o n s h i p s  wi th  one another ,  They e v e n t u a l l y  
s e t  up what they  c a l l e d  an Alaska Council where 
t h e y  would have d e l e g a t e s  from t h e  v a r i o u s  
l o c a l s  meet whenever r e q u i r e d  t o  d i s c u s s  t h e i r  
problems, 

F o r t u n a t e l y ,  j u s t  r e c e n t l y  they  have amalgamated 
all t h e  l o c a l s  i n  Alaska i n t o  one l o c a l ,  I n  
o t h e r  words, t h e  l o c a l s  still e x i s t ,  bu t  t hey  
a r e  now branches of t h e  o v e r a l l  l o c a l ,  T h a t ' s  
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a b i g  s t e p  forward and w i l l  he lp  t h e  members 
i n  Alaska t o  maintain t h e i r  cond i t ions  much 
b e t t e r  than  when they  were a l l  s c a t t e r e d  around, 

A l l  t o l d ,  about how many members would you say 
you have i n  Alaska, o r  had a t  t h a t  time? 

I c a r t  remember exact ly ,  

No, no t  e x a c t l y  - 2,000, 5,000? 

There a r e  around 5,000, I th ink ,  all t o l d ,  It 
f l u c t u a t e s  because i t  i s  seasonal  a l o t ,  

When i t ?s ice-bound t h e r e ?s no shipping, 

Well, i n  Alaska i n  a l o t  of t h e  l o c a l s  they  
work p a r t  t ime as longshoremen and p a r t  t ime i n  
t h e  f i s h i n g  i n d u s t r y ,  t h e  canner ie s  and proces- 
s i n g  p l a n t s ,  They do both t h i n g s  and t h e  l o c a l s  
i n  t h a t  way a r e  a b l e  t o  mainta in  p r e t t y  s teady 
employment f o r  t h e  members, 

Were any of t h e s e  guys Eskimos? 

Oh, yes, some of them were, We had q u i t e  a few 
i n  Seward and we had some i n  Ketchikan; I guess  
i n  mos t  of t h e  l o c a l s  t h e r e  were some. 

That reminds me of an i n c i d e n t  when I was i n  
Ketchikan, I was approached by a woman, a 
n a t i v e ;  she was t h e  e l e v a t o r  o p e r a t o r  i n  t h e  
S t a t e  Bui ld ing  i n  Ketchikan, She came t o  me 
and s a i d  t h a t  h e r  family was on a l i t t l e  i s l a n d  
c a l l e d  Met laka t l a  -
How do you s p e l l  t h a t ?  

Two words? 

No, one word, They were working i n  a f i s h  
process ing  p l a n t  the re ,  

On this i s l a n d ?  



Bul cke : 	 On t h i s  i s l a n d ,  yes. They were very much in -  
t e r e s t e d  i n  g e t t i n g  a union i n  p l ace ,  and would 
I be w i l l i n g  t o  go t o  Met l aka t l a  and exp la in  
t h e  s i t u a t i o n  t o  them? And would they  be a b l e  
t o  g e t  a c h a r t e r  from t h e  ILWU? They were no t  
locgshore ,  bu t  s t r i c t l y  f i s h  p rocess ing  p l a n t  
employees. 

Ward: 	 But you had fishermen i n  t h e  ILWU? 

Bulcke: 	 Oh, y e s  we do. I s a i d  t h a t  I c e r t a i n l y  would 
be happy t o  h e l p  them, and we made a d a t e  f o r  
me t o  go the re .  I had t o  go t o  Juneau and 
a l s o  t o  Seward and on my way back I would go 
t o  Met laka t la .  I t  so happened t h a t  one of  our  
longshore  members i n  Ketchikan w a s  a p i l o t .  He 
had l e a r n e d  t o  f l y  du r ing  t h e  w a r  i n  t h e  Navy 
and he w a s  o p e r a t i n g  one s m a l l  p lane  t h a t  he 
would t a k e  people  out  i n  f o r  f i s h i n g  o r  s i g h t -
s e e i n g  and so fo r th .  He agreed  t o  t a k e  me t o  
M e t l a k a t l a  t o  t a k e  c a r e  of  t h i s  mat ter .  

So I made arrangements and we f lew t o  Metla- 
k a t l a ;  i t , s n o t  very f a r  from Ketchikan. 

We got  t h e r e  and went i n t o  t h e  town h a l l  
where t h e  l o c a l  w a s  meeting; t hey  had every- 
t h i n g  a l l  s e t  up. They had e l e c t e d  t h e i r  of- 
f i c e r s  and t h e y  had copied t h e i r  c o n s t i t u t i o n  
from ano the r  ILWU l o c a l  t h a t  worked i n  t h e  same 
k i n d  of  f i e l d .  A l l  I had t o  do w a s  t o  e x p l a i n  
t o  them t h a t  I would s e e  t h a t  t hey  got  t h e  
c h a r t e r ,  and t h e y  thanked me very much f o r  corn-
i n g  over. 

Rea l ly  I d i d n r t  have t o  do anything;  t h e y  
had s t u d i e d  t h e  t h i n g  and were well-organized. 
T h e i r  main problem was t h a t  t hey  had very l i t t l e  
t o  say  a s  t o  what p r i c e  t h e  f i s h  was s o l d  for .  
They had some government agency s u p e r v i s i n g  
them, and t h e y  were n o t  g e t t i n g  t h e  p r i c e  t h e y  
wanted o r  f e l t  t hey  should get. By o rgan iz ing  
they  were a b l e  t,o c o r r e c t  t h e  s i t u a t i o n .  

Ward: 	 Were they  all women? 



Bul cke : 	 No - no, but t h i s  woman who f i r s t  asked me was 
a n a t i v e ,  and she was high i n  t h e  h ie ra rchy  of 
t h e  na t ives .  The i r  p a r t i c u l a r  t r i b e  i s  T l i n g i t .
Although she worked i n  Ketchikan as an e l e v a t o r  
opera to r ,  she kep t  c l o s e  con tac t  with h e r  
i s l a n d ;  i t  wasnf t  very f a r ,  of course, 

Anyway, when we were through we came o u t s i d e  
and a fog  had s e t  i n ;  you cou ldn t t  see  a c r o s s  
t h e  s t r e e t ,  I s a i d  t o  my f r i end ,  t h e  p i l o t ,  
"Wet11 have t o  s t a y  f o r  t h e  night?" He sa id ,  
"Oh, no; I have t o  go t o  work i n  t h e  morningoff 
I s a i d ,  "Youfre not  going t o  f l y  i n  this kind  
of weather?" 

"Oh," he sa id ,  "1 can f l y  i n  t h i s  weather -
done i t  many times; don t t  worry," Well, I was 
worr ied but  I thought,  hef s going . t o  f l y  and 
h e t s  not  going t o  break h i s  neck, He wouldn't 
t a k e  chances, I ' m  sure ,  

So I went a long with him and we took o f f  i n  
t h e  fog, and a f t e r  we l e v e l l e d  o f f  I s t a r t e d  t o  
say something t o  him, He motioned f o r  me t o  

keep quiet ; you know, he had his f i n g e r  l i k e  
t h i s  motioning) i n  f r o n t  of h i s  mouth and I 
could t e l l  he was l i s t e n i n g ,  I d idnft say any- 
t h i n g  any more and p r e t t y  soon we broke out  of 
t h e  fog  and t h e r e  was Ketchikan, 

We landed on t h e  water,  of course,  and I s a i d  
t o  him, "1 donft understand how i n  t h e  world 
you were a b l e  t o  f i n d  your way, On both s i d e s  
of t h i s  water a r e  high mountains, you know," 

And he sa id ,  "Oh, you g e t  used t o  it," o r  
something t o  t h a t  e f f e c t ,  But i t  bothered me 
some more and he s a i d ,  " I t 1 1  t e l l  you what I t m  
going t o  do, Are you going t o  be he re  tomorrow?tl 
I s a i d ,  vYes,fl "1'11 t a k e  you t o  Met lakat la  
and back and I t 1 1  b l i n d f o l d  myself on t h e  way 
back," 

And of course i t  was b r i g h t  sunshine next  
day, And he sa id ,  " I f  i n  your view I s t r a y  
more than  t e n  f e e t  from t h e  c e n t e r  of t h e  r i v e r  



Bul cke: 	 we were f l y i n g  overS1l he says,  "If11buy you a 
drink," So, s u r e  enough, we went, He b l ind-  
fo lded  himself  and he d i d  not  vary more than  
t h r e e  o r  four  f e e t  from what I judged t o  be t h e  
cen te r ,  

Af te r  we landed I asked him, "How do you do 
t h i s ? "  He s a i d ,  llThatfs why I t o l d  you t o  keep 
qu ie t ,  We do i t  by l i s t e n i n g ;  you can t e l l  by 
t h e  sound of  t h e  motor whether we a r e  too  c l o s e  
t o  t h e  c l i f f s t t  and, s u r e  enough, he  proved i t  
t o  me, 

The Alaskan Nat ives  

Ward: 	 NOW, about t h e  Eskimos, t h i s  Met l aka t l a  l o c a l  
w a s  most ly  Eskimos, I ga ther?  

Bul cke: 	 They were p r a c t i c a l l y  a l l  them, as f a r  as I 
know, 

Ward: 	 Natives? 

Bulcke: 	 No - no, Up around way North t h e r e  a r e  f i v e  
t r i b e s  i n  Alaska which a r e  Eskimo, S i x  t r i b e s  
i n  all, i n c l u d i n g  t h e  Eskimos - all na t ives ,  

'Ward: 	 They a r e  all n a t i v e s ,  bu t  t h e  Eskimos a r e  a 
s p e c i a l  t r i b e ;  i s  t h a t  i t ?  

Bulcke: 	 Yes, t h e  Eskimos a r e  a t r i b e  t h e  same as t h e  
T l i n g i t  a r e  a t r i b e ;  t h e r e  a r e  f i v e  o t h e r  t r i b e s ,  
T h e y f r e  all I n d i a n  n a t i v e s ,  and g e n e r a l l y  t h e  
o t h e r  t r i b e s  a r e  c a l l e d  n a t i v e s ,  bu t  t h e  Eskimos 
a r e  i d e n t i f i e d  as Eskimo, 

Ward: 	 They a r e  t h e  northernmost t r i b e s ?  

Bulcke: 	 Yes; they  a r e  around Dutch Harbor and Nome, i n  
t h a t  a rea ,  

Ward: 	 I fve r e a d  q u i t e  a b i t  about t h e  sad p l i g h t  of 
t h e  Eskimos, Did you run  i n t o  t h a t  a t  a l l ?  



Bulcke: 	 Well, no - not  where our  l o c a l s  were, They
had members who were e i t h e r  Eskimos o r  o t h e r  
n a t i v e s ;  they  all were members of t h e  union 
and worked as longshoremen o r  i n  f i s h i n g  pro- 
cess ing  p l a n t s ,  

Ward: 	 I ' v e  r e a d  t h a t  Eskimos p a r t i c u l a r l y  have a 
problem - an educat ional  problem and a dr inking
problem, 

Bul cke: 	 Well, yes,  I heard t h a t  they had t h e s e  problems, 
but  those  t h a t  I had con tac t  w i t h  were s t e a d i l y
employed apd no d i f f e r e n t  than  o u r  o t h e r  members. 

Ward: 	 And fo re igners ,  n a t i v e s ,  Eskimos all worked 
p r e t t y  wel l  toge the r?  

Bul cke : 	 Oh, y e s  - no problem i n  t h e  l o c a l s  at  all, 

Ward: 	 No r a c i a l  problems? 

Bulcke: 	 No r a c i a l  problems t h a t  I ever  heard of o r  saw, 
They were accepted - they  were good workers, A s  
a m a t t e r ' o f  f a c t ,  some of them were o f f i c e r s  of 
t h e  l o c a l ,  . 

Ward: 	 Well, t h a t  g i v e s  a b e t t e r  p i c t u r e  than  you o f t e n  
ge t  about t h e  abor ig ine ,  The aborgines  of 
Alaska, 

Bulcke: 	 Right - r i g h t ,  

A C h i l l s  Minute 

Bulcke: 	 One time I was i n  Seward, i n  January, There 
were some problems t h e r e  which requ i red  me t o  
go, and i t  was 45 below zero. I had been t h e r e  
a t  d i f f e r e n t  t imes  when t h e  weather was cold  
but  t h i s  w a s  t h e  c o l d e s t  t h a t  I ever  experienced,
And t h e  h o t e l  where I w a s  s t a y i n g  d id  no t  have 
a r e s t a u r a n t ,  
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J e r r y ,  we had you a h a l f  b lock  away from t h e  
r e s t a u r a n t  i n  Seward. 

. .. . 

I w a s  p r o p e r l y  d r e s s e d  f o r  t h a t  k i n d  o f  weather, 
I had been t o l d  how c o l d  i t  would ge t ,  I had 
on thermal  underwear and I had a wool shawl 
around my neck, And a h a t  and a l i n e d  overcoat ,  

A s  I s t epped  o u t  o f  t h e  h o t e l ,  t h e  wind was 
q u i t e  s t r o n g  and t h e  wind h i t  my f ace ;  b e l i e v e  
i t  o r  n o t ,  my e y e s  watered and f r o z e  shut .  I 
had t o  s t a n d  t h e r e  f o r  some minu te s  w i t h  my 
gloved hands ove r  my e y e s  t o  thaw them o u t  so  
I cou ld  f i n d  my way t o  t h e  r e s t a u r a n t .  A f t e r  
t h a t  I g e n e r a l l y  backed o u t  of  t h e  h o t e l  lobby  
and made s u r e  t h a t  my e y e s  were covered f o r  t h e  
t ime  I needed p r o t e c t i o n ,  It was r e a l l y  t h e  
c o l d e s t  I e v e r  exper ienced  i n  my l i f e ,  and as 
t h e  n a t i v e s  t o l d  me a f t e rward ,  one of  t h e  cold- 
e s t  t h e y  had e v e r  f e l t ,  

It ve  heard  o f  peop le  walking around i n  weather  
70 degrees  below, b u t  i t ' s  hard  t o  f i g u r e ,  

Yes, b u t  t h i s  w a s  o n l y  45 below zero,  

Well,  t h a t t  s a good c h i l l y  scene  t o  l e a v e  i n  
Alaska, 

Yes, I t h i n k  so, I haven' t had t h e  p l e a s u r e  
s i n c e ,  I stil l  want t o  make a n o t h e r  t r i p  and 
do i t  a t  my l e i s u r e ,  l o o k  around at p l a c e s  
where I haven ' t  been, 

You took  Rusty t o  E a s t  Germany, b u t  you d i d n t t  
t a k e  h e r  t o  Alaska? 

Yes, I d i d  - I d i d  t a k e  my wife ,  Rusty, one 
t ime,  We went t o  Seward and a l s o  t o  Juneau,  
Ketchikan; many p l a c e s  where we had l o c a l s .  

But most o f  t h e  t ime,  even when you were by 
y o u r s e l f ,  you went t o  t h e  more c i v i l i z e d  
p l a c e s ?  
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Well, yes, There a r e  a l o t  of s m a l l  l o c a l s  i n  
sou theas te rn  Alaska on t h e  l i t t l e  i s l a n d s ,  but  
they  a r e  all c i v i l i z e d  and modern, They have 
t h e  same t h i n g s  we have as f a r  as conveniences 
a r e  concerned, 

p r i c e s  a r e  high? 

P r i c e s  a r e  very high, A s  a ma t t e r  of f a c t ,  
our  longshore c o n t r a c t  i n  Alaska provides  f o r  
25 percen t  more than  t h e  wages a r e  on t h e  Paci- 
f i c  C o a s t ,  and t h a t  i s  based on t h e  f a c t  t h a t  
t h e  government pays wages about 25 percen t  more 
i n  Alaska than  on what t h e y  c a l l  t h e  mainland, 

It1s i n t e r e s t i n g ;  t h e  ILWU had a h e l l  of a t ime 
g e t t i n g  p a r i t y  i n  H a w a i i ,  

Thatcs  r i g h t ,  but  we d idnc t  have t h a t  d i f f i c u l t y  
i n  Alaska because t h e  e m ~ l o u e r s  agreed i n  t h e  
begin ing  when we made ouE f i r s t  c o n t r a c t s  t h a t  
t h e  25 percen t  d i f f e r e n t i a l  would apply t o  our  
members because of t h e  f a c t  t h a t  i t  app l i ed  t o  
t h e  government employees, 

Well, t h e  Alaska experience,  then,  wasnct too  
bad, 

No, t h a t c s  r i g h t ,  except t h a t  i n  t h a s e  days you 
d idnc t  have t h e  modern p l a n e s  and t h e  t r a v e l  
was s l o w  and you had t o  f l y  many hours,  p a r t i -
c u l a r l y  from Ketchikan t o  Anchorage, It w a s  a 
l o n g  f l i g h t  - I donct remember how long,  but 
they  d idnc t  have t h e  f a s t  p l a n e s  they  have now- 
adays; i t  was a t i resome t r i p  every time, 

And a l s o  from what you have j u s t  t o l d  u s  - i f  
you made a d a t e  i n  another  c i t y  where you had 
t o  f l y ,  you were never a b s o l u t e l y  su re  you 
could be t h e r e  on time, 

That1 s c o r r e c t ,  Generally,  as I r e l a t e d ,  
sometimes you cou ldn t t  g e t  t h e r e  because of t h e  
problems - you couldn ' t  l e a v e  when you wanted 
t o  and you had t o  s t ay ,  



I X  THE TRAITORS 

Experiences With Yorty and Tenney 

Ward: 	 L e t t s  go back a l i t t l e  b i t  i n  t h e  F o r t i e s  and 
t a l k  about our l e g i s l a t i v e  f r i e n d s  turned  trait-
o r  - Sam Yorty and Jack Tenney. You had some 
problems with them? 

Bulcke: 	 Yes, I did. The Yorty committee was e s t a b l i s h -
ed i n  Sacramento when Yorty was an Assemblyman. 
He was l a t e r  e l e c t e d  t o  Congress and h i s  p a r t -  
ner ,  Tenney, took over  a s  chairman of t h a t  
committee, 

Ward: 	 Both f tprogressivest l  turned  Red-baiters? 

Bulcke: 	 They were a s m a l l  Dies  Committee, One day 
t h e r e  were b i g  head l ines  i n  t h e  l o c a l  papers: 
"Schneiderman and Bulcke subpoenaed f o r  t h e  
Tenney Committee.ft A t  t h a t  time I w a s  no t  i n  
o f f i ce .  I had been p res iden t  of Local 1 0  twice  
and whenever I w a s  ou t  of o f f i c e ,  I would go 
back t o  work as a longshoreman, 

Ward: 	 What year  would t h a t  be? 

Bulcke: 	 I f  my memory s e r v e s  me r i g h t ,  i t  w a s  around '43, 
probably; I t m  not  exac t ly  sure. Anyway i t  was 
i n  t h e  e a r l y  F o r t i e s  t h a t  I appeared before  t h e  
committee he re  i n  San Francisco,  They c a l l e d  
f i r s t  on Schneiderman who read  a prepared s t a t e -
ment, 

Then I w a s  c a l l e d  before  Jack  Tenney who, by 
t h e  way, I knew personal ly .  He had served with 
me on the execut ive board of Labor t s  Non-Fs t i san  
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League some y e a r s  before  t h a t ,  Of course,  he 
had changed somewhat i n  h i s  p o l i t i c a l  outlook, 

About 180 degrees! 

Anyway, he poin ted  t o  Schneiderman and s a i d ,  
TIDO you know t h a t  man?" And I s a i d ,  "Yes," 
He asked me how l o n g  - how d i d  I ge t  t o  know 
him, He s a i d ,  "Do you know what he does?" 
"1 understand t h a t  he1 s an o f f i c e r  of t h e  
Communist Party," 
ge t  t o  know him?" 
Jack, 

And he s a i d ,  
I sa id ,  "You 

"How 
should know, 

d i d  you 

Did he c a l l  you J e r r y ?  

No, he didnc t c a l l  me J e r r y ,  

Did he c a l l  you M r .  Bulcke? 

Yes, 

And you c a l l e d  him "Jackff? 

And he s a i d ,  "Don't c a l l  me Jack  - c a l l  me 
Assemblyman o r  Chairman.fl f f I l l lkeep t h a t  i n  
mind," So, he sa id ,  "Answer t h e  question,fl  
I s a i d ,  "1 answered t h e  quest iona1f  The quest ion 
was how d i d  I ge t  t o  know Schneiderman, And 
t h e  ques t ion  came again: how d i d  I ge t  t o  know 
Schneiderman? Again I sa id ,  "Well, I answered 
t h e  question," Tenney s a i d  t o  t h e  r e p o r t e r ,  
"Read i t  again," So, he did,  Tenney sa id ,  
again,  "Now answer t h e  question." 

I sa id ,  " A l l  r i g h t ,  Jack; when you were 
running f o r  r e e l e c t i o n  a few y e a r s  ago, I 
happened t o  be i n  Southern C a l i f o r n i a  i n  Los 
Angeles, You met me and asked me t o  t a k e  you 
t o  o u r  Warehouse l o c a l  meeting t o  g e t  t h e i r  
support  f o r  reelection,ct  

That would be Local 26, wasnc t i t ? '  

That-  was Local 26, I d i d  t a k e  him and i n t r o -  
duced him and made a l i t t l e  speech i n  h i s  



Bul cke: 	 support ,  He made h i s  p r e s e n t a t i o n ,  and when he 
l e f t  t h e r e  were two o t h e r  people  with u s  - I 
don t t  r e c a l l  who they  were a t  t h e  moment, a l -
though I d i d  know them, 

On t h e  way back t o  downtown Los Angeles, 
Tenney s a y s  t o  t h e  d r i v e r ,  !!Pull over t h e r e  t o  
t h e  Communist headquar te rs ;  I want t o  go i n  
t h e r e  and t a l k  - they c o n t r o l  a l o t  of votes,lt 
So, we a l l  went i n  and among o t h e r  people ,  
Schneiderman was t h e r e ,  so Tenney in t roduced  
me t o  Schneiderman. 

And I now t o l d  Tenney this: ftYou in t roduced  
me t o  Schneiderman, and t h a t t s  how I go t  t o  
know h i m , t t  So, he s a i d ,  ttV/ell, wet11 have a 
f i v e  minute recess ,"  I walked ou t  i n  t h e  h a l l -  
way t o  have a smoke and Tenney came out  a f t e r  
me and s tuck  out  h i s  hand, saying, ttLook, I t m  
,not  t r y i n g  t o  be p e r s o n a l , ,  I t m  : j u s t  t r y i n g  t o  
do my job; I t m  t h e  chairman of  t h i s  committee 
and I have t o  go through this." 

I. t o l d  h i m  what I thought of  him i n  long- 
shore language and tu rned  and walked away from 
him, So, when t h e  s e s s i o n  s t a r t e d  aga in  I went 
back t o  t h e  w i t n e s s  c h a i r  and Tenney s a i d ,  "No 
f u r t h e r  questions," That was t h e  end of  t h e  
Tenney h e a r i n g s  a s  f a r  a s  I w a s  concerned, 

The t t D i r t y  	Dozentt 

Bul cke: 	 When t h e  ILWU voted t o  l e a v e  t h e  ILA and be- 
come independent a group of  longshoremen i n  
San Pedro - - -

Ward: 	 P e t r o  P e t e  and t h e  D i r t y  Dozen? 

Bulcke: 	 Yeah, They decided they  d i d n t t  want t o  go 
a long with t h i s  and dec la red  they  would main- 
t a i n  t h e  h i r i n g  h a l l  and s t a y  wi th  t h e  ILA, 
So, when t h i s  got  going I was p r e s i d e n t  of  
Local 10, When we were made aware of  t h e  
f a c t  t h a t  t h i s  was happening i n  ,Sari Pedro, 
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t h e  ILWU . s t a r t e d  a c o u r t  p rocedure  i n  Los 
Angeles i n  o r d e r  t o  t a k e  o v e r  t h e  l o c a l ,  t h e  
h i r i n g  h a l l ,  and s o  f o r t h .  

They had one h e a r i n g  b e f o r e  t h e  judge -
Reuben Schmidt was h i s  name - and ano the r  hear-  
i n g  was t o  be s e t  f o r  l a t e r .  Well ,  a t  t h a t  
t ime  I dec ided  i t  would be worthwhile t o  in form 
t h e  judge t h a t  t h e r e  would be a l o t  of  l a b o r  
d i f f i c u l t i e s  i f  he  went ahead and suppor ted  t h e  
p o s i t i o n  of  t h e  few guys who wanted t o  ma in t a in  
t h e  ILA. 

What was t h e  name of t h e  r i n g l e a d e r ?  Something 
Pe t e r son ,  wasn' t i t ?  

There  was Pedro P e t e  - - - 
A. H a  Pe te rson?  

Something l i k e  t h a t ,  yes ;  t h e r e  were on ly  a few 
o f  them. I s e n t  t h i s  w i r e  s t a t i n g  t o  t h e  
judge t h a t  t h i s  could r e s u l t  i n  a  coas twi se  
s t r i k e .  Some t ime  l a t e r  a young man appeared 
i n  my o f f i c e ,  I d i d n ' t  know who he  was and he 
s a i d ,  "1 j u s t  came from Los Angeles, and t h a t  
w a s  q u i t e  a w i r e  you s e n t  t o  Judge Reuben 
Schmidt.tl And I s a i d ,  "Yes, I d id ,  and I hope
i t  h a s  some e f f e a t . "  He said,  "1 hope so  too,lt 

He walked o u t  - d i d n ' t  i n t r o d u c e  himself  o r  
any th ing ,  so  I p a i d  no a t t e n t i o n ,  The nex t  
t h i n g  I know, I ' m  subpoenaed t o  appear  b e f o r e  
Judge Reuben Schmidt; accord ing  t o  t h e i r  con-
t e n t i o n  I was t r y i n g  t o  i n f l u e n c e  t h e  judge i n  
h i s  dec i s ion .  

You needed a  lawyer ,  r i g h t  away! 

Right ,  So when I went i n t o  t h e  courtroom wi th  
my a t t o r n e y  t h e r e  wasn' t any room l e f t  where 
t h e  s p e c t a t o r s  sat. I sat w i t h  my a t t o r n e y  a t  
h i s  t a b l e ,  r i g h t  i n  f r o n t  of  t h e  judge, prac-
t i c a l l y .  Once they  go t  going,  t h i s  young man 
who had ques t ioned  me a t  my o f f i c e  i n  San 
F r a n c i s c o  was asked i f  I had s e n t  t h e  w i re  t o  
t h e  judge. The young man go t  up and t e s t i f i e d  
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about h i s  d i scuss ion  with me, proving t h a t  I 
had s e n t  t h e  wire. 

The wire  had a c t u a l l y  been s e n t  by you? 

Right. So my a t t o r n e y  got  up and sa id ,  ,,Would 
you recognize M r .  Bulcke?,' He s a i d ,  'IYesbn 
Would you p o i n t  h i m  out?v1 

To t h e  young man? 

To t h e  young man who t e s t i f i e d .  So he looked 
over  t h e  crowd, looked, looked and looked and 
f i n a l l y  s a i d ,  '!Mr. Bulcke i s  not  here,'' 

So my a t t o r n e y  s a i d ,  '!Oh y e s  he is; p l e a s e  
s t a n d  up." I s tood up, and t h e  judge sa id ,  
!'You don l t  belong t h e r e ;  t h a t l s  f o r  a t t o r n e y s  
only,  g e t  back of t h e  rail." 

Of course,  t h e  crowd t h e r e  and t h e  a t t o r n e y s  
awa i t ing  assignments k inda  sn ickered  because 
he re  he had t e s t i f i e d  t h a t  he had known me and 
I was s i t t i n g  wi th in  15 f e e t  of  him and he 
d i d n ' t  recognize me. There was another  person 
t h a t  a l s o  had been charged f o r  t h e  same th ing ;  
he was t h e  he-ad of  t h e  Marine Engineers  Union 
he re  i n  San Francisco.  

Randolph ~ e r i w e t h e r ?  

Meriwether, yes, H i s  a t t o r n e y  d i d  not  ques t ion
t h e  f a c t  t h a t  he had admit ted sending t h e  wire. 
He was f i n e d  $50, I t h i n k  i t  was, and t h a t  was 
t h e  end of h i s  case. 

Then t h a t ,  s where my case s t a r t e d  and t h e  
young man got  up and t e s t i f i e d .  So, we went on 
through my case and my a t t o r n e y  f i n a l l y  ques- 
t i o n e d  t h e  judge - Schmidt - and s a i d ,  ''How do 
we know you got  t h i s  wire?" My a t t o r n e y  got  
t h e  judge o f f  t h e  bench and onto t h e  wi tness  
stand. 

Witness s tand? 



Bul cke : Yes, t h e  wi tness  s tand,  Then my a t t o r n e y  r a i s e d  
t h e  quest ion t h a t  t h e r e  was no judge on t h e  
bench, so they  had q u i t e  a l i t t l e  rigmarole
about t h a t ,  Judge Reuben Schmidt s a i d  he could 
a c t  as a judge and as a wi tness  at t h e  same 
time, by some k ind  of formula, Eventual ly  he 
got  back on t h e  bench and he f i n e d  me $500. 

There was no t  much we could do except appeal 
i t  t o  t h e  S t a t e  Supreme Court, There my case 
was thrown out  and I pa id  no f ine ,  

Ward: What was t h e  d i f f e r e n c e  between your wire  and 
Meriwetherr s wire? 

Bulcke: There was no d i f f e r e n c e  except t h a t  Meriwether 
didnr t argue about it,  The r u l i n g  of t h e  judge 
meant t h a t  t h i s  was t h e  wrong t h i n g  t o  do, My
p o s i t i o n  was t h a t  we had t h e  r i g h t  t o  inform 
t h e  judge as t o  t h e  problems t h a t  would r e s u l t  
i f  he r u l e d  i n  favor  of t h e  - - - 

Ward: The D i r t y  Dozen? 

Bulcke: The D i r t y  Dozen, They never 
over;  they  were defeated,  

were a b l e  t o  t a k e  

Ward: I know; Pedro Pe te  became an o rgan ize r  f o r  t h e  
American Federa t ion  of Labor, 

Bulcke: Right. 

Ward:' Now, J e r r y ,  I understand t h a t  while  t h i s  young 
man w a s  l ook ing  around t h e  courtroom t r y i n g  t o  
f i n d  Germain Bulcke, Germain Bulcke was doing 
a l i t t l e  play-acting, What was t h a t  about? 

Bulcke: Everybody w a s  l ook ing  around a t  t h e  crowd and 
I was s i t t i n g  next  t o  my a t to rney ,  so I s tood 
ug too  and looked around at , t h e  crowd looking  
f o r  me, hoping all t h e  t ime t h e  young man 
wouldnr t recognize me. Apparently he didnc t 
because he d i d n r t  expect me t o  be the re ,  He 
assumed, I guess, t h a t  I was another  a t torney ,  
While I was i n  p l a i n  view, obviously he had 
no t  had a very good look a t  me a t  t h e  t ime he 
t a l k e d  t o  me i n  San Francisco. 



Ward: 	 He probably wasn't l ook ing  i n  t h e  r i g h t  sect ion.  

Bulcke: 	 He d idn ' t ,  He was look ing  at  t h e  crowd behind 
t h e  r a i l i n g ,  



X THE HOUSE THE UNION BUILT 

Four-Bi ts  P e r  Week 

Ward: 	 Now, we ' re  going t o  t a l k  about how t h e  ILWU 
Longshore b u i l d i n g  came t o  p a s s  on t h e  water- 
f r o n t ,  Your h e a d q u a r t e r s  had been on P i e r  18 
f o r  a  l o n g  t ime,  hadn ' t  they? 

Bul cke: 	 We were a b l e  t o  r e n t  space on P i e r  18, P r i o r  
t o  t h a t  we had almost  bought some p r o p e r t y  
a c r o s s  from P i e r  18, b u t  j u s t  as t h e  war 
s t a r t e d  - t h i s  was t a k e n  ove r  by t h e  m i l i t a r y ,  
so  t h a t  d e a l  d i d n ' t  go through, We were a b l e  
t o  s t a y  a t  P i e r  18, bu t  f o r  q u i t e  a  wh i l e  we 
had f e l t  t h a t  i t  would be much b e t t e r  f o r  Local  
1 0  t o  have i t s  own bu i ld ing ,  w i th  f a c i l i t i e s  
f o r  o f f i c e s , d i s p a t c h i n g  and so f o r t h  all i n  
one bu i ld ing .  

Ward: 	 And you had about  6,000 members i n  t h e  l o c a l ,  
didn' t you? 

Bul cke : 	 Yes, about  t h a t ,  During t h e  war y e a r s  we went 
up t o  10,000 members, b u t  when t h e  war was over  
and work went down we were fo rced  t o  l e t  go a 
number of  men, We d i d  this as I ' v e  a l r e a d y
t o l d  you, 

Anyway, t h e  d e c i s i o n  was made t o  t r y  t o  buy 
some p r o p e r t y  a long  t h e  w a t e r f r o n t  somewhere 
so we would be a b l e  t o  b u i l d  o u r  own b u i l d i n g  
and have all t h e  f a c i l i t i e s  we needed, 

I was p r e s i d e n t  of t h e  l o c a l  a t  t h a t  t ime; 
we s e t  up a committee on which Lou Go ldb la t t ,  



Bulcke: 	 s e c r e t a r y - t r e a s u r e r  of  t h e  ILWU served,  We 
looked a t  v a r i o u s  p r o p e r t i e s  and even tua l ly  
decided t h a t  t h e  p rope r ty  t h a t  was a v a i l a b l e  
on a  square  block n e a r  Fishermen* s Wharf t h a t  
had been an o l d  lumber ya rd  and was no l o n g e r  
used was t h e  s i z e  and k ind  o f  a  p l a c e  t h a t  
would s u i t  u s  b e s t ,  

I t  was on t h e  wa te r f ron t  and i t  was nea r  t o  
t h e  Golden Gate b r i d g e  and n o t  t oo  f a r  from 
t h e  Oakland Bay br idge ,  and we saw t h a t  t h e  
space  would a l low u s  t o  have a spo t  f o r  o u r  
men t o  park  t h e i r  c a r s ,  and so  f o r t h ,  

That p r o p e r t y  was owned by t h e  PG&E, and w e  
d i d n * t  want them t o  know t h a t  we as a union 
were i n t e r e s t e d  i n  i t ,  so we used some i n t e r -  
med ia r i e s  t o  do t h e  necessary  n e g o t i a t i n g ,  

The PG&E e v e n t u a l l y  agreed t o  seZl f o r  
$600,000 and through some n e g o t i a t i o n s  we were 
a b l e  t o  reduce t h a t  t o  $500,00, They gave u s  
two weeks' n o t i c e  t o  conclude t h e  dea l ;  o the r -
wise i t  would f a l l  through, It was necessary  
t o  g e t  o u r  membership t o  okay t h e  deal ,  We 
had a l r e a d y  had some p re l imina ry  ske tches  made 
and f e e l e r s  pu t  ou t  as t o  what t h e  b u i l d i n g  
would c o s t  t o t a l l y ,  We c a l l e d  a s p e c i a l  mem- 
b e r s h i p  meeting and l e t  i t  be known t h a t  t h e  
purpose o f  t h e  meeting w a s  t o  dec ide  whether 
t o  buy t h e  proper ty ,  The committee asked me 
t o  make t h e  r e p o r t ,  The meet ing was opened
and I sa id ,  "We have a p r o p o s i t i o n  f o r  you, and 
I don ' t  s e e  t h e  need of  a rguing  over  i t  f o r  a 
l o n g  time, You e i t h e r  ag ree  o r  disagree:' 

Right  away t h e r e  were all k i n d s  of c a l l s ,  
"How much? How much?tl I s a i d ,  ! !A l l  r i g h t ,
k i d s ,  hang on t o  your h a t s ,  Give o r  t a k e  a 
hundred thousand d o l l a r s ,  i t  w i l l  c o s t  a 
m i l l i o n  dollars,! t  And t h e  crowd j u s t  booed, 
It looked t o  me t h a t  t h e  c e i l i n g  went up and 
down about f o u r  t imes,  

I l e t  them h o l l e r  f o r  a l i t t l e  b i t  and then  
I s a i d ,  "O,K, Here i s  t h e  s i t u a t i o n ,  The 



Bulcke: 	 p r o p e r t y  w i l l  c o s t  about  $500,00Oand t h e  e s t i -  
mate of t h o s e  who a r e  going t o  b u i l d  t h e  bu i ld-  
i n g  i s  t h a t  t h e r e  w i l l  be a t o t a l  outgo of 
somewhere ove r  a m i l l i o n  d o l l a r s .  

The way we s e e  i t ,  i t  w i l l  c o s t  each one of  
u s  $250, That  can be p a i d  o f f  i n  t e n  yea r s ,  so  
t h a t ?s $25 a y e a r  and $25 a y e a r  i s  j u s t  about 
what each of you spend f o r  a d r i n k  every week. 
I t h i n k  t h a t  any member of  o u r  union who does  
n o t  t h i n k  t h a t  t h e  union i s  worth 50 c e n t s  a 
week should throw i n  h i s  book and leave ,"  

I t  was d e a t h l y  q u i e t ,  A f t e r  a few moments 
somebody g o t  up and moved we adopt t h e  recom- 
mendation, and j u s t  l i k e  t h a t  t h e  b u i l d i n g  was 
under way! I t  was b u i l t ,  of  course ,  and stil l  
i s  t h e r e  a t  North P o i n t  S t r e e t ,  

T h i s  i s  how we managed t o  g e t  t h e  bu i ld ing .  
I must say  i t  a c t u a l l y  c o s t  ' a  l i t t l e  more t h a n  
t h e  es t imate .  I n s t e a d  of  $250,000, I b e l i e v e  
we p a i d  c l o s e  t o  $300,000 as o u r  share ,  and 
l a t e r  on t h e r e  were assessments  f o r  improvements 
on t h e  bu i ld ing ,  But i t  now i s  all f r e e  and 
c l ea r .  

Ward: 	 You had q u i t e  a problem wi th  t h e  a c o u s t i c s  a t  
one t ime? 

Bulcke: 	 Yes, t h e  b u i l d i n g  was b u i l t  and we found t h a t  
t h e  a c o u s t i c s  were n o t  what t hey  should be, 
That was one o f  t h e  a d d i t i o n a l  c o s t s  t h a t  we 
had t o  meet i n  o r d e r  t o  re-do t h e  i n s i d e ;  t h e  
a c o u s t i c s  a r e  now i n  good shape. 

Ward: 	 Well,  what became of t h e  a s s o c i a t i o n  t h a t  
t e c h n i c a l l y  owns t h e  b u i l d i n g  c a l l e d  BALMA? 

Bulcke: 	 We formed BALMA because i n  c a s e  of  any l i t i g a -  
t i o n  we d i d n r t  want t h e  union t o  be a s s e s s e d  
as t h e  owners, Although Local  1 0  members a r e  
members of  BALMA too ,  t hey  have s e p a r a t e  
Boards of D i r e c t o r s ;  a l l  t h i n g s  d e a l i n g  wi th  
t h e  b u i l d i n g  i t s e l f  a r e  d0n.e th rough BALMA, 
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The b u i l d i n g  i s  o u t s t a n d i n g  from an a r c h i t e c -  
t u r a l  p o i n t  of  view, They p u t  i n  p r e - s t r e s s e d  
s t e e l  beams, s i x  of them, t h a t  formed t h e  
round t o p  of t h e  bu i ld ing ,  

A hefigon, w a s n f t  i t ?  

Yeah, The s t e e l  beams a r e  a t t a c h e d  t o  s t e e l  
p l a t e s  which a r e  i n  t h e  ground, I n  case  o f  an 
ear thquake,  t h e  whole b u i l d i n g  can move with- 
o u t  becoming dest royed,  

Then as t h e  ground shook, t h e  b u i l d i n g  shook? 

Well, t h e  p r e d i c t i o n  i s  t h a t  i f  t h e r e  i s  an 
ear thquake t h e  whole b u i l d i n g  w i l l  move wi th  
t h e  ground - n o t  co l l apse ,  

Those beams you speak about a r e  f a s t e n e d  i n  t h e  
ground curve ove r  and j o i n  a t  t h e  top ,  d o n f t  
they?  

Right ,  

I n  a tremendous arch,  How f a r  i n  a s t r a i g h t
l i n e  from t h o s e  p l a t e s  i n  t h e  ground t o  where 
t h e  beams meet a t  t h e  top?  

I d o n f t  remember, 

Well, i t ' s  over  a hundred f e e t ,  i s n f t  i t ?  

Oh, yes ,  e a s i l y ,  When t h e  b u i l d i n g  w a s  i n  
p r o c e s s  many, many, many people  i n  t h e  b u i l d i n g  
i n d u s t r y  - eng inee r s  - would come and watch 
t h i s  t h i n g  be ing  p u t  t oge the r ,  I t  was q u i t e  a 
s i g h t ,  

Do you know i f  t h a t  a r c h i t e c t u r a l  o r  s t r u c t u r a l  
i d e a  w a s  copied  anywhere e l s e ?  

That I d o n f t  know, 

How was t h e  a c o u s t i c s  problem s t r a i g h t e n e d  out?  

Well, t h e  i n s i d e  o f  t h e  b u i l d i n g  i s  s o r t  o f  l i k e  
honey-combed a long  t h e  w a l l s .  They formulated 
some s o r t  of  s t u f f  t h e y  pu t  on which improved 
t h e  a c o u s t i c s  of t h e  building, 
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I n s t e a d  of  bouncing o f f ,  t h e  sound w a s  absorbed, 
i t  c u t  o u t  echoes'? 

Yes, Before,  when you s a t  i n  t h e  balcony you 
could ha rd ly  hear ,  even though t h e  loudspeake r s  
were on. I t  w a s  n o t  good, bu t  now t h e  h a l l  
h a s  good a c o u s t i c s ,  

The Real E s t a t e  Zoom 

Well, what i s  t h a t  p rope r ty  worth - i f  you s o l d  
i t ?  

Well, maybe f i v e  o r  s i x  y e a r s  ago we were of-
f e r e d  $8,000,000 f o r  i t ,  

Probably worth a good dea l  more now. 

Oh, i t  probably i s  because t h a t  p rope r ty  i s  
l o c a t e d  n e a r  Fishermen? s Wharf, There have 
been some a t t e m p t s  t o  have t h e  l o c a l  s e l l  i t ,  

It i s  r i g h t  i n  t h e  middle of eve ry th ing  a t  t h a t  
end of t h e  bay. 

Yes, F isherments  Wharf i s  t h e r e  and t h e r e t s  a 
tremendous amount of b u i l d i n g  around; h o t e l s  
and all s o r t s  of bus inesses ,  

That should make i t  worth maybe $15 mi l l ion?  

I have no i d e a  what t h e  va lue  is, bu t  n a t u r a l -  
l y  t h e r e  have been some d i s c u s s i o n s  a t  t imes  
i n  Local  1 0  because of  t h e  f a c t  t h a t  t h e  
membership i s  down from what i t  used t o  be, 

I t t s  about 2500 now? 

No, i t 1  s around 1800, I unders tand,  

Real ly? 

You see ,  they  haven t t  added anyone, and t h e  
r e t i r e m e n t  of guys means t h a t  a t t r i t i o n  i s  
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t a k i n g  place,  I t  i s  becoming q u i t e  hard  f o r  
those  few members t o  maintain t h e  bui ld ing ,  
They a r e  paying around $50 a month dues, p a r t  
of which goes t o  t h e  upkeep of t h e  bui ld ing ,  
p l u s  c e r t a i n  assessments,  T h i s  i s  j u s t  my own 
th inking ,  but  they  may be fo rced  t o  s e l l  t h e  
p l a c e  and b u i l d  somewhere e l s e ,  

1,ve heard of some d i s c u s s i o n s  -
Yeah, i n  t h e  b u i l d i n g  a s s o c i a t i o n  - BALMA - of 
b u i l d i n g  a pa rk ing  garage where t h e  park ing  l o t  
i s  now, maybe a f i v e  o r  s i x  s t o r y  bui ld ing ,  
The r e n t a l  of  those  park ing  spaces  could wel l  
support  t h e  maintenance of t h e  e x i s t i n g  bui ld-
ings ,  I t 's  been discussed,  but  as f a r  as I 
know, no d e c i s i o n  h a s  been made, 

Then t h e  members would have t o  t a k e  t h e  bus i f  
t h e r e ,  s no p l a c e  t o  park down t h e r e ,  

No, they  .would stil l  be a b l e  t o  park; they
could stil l  use  t h e  lower f l o o r  f o r  t h e  long- 
shoremen and r e n t  t h e  t h r e e  o r  four  o r  f i v e  
upper s t o r i e s  t o  commercial parking, 

hat would make sense, 

It seems t o  me t h a t  i t  does, Of course,  I have 
noth ing  t o  do with t h i s ,  a l though as a r e t i r e d  
Local 10 member I am a l s o  a member of BALMA, I 
have no t  a t t ended  any of  t h e  r e c e n t  meetings 
where t h i s  p a r t i c u l a r  i t em was discussed,  

Well, Local 10 ,  from a f i g h t i n g  m i l i t a n t  l o c a l  
s c r a b b l i n g  f o r  ex is tence ,  t h a t  c h a r t e r  h a s  
r e a l l y  g o t t e n  your union i n t o  b i g  business ,  

Lucky we c e r t a i n l y  a re ,  When we b u i l t  t h e  
bu i ld ing ,  we d i d  i t  f o r  t h e  simple reason  t h a t  
i t  was cheaper t o  own our  b u i l d i n g  t h a p  t o  Pay
r e n t ,  and we go t  b e t t e r  accommodations f o r  our  
members, 

What d i d  you pay? It w a s  f i f t y  c e n t s  a month, 
~vasntt i t ?  



Bulcke: 	 We p a i d '  f i f t y  cents.  

Ward: 	 What would i t  c o s t  now, i f  you could g e t  a 
membership? 

Bul cke : 	 I don't  know what t h e  f e e  i s  now, because they  
haven't  taken i n  any new members f o r  so many 
years. I know t h i s  much, t h a t  t h e  members they  
d i d  t ake  i n  some y e a r s  ago, one of t h e i r  ob- 
l i g a t i o n s  was t o  pay t h e i r  sha re  of  t h e  building. 
A s  I say, i t  has  been y e a r s  s i n c e  they  had t h e  
need of adding anyone, The bu i ld ing  assessments  
do no t  apply t o  t h e  men who a r e  r e t i r e d ,  of  
course, 

Ward: 	 Of course,  f i f t y  c e n t s  would buy two d r i n k s  i n  
t h e  e a r l y  days, 

Bul cke : 	 Oh, yes,  d e f i n i t e l y ,  but  now you couldn ' t  even 
g e t  a h a l f  dr ink  f o r  t h a t ,  

S i x  Months i n  H a w a i i  

Ward: 	 Now, l e t ' s  go a c r o s s  t h e  ocean t o  H a w a i i ,  

Bulcke: 	 Well, i n  1952 Jack H a l l  was our  Regional 
D i r e c t o r  i n  H a w a i i ,  and he was accused of  
being a Communist and what have you, 

Ward: 	 He was charged under t,he Smith Act? 

Bul cke : 	 Yes, a long with some t eachers ,  too. 

Ward: 	 There were seven defendants,  I bel ieve.  

Bulcke: 	 Right, We had i n  September of 1952 an I n t e r -  
n a t i o n a l  board meeting i n  Honolulu, A f t e r  t h e  
meeting was over  with we decided t h e  board 
members by p a i r s  would v i s i t  t h e  o t h e r  i s l a n d s  
where we had l o c a l s ,  Myself and a board member 
from Southern C a l i f o r n i a  went t o  t h e  Big Is-
land,  H a w a i i ,  We went t o  Hilo,  and all t h e  
o t h e r  p l a c e s  where we had l o c a l s ;  and a l s o  



Bul cke: 	 t o  many of  t h e  p l a n t a t i o n s .  I n  t h o s e  days  we 
d i d n f t  have a u n i f i e d  l o c a l  y e t  i n  H a w a i i .  We 
had d i f f e r e n t  l o c a l s ,  -

When I g o t  back t o  Honolulu P r e s i d e n t  Br idges  
s a y s  t o  me, " J e r r y ,  we have a very s e r i o u s  
s i t u a t i o n  here ,  J ack  H a l l  i s  t r y i n g  t o  do t h e  
job as Regional  D i r e c t o r ,  He g e t s  up at  3 
o f c l o c k  i n  t h e  morning and goes  t o  his o f f i c e ,  
works t h e r e  u n t i l  9, and t h e n  h a s  t o  sit i n  
c o u r t  all day, A f t e r  t h e  c o u r t  s e s s i o n  he h a s  
t o  meet w i th  t h e  a t t o r n e y s .  The guy i s  g e t t i n g  
about  t h r e e  hour s  s l e e p  a n i g h t ,  He j u s t  canf t 
keep  up t h a t  pace,  and he needs  help ,  I would 
l i k e  you t o  s t a y  and g i v e  J ack  a hand." 

I could  s e e  t h e  s e r i o u s n e s s  of  t h e  s i t u a t i o n ,  
and so  I agreed,  So, I s t a y e d  i n  t h e  I s l a n d s  
and a s s i s t e d  Jack  i n  some of  t h e  work t h a t  he  
could  n o t  handle  h imse l f ,  i n c l u d i n g  v i s i t i n g  
t h e  o t h e r  i s l a n d s  whenever t h e r e  was a problem 
t h a t  needed t o  be  r e so lved ,  I n  o t h e r  words, 
t o  t a k e  ove r  f o r  him i n  every  way p o s s i b l e ,  
A t  Chr i s tmas  and New Year ' s  t h e r e  were no 
c o u r t  s e s s i o n s ,  so  I f l ew  back t o  San F ranc i sco  
and p icked  up my w i f e  and Bruce, o u r  son,  and 
r e t u r n e d  t o  Honolulu, We r e n t e d  an apar tment  
and s t a y e d  t h e r e  u n t i l  t h e  J a c k  H a l l  trial w a s  
-over; t h a t  w a s  i n  A p r i l  o f  153 -

Ward: 	 September t o  A p r i l  - a l o n g  time, 

Bul cke: 	 And as you know, t h e  J ack  H a l l  trial was 
e v e n t u a l l y  t a k e n  t o  t h e  Supreme Court  and he 
w a s  d e c l a r e d  innocen t ,  

The t ime  I w a s  i n  H a w a i i  gave me a good 
chance t o  g e t  acqua in t ed  wi th  t h e  groups  on 
t h e  d i f f e r e n t  i s l a n d s ;  suga r  workers, p ine-
app le  workers,  longshoremen and so  on, I g o t  
an educa t ion  as t o  what l i f e  i s  l i k e  i n  t h e  
i s l a n d s ,  

Ward: 	 A b i t  d i f f e r e n t  from Alaska? 



Bulcke: 	 Completely, d e f i n i t e l y  d i f f e r e n t ,  I took 
Rusty and Bruce a long with me t o  some of t h e  
o t h e r  i s l a n d s  and we enjoyed t h e  whole Hawaiian 
t r i p ,  

Ward: 	 Did you have any exper iences  with employers 
over  the re?  

Bulcke: 	 One experience s t a y s  i n  my mind, One of t h e  
longshoremen i n  Honolulu was complaining about 
some working cond i t ions  no t  be ing  cor rec t ,  He 
was a steward, working f o r  t h e  Matson Company, 
which f i r e d  him and dec lared  he was never go-
i n g  t o  work again f o r  Matson, 

Natura l ly ,  t h e r e  was a procedure t h a t  t h e  
c o n t r a c t  provides  f o r  s e t t l i n g  such problems, 
but  t h e  employers were no t  very f a s t  i n  making 
use of it ,  The steward was t o l d  t h a t  he could 
never come on t h e  Matson docks a t  all, 

Bulcke: 	 I t  occurred t o  me t h a t  t h e  con t rac t  provided 
t h a t  a bus iness  agent  had t h e  r i g h t  t o  go on 
any dock at any t ime where men were employed, 
I suggested t o  t h e  l o c a l  i n  Honolulu t h a t  they  
make him a bus iness  agent;  t h a t  way he would 
be a b l e  t o  go i n t o  t h e  Matson dock a t  any t ime 
t h a t  he was asked fo r ,  They d i d  t h a t  and, of 
course,  t h e  men working a t  t h e  Matson docks 
immediately had some problems f o r  which they  
needed a bus iness  agent,  When he appeared 
before  t h e  docks, he was t o l d  he cou ldn t t  
come i n ,  He s a i d  t h a t  he was t h e  bus iness  
agent  and he had every r i g h t  t o  come i n ;  i f  
t hey  d i d n t t  l e t  him i n ,  t h e  only t h i n g  he 
could do was t o  ask t h e  men t o  come out  t o  
t a l k  t o  him, 

Well, t h e  company d i d n t t  agree  with t h i s ,  
and su re  enough, t h e  men came out. I d o n t t  
remember e x a c t l y  how many gangs; I t h i n k  t h e r e  
were f i v e  o r  s i x  gangs working. They all came 
out  and d iscussed  t h e i r  problems with t h e  
bus iness  agent. 



Bulcke: 	 Once. was enough, The very same day t h e  Matson 
Company c a l l e d  i n  and informed t h e  l o c a l  t h a t  
i t  a l l  had been a mistake;  f o r g e t  t h e  whole 
th ing ,  He w a s  al lowed t o  work again,  but  h i s  
job as a b u s i n e s s  agent  d i d n ' t  l a s t  very  long,  
Of course,  t h e  s i t u a t i o n  he complained about 
g o t  co r rec t ed ,  

Ward: 	 I t  worked! 

Bulcke: 	 It worked i s  r i g h t ,  

A Schoolboyr s Fee t  

Ward: 	 Well, you showed Rusty and Bruce around t h e  
I s l a n d s ,  What d i d  they  t h i n k  of t h e  p l ace?  

Bulcke: 	 Oh, t h e y  enjoyed themselves;  i t  was something
d i f f e r e n t  from t h e  mainland, of course,  We 
got  acqua in ted  wi th  many of t h e  people  t h a t  
were members of t h e  union. We always had a 
n i c e  t ime v i s i t i n g  t h e  o t h e r  i s l a n d s ,  

By t h e  way, we  n o t i c e d  t h a t  i n  t h e  school 
ou r  son Bruce went t o  t h a t  t h e  k i d s  would 
e i t h e r  go ba re foo ted  o r  wore shoes;  t hey  were 
n o t  al lowed t o  wear t h o s e  s l i p p e r s  t h a t  f l i p -
f lop ,  He d i d n r t  want t o  be d i f f e r e n t  from 
anyone e l s e  so he decided t o  go barefooted,  
A f t e r  about e i g h t  o r  t e n  days he came i n  and 
sa id ,  "Well, now I l v e  g o t  four-ply feet." 

I n  o t h e r  words, he had toughened h i s  f e e t  
and was a b l e  t o  walk ba re foo ted  without  any 
d i f f i c u l t y ;  he  cont inued t h a t  f o r  t h e  whole 
t ime w e  were i n  Honolulu, There were very few 
whi te  k i d s  i n  t h a t  school ;  mostly n a t i v e s ,  

There  was one whi te  k i d  who t r i e d  very hard  
t o  make f r i e n d s  with  Bruce but ,  accord ing  t o  
Bruce, he was n o t  very  n i c e  t o  t h e  n a t i v e  k i d s ,  
I n  t h a t  s i t u a t i o n  Bruce f e l t  he d i d n r t  want t o  
become a c l o s e  f r i e n d  wi th  him, T h i s  hao le  -
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as they  c a l l e d  t h e  whi tes  - one day, i n  o rde r  
t o  impress  Bruce he sa id ,  !!My dad i s  vice-
p r e s i d e n t  of t h e  Hawaiian E l e c t r i c  Company.ff 
And Bruce sa id ,  "So what? My f a t h e r  i s  vice-
p r e s i d e n t  of t h e  ILWU.11 That ended all at-
tempts at  making f r i ends ,  

You wanted t o  say something about Andy Salz? 

Yeah; Andy S a l z  was working f o r  t h e  ILWU i n  
our  Research Department i n  Honolulu, 

He came from San Francisco  wh.ere he had worked 
i n  t h e  Research Department? 

Yes; he came from San Francisco;  he continued 
t h e  same k ind  of work i n  Honolulu, 

Hels  a judge now, i s n l t  he? 

Yes, t h e  l as t  time I saw him he was a judge
i n  Honolulu, Anyway, Andy, when I came back 
a f t e r  t h e  ho l idays  and brought Bruce and Rusty 
with me, Andy o f f e r e d  me t h e  use  of a Model T 
Ford he had, He had another  c a r  and he s a i d ,  
"Only one th ing ,  t h e  r a d i a t o r  doesnl t hold 
water very long, You have t o  t a k e  water a long
i f  you're going t o  d r i v e  any distance.11 He 
did111 t want t o  spend t h e  money t o  f i x  i t  
because i t  was an o l d  c a r  and he d i d n ' t  i n t e n d  
t o  keep it, 

Anyway, when weld go down t h e  beach t o  go
swimming we would f i l l  up t h e  r a d i a t o r  before  
we l e f t ,  and when we s t a r t e d  back home again  
we had t o  f i l l  up t h e  r a d i a t o r  again, I f  I 
was delayed i n  t r a f f i c  I had t o  d r i v e  i n t o  
some s e r v i c e  s t a t i o n  and put  water i n  i n  o r d e r  
t o  ge t  t h e  c a r  home, So, we used more water 
than  gaso l ine  i n  o r d e r  t o  go back and f o r t h  t o  
t h e  beach, 

Well, you went swimming on t h e  o t h e r  i s l a n d s ,  
d i d n l t  you? 

Well, we d i d  when we were i n  Hilo,  but  most of 
t h e  t imes  we were j u s t  t r a v e l i n g  around, 



Bulcke: 	 mee t ing  w i t h  members o f  t h e  l o c a l s  o r  on t h e  
p l a n t a t i o n s ,  That  d i d n ' t  g i v e  u s  much chance 
t o  do any swimming. 

Ward: 	 How d i d  you do wi th  t h e  p idg in?  

Bulcke: 	 Well, i t  d o e s n ' t  t a k e  t o o  l o n g  b e f o r e  you 
r e a l i z e  t h a t  t h e  language i s  somewhat d i f f e r e n t  
t o  what you were used  t o ,  

Ward: 	 Did you speak some p i d g i n  b e f o r e  you went 
t h e r e ?  

Bulcke: 	 NO, bu t  you p i c k  i t  up q u i t e  e a s i l y .  Qihen I 
was i n  H i l o  one t ime  a man came i n  and he  had 
a problem, I don ' t  r e c a l l  j u s t  what i t  was 
now, bu t  I t o l d  h i m  I would check i t  o u t  and 
f o r  him t o  come back t h e  n e x t  day and I would 
have t h e  answer, So, he s a i d  t o  me, " A l l  
r i g h t ,  If11 s e e  you tomorrow pau hana." I 
s a i d ,  "Okaytt, bu t  I didn' t know what he meant. 
A f t e r  he  had l e f t  I asked some of  t h e  o t h e r s  
t h e r e  and t h e y  t o l d  me, "Oh, yeah - pau hana 
means 'When I'q through  wi th  t h e  d a y ' s  ~ o r k f . , ~ ~  
That  was one o f  t h e  f i r s t  t h i n g s  I p i cked  up, 
and I used  i t  myself  q u i t e  o f t e n ,  

Ward: 	 So, you d i d  u s e  a l i t t l e  p idg in?  

Bulcke: 	 Oh, yes ,  a f t e r  a whi le ,  you p i c k  up c e r t a i n  
words and, i n  o r d e r  t o  show t h a t  you r e a l l y  
unde r s t and  what t h e y  a r e  say ing ,  you u s e  i t  
your se l f .  

Ward: 	 T ry ing  t o  be b r o t h e r l y ?  

Bulcke: 	 That '  s r i g h t ,  and i t  was a l o t  o f  fun. 

Ward : 	 NOW, you were t h e r e  i n  1952  f o r  s i x  months, 
and you e v i d e n t l y  v i s i t e d  H a w a i i  l a t e r  on, 

Bul cke: 	 Well,  I ' v e  been back t o  two convent ions  t h a t  
were h e l d  i n  H a w a i i .  

Vdard: 	 You were t h e r e  i n  ' 81  a t  t h e  convention? 



Bulcke: 	 Yes, ou r  b iennual  convent ion was h e l d  i n  181 
i n  Honolulu, However, p r i o r  t o  t h a t ,  s h o r t l y
a f t e r  I r e t i r e d  as an a r b i t r a t o r  i n  Southern 
C a l i f o r n i a  and moved back t o  San Franc isco ,  
t h e  I n t e r n a t i o n a l  decided t h a t  as a r e t i r e m e n t  
p r e s e n t  t h e y  would make arrangements f o r  my- 
s e l f  and Rusty and Henry Schmidt and h i s  w i fe  
t o  make t h e  t r i p  t o  t h e  I s l a n d s ,  Henry had 
worked t h e r e  s e v e r a l  years .  

Ward: 	 P a r t i c u l a r l y  d u r i n g  s t r i k e  s i t u . a t i o n s .  

Bulcke: 	 Yes, du r ing  t h e  s t r ikes ,  he lp ing  o r g a n i z i n g  
and a s s i s t i n g  Jack  H a l l ,  

The L i f e  of Royal ty  

Bul eke: 	 Anyway t h e  f o u r  of u s  went ove r  t o  t h e  I s l a n d s  
as g u e s t s  of t h e  I n t e r n a t i o n a l ,  and whi le  we 
were i n  t h e  I s l a n d s  we were t h e  g u e s t s  of t h e  
Hawaiian ILV!U, Before  we l e f t  San F ranc i sco  
on t h e  L u r l i n e ,  I asked t h e  Matson Company i f  
i t  would be all r i g h t  t o  have a few f r i e n d s  
come t o  s e e  u s  o f f .  

Ward: 	 A going away p a r t y ?  

Bulcke: 	 They s a i d ,  '!Oh, p e r f e c t l y  all r i g h t ,  A s  a 
m a t t e r  of f a c t  wet11 t a k e  c a r e  of  t h i n g s  f o r  
you as far as re f r e shmen t s  are concerned,lf 

Well,  t h e  word must have g o t t e n  o u t ,  f o r  
t h e r e  must have been f i f t y  o r  s i x t y  people  
showed up. The company brought i n  all k i n d s  
of  re f reshments ;  l i q u o r ,  w e  had whiskey, we 
had champagne and eve ry th ing  you could t h i n k  
o f ,  and t h i s  went on u n t i l  e v e n t u a l l y  t h e  s h i p  
had t o  l eave ,  

On t h e  way over  t o  Honolulu, every day t h e  
w a i t e r  a t  ou r  t a b l e  would b r i n g  o u t  a b o t t l e  
of champagne which had been donated by our  
f r i e n d s ,  Also i t  happened t h a t  we knew some 



Bul cke : 	 of t h e  s tewards  because t h e y  were members of 
t h e  Marine Cooks and Stewards,  so we had a 
l o t  of  n i c e  t i m e s  going over. 

We went t o  t h e  v a r i o u s  i s l a n d s  and Local  
1 4 2  had made arrangements  f o r  u s  t o  s t a y  i n  
some of t h e  newer and f a n c i e r  h o t e l s  t h a t  had 
been e s t a b l i s h e d .  So, we were t r e a t e d  r o y a l l y  
t h e  whole t ime we were t h e r e  and we were n o t  
a l lowed t o  spend any money, pay f o r  anything,  
We r e a l l y  had a marvelous t ime,  t h e  f o u r  of 
u s  t oge the r .  

Ward: 	 Had Fay (Schmidt)  e v e r  been t h e r e  before?  

Bulcke: 	 No, I don ' t  t h i n k  so. 

Ward: 	 A l l  r i g h t ;  what d i f f e r e n c e s  d i d  you n o t i c e  i n  
t h e  I s l a n d s  as compared t o  '521 

Bulcke: 	 Qui te  a remarkable d i f f e r e n c e ,  When I w a s  
t h e r e  i n  '52, t h e  suga r  workers, t h e  pine- 
app le  workers and t h e  longshoremen were t h e  base  
of t h e  union. I n  '81 when I went t o  t h e  
convention,  t h e  ILWU had organized  most of t h e  
h o t e l s  - - - and o r g a n i z a t i o n  i s  s t i l l  going 
on. I r e c e n t l y  r e a d  i n  o u r  paper  where t h e y  
had won an e l e c t i o n  where some of t h e  b i g  
h o t e l s  were b u i l t ,  

Ward: 	 The changes; would you say t h e  I s l a n d s  were 
as s t r o n g  f o r  t h e  ILWU i n  181 a s  t h e y  were i n  
'52? Twenty y e a r s  before? The ILWU had a 
tremendous t h i n g  going then. 

Bulcke: 	 Well, i n  ' 52  o u r  membership i n  t h e  union 
p r i m a r i l y  c o n s i s t e d  of t h e  suga r  workers and 
t h e  p ineapp le  workers. 

Ward: 	 And t h e  longshoremen. 

Bul cke: 	 And longshore ,  yes, 

Ward: 	 And t h e y  were about 1,800 guys? 

Bulcke: 	 Well, something l i k e  t h a t .  But t h e  organiza-
t i o n  spread  o u t  i n t o  o t h e r  f i e l d s .  For  
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i n s t a n c e ,  t h e y  have o rgan ized  automobile 
r e p a i r  shops and sa les rooms i n  t h e  ILWU; a l s o  
o t h e r  a c t i v i t i e s ,  

Well,  you must have more members, wouldnl t 
you say, t h a n  you had i n  '522 

I don' t know t h e  e x a c t  number now, but. I know 
t h e y  must have ove r  20,000 members i n  t h e  
I slands, 

The ILWU at one t ime had a l o t  t o  say i n  ano the r  
l i n e  of  a c t i v i t y ,  Did you run  i n t o  any ques- 
t i o n s  about  what t h e  L e g i s l a t u r e  would o r  
wouldnl t do? ; 

Well, t h e y  sti l l  have a number of  ILWU members 
i n  t h e  Hawaiian L e g i s l a t u r e ,  They s e e  t o  i t  
t h a t  a c t i o n s  a r e  adopted t h a t  w i l l  be bene- 
f i c i a l  t o  t h e  un ion  members i n  t h e  I s l a n d s ,  
They a l s o  have, I unders tand,  a good r e l a t i o n -  
s h i p  with  t h e  Governor; a l though n o t  a member 
of  t h e  ILWU, he i s  very  c l o s e  t o  o u r  union, 

A Japanese  - Japanese  name? 

Yes, I know h i s  name, bu t  I c a n l t  come up 
wi th  i t  at  t h e  moment, A s  a m a t t e r  of f a c t ,  
h e  addressed  t h e  las t  convention,  

He was probably  e l e c t e d  with  ILWU support ,  

d e f i n i t e l y ,  d e f i n i t e l y ,  

You t h i n k  t h e  membership i s  i n  p r e t t y  good 
shape ove r  t h e r e ?  

A s  f a r  as I know, i t  i s  - yes,  

Okay, any o t h e r  adven tu res  of i n t e r e s t  ove r  
t h e r e ?  Any expe r i ences  with  a? 
Oh, yes ,  t h a t  w a s  one of t h e  first t h i n g s  I 
t r i e d  on my f i r s t  t r i p  t o  t h e  I s l a n d s ,  

I unders tand  i t  t a s t e s  l i k e  glue,  



Bul cke : 	 Well, t h e  f i r s t  t ime  I t r i e d  i t ,  i t  didnl  t 
seem t o  have much f l a v o r ,  b u t  a f t e r  you have 
, ea ten  i t  a few t i m e s  i t  becomes a k i n d  o f  
t h i n g  t h a t  you a c q u i r e  a t a s t e  f o r ,  

Oh, one t ime  when my wi fe  and Bruce were 
wi th  me on t h e  . i s l a n d  o f  Kauat we were i n v i t e d  
t o  have lunch  wi th  t h e  l o c a l  members o f  t h e  
union, Some o f  them had gone way up i n  t h e  
mountains t o  c a t c h  l i t t 1 . e  f i s h  - very  s m a l l  -
about  two i n c h e s  a t  t h e  most, very t a s t y ,  
very  f l a v o r f u l ,  

Ward: 	 How could  you d r e s s  a f i s h  t h a t  smal l?  

Bulcke: 	 Well, you e a t  i t  - j u s t  t h e  way t h e y  a r e ;  ' 

t h e  whole works, yes,  They had cooked t h i s  
f i s h  f o r  us ,  b u t  t hey  themselves ,  t h e y  a t e  
them raw, 

So I o b j e c t e d  and s a i d  t h a t  they  were dis-
c r i m i n a t i n g  a g a i n s t  u s ;  by g o l l y ,  i f  they  
a t e  t h e  f i s h  raw, we would too ,  So, t h e y  took 
away t h e  cooked f i s h  and se rved  u s  what t hey  
were e a t i n g ,  raw and ve ry  d e l i c i o u s ,  They
exp la ined  t h a t  i t  w a s  very  d i f f i c u l t  t o  c a t c h  
t h i s  f i s h .  They were way up i n  t h e  mountains,  
i n  t h e  s t reams,  By u s i n g  hand n e t s ,  t hey  g o t  
them, They were n o t  a v a i l a b l e  a t  lower  l e v e l s ,  

Ward: 	 Oh, you r e a l l y  had t o  hunt  f o r  them? 

Bul cke: 	 Oh, yes ,  t h e y  s a i d  i t  was q u i t e  d i f f i c u l t  t o  
g e t  where t h e y  were, b u t  t h o s e  people  who 
were born and r a i s e d  t h e r e  knew where t h e y  
could  f i n d  t h o s e  f i s h ,  

Going back t o  t h a t  six-month s t a y  i n  
H a w a i i ,  we r e t u r n e d  t o  San F ranc i sco  i n  Apr i l  
o f  1953 i n  t ime  t o  sit i n  on t h e  las t  few 
days  o f  t h e  1953  ILWU convention,  

Ward: 	 You had t o  make a r e p o r t  on what you had been 
doing i n  Hawaii? 

Bulcke: 	 Well, yes ,  I had an o p p o r t u n i t y  t o  e x p l a i n  



Bulcke: 	 t o  t h e  d e l e g a t e s  what I had been doing i n  t h e  
Is lands .  We i n v i t e d  t h e  Hawaiian de lega t ion  
t o  our  house f o r  a par ty.  They d id  i t  i n  t h e  
Hawaiian s t y l e  - t o l d  u s  t o  sit down and 
enjoy ourse lves  and they 'd  t-ake over. And 
they  made all t h e  arrangements, d id  all t h e  
cooking, got  all t h e  l i q u o r .  I n  o t h e r  words, 
we were t h e  g u e s t s  i n  our  own house and we 
enjoyed i t  very much. 

Ward: 	 Is t h a t  r e a l l y  t h e  Hawaii s t y l e ?  

Bulcke: 	 T h a t ' s  what they  c a l l  Hawaii s t y l e .  

Ward: 	 T h a t ' s  no t  bad. You enjoyed Hawaii? 

Bulcke: 	 Very much. 



BACK TO BLOODY THURSDAY 

Help ing  The Wounded 

Ward: 	 J e r r y ,  we found o u t  t h a t  a t  one very  impor t an t  
p o i n t  i n  your  t a l k  about  t h e  '34 s t r i k e  you 
hadn ' t  mentioned what you s a w  and hea rd  on 
Bloody Thursday. We t a l k e d  about  t h e  3 r d  of  
J u l y ,  two days  b e f o r e ,  bu t  n o t  about Bloody 
Thursday. 

Bulcke: 	 Well ,  on t h e  5 t h  o f  J u l y ,  I came down Mission 
S t r e e t  i n  my Model T Ford,  a 1924  model. 

Ward: 	 I t  had a b e t t e r  r a d i a t o r  t h a n  Andy's? 

Bul ck e  :' 	 Oh, yes. A s  I g o t  n e a r  S t e u a r t  S t r e e t  where 
o u r  un ion  h a l l  w a s  l o c a t e d ,  I n o t i c e d  t h a t  
one of  t h e  t i r e s  w a s  p r a c t i c a l l y  f l a t .  So, 
i n s t e a d  of  t u r n i n g  i n t o  S t e u a r t  S t r e e t ,  I 
t u r n e d  i n t o  a s e r v i c e  s t a t i o n  on t h e  c o r n e r  o f  
Miss ion  and S t e u a r t  S t r e e t ,  a c r o s s  from o u r  
headqua r t e r s .  I w a s  i n  t h e  p r o c e s s  o f  j a ck ing  
up t h e  wheel i n  o r d e r  t o  change t h e  t i r e  and 
I n o t i c e d  a r a t h e r  l a r g e  c a r  t h a t  had no marks 
on i t ,  p l a i n  l o o k i n g ,  s topped  a t  t h e  c o r n e r  
o f  S t e u a r t  S t r e e t  and Mission. Out of  t h e  
c a r  jumped two policemen - - -

Ward: 	 I n  uniform? 

Bul cke : 	 I n  uniform and each  wi th  a r i f l e .  They 
s t a r t e d  f i r i n g  a t  t h e  people  t h a t  were w a l k -
i n g  a long  t h e  s idewalk  on Miss ion S t r e e t  
towards  S t e u a r t .  They f i r e d  a number o f  t imes ,  
jumped i n  t h e  czr and away they  went - i n t o  
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Mission S t r e e t  and gone, The c a r  had no 
markings i n d i c a t i n g  t h a t  i t  w a s  a p o l i c e  car ,  
I immediately r a n  over  and t h e r e  were t h r e e  
men l a y i n g  down. One was crawl ing  on h i s  
elbows and dragging himself  a long  t h e  ground, 
With t h e  h e l p  of two o r  t h r e e  o t h e r  men I p u t  
him on my back; o t h e r s  helped by ho ld ing  h i s  
l e g s  and we c a r r i e d  him u p s t a i r s  i n t o  t h e  
union h a l l ,  There were a l r e a d y  f i v e  o r  s i x  
men l a y i n g  t h e r e  t h a t  had been bea ten  by t h e  
p o l i c e ,  More of them were be ing  brought i n  ---
A l l  wounded? 

A l l  wounded - yes, S h o r t l y  a f t e r -  t h a t  t h e  
p o l i c e  s h o t  t e a r  g a s  s h e l l s  through t h e  windows, 
By t h a t  t ime we had ove r  twenty people  l a y i n g  
t h e r e  wi th  v a r i o u s  i n j u r i e s  - mostly  bea ten  
wi th  n i g h t s t i c k s  o r  whatever, wi th  t h e i r  heads 
bloody, We had a doc to r  who w a s  t a k i n g  c a r e  
of  t h e  men as they  a r r i v e d ,  and he, l i k e  all 
of us,  w a s  a f f e c t e d  by t h e  t e a r  g a s  t h a t  w a s  
sho t  i n  t h e  windows, 

Do you remember t h e  d o c t o r ' s  name? 

Doctor Lagan. 

You s a i d  they  sho t  t e a r  g a s  r i g h t  through t h e  
windows - t h e  c losed  windows? 

That '  s r i g h t ,  

You must have had broken g l a s s  all around. 

That! s r i g h t ,  When t h e y  f i r e d  those  t e a r  gas  
s h e l l s  t hey  broke t h e  windows and t h e  g a s  
came i n t o  t h e  room, 

So, you had t h e  wounded, and t h e  t e a r . g a s  and 
t h e  broken g l a s s ?  

Right ,  r i g h t .  

I t  must have been q u i t e  a scene, 
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Some of  o u r  members g o t  ho ld  of some f l o w e r s  
a f t e r  t h e  b o d i e s  o f  t h e  two dead men were 
removed, They sp read  t h e  f l o w e r s  on t h e  s ide -  
walk where t h e  men had been sho t ,  and t h e  
p o l i c e  came a long  and took all t h e  f l o w e r s  
away, We went and go t  some more f lowers ,  and 
so d i d  o t h e r s ,  The second t ime  t h e  p o l i c e  l e f t  
t h e  f l o w e r s  t h e r e ,  

You s a i d  a minute ago t h a t  you saw t h r e e  men 
f l a t  on t h e  ground t h e r e  and t h a t  you took 
one of  them G p s t a i r s ,  The o t h e r  two were 
dead? 

The o t h e r  two were dead, yes,  

Howard Spe r ry  and Nick Bordoise,  

Nick Bordoise,  By t h e  way, Nick Bordoise  was 
n o t  an ILWU member. 

He was a cook? 

He was a cook and he  was v o l u n t e e r i n g  h i s  
work i n  o u r  soup k i t c h e n  t h a t  we had e s t ab -  
l i s h e d  on t h e  k b a r c a d e r o  between Miss ion and 
Market, second f l o o r ,  He had j u s t  f i n i s h e d  
a s h i f t  and was going  t o  t h e  h a l l  t o  have h i s  
c a r d  punched t o  show t h a t  he had been on du ty  
t h a t  day when he  was k i l l e d ,  

And t h a t ,  o f  course ,  i s  t h e  beg inn ing  of  t h e  
annual  Bloody Thursday ceremony at t h a t  s t r e e t  
corner?  

Every y e a r  s i n c e  we have h e l d  a memorial 
s e r v i c e  f o r  t h o s e  men at t h e  same p l ace ,  

V!hat was t h e  p o i n t  of  s h o o t i n g  t h e s e  guys j u s t  
as  t h e y  were walking around on t h e  s idewalk? 

That  i s  something t h a t  many peop le  asked,  
"Why?f' There  were no s h i p s  t h e r e ,  t h e r e  was 
no a c t i v i t y  t h e r e ;  i t  w a s  qu ie t .  

No f i g h t s  t h e r e ?  



Bul cke: 	 No - no, Nothing, noth ing  - no reason at all, 
Some time before,  a t  a mass meeting we he ld  
i n  t h e  Civic  Auditorium, Mayor Rossi  had 
addressed our  membership and he mentioned t h a t  
i f  t h e  s t r i k e  was continued i t  would end up by 
people being k i l l e d ,  He s a i d  t h a t  blood would 
be running i n  t h e  s t r e e t s ,  So i n  a sense he 
p r e d i c t e d  t h e  shoot ing  of t h e  men, 

Ward: 	 I f  t h e  o b j e c t  of t h e  shoot ing  was genera l
i n t i m i d a t i o n ,  d i d  i t  i n t i m i d a t e  t h e  s t r i k e r s ?  

Bul cke : 	 Not a t  all. To t h e  cont rary ,  i t  r e s u l t e d  i n  
all of t h e  unions i n  t h e  c i t y  of San Francisco 

-	 agree ing  t o  a genera l  s t r i k e ,  While t h e  i d e a  
of t h e  s t r i k e  was not  supported by t h e  l eader -  
s h i p  of t h e  Labor Council,  t h e  d e l e g a t e s  j u s t  
t h e  same voted i n  favor  of i t ,  

The s t r i k e  only l a s t e d  t h r e e  and a h a l f  
days, but  i t  had an overwhelming e f f e c t ,  No-
body - t h e r e  were no s t r e e t  c a r s  running, 
t h e r e  w a s  no bus iness  p l a c e  open, except a 
few r e s t a u r a n t s  t h a t  were allowed t o  se rve  
food, 

Most of  t h e  bus inesses  j u s t  shut  down, 
Many of them had s i g n s  "Closed u n t i l  t h e  
s t r i k e  i s  won," o r  '!Closed t o  support  t h e  NRA," 
!!Closed i n  support  of t h e  ILA," and s t u f f  l i k e  
t h a t ,  

I remember t h a t  I had t o  be on p i c k e t  duty 
and I walked all t h e  way from 28th and Church 
S t r e e t ,  where I l i v e d ,  t o  P i e r  37, 

Ward: 	 T h a t ' s  a good l o n g  walk; about t h r e e  mi les ,  
I '  d say, 

Bul cke: 	 Oh, all of t h a t ,  but  I was enjoying i t  because 
everyth ing  was qu ie t ,  There w a s  no movement 
of s t r e e t c a r s  o r  busses  o r  t h e  cab le  c a r s  -
everyth ing  was shut  down, The e f f e c t  of t h e  
genera l  s t r i k e  was remarkable - 'people were 
all out  i n  support ,  # #  
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A t  one s t a g e  of t h a t  gene ra l  s t r i k e  t h e r e  was 
a rumor t h a t  a t r u c k  had been seen down a 
s t r e e t  somewhere i n  t h e  Mission and t h a t  r a i s e d  
a h e l l  of  a l o t  of  excitement,  Do you know 
anyth ing  about t h a t ?  

No, I don' t .  

It tu rned  o u t  t h a t  i t  was d e l i v e r i n g  some 
badly  needed s u p p l i e s  t o  a h o s p i t a l ,  

I might have known about i t  then ,  bu t  a t  t h e  
moment I d o n t t  r e c a l l  it, 

Can you t e l l  u s  more about Bloody Thursday 
and t h e  gene ra l  s t r i k e 2  

No, t h a t  about  cove r s  what I s a w ,  

That  d o c t o r  who was t r e a t i n g  t h e  wounded, Dr.  
Lagan, How come he w a s  so  h e l p f u l ?  

Well, he was a doc to r  t h a t  t h e  ILWU had h i r e d  
t o  t a k e  c a r e  of i t s  members, and he had q u i t e  
a few t o  t a k e  c a r e  of t h a t  day. He passed  
away q u i t e  a number of  y e a r s  ago. 

A Change Of Pace 

A l l  r i g h t ,  J e r r y ,  we have covered p r e t t y  much 
of your  a c t i v e  c a r e e r  and your work as a long-
shoreman, your pres idency  of  Local  1 0  at  
v a r i o u s  t imes,  your  term as I n t e r n a t i o n a l  
v i ce -p res iden t  f o r  13 y e a r s  and then ,  f i n a l l y ,  
your s i x  y e a r s  as an a r b i t r a t o r  i n  Southern 
C a l i f  o rn i a ,  

T h i s  b r i n g s  u s  up t o  1966, at  which t ime 
you r e t i r e d ,  During all t h i s  t ime  you ac-
q u i r e d  many branches  on your family  t r e e ,  
Suppose you t e l l  u s  something more about  them, 
p a r t i c u l a r l y  your  one l a s t i n g  marriage.  



Bulcke: 	 Well, when Rusty and I were mar r i ed  we accumu-
l a t e d  a s o r t  o f  crazy,  mixed up family ,  bu t  
very  n i ce ,  I ' v e  t o l d  you q u i t e  a b i t ,  i nc lud -
i n g  o u r  honeymoon t r i p  i n  t h e  High S i e r r a ,  
There were o t h e r  S i e r r a  t r i p s  l a t e r ,  i n c l u d i n g  
one when Ken came t o  l i v e  wi th  u s  i n  1954. H i s  
i n i t i a t i o n  i n t o  t h e  family  was a t r i p  on which 
we had a l s o  some good f r i e n d s  of  ours ,  Mor r i s  
and F rances  Watson and t h e i r  family. Mor r i s  
Watson was t h e  e d i t o r  o f  o u r  paper ,  The D i s -
p a t c h e r ,  

We h i r e d  h o r s e s  f o r  all of  u s  from one of 
t h e  packers ,  There were Rusty and I - - -

Ward: 	 F i v e  of  you at l e a s t ,  

Bulcke: 	 Bruce and Ken and F rances  and Morr i s  Watson 
and two of t h e i r  ch i ld ren ,  A g i r l  v i s i t i n g  
from H a w a i i ,  G a i l ,  a l s o  came along. 

We went ove r  Kearsage P a s s  which i s  ove r  
9,000 f e e t ,  on horseback. We found a n i c e  
camping s p o t  n e a r  what t h e y  c a l l  t h e  Ray Lakes, 
The p a c k e r s  took t h e  h o r s e s  back and r e t u r n e d  
wi th  some h o r s e s  a t  a  l a t e r  da te ,  

We caught a l o t  o f  f i s h ,  Those l a k e s  a r e  
n o t  f i s h e d  very o f t e n  and t h e r e  were p l e n t y  
f i s h  i n  t h e r e ,  Mor r i s  Watson had never  i n  all 
h i s  l i f e  caught a f i s h ,  And every t ime you c a s t  
o f f  you caught a f i s h ,  

I l e a r n e d  something a t  t h e  t ime  I w a s  a 
member of  t h e  F i s h  and Game Commission from 
one of  o u r  wardens who happened t o  be I n d i a n  -
how t o  keep f i s h  f r e s h  wi thout  u s i n g  i c e ,  The 
p r o c e s s  i s  t o  t a k e  t h e  f i s h  and c l ean  them 
l i k e  when you a r e  going t o  cook them, p u t  them 
on a l i n e  under  a t r e e  so t h a t  t h e  sun doesn ' t  
h i t  them d i r e c t l y ,  The n i g h t s  up t h e r e  a r e  
p r e t t y  cold,  The viater f r o z e  every n i g h t  i n  
o u r  water  bucket,  Every day when we f i s h e d  we 
saved t h e  b i g g e s t  ones  and hung them up on t h e  
wire, Under t h e  r e g u l a t i o n s  of  t h e  F i s h  and 
Game Commission ( a t  t h a t  t ime) ,  you could  n o t  
have more t h a n  t e n  f i s h  i n  your  possess ion .  So, 
we manage6 t o  have many f i s h  hung up. 



Bulcke: 

Ward: 

Bul cke : 

Ward: 

Bul cke: 

The day we l e f t  I wrapped t h e  f i s h  i n  p l a s t i c  
t a b l e  c l o t h s  so they  wouldn' t touch one ano- 
ther .  Then I pu t  t h e  whole package i n s i d e  of 
a s l e e p i n g  bag, so t h a t  i t  was well  insu la ted .  

We were delayed i n  Independence because 
Mrs. Watson had developed an abscessed t o o t h  
and we had t o  s t a y  t h e r e  f o r  t h r e e  days while 
she w a s  g e t t i n g  t rea tments ,  I n  Independence 
i t  was ho t  and I expected t h a t  when I got  home 
my f i s h  wouldn't be much worthwhile, 

But, s u r e  enough, when I got  home and un- 
wrapped t h e  s l e e p i n g  bag and got  t o  t h e  f i s h ,  
they  were stil l  n i c e  and cold  and i n  good 
shape, I put  them i n  t h e  r e f r i g e r a t o r  and we 
had t r o u t  f o r  some time af terwards,  

We had hoped t o  have our  f r i e n d  from H a w a i i ,  
Jack H a l l ,  come over  and go with u s  on t h a t  
high t r i p ,  but he was unable t o  do so, How-
ever,  a couple of months l a t e r  when he was 
a b l e  t o  come t o  San Francisco we stil l  had 
t h e  t r o u t  l e f t  and we were a b l e  t o  a t  l e a s t  
t o  give him some of our  wonderful ca tch  from 
up i n  t h e  High S i e r r a s ,  

Fresh? 

Oh, of course, We had them f rozen  i n  our  
r e f r i g e r a t o r  and they  were sti l l  good. 

More About The Family 

Ken was your son by your f i r s t  wife? 

Yes, Ken loved t h e  mountains from t h e  begin- 
n ing  and t h e  next  yea r  he worked a s  a wrangler 
f o r  one of t h e  packers  i n  t h a t  area,  I n  re -  
cent  years ,  Ken h a s  had h i s  own auto r e p a i r  
business ,  



Bulcke: 	 Ken h a s  a son, Kevin, from h i s  f i r s t  marr iage  
t o  Lynn, Kevin was a f o o t b a l l  s tar  through
h igh  school  and i n t o  co l l ege ,  He decided,  
however, t h a t  t h i s  w a s  n o t  t h e  c a r e e r  f o r  him 
and a t  p r e s e n t  he i s  con t inu ing  school  and 
r e p a i r i n g  c a r s ,  

When Kevin w a s  a mid-teenager, Ken began a 
new fami ly  wi th  Bever ly  and h a s  p r e s e n t e d  u s  
wi th  t h r e e  more l i t t l e  g randchi ldren ,  Jason,  
S e t h  and Aaron, 

Ward: 	 What's t h e  middle o n e ' s  name? 

Bulcke: 	 S E T H ,  

Ward: 	 T h a t ' s  a New England name, 

Bulcke: 	 Yeah, I know, Where Ken go t  i t ,  I don ' t  know, 
When Kevin was t h r e e ,  he  and Ken l i v e d  wi th  u s  
f o r  a y e a r  so  we had t h e  p l e a s u r e  of en joying  
h i s  chi ldhood at c l o s e  range,  

T h i s  summer Bruce ' s  daughter ,  Shannon, i s  
l i v i n g  wi th  u s  now, She i s  twenty and a love-
l y  young woman, and she  works wi th  a u t i s t i c  
a d u l t s ,  She comes home from work wi th  some 
f a s c i n a t i n g  s t o r i e s ,  and sometimes s c a r y  
s t o r i e s .  She i s  doing a f i n e  job and I ' m  very
proud of  her ,  

L a s t  y e a r  Bruce and h i s  wi fe ,  Rosemary,
l i v e d  wi th  u s  f o r  s i x  months, We were all 
a l i t t l e  unsure  a t  f i r s t  how t h i s  would work 
o u t ,  b u t  i t  proved t o  be a b e a u t i f u l  exper ience
f o r  a l l  of us ,  We t a l k e d  o u t  s m a l l  problems 
as t h e y  a r o s e  and a l l  f o u r  of  u s  found i t  t o  
be en joyable ;  a l though when i t  w a s  t ime  f o r  
them t o  l e a v e ,  we were ready  f o r  t h a t ,  too. 

Bruce s a i d ,  " I ' v e  o f t e n  worr ied  t h a t  you 
might have t o  l i v e  wi th  u s  when you g e t  o l d ,  
I thought  i t  would neve r  work,, bu t  now I know 
t h a t  i t  can work very  n i ce ly? '  

Bruce w a s  a c i v i l  r i g h t s  a c t i v i s t  du r ing  
t h e  F i f t i e s .  



Ward: 	 Yes, I would l i k e  t o  know about  t h a t ;  he was 
washed down t h e  stairs, wasn' t  he? 

Bulcke: 	 I ' m  coming t o  t h a t ,  He was a  c i v i l  r i g h t s  
a c t i v i s t  du r ing  t h e  F i f t i e s  and beyond t h a t ,  
H i s  f i r s t  wife ,  Mary Ann, l e d  t h e  march f o r  
Caryl  Chessman t o  San Quentin, That n i g h t  
Rusty and I took  a  huge p o t  o f  h o t  soup t o  
t h e  demonstra tors ,  

Another t ime  Bruce and Mary Ann g o t  washed 
dovm t h e  s t e p s  of C i t y  H a l l ,  

Ward: 	 Werent t t h e y  p r o t e s t i n g  a t  a h e a r i n g  of t h e  
House un-American A c t i v i t i e s  Committee? 

Bul cke: 	 They were p r o t e s t i n g ,  a long  wi th  many o t h e r s ,  
a hea r ing  o f  t h e  House un-American A c t i v i t i e s  
Committee and t h e  p o l i c e  t u r n e d  on t h e  f i r e  
hoses  and washed them down t h e  s t eps ,  

Ward: 	 Were you t h e r e ?  Did you s e e  i t ?  

Bulcke: 	 No, I was away a t  t h e  time, Bruce was a r r e s t e d  
and Rusty had t o  g e t  him o u t  o f  jail, 

Now Bruce go t  caught i n  a t e a c h e r s '  job 
shor tage ,  He had t a u g h t  psychology a t  San 
F ranc i sco  S t a t e  and C i ty  Col lege f o r  many 
y e a r s  bu t  f i n a l l y  decided t o  go back t o  school  
and g e t  t r a i n i n g  as a k i n d e r g a r t e n  t eache r ,  
He's  good wi th  l i t t l e  k i d s ,  and we t h i n k  i t  i s  
a good p lan ,  

Rosemary t e a c h e s  s p e c i a l  educa t ion  and so 
f a r  t h e r e  a r e  stil l  jobs  a v a i l a b l e  i n  t h a t  
f i e l d ,  We don ' t  s e e  Mur ie l ' s  c h i l d r e n  and 
g randch i ld ren  as o f t e n  a s  we would^ l i k e ,  bu t  
we do keep i n  touch, 

Mur ie l ' s  son, Te r ry  and h i s  wife ,  E i l e e n y  
a r e  t o  be i n  t h e  c i t y  n e x t  weekend and w i l l  be  
v i s i t i n g  us, Te r ry  h a s  o f f e r e d  t o  p a i n t  oui? 
van camper f o r  us, He h a s  worked i n  t h a t  
f i e l d  and w i l l  do an e x c e l l e n t  job, I ' m  s u r e  
t h i s  w i l l  s ave  u s  a l o t  o f  money', Ter ry  and 
E i l e e n  v i s i t e d  a t  my daugh te r ' s  p l a c e  i n  



Bul cke : 	 Arizona f o r  my b i r thday  this year, For  two 
y e a r s  now we have managed t o  do t h a t  - I ' v e  
gone t o  v i s i t  my daughter Muriel,. and Terry 
and h i s  wife  v i s i t  a t  t h e  same tlme, so we g e t  
together ,  They a r e  w a r m ,  outgoing, l o v i n g  
people and very family-oriented,  Pa t ty ,
Murie l ' s  daughter,  works long  hours  and i s  
r a i s i n g  two l i t t l e  ones - our  great-grandchi l iben,  
We don' t s e e  a l o t  of them; d r i v i n g  i s  g e t t i n g  
more d i f f i c u l t  f o r  us ,  

Weddings and B i r t h s  

Ward: 	 What does P a t t y  do? 

Bulcke: 	 She works i n  an o f f i c e ,  P a t t y  was adopted a t  
t h e  age of f o u r  months, I w a s  i n  Alaska and 
got  t h e  word by phone t h a t  I was a grandfather ,  
Shannon was born while  I was on a hunt ing t r i p  -
I phoned home t o  f i n d  out  whether t h e  baby had 
been born y e t  - whether I w a s  a grandfa ther  o r  
grandmother, 

Another i n t e r e s t i n g  a r r i v a l  w a s  t h a t  of our  
g r e a t  granddaughter, K i r a .  Her p a r e n t s  a r e  
Wayne and Hilda,  granddaughter of my second 
wife,  Hilda,  They arranged f o r  a n a t u r a l  home 
b i r t h .  I t  all went so wel l  t h a t  they  i n v i t e d  
u s  over  f o r  d inner  t h a t  same n igh t ,  so we got  
t h e  whole s t o r y  of t h e  b i r t h  of a b e a u t i f u l  
ch i ld ,  Her b i g  b ro the r ,  Mathias, aged 8, was 
very invo led  i n  t h e  whole process ,  

Ward: 	 Her b r o t h e r  Mathias - d i d  t h i s  happen t o  h i m ,  
too? 

Bulcke: 	 I don' t  t h i n k  so, 

Ward: 	 He took h i s  own way of  coming i n t o  t h e  world, 

Bulcke: 	 By t h e  way, t h e  wedding of  Wayne and Hi lda  was 
very i n t e r e s t i n g ,  I t  was a t  our  house and i t  
was time f o r  t h e  Spr ing  equinox, Wayne had 
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made a s p e c i a l  incense  f o r  t h e  occasion and 
b lessed  each of u s  and t h e  house with t h e  
incense.  It was not  our  l i f e  s t y l e ,  but  i t  
w a s  r e a l l y  q u i t e  n ice ,  

What w a s  t h e  purpose of t h e  incense  and how 
d id  he come t o  make i t ?  The incense  - what 
does i t  imply, some k ind  of mysticism? 

Yes, he! s q u i t e  s t r o n g  i n t o  t h a t  and a l o t  of 
h i s  f r i e n d s  a re ,  too,  He f e l t  t h a t  this would 
be proper  f o r  him t o  do a t  t h i s  wedding, 

You were t a l k i n g  about Mathias when he was 
e igh t ,  What happened t o  h i m  a f t e r  t h a t ?  

Wayne had made g o b l e t s  t o  dr ink  wine out  of 
dur ing  t h e  wedding ceremony, and t h e  s m a l l  
one w a s  f o r  Mathias, They poured t h e  wine and 
gave t h e  l i t t l e  gob le t  t o  Mathias, Everything 
was q u i e t  and se r ious ;  Mathias took one swallow 
ou t  of t h e  goble t  and went flPooh!" Of course 
t h a t  broke up all t h e  se r iousness  and every- 
body i n  t h e  .house laughed out  loud, So we had 
q u i t e  a n i c e  ending t o  t h e  wedding ceremony, 

Talk ing  about weddings, we put  up a s ign  
saying  "Wedding Chapel," A s  I t h i n k  back, 
Rusty and I were marr ied i n  our  house, Bruce 
too;  both of h i s  marr iages  were i n  our  house, 
Ken and Jan  had t h e i r  r ecep t ion  a t  our  house 
and when Muriel marr ied he r  p resen t  husband, 
J i m ,  t h a t  w a s  a t  our  house, And f i n a l l y  
Wayne and Hi lda  had t h e i r  wedding at our  house, 

You had d i f f e r e n t  t y p e s  of ceremony, I suppose? 

Yes - yes,  a d i f f e r e n t  type  i s  r i g h t ,  

Some s e r i o u s  and some n o t  so se r ious?  

Well, they  were all k i n d  of se r ious ,  I th ink ,  
Bonnie, Hilda! s s i s t e r ,  l i v e s  with h e r  husband, 
Steve,  i n  Oregon, E a r l i e r  this year  Bonnie 
gave b i r t h  t o  our  f i f t h  g r e a t  grandchi ld,  Logan, 
whom we have seen only  once, 



Ward: 	 Did they c a l l  you up t o  t e l l  you you were a 
g r e a t  grandfa ther?  

Bulcke: 	 Not t h a t  time. The s i x t h  g r e a t  grandchi ld  
i s  y e t  t o  be born t o  Kevin and Chrissy. 

The only o t h e r  member of t h e  family,  my 
s i s t e r ,  Gusty-Ann, of whom I have spoken ear-
l i e r ,  i s  87 and l i v e s  i n  a board and c a r e  
home i n  San Francisco. She i s  still l i v e l y ,  
sti l l  r e a d s  and s i n g s  when she goes t o  t h e  
Sen io r  Center. We s e e  h e r  a s  o f t e n  a s  pos- 
s i b l e  and b r i n g  h e r  home f o r  family occasions.  

Ward: 	 Well, t h a t  i s  a f a s c i n a t i n g  family t r e e .  

Camping Here and'There 

Ward: 	 When you got  t o  t h e  s t a g e  of r e t i r ement  d id  
you go . r i g h t  out  and t r a v e l ?  

Bulcke: 	 Af te r  I re tu rned  t o  San Francisco from San 
Pedro and r e t i r e d ,  t h e  f i r s t  t h i n g  a f t e r  we 
got  s e t t l e d  we bought a camper t o  make a 
1e i s u r e l y  t r i p  around t h e  country. 

Vie s t a r t e d  out  and f i r s t  we stopped near  
Lake Tahoe with Angeline, who had been married 
t o  my s i s t e r ' s  son. He was k i l l e d  i n  an 
automobile acc ident  and she remarried. She 
and h e r  new husband were l i v i n g  t h e r e  and we 
stopped overnight  a t  Tahoe. From t h e r e  we 
went on East ,  t a k i n g  i t  slow and easy and 
v i s i t i n g  where we had f r i e n d s ,  p a r t i c u l a r l y  
i n  D e t r o i t ,  where I had l i v e d  before.  Vie 
We f i n a l l y  ended up i n  Por t land ,  Maine, on t h e  
A t l a n t i c  ocean. 

Ward: 	 A l l  t h e  way from San Francisco!  

Bulcke: 	 Then we went back t o  Washington, D. C., l e f t  
t h e  camper t h e r e  and took t h e  t r a i n  t o  New 
York; t h e  reason f o r  t h a t  was t h e r e  were no 
camping f a c i l i t i e s  a v a i l a b l e  wi th in  a decent 
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d i s t a n c e  of New York. We came back from New 
York, p icked  up o u r  camper and o u r  nex t  s t o p  
was New Orleans.  There  we s topped  and spen t  
a few days, and from t h e r e  we went t o  Tulsa ,  
Okla. where we had a cous in  of  R u s t y ' s  -
Robert  Fearon,  known as t h e  !'Mad Genius.'' He 
i n v e n t e d  a number of  u s e f u l  t h i n g s ,  I under-
stand. 

What, mad genius?  

That  was h i s  nickname, anyway. 

And what d i d  he  i n v e n t  t h a t  was u s e f u l ,  do 
you remember? 

No. So then  we k e p t  on from Tu l sa ,  go t  t o  
Los Angeles and t h e n  home t o  San F ranc i sco ;  
a ve ry  en joyab le  t r i p .  

How l o n g  d i d  all t h i s  t a k e  you? Two o r  t h r e e  
months? 

Yeah, about two months we were gone. 

You a l s o  t r a v e l e d  abroad,  didnt  t you? 

Oh, yes ,  we made a t r i p  t o  Europe,. v i s i t e d  
some f r i e n d s  i n  Sweden, a l s o  v i s i t e d  my home 
town i n  Belgium, s p e n t  some t ime  i n  P a r i s .  
We made connec t ions  i n  Europe wi th  a couple  
o f  f r i e n d s  from h e r e  who had a l s o  planned t o  
go t o  Europe. They l e f t  a couple  of  weeks 
b e f o r e  we d i d  and we a r ranged  t o  meet them 
i n  Vienna. 

We were on a t r a i n  going t o  Vienna and we 
s topped  at a well-known p l a c e  i n  Germany, 
Nuremberg. A s  we were l e a v i n g  t h e r e  I was 
s i t t i n g  l o o k i n g  o u t  t h e  window and a t r a i n  
p u l l e d  up a l o n g s i d e  o f  us ;  s u r e  enough, 
s i t t i n g  i n  t h e  o t h e r  t r a i n  were ou r  f r i e n d s ,  
hav ing  a g l a s s  of  wine. I knocked on t h e  
g l a s s  and they  saw us,  and of  course  we met 
t h a t  evening i n  Vienna. 



Bul cke : 	 We spen t  some t ime t o g e t h e r ;  t hey  went on i n t o  
I t a l y  from t h e r e ,  bu t  we made arrangements  t o  
meet a g a i n  i n  P a r i s  l a t e r .  Sure  enough, we 
met i n  P a r i s  and d i d  t h e  p l a c e  toge the r .  Then 
t h e y  had t o  l e a v e  because t h e i r  t ime was up 
and they  went back t o  t h e  Uni ted S t a t e s .  

Then I went t o  my home town - - -
Ward: 	 J u s t  you and Rusty? 

Bulcke: 	 Yes, j u s t  Rusty and I. Of course ,  we were 
s t a y i n g  w i t h  some very  c l o s e  f r i e n d s  of mine. 
And of  course ,  t h e  problem was they  d idn f  t 
speak Engl i sh ;  we l l ,  one of  t h e i r  c h i l d r e n  
d id ,  b u t  all t h e  o t h e r s  didnct .  

Rusty had no d i f f i c u l t y  unde r s t and ing  when 
I was speaking  wi th  t h e  l a d y  t h e r e ,  u s i n g
Eng l i sh ,  bu t  a f t e r  t h r e e  o r  f o u r  days  t h e  
~ l e m i s h - c a m eback t o  me q u i t e  e a s i l y ,  so  then  
I had t o  t r a n s l a t e  t h e  r e s t  t o  Rusty, so  she  
would know what we were t a l k i n g  about. 

The l a d y  we were s t a y i n g  w i t h  w a s  q u i t e  a 
good cook and she  always i n s i s t e d  on s e r v i n g  
l a r g e  , p o r t i o n s ,  s o  i t  was e a t ,  e a t ,  e a t .  

A f t e r  about  n i n e  days, Rusty s a i d  t o  me, 
"Honey, I ' m  s i c k ;  p l e a s e  g e t  me o u t  o f  here." 
The d i f f i c u l t y  of t h e  language was t o o  much, 
she  d i d n c t  know what we were t a l k i n g  about 
and I had t o  s t o p  and t r a n s l a t e  t h i n g s ;  so  i t  
became q u i t e  cumbersome. But on t h e  whole we 
enjoyed t h e  t r i p .  

Ward: 	 Well, you d i d  a l o t  of  t r a v e l i n g .  Anything 
more you want t o  t e l l  about  t h a t ?  

Bulcke: 	 Well, ou r  son,  Ken had moved t o  Connect icut  
and l a t e r  on we went back t h e r e  wi th  t h e  
camper aga in ,  b u t  j u s t  t o  Connect icut .  

Then we l e f t  t h e  camper wi th  Ken and f lew 
ove r  t o  Liverpool ,  England, where Bruce was 
t e a c h i n g  a t  	a co l l ege .  He on ly  s t a y e d  t h e r e  
one y e a r  - t h e  t h i n g  d i d n f t  work out.  
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The co l l ege  where he was t each ing  at was 
expect ing  t o  keep h i m  on, but they  were 
depending on a s t i p e n d  from t h e  government, 

Bruce found out  t h a t  t h e  s t i p e n d  would no t  
m a t e r i a l i z e  and he would have been out  of a 
job, anyway. For tuna te ly ,  t h i n g s  worked o u t  
so he came back, 

What d i d  he t each  t h e r e ?  

You' ve been home q u i t e  a while,  now, 

We expect t o  do a l i t t l e  more t r a v e l i n g ,  we 
hope, 

Where do you want t o  go next? 

Well, we haven' t made up our  minds ye t ,  but  
probably t h i s  yea r  we're no t  going t o  t r a v e l  
very f a r ,  

Depends on t h e  t ime of  yea r  you want t o  go? 

T h a t ' s  t r u e ,  

Ever been Down Under? 



X I 1  THE PENSIONERS' CLUBS 

pnnual Conventions 

Bul cke : 	 Since  I r e t i r e d  I ' v e  become q u i t e  a c t i v e  i n  
an o r g a n i z a t i o n  t h a t  we e s t a b l i s h e d  f o r  
r e t i r e d  members, t h e  P a c i f i c  Coast Pens ioners  
Associat ion,  ILVU, We have e s t a b l i s h e d  a 
procedure whereby r e t i r e d  members jo in  c l u b s  
a t  a l o c a l  l e v e l ;  then  once a yea r  we have a 
convention which we hold i n  Anderson, C a l i -
f o r n i a ,  nea r  Redding, T h a t ' s  a c e n t r a l  po in t ,  
The reason  we picked Anderson i s  t h a t  i t  i s  
equal  d i s t a n c e  f o r  t h e  members t h a t  come from 
S e a t t l e  and San Diego, There we have t h e  use  
of  a l a r g e  new State-owned b u i l d i n g  where we 
meet, 

Ward: 	 About how many people come t o  t h e s e  th ings?  

Bulcke: 	 L a s t  y e a r  we had a  l i t t l e  ove r  300, Some 
y e a r s  we've had as h igh  as 500, but  we a r e  
all g e t t i n g  o l d e r ,  

Ward: 	 Any newly r e t i r e d ?  

Bulcke: 	 The netvly r e t i r e d  a r e n ' t  y e t  anldous t o  go 
t o  t h i s  convention, The convention i s  r e a l l y  
more of  a s o c i a l  a f f a i r  than  anything e l s e ,  
though we do d i s c u s s  problems a f f e c t i n g  t h e  
pens ioners ,  We adopt r e s o l u t i o n s  dea l ing  
wi th  t h i n g s  t h a t  a f f e c t  everybody, 

We g e n e r a l l y  start our  meet ings a t  1 0  
o 'c lock  i n  t h e  morning; we have a c o f f e e  break 
a t  11 o 'c lock  and we work u n t i l  one o r  two 
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o' clock. Then we have p i c n i c s  i n  t h e  pa rk  
and l a t e r  a d inne r  dance. Of course  t h e r e ' s  
a  l o t  of  v i s i t i n g  between t h e  men because we 
haven ' t  seen each o t h e r  f o r  a year.  I t ' s  a 
j o l l y  ge t - toge the r  and we always en joy  it. 
I served  as s e c r e t a r y  of  t h e  o r g a n i z a t i o n  f o r  
t h r e e  yea r s ,  Then t h e  y e a r  I knew I was going 
t o  make t h e  t r i p  t o  Europe and I wouldn' t  be  
a v a i l  a b l  e  , I r e t i r e d  as s e c r e t a r y ,  

We have an execu t ive  board and i t  meets  
one day p r i o r  t o  t h e  convention,  Then du r ing  
t h e  y e a r  t h e  board meets  once more, 

Who i s  e l i g i b l e  f o r  membership - j u s t  long- 
shoremen? 

I t ' s  open t o  any ILWU member t h a t  i s  r e t i r e d .  
We have some warehousemen - t h e r e  i s  a group 
of  warehousemen i n  Oakland who belong,  and 
p o s s i b l y  we're going t o  p i c k  up some more 
warehousemen i n  t h e  South, 

I unders tand  Local  6 h a s  a  pens ion  c l u b  of  i t s  
own, 

The Oakland s i d e  of Local  6 i s  t h e  group t h a t  
be longs  t o  us ,  b u t  Local  6 i n  San F ranc i sco  
does  n o t  belong, Fo r  some reason  they  p u l l e d  
o u t  and we hope t h e y  w i l l  r e a f f i l i a t e .  We 
have r e t i r e d  s h i p  c l e r k s ,  walking bosses ,  any-
one who i s  r e t i r e d  ILWU, I t ' s  a s t r i c t l y  
v o l u n t e e r  t h i n g ;  no one g e t s  pa id ,  no money i s  
p a i d  o u t  by t h e  o rgan iza t ion ,  

No compulsion; i f  t hey  come, t h e y  come? 

Everyone who shows up and i s  a r e t i r e d  member 
h a s  a  vote ,  There a r e  d i s c u s s i o n s  on t h e  
many problems we have t o  d e a l  w i th  - we have 
l o n g  d i s c u s s i o n s  on S o c i a l  S e c u r i t y ,  s t u f f  
l i k e  t h a t ,  I mean what t h e  p r e s e n t  adminis-
t r a t i o n  should o r  shouldn '  t do; h e a l t h y  dis-
c u s s i o n s  on v a r i o u s  i t ems ,  . N a t u r a l l y ,  t h e  
problems d e a l  wi th  t h e  people  who a r e  r e t i r e d ,  



Ward: Do you d i s c u s s  p o l i t i c s ?  

Bulcke: Oh, yes ,  very  much, 

Ward: Do you endorse?  

Bul cke: Vie d i s c u s s ,  we endorse  peop le  f o r  p u b l i c  of- 
f i c e  l i k e  t h e  Governor and when t h e  t ime  
comes, t h e  P r e s i d e n t ,  

Ward: More o r  l e s s  Democratic? 

Bul cke : No, i t ' s a mixed bag, We don' t a c t  on any- 
t h i n g  t h a t  i s  j u s t  Democratic o r  Republican;  
t h a t  doesn' t f i t  i n ,  

One t h i n g  t h a t  we a l s o  do is, f o r  some y e a r s  
now s i n c e  I have been r e t i r e d  I' ve vo lun tee red  
and sat i n  d u r i n g  n e g o t i a t i o n s  f o r  t h e  new 
ILWU c o n t r a c t ,  

Pens ione r s '  B e n e f i t s  

Ward: I h e a r d  t h e r e  was some q u e s t i o n  about  t h a t ,  

Bulcke: Yeah, b u t  a l s o  t h e  p e n s i o n e r s  have an i n t e r e s t  
because t h e  pens ion  system i s  p a r t  o f  t h e  
con t r ac t .  So, I g e n e r a l l y  sat i n  and no one 
ob jec t ed ,  A f t e r  all I a m  an  e x - o f f i c i a l ;  a t  
t h e  l a s t  c o n t r a c t  n e g o t i a t i o n s  I was r e q u e s t e d  
t o  sit i n  w i th  t h e  ILWU n e g o t i a t i n g  committee -

Vtard: By whom? 

Bulcke: By t h e  p r e s i d e n t ,  J i m  Herman, I t o l d  him 
t h a t  I ' d  be ready  t o  s e r v e  bu t  t h a t  he  should  
first c o n t a c t  t h e  p r e s i d e n t  o f  t h e  PCPA and 
g e t  h i s  approva l ;  and t h e  p r e s i d e n t  d i d  
approve. 

Ward: Who i s  t h a t ?  



Bulcke: 	 Gordon GSblin,  . who i s  a member of  Local  13, 
r e t i r e d .  He okayed t h a t  I sit i n  so I was 
a b l e  t o  h e l p  o u t  du r ing  t h e  n e g o t i a t i o n s .  

When o u r  committee - t h a t  is ,  t h e  union 
s i d e  - would meet t o  d i s c u s s  s t r a t e g y  o r  
whatever, many of t h e  members would ask me, 
tfWel1, J e r r y ,  you have been through t h i s  
b e f o r e  - how would you handle  i t ? t f  Of course ,  
i n  t h e  d i r e c t  n e g o t i a t i o n s  I never  speak. 

Genera l ly ,  i t ' s  Jimmy Herman o r  someone he 
s e l e c t s  from t h e  committee who does t h e  
speaking  wi th  t h e  employers. I do most o f  my 
work by meet ing wi th  o u r  own committee, 
sugges t ing  methods, approaches t h a t  we had 
used  s u c c e s s f u l l y  before.  

Ward: 	 That b r i n g s  up an i n t e r e s t i n g  ques t ion  - does 
B r i d g e s .  p a r t i c i p a t e  t h e r e ?  

Bul cke: 	 No, he does n o t ,  and pe r sona l ly ,  I don ' t  
t h i n k  he' d  want to. But I f i n d  i t  r a t h e r  
en joyable ,  and I know t h a t  t h e  committee 
members always f e l t  t h a t  i t  was good t o  have 
me t h e r e  because I could  g i v e  them informat ion.  

Ward: 	 One of  t h e  t h i n g s  about  r e p r e s e n t i n g  t h e  pen- 
s i o n e r s  i s  t h e  ques t ion  of  t h e  amount of  p a r t i -  
c i p a t i o n  i n  t h e  c o n t r a c t  n e g o t i a t i o n s  they  
should  have. 

Bulcke: 	 Well,  o f  course ,  p e n s i o n e r s  a r e  i n t e r e s t e d  i n  
g e t t i n g  f u l l  say  i n  t h e i r  pens ion  negot ia -  
t i o n s ,  

A t  t h e  l a s t  n e g o t i a t i o n s ,  we asked f o r  a 
$75 a  month i n c r e a s e  i n  t h e  pensions.  We knew 
t h a t  t h e  $75 would n o t  be gran ted ,  we were 
aware of t h a t .  The counter  o f f e r  was $25 f o r  
a l l  t h r e e  years .  A s  t h e  n e g o t i a t i o n s  went on 
we e v e n t u a l l y  g o t  t h e  employers t o  ag ree  t h a t  
i f  i t  went on f o r  t h r e e  y e a r s  t h e y  would 
i n c r e a s e  t h e  pens ions  i n  two jumps of $25,00, 
one t h e  f i r s t  y e a r  and one t h e  t h i r d  year ;  
n o t h i n g  f o r  t h e  second year. 
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Then, a f t e r  some more manoeuvering, we reached 
agreement on t h e  amount of t h e  wage i n c r e a s e  
f o r  t h e  workers, and i t  was g e n e r a l l y  under- 
s tood t h a t  maybe we would g e t  s e r i o u s  consi- 
d e r a t i o n  t o  a t h r e e  y e a r  agreement,. Eventual-
l y ,  we asked t h e  employers t o  t a k e  5 c e n t s  
o f f  t h e  t h i r d  y e a r  wage i n c r e a s e  provid ing  
they  go f o r  a $25 i n c r e a s e  i n  pensions f o r  
each of t h e  t h r e e  years ,  

Did an ac tua ry  o r  you f i g u r e  t h a t ?  

On t h e  n e g o t i a t i n g  committee everybody was 
i n  agreement t h a t  i t  was worthwhile f o r  t h e  
workers t o  t a k e  5 c e n t s  l e s s ,  See, wage 
i n c r e a s e s  would t a k e  p l a c e  dur ing  t h e  t h r e e  
yea r s ,  bu t  f o r  t h e  t h i r d  i n c r e a s e ,  we would 
drop 5 c e n t s  and g e t  i n  t h a t  yea r  a $25 
i n c r e a s e  i n  t h e  pensions,  So, over  t h r e e  
y e a r s  i t  would i n c r e a s e  t h e  pensions by $75. 

And i s  t h a t  what you asked f o r ?  

Well, we got  i t  extended over  t h r e e  years ,  
Na tu ra l ly  t h e  pens ioners  a r e  very much 
i n t e r e s t e d ,  when we have our  conventions,  
i n  what goes on i n  t h e  nego t i a t ions ,  A t  t he  
l a s t  ILWU convention i n  Por t land ,  Oregon, 
they  adopted a r e s o l u t i o n  t h a t  two r e t i r e d  
members would sit i n  on t h e  nego t i a t ions ,  

Every t h r e e  years? 

Every t h r e e  y e a r s  when t h e  con t rac t  i s  open, 
yes, 
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X I 1 1  LOOKING BACK ON TUMULT 
( I n t e r v i e w  8: 9  August, 1983)  $44 

E s t a b l i s h i n g  A Democratic Union 

J e r r y ,  we t r e  now up t o  a few days  p a s t  your  
8 1 s t  b i r t h d a y  and I t m  a sk ing  you t o  l o o k  back 
on your l i f e -  and accomplishments, p a r t i c u l a r l y  
i n  1925  t o  193;5stumultuous y e a r s  i n  which you 
began t o  stir i n  a good many t h i n g s  which you 
accomplished i n  your  American l i f e ,  What 
would you say were your  goa l s?  

Viell, mainly,  t h e  r i g h t  t o  e s t a b l i s h  a rank  
and f i l e  union,  a union where , t h e  rank and 
f i l e  would have c o n t r o l ,  Having e s t a b l i s h e d  
t h e  union,  I went through a rough and tough  
s t r i k e  where we e v e n t u a l l y  were f o r t u n a t e  i n  
g e t t i n g  an agreement from t h e  employers t h a t  
p rov ided  many o f  t h e  t h i n g s  t h a t  we f e l t  were 
needed i n  o r d e r  t o  have a decent  p l a c e  t o  
work and a decent  e a r n i n g  a b i l i t y ,  

P r i m a r i l y ,  we wanted t o  do away wi th  t h e  
f a v o r i t i s m  which had e x i s t e d  f o r  q u i t e  a 
number of  y e a r s ,  and a l s o  t h e  l o n g  hours ,  
P r i o r  t o  o u r  f i r s t  agreement t h e r e  was no 
l i m i t  on h o u r s  of  work, 

No overt ime? 

Well,  yes ,  we had over t ime  b u t  t h e  d i f f e r e n -  
tial w a s  on ly  15 c e n t s  and we worked many 
l o n g  hours ;  24 hour s  w a s  normal, 36 hour s  was 
n o t  o u t  o f  t h e  p i c t u r e .  I myself worked a 52-
hour  stretch one time. 



Bulcke: 	 Also we were a b l e  t o  e s t a b l i s h  a s h o r t e r  work 
day p l u s  t h e  i n c r e a s e  i n  wages, we l f a re  prog- 
rams and a l s o  of course  t h e  enforcement of 
sa feky  r u l e s ,  We c u t  down l o n g  s h i f t s ,  c u t  
down on t h e  speed-up, c u t  down on t h e  l a r g e  
l o a d s  we used t o  have t o  t a k e  c a r e  o f ,  I n  
o t h e r  words, we were a b l e  t o  make t h e  condi- 
t i o n s  much more a c c e p t a b l e  f o r  t h e  members of 
o u r  union,  

Ward: 	 You speak of rank and f i l e  con t ro l .  How d i d  
rank  and f i l e  c o n t r o l  d i f f e r  from o t h e r  t y p e s  
of c o n t r o l ?  

Bul cke: 	 Well,  by rank and f i l e  c o n t r o l  I mean t h a t  
agreements reached by a committee of t h e  
union a r e  s u b j e c t  t o  a  s e c r e t  b a l l o t  v o t e  by 
t h e  membership b e f o r e  they  a r e  accepted,  The 
wishes  of t h e  working rank  and f i l e  a r e  ex-
p r e s s e d  i n  t h a t  way so  t h a t  when an agreement 
i s  reached  i t  i s  voted  on; i t  i s  n o t  d i c t a t e d  
from t h e  t o p  l i k e  i t  i s  i n  many o t h e r  unions ,  

Ward: 	 Oh, yes ,  

The Vot ing P rocess  ' 

Bul cke: 	 When a r e p o r t  i s  made by t h e  n e g o t i a t i n g  com- 
m i t t e e  each l o c a l  d i s c u s s e s  i t ,  The membership 
t h e n  by s e c r e t  b a l l o t  v o t e s  t o  accept  i t  o r  
r e j e c t  i t ,  

So f a r ,  when t h e  n e g o t i a t i n g  committee h a s  
recommended acceptance  i t  h a s  never  been 
voted  down, The n e g o t i a t i n g  committee c o n s i s t s  
of members of  t h e  working group. Although t h e  
o f f i c e r s  a r e  t h e r e  t o  t a k e  c a r e  of t h e  nego- 
t i a t i o n s ,  i t  i s  t h e  r e p r e s e n t a t i v e s  who a r e  
e l e c t e d  by t h e  l o c a l s  who do t h e  a c t u a l  
n e g o t i a t i o n s ,  

When t h e  committee f i n a l l y  r e a c h e s  agree- 
ment w i th  t h e  employers i t  i s  then  r e f e r r e d  
back t o  t h e  membership, 
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The same t h i n g  goes  f o r  a s t r i k e  vote.  I f  t h e  
n e g o t i a t i o n s  break down and i t  i s  necessary  t o  
have a s t r i k e  i n  o r d e r  t o  g e t  ou r  demands, 
t h a t  s t r i k e  v o t e  must c a r r y  by at l e a s t  85 
p e r  cen t ,  I f  we cannot g e t  85 p e r  cen t  -
a l though i t  never  happened - of t h e  working 
rank and f i l e  t o  approve t h e  s t r i k e ,  no s t r i k e  
i s  c a l l e d .  

Yes. Well, i n  a l e g i t i m a t e  union you have two 
t y p e s  of c o n t r o l  - c o n t r o l  from t h e  t o p  and 
c o n t r o l  by t h e  rank and f i l e ,  But, what about 
t h e  company union t h a t  you came o u t  o f ,  t h e  
Blue Book union? 

Well,  t h a t  so-ca l led  union was c o n t r o l l e d  by 
t h e  employers; t h e  rank  and f i l e  d i d n ' t  have 
any th ing  t o  say. When I s t a r t e d  on t h e  water- 
f r o n t  h e r e  i n  1925, t h e  agreement t h a t  was i n  
e f f e c t  was c o n t r o l l e d  j u s t  by company s tooges  
who l e d  t h e  so -ca l l ed  union, The rank and f i l e  
had no chance t o  d i s c u s s  o r  change anything,  
A s  a m a t t e r  o f  f a c t ,  t h e  Blue Book bunch had 
very few i f  any meetings,  

Are you say ing  t h a t  t h e  Blue Book union d i d  
t h e  b idd ing  of  t h e  employers3 

Thatvs  c o r r e c t ,  Some of  t h e  l e a d e r s  had been 
o f f i c e r s  of t h e  p r e v i o u s  union,  bu t  had gone 
ove r  t o  t h e  employers, s ide ,  There was no 
expres s ion  of t h e  rank  and f i l e  o f  any kind,  

Well,  a l l  r i g h t ,  you won a l o t  o f  t h ings .  
Was workmen, s compensation g r e a t l y  improved, 
o r  was i t  complete ly  new at  t h a t  time? 

P r i o r  t o  o u r  agreement, when you were i n j u r e d  
a t  work a c e r t a i n  amount o f  workmen's compen-
s a t i o n  was given,  a l though i t  was a very s m a l l  
amount. 

Of ten t imes  people  went back t o  work when 
they  were n o t  y e t  p h y s i c a l l y  wel l  enough t o  do 
so, They were caught i n  a  p o s i t i o n  where i f  
t h e y  didn'  t go back t o  work they  didn,  t g e t  
any more compensation and they  d idnv t  g e t  any 
money. 
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Men came back t o  work when t h e y  r e a l l y  should 
n o t  have been t h e r e ,  

They b u r s t  a h e r n i a ?  

Oh, yeah, h e r n i a  o r  o t h e r  i n j u r i e s  of t h a t  
n a t u r e ,  

Now, s a f e t y  c o n d i t i o n s  have changed a good 
dea l?  

Now s a f e t y  c o n d i t i o n s  a r e  w r i t t e n  i n t o  t h i s  
agreement and through o u r  system of s t ewards  
we s e e  t o  i t  t h a t  t h e  c o n d i t i o n s  a r e  observed,  
The c o n t r a c t  p r o v i d e s  t h a t  when t h e  men i n  
good f a i t h  f e e l  t h a t  t o  start t o  work o r  
con t inue  t o  work i s  u n s a f e  they  have t h e  r i g h t  
t o  s t a n d  by u n t i l  c o r r e c t i o n s  a r e  made, 

Now, J e r r y ,  t h e  ILWU h a s  won all t h e s e  t h i n g s  
and t h e y  have been i n  e f f e c t  f o r  many yea r s ,  
b u t  my impress ion  i s  t h a t  everywhere employers 
do t h e i r  b e s t  t o  w h i t t l e  away a t  good union 
cond i t ions ,  Does t h a t  impress ion  meet w i th  
your unders tanding?  What f e e l i n g  do you have 
on i t ?  

Oh, yes ,  t h e  employers stil l  t r y  t o  do away 
wi th  c o n d i t i o n s  a f f e c t i n g  s a f e t y  whereever 
t h e y  can. Of course ,  t h e  system ope ra t ed  by 
t h e  s t ewards  and t h e  members n a t u r a l l y  s eeks  
t o  p r o t e c t  workers on t h e  job, so t h a t  many 
of  t h e  compla in ts  t h a t  occur  and t h e  q u e s t i o n  
of s a f e t y  on t h e  job b r i n g  up t h e  n e c e s s i t y  of  
e n f o r c i n g  t h e  s a f e t y  r u l e s ,  We have a system 
of  a r b i t r a t i o n ,  so  t h a t  when a  t h i n g  occurs ,  
and t h e  a r b i t r a t o r  cannot  g e t  t h e  two p a r t i e s  
t o  r each  agreement he  makes t h e  f i n a l  d e c i s i o n  
as t o  whether s a f e t y  r u l e s  have been observed 
o r  v i o l a t e d ,  

I n  o t h e r  words, t h e  guys have t o  keep t h e i r  
eyes  open, r i g h t ?  

T h a t ' s  r i g h t ,  t hey  have t o  be c o n s t a n t l y  on 
t h e  a l e r t  t o  s e e  t h a t  t h e  agreed  upon working 
condzitions a r e  n o t  v io la ted .  by t h e  employers. 
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Would you say t h a t  t h e  employers sometimes 
t h i n k  t h a t  t h e  union doesn ' t  t r y  i t  t h e  othe>r 
way? 

Oh, t h a t ' s  t r u e ,  Whenever they  t h i n k  t h a t  
t h e  employees a r e  no t  working i n  accordance 
with t h e  agreed-upon procedures  and a r e  no t  
p u t t i n g  out ,  t hey  ( t h e  employers) have r i g h t s  
too, 

But anyway, with an a r b i t r a t i o n  system most  
of t h e s e  disagreements t h a t  a r i s e  now and then  
a r e  s e t t l e d  peace fu l ly  and quickly. 

That '  s r i g h t ,  Exactly. T h a t ' s  why t h e  system 
of a r b i t r a t i o n  was es tab l i shed ,  It '  s a good 
system and i t ' s done much t o  avoid any work 
stoppages,  and at t h e  same time t o  p r o t e c t  t h e  
men from i n j u r y  and speed-up, 

Well, t h a t  means t h a t  a peaceful  r evo lu t ion  
h a s  been achieved i n  many t h i n g s  a f f e c t i n g  
t h e  worker! s l i f e ,  What about t h e  p o l i t i c a l  
t h i n k i n g  when you began t o  work on t h e  water- 
f r o n t  i n  1925 as compared with now? 

P o l i t i c a l  Action 

Well, p r i o r  t o  t h e  s t r i k e  i n  1934 t h e r e  was 
very l i t t l e  d i scuss ion  on p o l i t i c s  o r  t h e  
e f f e c t  t h a t - p o l i t i c a l  a c t i o n  could have on 
t h e  cond i t ions  of work, 

However, a f t e r  t h e  1934 s t r i k e  t h e  union 
recognized q u i t e  quickly t h a t  a g r e a t  dea l  of 
our  working cond i t ions  would be a f f e c t e d  by 
p o l i t i c a l  ac t ion .  We became aware t h a t  we had 
t o  keep up with p o l i t i c a l .  a c t i v i t i e s  i n  o r d e r  
t o  p r o t e c t  our  condi t ions ,  The union attempt- 
ed t o  p ioneer  i n  educat ing  t h e  membership t o  
t h e  need of fo l lowing p o l i t i c s  and t a k i n g  
p o l i t i c a l  a c t i o n  such as suppor t ing  by a l l i a n c e  
o r  communication Congressmen and Sena to r s  and 

1 
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Bulcke: 	 o t h e r  o f f i c i a l s  i n  C a l i f o r n i a  and Washington, 
D, C., a s k i n g  them t o  suppor t  l e g i s l a t i o n  
b e n e f i c i a l  t o  t h e  working rank and f i l e  o r  t o  
oppose t h e  k i n d  of l e g i s l a t i o n  t h a t  would 
damage them, 

Ward: 	 You had n o t h i n g  l i k e  t h a t  i n  t h e  y e a r s  1925 
t o  !35? 

Bul cke : 	 No, d i d n t t  e x i s t  i n  t h o s e  days; i t  all came 
a f t e r  we won t h e  s t r i k e  and e s t a b l i s h e d  t h e  
union. 

L e t t s  t a k e  t h e  1932  e l e c t i o n , .  when FDR was 
e l ec t ed .  Before  t h a t  e l e c t i o n  was t h e r e  any 
k i n d  of p o l i t i c a l  t h i n k i n g  o r  appa ra tus  on t h e  
docks? How d i d  you t a l k  t o  t h e  guys? 

Bulcke: 	 Well, t h e y  d i d  a t t empt  i t ,  A s  I mentioned 
e a r l i e r  I remember a t  t h e  noon hour p r i o r  t o  
1932, o c c a s i o n a l l y  a p o l i t i c i a n  would show up 
and was al lowed t o  speak t o  t h e  men, p o i n t i n g
o u t  what he  would do, and so f o r t h .  The 
workers took such s t a t e m e n t s  wi th  cons ide rab le  
doubt, because we r e a l i z e d  t h a t  t h o s e  people  
were no t  union men, I n  o t h e r  words, a l though 
we were t o l d  t h a t  t h e  c a n d i d a t e s  t h e s e  s p e a k e r s  
suppor ted  would h e l p  t h e  workers i f  e l e c t e d ,  
we soon l e a r n e d  t h a t  t h a t  w a s  no t  n e c e s s a r i l y  
so, I remember one i n s t a n c e  where a p o l i t i c i a n
showed up and p o i n t e d  o u t  t h a t  we should sup- 
p o r t  him because i f  we d i d n t t  he w a s  going t o  
have t o  suppor t  a n t i - l a b o r  l e g i s l a t i o n ,  That,  
I thought ,  was p r e t t y  damn lousy.  Na tu ra l ly ,
wi th  t h a t  k i n d  of a beginning  we d i d  n o t  
suppor t  him. 

Ward: 	 What about  t h e  r e g i s t r a t i o n  d r i v e  among t h e  
workers? Was t h e r e  such a th ing?  

Bul cke: 	 No - no, A s  a m a t t e r  o f  f a c t  many of them 
were n o t  r e g i s t e r e d  t o  vote ,  That  was one of 
t h e  f i r s t  t h i n g s  we d i d  - t o  make s u r e  t h a t  
o u r  members and t h e i r  viives and f r i e n d s  would 
v o t e  on e l e c t i o n  day. We p u t  o u t  newspapers 
and b u l l e t i n s  d e s c r i b i n g  t h e  i s s u e s  and can-
d i d a t e s  and making recommendations. 



Bulcke: 	 An e d u c a t i o n a l  system was e s t a b l i s h e d  which 
i s  s t i l l  go ing  on t o  t h e  p r e s e n t  day, 

Ward: 	 I n  t h o s e  days  i f  a worker evinced t h e  s l i g h t -  
e s t  i n t e r e s t  i n  what was going  on i n  t h e  
L e g i s l a t u r e  and t h e  Congress w i th  laws af-
f e c t i n g  h i s  r i g h t s ,  how d i d  he  f i n d  o u t  about 
i t ?  What i n f o r m a t i o n  could he  t r u s t ?  

Bulcke: 	 Well,  t h a t f s  e x a c t l y  t h e  c o n d i t i o n s  t h a t  were 
i n  e x i s t e n c e  p r i o r  to t h e  e s t ab l i shmen t  o f  o u r  
union,  I n  o t h e r  words, t h e  o n l y  educa t ion  
( i f  you could  c a l l  i t  t h a t )  t h a t  t h e  workers 
go t  w a s  from t h e  d a i l y  newspapers, where 
g e n e r a l l y  t h e  people  who were suppor ted  were 
n o t  pro- labor ,  That  mis- informat ion was 
c o n s t a n t l y  be ing  p u t  out.  But a f t e r  o u r  union 
w a s  e s t a b l i s h e d ,  t h e  un ion  p u b l i c a t i o n s  and 
o u r  l i t e r a t u r e  informed t h e  membership about 
what t h e  r i g h t  p o s i t i o n  was and who t o  vo te  
f o r ,  P r i o r  t o  t h e  s t r i k e  bu t  a f t e r  t h e  un ion  
w a s  e s t a b l i s h e d ,  we i s s u e d  b u l l e t i n s ,  

Ward: 	 And a l s o  l i t e r a t u r e  was i s s u e d  by t h e  L e f t ?  

Bulcke: 	 Yes; n a t u r a l l y  we were i n t e r e s t e d  i n  any 
l i t e r a t u r e  t h a t  suppor ted  o u r  union? s p o s i t i o n ,  

Ward: 	 You took all t h e  h e l p  you could  g e t ?  

Bulcke: 	 Right-  r i g h t .  Those b u l l e t i n s  would many 
t i m e s  p o i n t  o u t  t h e  p o s i t i o n  o f  t h e  union,  
o r  sugges t  how t h e  members should vote ,  

Ward: 	 You conducted an e d u c a t i o n a l  campaign? 

Bul cke : 	 T h a t f s  r i g h t  - t h a t f s  e x a c t l y  what happened, 
So t h e r e  was a r e a l  movement t o  educa te  o u r  
membership i n  t h e  c o r r e c t  way t o  work p o l i t i -  
c a l l y .  

Ward: 	 Now, speaking  o f  t h e  union and what was pub-
l i s h e d ,  wasnf t i t  so t h a t  t h e r e  were more o r  
l e s s  two l i n e s  o f  thought ;  one w a s  t h e  o l d  
AFL p o s i t i o n ,  reward your  f r i e n d s  and pun i sh  
your  enemies, and t h e  more p r o g r e s s i v e  p o s i t i o n  
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saying  t h a t  p o l i t i c a l  a c t i o n  should be u t i l i z e d  
i n  every p o s s i b l e  way, r e g i s t r a t i o n  of vo te r s ,  
educat ing  them on t h e  vo t ing  process ,  and 
u rg ing  them t o  vote  f o r  pro-union candidates ,  

T h a t t s  r i g h t ,  because all such a c t i o n  i s  t o  
t h e  b e n e f i t  of  t h e  workers, 

Well, what was t h e  r a d i c a l  push l i k e ?  

I n  one way, some of  t h e  r a d i c a l s  suggested 
a c t i o n s  t h a t  we didnt t approve of  and t h a t  
were n o t  accepted by t h e  rank and f i l e ,  

Like what? 

Well, some of  t h e i r  sugges t ions  and recommen- 
d a t i o n s  we f e l t  were too  r a d i c a l ,  

And t h e  membership was n o t  convinced? 

D e f i n i t e l y  n o t  - they  would be d iscussed  i n  
meet ings and they  would be r e j e c t e d  as 
i m p r a c t i c a l ,  

But you and your f e l low l e a d e r s  i n  t h e  ILWU 
had t o  decide i n  your own minds, when a 
p r o p o s i t i o n  was pu t  up t o  you, whether t o  pu t  
i t  t o  your rank and f i l e ?  

Thatt  s c o r r e c t ,  We had many d i s c u s s i o n s  among 
t h e  l e a d e r s h i p  as t o  what t o  p u t  before  t h e  
rank and f i l e ,  

But you decided sometimes no t  t o  push a rad-
i c a l  i d e a  f e e l i n g  t h a t  t h e  membership would 
n o t  be i n t e r e s t e d  anyway, d i d n t t  you? 

T h a t t s  r i g h t ,  Many t imes  r a d i c a l  p roposa l s  
were made from t h e  f l o o r  by i n d i v i d u a l s  and 
they  would be d iscussed  and even tua l ly  of  
course  they  would be voted on up o r  down. 
With few except ions,  t h e  membership would 
u s u a l l y  vo te  them down. I n  o t h e r  words, they
would l i s t e n  very c a r e f u l l y  t o  t h e  p o s i t i o n  of 
t h e  l e a d e r s  and those  who made t h e  p roposa l s  
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and i n  t h e  end what would be most l i k e l y  t o  
p r e v a i l  would be t h e  i d e a s  suggested by t h e  
1eadership,  

I see, I n  o t h e r  words t h e  l eader sh ip ,  what-
eve r  they  might pe r sona l ly  thinlg, t h e i r  job 
w a s  t o  keep i n  p r e t t y  c l o s e  touch t o  t h e  
op in ions  of t h e  membership? 

Yes, t h a t  w a s  so because of our  p rogress ive  
union s t a t u s  and because of  t h e  e f f o r t s  of 
t h e  l e a d e r s h i p  t o  p rese rve  t h a t  democratic 
s t a t u s  and t o  avoid provocat ions  by t h e  few 
members i n  oppos i t ion ,  We t r i e d  t o  keep t h e  
membership advised as t o  what t h e  problems 
were and how t o  r e s o l v e  them, 

Can you r e c a l l  any motion t h a t  came up on t h e  
f l o o r  of t h e  union t h a t  d i d  n o t  g e t  by t h e  
membership? 

Yes, a motion was made i n  a membership meet- 
i n g  by one of t h e  members of  t h e  l o c a l  who 
w a s  known as a member of  t h e  Communist party.  
He made a motion t h a t  we go on record  i n  
support  of t h e  candidacy of  E a r l  Browder f o r  
P res iden t ,  I t  d i d n ' t  ca r ry ,  Also a t  t h a t  
t ime Harry Bridges w a s  a c t i v e  i n  support  of 
Wendell Wil lk ie ,  I n  a s t o p  work meeting t o  
d i s c u s s  t h e  p o l i t i c a l  s i t u a t i o n  Harry ex-
p l a i n e d  why we should support  t h e  candidacy 
of Wendell Wil lkie ,  The membership d i d  n o t  
accept  t h a t ;  they tu rned  i t  down and voted i n  
f avor  of FDR, 

The Spanish Ques t ion  

L e t t s  talk about Spain, now, How d i d  t h a t  
i s s u e  come up i n  Local l o ?  

Well, when t h e  Spanish c i v i l  war broke o u t  we 
had many d i s c u s s i o n s  on t h a t  i n  our  union, 
whether we should t a k e  s i d e s ,  o r  go along 
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with t h e  American po l i cy  of n e u t r a l i t y ,  Bnd 
they  went on record  i n  support  o f ,  what do 
you c a l l  it? 

The Loya l i s t s?  

Yes, t h e  Loya l i s t s .  

You supported t h e  Spanish people i n  t h e i r  
s t r u g g l e  from monarchy t o  democracy and aga in s t  
d i c t a to r sh ip?  

Our members were i n t e r e s t e d  i n  t h a t  s t rugg le ;  
.q u i t e  a number of them fought i n  Spain, 

probably a ha l f  dozen from San Francisco,  
and a l s o  from up and down t h e  coast ,  Very
f requen t ly  dur ing  t h e  Spanish c i v i l  w a r ,  i t  
came up f o r  d i scuss ion  by our  membership, 
What would happen was t h a t  t h e  members would 
go on record  i n  favor  of donat ions  t o  support  
t h e  L o y a l i s t s  and t h a t  w a s  genera l ly  t h e  way 
i t  worked, I n  o t h e r  words, we passed assess-
ments f o r  t h a t  purpose, The union i t s e l f  had 
no money, The membership, i f  they voted an 
assessment, would be e s t a b l i s h i n g  t h e  f a c t  
t h a t  t h e  money came ou t  of t h e  members, 
pockets,  no t  out  of  t h e  union t r easury ,  

You mean every t ime they voted an assessment 
they  p a i d  i t  monthly through t h e  dues col lec-  
t i o n  process? 

Yes, they  did,  and a l s o  at  o t h e r  t imes  t h e r e  
would be voluntary  donations. 

That, s i n t e r e s t i n g ;  does i t  b r i n g  up a 
ques t ion  of  a c o n f l i c t  of  i dea s?  Did t h e  
guys vo te  donat ions  f o r  L o y a l i s t  Spain and 
still no t  support  revolut ion?  

It was on t h e  b a s i s  of what w a s  going on i n  
Spain - - - 

$ 

But t h e r e  were ob jec t ions ,  of course? 

Well, t h e r e  were some people who objected,  
bu t  as I say i t  was always voted on and t h e  
major i ty  c a r r i ed  t h e  v o t e  f o r  t h e  Loya l i s t s .  
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I suppose t h a t  i f  t h e  members be l ieved i n  
democracy i n  t h e  union, what 's  wrong i n  hav- 
i n g  democracy i n  Spain? 

Well, we were aware of t h e  s i t u a t i o n  i n  Spain, 
The members had been educated and they  knew 
what w a s  going ont and they  were ready t o  
support  t h e  Loyalists, 

You a l s o  supported o r g a n i z a t i o n s  which had a 
cons iderable  i n f l u e n c e  on t h e  a c t i v i t i e s  i n  
this country, 

C i v i l  r i g h t s  i s  one, and t h e  Committee f o r  
t h e  P r o t e c t i o n  of  t h e  Foreign Born i s  another,  
I n  o t h e r  words, at d i f f e r e n t  t imes  i n  Local 
10 we made recommendations and voted f o r  
assessments  t o  assist t h e s e  o r g a n i z a t i o n s  i n  
t h e i r  work, 

You seem t o  be saying  t h a t  Local 10 hab i tua l -
l y  yoved on a broad f r o n t  t o  support  progres- 
s i v e  causes, 

Yes, as a m a t t e r  of  f a c t ,  we a r e  proud t h a t  
o u r  members were w i l l i n g  t o  h e l p  such causes 
at  t h e i r  own expense, 
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XIV THE FIFTY-YEAR COMPARI som 

Labor-Saving Devices 

I t h i n k  t h a t  g i v e s  u s  an idea why your l o c a l  -
Local 10 - and t h e  I n t e r n a t i o n a l  ILWU had a 
r e p u t a t i o n  t h a t  i s  admired by many forward 
lotiking Americans, 

From t h a t  p o i n t  of  v i e w  yon a r e  e n t i t l e d  
t o  look back wi th  what I t h i n k  i s  a p r e t t y
i n t e r e s t i n g  pe rcep t ion  o f  t h e  advances and 
changes t h a t  have occurred  dur ing  t h e  last 
f i f t y  years ,  For  ins t ance ,  i n  t h e  work f i e l d ,  
what 's  t h e  i n d u s t r i a l  worker 's  p o s i t i o n  as a 
whole compared t o  f i f t y  y e a r s  ago? 

Well, through t h e  i n t r o d u c t i o n  of  labor-saving 
dev ices  - - -
The Mech Plan! 

The Mechanization P lan  h a s  made a b i g  change 
i n  t h e  p r e s e n t  working condi t ions ,  The union 
had a s p e c i a l  convention where t h e  ques t ion  
was whether t o  f i g h t  o r  accept  t h e  i n t r o d u c t i o n  
of  labor-saving devices,  The l e a d e r s h i p ,  t h e  
I n t e r n a t i o n a l ,  had c a r e f u l l y  s t u d i e d  this 
problem, and i t  was i t s  recommendation t h a t  i t  
would be b e t t e r  f o r  t h e  union t o  accept  t h e  
i n t r o d u c t i o n  of  labor-saving devices ,  provid- 
ed t h e r e  would be  something i n  i t  f o r  o u r  
members, .It was t h e  opin ion  of  t h e  leader-  
s h i p  t h a t  i f  we fought t h e  i n t r o d u c t i o n  of 
labor-saving devices,  even tua l ly  we would n o t  
be a b l e  t o  con t ro l  t h e  s i t u a t i o n  and t h e  union 
would be out. 
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So t h e  I n t e r n a t i o n a l  proposed a p lan  whereby 
a share  of t h e  savings  t h a t  would accrue t o  
t h e  employers by t h e  i n t roduc t i on  of labor-  
saving devices  would be given t o  ou r  members, 

That was g e t t i n g  a share  of t h e  p ie ,  wasn't 
i t ?  

Yes, i t  could be c a l l e d  a sha r e  of  t h e  p ie ,  
It r e s u l t e d  i n  an agreement t h a t  each regis -  
t e r e d  longshoreman would not  only ge t  h i s  
pension on re t i r ement  but  a l s o  a cash sum of 
money t h a t  s t a r t e d  ou t  at  $7800; i t  was 
l a t e r  i nc r ea sed  t o  $13,000, 

Th i s  was worked ou t  i n  t h r e e  agreements --
no, i n  two agreements, When t h e  t h i r d  nego- 
t i a t i o n s  took p l ace  t h e  employers explained 
t h a t  they had taken t h e  p o s i t i o n  t h a t  they 
would no t  cont inue on i n  making those  payments, 
I n  t h e  hh i rd  nego t i a t i ons  i t  was agreed t o  
i n c r e a s e  t h e  pension b e n e f i t s  ins tead ,  

So f o r  a number of yea r s  t h i n g s  were all 
se t .  The workers got  a l a r g e r  pension than  
they  previous ly  had been enjoying, Th i s  
caused t h e  ILWU longshoremen t o  r e ce ive  t h e  
h ighes t  b e n e f i t s  pa id  i n  t h e  longshore 
indus t ry ,  This  was money i n  t h e i r  pockets, 

Okay; now would you say, o v e r a l l ,  t h a t  ILWU 
longshoremen a r e  b e t t e r  o f f  on wages and 
b e n e f i t s  than  t h e  workers i n  o t h e r  i n d u s t r i e s 3  

Well, yes, as f a r  as i t  goes f o r  those  ac tua l -  
l y  working, But as we know, t h e r e  a r e  m i l -
l i o n s  of  unemployed; t h e r e  i s  no t  t h e  o u t l e t ,  
p a r t i c u l i r l y  i n  product ion indus t ry ,  

The wa te r f ron t  employers have no t  added 
men f o r  q u i t e  a number of years ,  and what 's  
happening i s  t h a t  ou r  membership i s  going 
down, For  example, i n  my las t  term as p re s i -
dent  of  Local 10, we had 5800 members, A t  
t h e  presemt time we a r e  down t o  1800.' 
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I suppose similar cond i t ions  e x i s t  i n  most 
o t h e r  i n d u s t r i e s ?  

The jobs, of  coarse,  a r e  endangered i n  t h e  
r e s t  of t h e  heavy i n d u s t r i e s ;  Yes, lumbersa l l  those  i n d u s t r i e s  a r e  heavi  y  a f f e c t e d  
by l a y - o f f s  and l o s s  of  o p p o r t u n i t i e s  f o r  
t h e  men. 

You mentioned lumber, When I was a boy i t  
would t a k e  q u i t e  a while  f o r  a bunch of men t o  
chop down a b i g  t r ee .  NOW with chain saws i t  
t a k e s  only  a few minutes, 

Something l i k e  tha t .  

Poor dev i l s !  What d i d  t h e  unemployed do? 

They were simply o u t  of  

Other I n d u s t r i e s  

Now l e t ' s  t a l k  of  t h i n g s  l i k e  e l e c t r o n i c s  and 
t h e  s e r v i c e  i n d u s t r i e s .  

F i r s t ,  l e t  me say t h a t  i n  heavy i n d u s t r y  
t h i n g s  a r e  no t  what they  used t o  be. 

How about e l e c t r o n i c s ?  

Yes, t h a t ' s  a b i g  improvement as f a r  as em-
ployment i s  concerned. That k i n d  of  work was 
never  done before;  I hea r  t h a t  i n  e l e c t r o n i c s  
o p p o r t u n i t i e s  a r e  much b e t t e r  nowadays f o r  
women than  they were i n  genera l  i n d u s t r y  
y e a r s  ago, I remember when t h e r e  was almost 
no work at  all f o r  women i n  t h e  auto  indus t ry .  

What k i n d  o f  work d i d  women auto  workers 
perform when you worked i n  t h e  auto  p l a n t s ?  

I n  those  days It d  say t h e r e  would be maybe 
80 o r  90 women compared t o  3000 men a c t u a l l y
working i n  assembly, What they were used f o r ,  



Bulcke: 

Ward: 

Bulcke: 

Ward: 

Bulcke: 

Ward: 

Bulcke: 

Nard: 

Bulcke: 

sometimes, was i n  t h e  assembly of dashboards .-
t h ings  of t h a t  sor t .  I t  was a time of upheav- 
al, when men and women had t o  f i g h t  f o r  t h e i r  
r i gh t s .  

Muscle? 

Muscle, yes; and then, of course, t h e  auto 
workers showed a l o t  of gu t s  i n  t h e i r  famous 
sitdown s t r i k e s  i n  t h e  Thi r t i e s .  

Those sitdown s t r i k e s  were r e a l l y  something. 

Yes, they put  up some marvelous s t rugg le s  
and they improved t h e i r  condi t ions  and wages 
a g rea t  deal. 

The women played an important  ro le?  

Yes, because t h e  women d id  t h e  p icke t ing  at 
t h e  p l an t  ga t e s  while t h e  men sat down i n s i d e  
t h e  p lants .  

Le t  me put  i t  t h i s  way -- suppose i n s t e a d  of 
coming t o  De t ro i t  i n  1920, when you were 1 8  
yea r s  of age, suppose you a r e  now 1 8  o r  20 but  
with t h e  background of experience you actual-  
l y  have, what would you choose i n  t h e  work 
f i e l d ?  

Tha t ' s  a hard quest ion t o  answer, because at 
t he  p resen t  time employment i s  down i n  all 
i n d u s t r i e s ,  e spec i a l l y  i f  you want steady
employment. I n  ILWU Longshore we do some-
th ing  c a l l e d  tl!travelingcc by which we t r y  t o  
keep all our  a c t i v e  members employed. T h i s  
a f f e c t s  t h e  men i n  t h a t  they can be t rans-
f e r r e d  from p o r t s  t h a t  have very l i t t l e  work 
t o  p o r t s  which have more steady employment. 
This, however, wouldn't help an ou t s ider ,  a 
newcomer, ge t  a longshore job. A member who 
" t ravels"  usua l ly  g e t s  only temporary work i n  
t h e  bus ie r  por t s ,  and t h e  men a r e  t r ans f e r r ed  
on t h e  understanding t h a t  they w i l l  s t a y  only 
f o r  t h e  time they a r e  a c t u a l l y  needed. 



Bul cke : 	 Actual ly,  what h a s  gone on i s  t h a t  men a r e  
look ing  around t o  s e e  where t h e  work is, We 
don't  l e t  people i n  from t h e  ou t s ide ,  bu t  we 
t r y  t o  keep o u r  men employed, 

What About Job  Chances? 

Ward: 	 Well, J e r r y ,  look  at  i t  this way -- you have 
s e v e r a l  ch i ld ren ,  yours  and Rusty' s, a t eacher ,  
an auto repairman and this o r  t h a t  o r  t h e  
o the r ,  Do you t h i n k  they  o r  any of t h e i r  
c h i l d r e n  have a decent chance of  employment 
nowadays? 

Bulcke: 	 Well, t h e  circumstances a r e  completely d i f -  
f e r e n t  today than  they were a few y e a r s  ago, 

Ward: 	 What about your grandchi ldren? 

Bulcke: 	 Today, f o r  example, my son Ken had h i s  own 
r e p a i r  bus iness ,  but  small b u s i n e s s  i s  so 
d i f f i c u l t  nowadays t h a t  he go t  out,  He took 
a job i n  t h e  fast  food f i e l d ,  bu t  very short-  
l y  they  demanded t h a t  he t r a n s f e r  t o  a loca-
t i o n  f a r  from home, For  family r easons  t h a t  
was imposs ib le ,  so now he manages a l o c a l  
s e r v i c e  s t a t i o n .  I n  any case,  we a r e  happy 
t h a t  he i s  a b l e  t o  cont inue work and have 
s t eady  employment, 

Ward: 	 When you came t o  San Francisco,  d i d  you 
cons ider  t y p e s  of employment o t h e r  than  
longshoring? 

Bulcke: 	 Well, i n  t h e  f i r s t  few y e a r s  when I worked 
as a longshoreman, I a l s o  looked around f o r  
o t h e r  jobs, 

Ward: 	 You were a l i t t l e  b i t  r e s t l e s s ,  unsure t h a t  
you wanted t o  cont inue longshoring? 
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Yes, I o f t e n  thought about look ing  f o r  o t h e r  
employment, 

What o t h e r  employment d id  you ' th ink  about? 

I checked o u t  va r ious  approaches. 

Barber? 

No, I didnt t f e e l  t h a t  I had enough expef i  
ience ,  

A s a i l o r ?  

No, no t  t h a t ,  I thought of t r y i n g  t o  f i n d  
work i n  chain  s t o r e s ,  I had some experience 
i n  t h a t ,  b u t  I wasnt t  success fu l  i n  g e t t i n g  
a job t h a t  p a i d  decent wages, I could make 
more on t h e  wa te r f ron t  t h a n  I could i n  o t h e r  
k i n d s  of  f i e l d s ,  so I decided t o  s t a y  on t h e  
water f ront ,  Of course,  working cond i t ions  
were t e r r i b l e  as compared t o  t h e  working 
cond i t ions  of  today, bu t  I s t ayed  with t h e  
longshore i n d u s t r y ;  and I t m  g l ad  I did, 

Comparing longshor ing  with working i n  an 
auto fac to ry ,  which d i d  you f i n d  more tax ing ,  
p h y s i c a l l y  and mentally? 

Longshoring, both p h y s i c a l l y  and mentally,  
The work on t h e  docks h a s  more v a r i e t y ,  so 
many d i f f e r e n t  t h i n g s  t o  learn .  Also you 
have t o  have a s t r o n g  back. 

I n  wartime were h i r i n g  cond i t ions  as s t r i c t  
as i n  o t h e r  t imes? 

I n  wartime we used t o  say t h a t  anyone who 
could climb t h e  one f l i g h t  of stairs t o  t h e  
h i r i n g  o f f i c e  w a s  accepted, 

There must have been q u i t e  a change when t h e  
war ended. 

Well, t hey  had t o  c u t  down on manpower. I n  
Local  1 0  a lone  we l a i d  o f f  a thousand men 
s t r i c t l y  on t h e  b a s i s  of  s e n i o r i t y :  l as t  L r e d ,- .  -
first f i red .  
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Weren't some women h i r ed  during wartime? 

Yes; at a guess I ' d  say we h i r e d  about 45 
women i n  San Francisco, mostly as j i t ney
dr ivers ;  and they d id  a good jab, 

What chance does a young man have nowadays of 
g e t t i n g  longshore work? 

P r a c t i c a l l y  none, 

Used t o  be a longshoreman could ge t  his son 
a longshore job, Is t h a t  still t rue?  

No, except i n  a case where a working long- 
shoreman dies,  Then his son can be taken 
i n t o  t h e  union i f  he pledges t o  support t h e  
family a s  h i s  dad had done, 

Things a r e  rough all over, I had an example 
t h e  o the r  day, There happens t o  be at t h e  
moment a s t r i k e  i n  t h e  telephone indust ry ,  My
granddaughter Ei leen works f o r  t h e  telephone 
company and she asked me, "Grandpa, ( she
knows my background) what do you th ink  a r e  my 
chances f o r  success??' And I t o l d  he r  t h a t  a s  
l ong  as t h e  workers s t i c k  toge ther  and s t i c k  
i t  out ,  they would win, She was q u i t e  satis-
f i e d  with t h a t  explanation, We went i n t o  
some explanat ion as t o  how the  s t r i k e r s  
should conduct themselves, and she f e l t  even 
more s a t i s f i e d  t h a t  they were on t h e  r i g h t  
t rack,  She was worried t h a t  t h e r e  w a s  no 
support f o r  t h e  s t r i k e ,  and I t o l d  her  t h a t  
would come, Sure enough, t h e  next day major 
union support came i n ,  a i d  they were success-
E..l 

This  E i leen  donct you th ink  she has  been 
conditioned a b i t  by being your granddaughter? 

No, she has  not  been conditioned by me because 
she has  only been married t o  my grandson f o r  
about a year,  Her f a t h e r  i s  a union man, and 
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t h a t  must have had something t o  do with he r  
thinking,  Also I no t i ce  t h a t  young people 
today a r e  much more aware of what's going
on than we were a t  t h e  same age, 

The Great cr'N. Labor Unitg 

J e r ry ,  you have a few good y e a r s  l e f t  i n  
l i f e ,  Anything you1 d l i k e  t o  do bes ides  look 
a f t e r  your chi ldren,  grandchildren and great-  
grandchildren? 

Well, bes ides  what youtve j u s t  mentioned, I 
want t o  continue t o  be a c t i v e  i n  t h e  pension- 
e r s ?  group t h a t  I ' v e  been p a r t  of t h e  l a s t  
many years ,  It keeps me i n  touch with what 
goes on on t h e  waterfront ,  and a lso ,  of course, 
i n  t h e  pensioners? group, which i s  very a c t i v e  
t o  see t h a t  b e n e f i t s  a r e  maintained and i n  
many i n s t a n c e s  increased,  

For  example, we w r i t e  many l e t t e r s  t o  
Congressmen, Senators,  and so fo r th ,  s t a t i n g
our p o s i t i o n  on t h e  va r ious  laws and o t h e r  
a t tempts  t h a t  a r e  be ing made t o  cu t  down on 
our  e x i s t i n g  bene f i t s ,  That g ive s  me a 
chance t o  p a r t i c i p a t e  and attempt t o  maintain 
and improve our  condit ions,  

Al l  t h e  t r o u b l e s  t h a t  a r e  going on t he se  days -
do they remind you of t h e  Th i r t i e s ?  

I n  some ways they do remind me of t h e  Th i r t i e s ,  
On t h e  o t h e r  hand what I s ee  i s  t h a t  t h e r e  
must be c l o s e r  cooperat ion between t h e  t r a d e  
unions; t h a t  i s  t o  say t h a t  i n  regard t o  
t h e i r  a f f i l i a t i o n  they should u n i t e  and 
support t h e  unions t h a t  a r e  being attacked.' 

The l a s t  few yea r s  i n d i c a t e  t h a t  employers? 
a t t a c k s  aga in s t  unions a r e  on t h e  constant  
inc rease ,  and i n  two of them t h e  l a b o r  move- 
ment d id  no t  g ive  f u l l  support as they should 
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when unions a r e  on s t r i k e  and t h e i r  members 
a r e  i n  need. We found i n  t h e  T h i r t i e s  t h a t  
although t h e  t r a d e  union movement was n o t  as 
s t rong,  t h e r e  were n o t  as many people or- 
ganized, t h e r e  was more understanding and 
support  i n  those  days f o r  those  who were o u t  
on s t r i k e ,  

Nowadays, t h e  p a s t  few years ,  where union 
a f t e r  union has  been p r a c t i c a l l y  destroyed 
because of  t h e  l a c k  of  support  from t h e  r e s t  
of  t h e  t r a d e  union movement, i t  i s  my hope 
t h a t  from now on, whenever t h e r e  i s  a union 
t h a t  h a s  t o  s t r u g g l e  t o  maintain i t s e l f  o r  
improve o r  mainta in  i t s  condi t ions ,  t h e  f u l l  
support  of  t h e  e n t i r e  t r a d e  union movement 
w i l l  be immediately organized and come o u t  i n  
support  of  t h e  workers who a r e  t r y i n g  t o  
mainta in  t h e i r  o rgan iza t ion  and t h e i r  union 
condi t ions ,  

I n  o t h e r  words, a r e  you t a l k i n g  genera l  s t r i k e  
now and then? 

I say t h a t ,  i f  necessary,  a genera l  s t r i k e  
should be c a l l e d  -- n a t u r a l l y  a f t e r  having 
s t u d i e d  t h e  s i t u a t i o n  -- because i f  i t  comes 
down t o  t h a t  p o i n t  where t h e  s u r v i v a l  of a 
union i s  at  s take ,  c e r t a i n l y  a genera l  s t r i k e  
should be used, 

Right  a t  t h e  end of  World War One t h e r e  was a 
l o t  of  t a l k  about a nation-wide genera l
s t r i k e  t o  prevent  t h e  execut ion of  Tom Mooney; 
and i t  was s a i d  at  t h a t  t ime t h a t  h a l f  a 
m i l l i o n  men were w i l l i n g  t o  l e a v e  t h e i r  jobs 
f o r  one day f o r  t h a t  s t r i k e .  But i t  d i d n ' t  
happen. Could such come again? 

It c e r t a i n l y  could, and under c e r t a i n  condi- 
t i o n s  I agree  t h a t  i t  should, because t h e  
workers must show t h e i r  a b i l i t y  t o  s t i c k  
t o g e t h e r  and l e t  t h e  employers and t h e  r e s t  
of  t h e  t r a d e  unions know t h a t  they can and 
w i l l  f i g h t  t o  mainta in  t h e i r  r i g h t s  and 
condit ions.  
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I n  o t h e r  words, would you renew t h e  o l d  
s logan ,  "An i n j u r y  t o  one i s  an i n j u r y  t o  
all?&' 

That1 s r i g h t ,  It stil l  i s  t h e  s logan  f o r  
t h e  ILWU, We had i t  t o  start wi th  and we 
still b e l i e v e  i n  i t  very s t r o n g l y ,  

Going back to^ t h e  ILWU as you j u s t  have, i s  
i t  going  t o  surv ive?  

A s  f a r  as I can t e l l  from my exper ience ,  I 
c e r t a i n l y  f e e l  t h a t  t h e  ILWU w i l l  con t inue  
t o  be a s t r o n g  t r a d e  union, 

You had q a i t e a  good educa t ion  as a boy, Do 
you f e e l  t h a t  your  l i f e  i n  t h e  union h a s  
given you a f u r t h e r  educa t ion?  

It  c e r t a i n l y  has. The school  educa t ion  was 
one t h i n g ,  bu t  t h e  educa t ion  r e c e i v e d  i n  t h e  
y e a r s  of hard  work, unemployment and so f o r t h ,  
was c e r t a i n l y  an educa t ion  by i t s e l f ,  and was 
a g r e a t  h e l p  t o  me, 

There a r e  some p e c u l i a r i t i e s  about your union 
of  which I t h i n k  y o u t r e  p r e t t y  proud, Could 
you mention some of  them -- t h e  e x t e n t  t o  
which democracy goes, t h e  vo ice  of  t h e  work- 
e r s ?  

Well,  one of  t h e  o u t s t a n d i n g  p o i n t s  o f  o u r  
union i s  t h a t  we do n o t  d i s c r i m i n a t e  a g a i n s t  
anyone because of  c o l o r ,  creed,  r e l i g i o n ,  o r  
what have you, We have a mix tu re  of  people ,  
and they  have t h e  r i g h t  t o  e x p r e s s  t h e i r  
op in ions ,  and t h i n g s  a r e  always done by a 
m a j o r i t y  vote ,  so  t h a t  a c t u a l l y  we s e t  an 
example f o r  many o t h e r  un ions  who i n  one way 
o r  a n o t h e r  were d i s c r i m i n a t o r y  a g a i n s t  o t h e r  
workers because of t h e i r  background o r  what 
have you, That  i n  t h e  ILWU neve r  e l d s t e d ,  
and I ' m  s u r e  never  w i l l  exist, 
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Do you t h ink  t h a t  t h e  example s e t  by t h e  ILWU 
has  h a d - m y  e f f e c t  on t h e  l i v e s  of working 
people t h a t  know of it? Do you ever  hear  i t ?  

Well, occas ional ly  we do hear  -- o r  heard --
t h a t  t h e  p o l i c i e s  of t h e  ILWU were discussed 
by o the r  o rgan iza t ions  -- t r a d e  unions -- and 
i n  some i n s t a n c e s  were accepted, Not i n  
every case,  but  genera l ly  speaking t h e  ILWU 
p o l i c i e s  have been accepted by many unions 
and recognized as being t h e  r i g h t  k ind  of  
o rgan iza t iona l  a c t i v i t y ,  

P a r t i c u l a r l y  t h e  newer unions? 

The newer unions, yes; d e f i n i t e l y ,  

Could you name a coup1.e of  t h e  newer unions? 

Well, l e t ' s  say t h a t  t h e  newer unions a r e  
b e t t e r  organized. The o l d e r  unions, as f a r  
as t h a t ' s  concerned, some of t h e i r  a c t i v i t i e s  
i n  t h e i r  e a r l i e r  days were no t  i n  accordance 
with what we be l i eve  i n  t h e  ILWU, Some of  
those  unions have accepted a change i n  t h e i r  
a t t i t u d e  and ways of  doing business,  s i m i l a r  
t o  t h e  r u l e s  and r egu l a t i ons  t h a t  we adopted
i n  t h e  ILWU, 

I n  my own o r i g i n a l  union, l o c a l l y  and perhaps 
i n t e r n a t i o n a l l y ,  we consulted with t h e  ILWU 
at  every t u r n  when we were g e t t i n g  going i n  
t h e  Newspaper Guild, It  was a g rea t  he lp  t o  
U S *  , 

There 's  no quest ion t h a t  bes ides  your organ- 
i z a t i o n ,  o the r  unions, too,  have bene f i t t ed  
from d i scuss ing  t h e i r  problems with t h e  ILWU 
and accept ing  some of  our  ways of doing 
th ings ,  The l L W U  always reached ou t  and t r i e d  
t o  he lp  any t r a d e  union o rgan iza t ion  t h a t  
needed help,  whether on s t r i k e  o r  not ,  i n  or- 
de r  t o  make i t  funct ion  much b e t t e r  and do a 
b e t t e r  job f o r  i t s  members, 
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I have a c t u a l l y  seen t h e  ILWU h i r i n g  h a l l  
emptied t o  h e l p  ou t  on a p i c k e t  l i n e  i n  a 
s t r i k e  s i t u a t i o n  of another  union, 

Tha t ' s  been t h e  p o l i c y  o f  t h e  ILWU f o r  years ,  
Whenever a t r a d e  union i s  on s t r i k e  we t r y  
t o  h e l p  o u t  on t h e  p i c k e t  l i n e ,  and a l s o  of  
course make donat ions  and he lp  i n  every way 
we can, 

I remember when i n  Mine-Mill we needed he lp  
I went t o  Ed R e i t e  ( former s e c r e t a r y - t r e a s u r e r  
of  Local 1 0 )  with my h a t  i n  my hand, ask ing
f o r  a donation -- and f requen t ly  got  i t ,  too. 

Right, 

I t h i n k  of  t h e  need f o r  unions t o  make u s e  of 
t h a t  o l d  slogan, lfAn i n j u r y  t o  one i s  an 
i n j u r y  t o  alln more f r e q u e n t l y  i n  b r o t h e r l y  
cooperat ion than h a s  been evident  i n  t h e  
r e c e n t  pas t ,  Do you s e e  any s i g n s  t h a t  t h a t ' s  
coming? 

I t h i n k  so, at l e a s t  i n  observ ing  t h e  s t r i k e  
a c t i v i t i e s  of t h e  unions which have unfor- 
t u n a t e l y  g o t t e n  t o  t h a t  poin t ,  

I s e e  t h a t  t h e r e  i s  more recogn i t ion  of  
t h e  need of working c l o s e r  t o g e t h e r  with t h e  
o t h e r  t r a d e  unions; and a l s o  they  have q u i t e  
n a t u r a l l y  asked t h e  l e a d e r s h i p  of t h e  ILWU 
f o r  sugges t ions  and methods whereby they  
could quickly  r e s o l v e  t h e i r  problems, 

L e t ' s  t a l k  about t h e  air c o n t r o l l e r s f  s t r i k e ,  
and what happened and what didn' t happen, 

Well, i t  i s  q u i t e  c l e a r  now t h a t  t h e  t r a d e  
union movement, o v e r a l l ,  d i d  no t  come o u t  
and g ive  t h e  support  t o  t h e  air  c o n t r o l l e r s  
a t  t h e  t ime when i t  w a s  badly needed, That 
r e s u l t e d  i n  t h a t  union being destroyed, 

Do you t h i n k  t h a t  t h e  f a c t  t h a t  t h e  air con-
t r o l l e r s  were making much more i n  wages than  
most union members had anyth ing  t o  do with i t ?  
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I don't t h ink  so. I don?t be l i eve  t h a t  had 
any bea r ing  on t h e  l a c k  of support  t h a t  should 
have been given those  workers a t  t h e  time, We 
know now t h a t  t h e  movement t o  des t roy  t h a t  
union w a s  supported by t h e  government t o  t h e  
f u l l e s t  extent ,  A s  I sa id ,  t h e  r e s t  of t h e  
t r a d e  nnion movement d i d  not  see  t h e  danger 
t h a t  t h a t  union might be destroyed, 

S ince  then  we have seen t h e  r e s u l t  of t h e  
Greyhound s t r i k e ,  where they  were no t  q u i t e
g e t t i n g  t h e  support  they  should have and were 
fo rced  t o  accept  a con t r ac t  with l o s s  of 
working cond i t ions  and wages, 

Th i s  i s  t h e  danger t h a t  e x i s t s ,  and t h e r e  
again I must emphasize t h a t  whenever a union 
i s  on s t r i k e  o r  f i n d s  i t s e l f  forced  out  on 
s t r i k e ,  t h e  r e s t  of  t h e  t r a d e  union movement 
must immediately organize  i t s e l f  t o  g ive  all 
t h e  support  i t  can t o  those  unions, Other-
wise, they  w i l l  a l l  be knocked o f f  one by 
one, 

It i s  very c l e a r  now t h a t  u n l e s s  t h e  en- 
t i r e  t r a d e  union movement s o l i d i f i e s  i t s e l f  
and goes ou t  i n  support  of those  who have 
t o  go ou t  on s t r i k e  o r  a r e  forced  out  on 
s t r i k e ,  n a t u r a l l y  t h e  r e s u l t s  w i l l  be bad 
u n l e s s  we  ge t  t h a t  k ind  of support ,  I t  i s  
obvious now t h a t  such support  must be for th-  
coming r i g h t  at  t h e  beginning of any s t r i k e ,  

Would i t  be s a f e  t o  say t h a t  if t h a t  k ind  of 
a s i t u a t i o n  were developed where a s t r i k i n g
union found i n s t a n t  support ,  t h e  l i k e l i h o o d  
of employer-inspired v io lence  would be much 
l e s s ?  

De f in i t e l y ,  because i f  t h e  employers s ee  t h a t  
t h e  t r a d e  nnion movement i s  i n  f u l l  suppo rt 
of those  t h a t  a r e  ou t  on s t r i k e  they  woul d 
understand t h a t  v io lence  i n  an at tempt t o  
smear t h e  t r a d e  union movement would not  
work. 
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And t h a t  danger always e x i s t s  where t h e  em-
p loyer  t r i e s  t o  break t h e  p i c k e t l i n e  and run  
i n  s t r i k e b r e a k e r s ?  Those t h i n g s  a r e  obviously 
provocat ions  which t h e  union h a s  t o  meet 
somehow o r  o the r ,  

D e f i n i t e l y ,  Any union on s t r i k e  i s  bound 
t o  t a k e  a c t i o n  t o  s e e  t o  i t  t h a t  s t r i k e -
b r e a k e r s  a r e  n o t  used; and wherever they  a r e  
used, t o  t r y  t o  minimize i t  o r  s t o p  it. That 
i s  i n h e r e n t  i n  any s t r i k e .  

The unions have t o  recognize t h a t  when one 
of  t h e  unions i s  on s t r i k e  i t  must r e c e i v e  t h e  
support  of all t h e  t r a d e  unions. 

Can we end wi th  t h i s  -- t h e  key word t o  t h e  
whole t h i n g  i s  u n i t y  of  t h e  workers? 

Unity of  t h e  workers, recogniz ing  t h a t  an 
i n j u r y  t o  one i s  an i n j u r y  t o  a l l .  

T ransc r ibe r  and f i n a l  t y p i s t :  Angela Ward 
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Tribune, proceeding t o  t o p  r e w r i t e ,  genera l  assignment, and 
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t ime i n  t h e  burgeoning C I O  l a b o r  movement. Resigned his c o u r t  
job t o  become founding execut ive  s e c r e t a r y  of t h e  Alameda 
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